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Radico Khaitan Limited
Registered Office: Bareilly Road, Rampur – 244 901 (UP) 

CIN L26941UP1983PLC027278
E-mail: Investor@radico.co.in | Website: www.radicokhaitan.com 

Ph: 0595-2350601-2 | Fax: 0595-2350009

Notice is hereby given that the 37th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of Radico Khaitan Limited (“the 
Company”) will be held on Tuesday, September 28, 2021 at 01:00 P.M. (IST) at the registered office of the Company at 
Rampur Distillery, Bareilly Road, Rampur - 244 901 (UP) to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business(s)

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2021 together with the reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and in this 
regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary 

Resolution: 

	 “RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2021 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the 
members, be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.”

2.	 To declare dividend on equity shares of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and in this regard, to 
consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT a dividend @ `2.40 per equity share of face value of `2/- each of the Company, as recommended 
by the Board of Directors, be and is hereby declared and the same be paid out of the profits of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2021.” 

3.	 To re-appoint Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, who retires by rotation as a Director and in this regard, to consider and if thought 
fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, Mr. Abhishek Khaitan (DIN: 00772865), who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for the  
re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retired by rotation.”

4.	 To appoint M/ s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditor of the Company and 
in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution.

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 3 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time 
being in force), the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded, to appoint M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, 
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013), as Statutory Auditor of the Company for a period 
of 5 consecutive financial years starting from financial year 2021-22 and that they shall hold office from the conclusion 
of this Annual General Meeting (AGM) until the conclusion of 42nd AGM of the Company, on such remuneration as 
may be mutually agreed between the Board of Director and the Statutory Auditors.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Dr. Lalit Khaitan, Chairman & Managing Director, Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, Managing Director, 
Mr. Dilip Kumar Banthiya, Chief Financial Officer, and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Gupta, Vice President-Legal & Company 
Secretary, be and is hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required to give effect 
to this resolution including filing of requisite e-forms with the Registrar of Companies.”

NOTICE
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Special Business(s)

5.	 To approve the payments of remuneration to Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, Managing Director and Promoter of the Company 
and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 

Special Resolution.

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(6)(e) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015) and other applicable regulations, and subject to the 
maximum remuneration approved by the members at the 33rd Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2017, 
approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for payment of remuneration to Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, Managing 
Director and Promoter of the Company as per the Regulation 17(6)(e) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, w.e.f. 1st 
April, 2019 for the remaining tenure of his appointment i.e., upto February 19, 2023.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby severally authorised to do all 
acts, deeds and things, necessary and expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

6. 	 To ratify the remuneration of Cost Auditors for the financial year 2021-22 and, in this regard, to consider and if thought 
fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as may be amended from time to time, remuneration 
payable to Mr. R. Krishnan (Membership No. 7799), Cost Accountant, appointed by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, to conduct audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year 2021-22, amounting to ̀ 110,000/- 
(Rupees One Lakh Ten thousand only) apart from reimbursement of actual expenses to be incurred by him in 
connection with conducting the aforesaid audit, be and is hereby confirmed, rectified and approved.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all acts, deeds, matters and 
things as may be deemed necessary to give effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board

For Radico Khaitan Limited

(Dinesh Kumar Gupta)

Place: New Delhi	 VP– Legal & Company Secretary
Date: July 28, 2021		

NOTES:

(1)	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the 37th Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies 
to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself/ herself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. 
Pursuant to Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 a person shall not act as proxy for more than fifty (50) members and holding in the aggregate not more 
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 
10% of the total share capital of a Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such 
person shall not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder.

	 Proxies, to be effective, must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

	 Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting pursuant to Section 
113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board resolution 
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

	 Members are requested to notify immediately the changes of address, if any, to the Company or the Share Transfer 
Agent and Registrar.

(2)	 Members are requested to bring their Attendance Slip.

(3)	 Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their Client ID and DPID and those who hold 
shares in physical form are requested to write their Folio Number in the attendance slip for attending the Meeting.

(4)	 The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Wednesday, 
September 22, 2021 to Tuesday, September 28, 2021, both days inclusive.
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(5)	 The dividend on Equity Shares @ ` 2.40 per equity share, if declared at the Meeting, will be paid after  
October 03, 2021 to those Members whose names shall appear on the Company’s Register of Members on  
September 22, 2021. In respect of the shares held in dematerialized form, the dividend will be paid to members whose 
names are furnished by National Securities Depository Ltd. and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. as at the 
closing hours on September 21, 2021.

(6)	 Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to furnish the new Bank Account Number allotted to them 
by their bank, (after implementation of CBS), along with photocopy of a cheque pertaining to the concerned account, 
to their Depository Participant (DP). Please send these details to the Company/Registrars, if the shares are held in 
physical form, immediately.

	 Members holding shares in physical form are advised to submit particulars of their bank account, viz. name and 
address of the branch of the bank, MICR code of the branch, type of account and account number ,relating to shares 
and unclaimed dividends, change of address, bank details, email address etc. to the RTA at the following address 
latest by September 21, 2021 to our Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Kfin Technologies Private Limited, Karvy 
Selenium Tower B, Plot number 31&32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally Mandal, Hyderabad – 500032.

(7)	 Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to inform the Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, M/s. Kfin 
Technologies Private Limited, immediately of:

(a)	 Change in their Residential status on return to India for permanent settlement.

(b)	 Particulars of their Bank Account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type, account number 
and address of the Bank with Pin Code Number, if not furnished earlier.

(8)	 Pursuant to SEBI circular dated 20th April 2018, members whose ledger folios having incomplete details with regard 
to PAN and Bank particulars are required to compulsorily furnish the same to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents 
(RTA)/ to the Company for registration in the folio.

	 Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same order of 
names are requested to send the share certificates to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent – Kfin Technologies 
Private Limited for consolidation into a single folio. 

(9)	 In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as first holder in the order of names as per the Register of 
Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 

(10)	As per the provisions of the Act, nomination facility is available to the Members in respect of the shares held by them. 
Members holding shares in single name and physical form may send duly completed and signed nomination form to 
the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent – Kfin Technologies Private Limited (nomination form can be downloaded 
from the Company’s website www.radicokhaitan.com). Members holding shares in dematerialised form may contact 
their respective Depository Participants.

(11)	 Compulsory transfer of Equity Shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Account: In terms of the 
requirements of Section 124(6) of the Act read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority 
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 as amended (“the Rules”), the Company is required to transfer 
the shares in respect of which the dividend has remained unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven consecutive years 
to the IEPF Account. 

	 Members are requested to take note of the same and claim their unclaimed dividends immediately to avoid transfer 
of the underlying shares to the IEPF Account. The shares transferred to the IEPF Account can be claimed back by the 
concerned Members from IEPF Authority after complying with the procedure prescribed under the Rules. 

	 Pursuant to the applicable provisions, the amount of dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven 
years from the date of transfer to the unpaid dividend account, is required to be transferred to the IEPF Account.

	 Accordingly, unpaid or unclaimed dividend in respect of Final Dividend for the financial year 2013-14, is being 
transferred to the IEPF. Members who have not encashed or claimed the dividends that are yet to be transferred to 
the IEPF, are requested to contact the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent – KFin Technologies Private 
Limited (‘KFINtech’) at the earliest.

	 During the Financial Year 2020-21, the Company has transferred 99566 shares to the IEPF Account.

	 In terms of the circular, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed dividend and the same can 
be viewed on www.radicokhaitan.com.
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(12)	 In accordance with the provisions of Schedule VI of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 
2015, the Company had opened a demat account namely “Radico Khaitan Limited – Unclaimed Suspense Account” 
with Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited and as on March 31, 2021 there is nil shares in the said account.

(13)	 As per Regulation 40 of Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only in 
dematerialized form with effect from 1st April 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of 
securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, 
members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. 
Members can contact the Company or Company’s RTA for assistance in this regard. 

(14)	 In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated 12th May 2020, the Annual Report 2020-21, the Notice 
of the 37th AGM and the instructions for e-voting are being sent by electronic mode to all the Members whose 
e-mail addresses are registered with the Company / respective Depository Participants. Members may also note 
that the Annual Report 2020-21 and the Notice convening the AGM are also available on the Company’s i.e. www.
radicokhaitan.com, Websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com, respectively.

(15)	 Additional information pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations regarding Director retiring by 
rotation and seeking re-appointment:

	 MR. ABHISHEK KHAITAN

	 Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, aged 48 years, is a Managing Director of the Company. He holds Bachelor’s Degree in 
Engineering (Industrial Production) and qualifications in Managerial Finance and Managerial Accounting from Harvard 
University, USA. He is a talented industrialist and has been responsible for the exponential growth of the Company. He 
is associated with the Company for over 23 years. His functional expertise is strategy, financial planning & marketing.

	 Recognising his outstanding contribution to the Indian liquor industry and transformation of Radico Khaitan, he has 
been conferred upon various awards, including the prestigious “Bhartiya Udyog Ratan Award” by the Govt. of India, 
“National Industrial Excellence Award” by the World Economic Progress Society.

	 He is on the Board of the Company since January 28, 2003. Apart from the Company, he also holds directorship in the 
Confederation of Indian Alcoholic Beverage Companies (Section 8 Company). He is also member of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee of the Company.

	 During the year, Mr. Abhishek Khaitan attended all four meetings of Board of Directors of the Company. 

	 Upon re-appointment, Mr. Abhishek Khaitan shall be Director liable to retire by rotation. Mr. Abhishek Khaitan being 
son of Dr. Lalit Khaitan, Chairman & Managing Director, is related to him. He is not related to any other Director and 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

By order of the Board
For Radico Khaitan Limited

(Dinesh Kumar Gupta)
Place: New Delhi	 VP–Legal & Company Secretary
Date: July 28, 2021		

Voting through electronic means in terms of the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 20 
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and Regulation 44 of the 
Listing Regulations and the MCA Circulars, the Company is pleased to provide the facility of “e-voting” to its Members, to 
enable them to cast their votes on the resolutions proposed to be passed at the AGM, by electronic means. The instructions 
for e-voting are given herein below. The Company has engaged the services of KFin Technologies Private Limited, who will 
provide the e-voting facility of casting votes to a Shareholder using remote e-voting system (e-voting from a place other 
than venue of the AGM) (“remote e-voting”). The remote e-voting period commences on 24.09.2021 (9:00 A.M. IST) and 
ends on 27.09.2021 (5:00 P.M. IST). 

During this period, Members holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 21.09.2021 i.e. cut-off 
date, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by KFin Technologies Private Limited for 
voting thereafter. Those Members, who will be present in the AGM have not cast their vote on the Resolutions through 
remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote during the AGM. 

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s. TVA & Co. LLP, Company Secretary firm, to act as the Scrutinizer, to scrutinize 
the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.



AGM Notice

Radico Khaitan Limited  |     5

Mr. Tanuj Vohra, Company Secretary having Membership No. F5621 and Certificate of Practice No. 5253 as a Scrutinizer to 
scrutinize the voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

Manner of Registering / Updating Email Addresses: Members holding shares in dematerialised mode, are requested to 
register their email addresses and mobile numbers with their relevant depositors through their depository participants. 
Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to furnish email addresses and mobile numbers with the Company’s 
Registrars and Share Transfer Agent, KFin Technologies Private Limited, Selenium Tower B, Plot NO. 31 & 32, Gachibowli, 
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilimgampally, Hyderabad - 500032, Toll Free Tel: 1- 800-309-4001, Email: einward.
ris@kfintech.com, Website: www.kfintech.com. 

The details of the process and manner for remote e-Voting and e-AGM are explained herein below:

Step 1 : Access to Depositories e-Voting system in case of individual members holding shares in demat mode.

Step 2 : Access to KFintech e-Voting system in case of members holding shares in physical and non-individual members 
in demat mode. 

Step 1 : Access to Depositories e-Voting system in case of individual members holding shares in demat mode.

Login Method for Individual Members holding Shares of the Company in Demat mode through National Securities 
Depository Limited (“NSDL”) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”):

NSDL CDSL

1. User already registered for IDeAS facility:

I.	 URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com
II.	 Click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under ‘IDeAS’ 

section. 
III.	 On the new page, enter User ID and Password. 

Post successful authentication, click on “Access 
to e-Voting” 

IV.	 Click on company name of the e-Voting service 
provider and you will be re-directed to e-Voting 
service provider website, select the Company 
name Soft Sol India Limited from the Drop down 
button for casting the vote during the remote 
e-Voting period.

2. User not registered for IDeAS e-Services

I.	 To register click on link :https://eservices.nsdl.
com

II.	 Select “Register Online for IDeAS”

III.	 Proceed with completing the required fields.

3. User not registered for IDeAS e-Services

I.	 To register click on link :
	 https : //eserv ices .nsd l .com/SecureWeb/

IdeasDirectReg.jsp
ii.	 Proceed with completing the required fields.

4. By visiting the e-Voting website of NSDL

i.	 Open URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
ii.	 Click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section.
iii.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter 

your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account 
number held with NSDL), Password / OTP and a 
Verifi cation Code as shown on the screen.

iv.	 Post successful authentication, you will be 
requested to select the name of the company and 
the e-Voting Service Provider name, i.e.KFintech.

v.	 On successful selection, you will be redirected 
to KFintech e-Voting page for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period.

1. Existing user who have opted for Easi / Easiest

I.	 URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/
login

 or 
	 URL: www.cdslindia.com
II.	 Click on New System Myeasi
III.	 Login with user id and password. 
IV.	 The user will see the e-Voting Menu. The Menu 

will have links of ESP i.e. KFintech e-Voting 
portal.

V.	 Click on e-Voting service provider name to cast 
your vote.

2. User not registered for Easi/Easiest

I.	 Option to register is available at 
	 https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/

EasiRegistration
II.	 Proceed with completing the required fields.

3. By visiting the e-Voting website of CDSL

I.	 URL: www.cdslindia.com
II.	 Provide demat Account Number and PAN No. 
III.	 System will authenticate user by sending OTP 

on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
demat Account.

IV.	 After   successful authentication, user will 
be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. 
KFINTECH where the e- Voting is in progress.
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Individual Member login through their demat accounts / 
Website of Depository Participant

•	 You can also login using the login credentials of your 
demat account through your DP registered with NSDL /
CDSL for e-Voting facility.

•	 Once logged-in, you will be able to see e-Voting option.
Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected 
to NSDL / CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature.

•	 Click on options available against company name or 
e-Voting service provider – Kfintech and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of KFintech for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period without 
any further authentication.

Important note:

Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option 
available at above mentioned website.

Members facing any technical issue - NSDL Members facing any technical issue - CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 
or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or 22-
23058542-43.

Step 2 : Access to KFintech e-Voting system in case of members holding shares in physical and non-individual members 

in demat mode. 

1.	 In case a Member receives an email from kfintech (for Members whose email Ids are registered with the Company/
Depository Participant(s):

i)	 Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://evoting.kfintech.com in the address bar and click on “Enter”. 
The Home screen will be displayed then click on members icon in the homepage.

ii)	 Enter the login credentials (i.e.User ID and password mentioned over leaf). Your Folio No. DP ID – Client ID will be 
your User ID. However, if you are already registered with Kfintech for E-voting, you can use your existing User ID 
and password for casting your vote.

iii)	 After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN”.

iv)	 You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to mandatory change your password. The 
new password shall comprise minimum characters with at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case (a-z), 
one numeric (0-9) and a special character (@#s.etc). The system will prompt you to change your password 
and update your contact details like mobile number, email ID. etc. on first login. You may also enter a secret 
question and answer of your choice to retrieve password and that you take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential.

v)	 You need to login again with the new credentials.

vi)	 On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the E-Voting Event Number for Radico Khaitan Limited.

vii)	 On the voting page enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes) as on the Cut-off Date 
under each of the heading of the resolution and cast your vote by choosing the “FOR/ AGAINST “option or 
alternatively, you may partially enter any number in “FOR” and partially in “AGAINST” but the total number in 
“FOR/AGAINST” taken together should not exceed your total shareholding as mentioned overleaf. You may also 
choose the option “ABSTAIN” and the shares held will not be counted under either head. Option “FOR” implies 
assent to the resolution and “AGAINST” implies dissent to the resolution.

viii)	 Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts shall choose the voting process separately for each of the 
folios/ demat accounts.

ix)	 Voting has to be done for each item of the Notice separately. In case you do not desire to cast your vote on any 
specific item it will be treated as abstained.
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x)	 You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on “Submit”.

xi)	 A confirmation box will be displayed Click “OK” to confirm else “CANCEL” to modify. Once you confirm, you will 
not be allowed to modify your vote. During the voting period, Members can login any number of times till they 
have voted on the Resolution(s).

xii)	 Corporate/ Institutional Members (i.e other than Individuals, HUF,NRI, etc.) are also required to send scanned 
certified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board Resolution / Authority Letter, etc., together with attested specimen 
signature(S) of the duly authorized representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at e-mail ID:tanujvohra@yahoo.com or 
evoting@kfintech.com They may also upload the same in the E-voting module in their login. The scanned image 
of the above mentioned documents should be in the naming format “Corporate Name_EVENTNO”.

2.	 Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently, Further, 
the Members who have cast their vote electronically shall not be allowed to vote again at the Meeting.

3.	 In case of any query pertaining to E-voting, please visit Help & FAQ’s section available at Kfintech website  
https://evoting.kfintech.com. 

4.	 The members who have cast their vote by remote E-voting may also attend AGM, but shall not be entitled to cast their 
vote again.

5.	 The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to the paid-up value of their shares in the equity capital of the 
Company as on the Cut-off date, being, 21.09.2021.

6.	 The Board of Directors has appointed M/s. TVA & CO.LLP, Company Secretary firm, to act as the Scrutinizer to 
scrutinize the E-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

7.	 The facility for ballot / polling paper shall be made available at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and the members 
attending AGM who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to vote at the AGM through ballot / 
polling paper.

8.	 A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the 
depositories at the close of business hours on 21.09.2021 shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote E-voting.

9.	 Any person who becomes member of the Company after email of the Notice of the meeting and holding shares as on 
the cut-off date i.e. 21.09.2021 may obtain the User Id and password by in the manner as mentioned below:

a.	 If the mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No./ DPID Client ID, the member may send SMS: 
MYEPWD<space> E-Voting Event Number +Folio no. or DPID Client ID to +91-9212993399 Example for NSDL: 
MYEPWD<SPACE>IN12345612345678 Example for CDSL: MYEPWD<SPACE>1402345612345678 Example for 
Physical: MYEPWD<SPACE> XXXX1234567890

b.	 If e-mail address or mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No. / DPID Client ID, then on the 
home page of https://evoting.kfintech.com, the member may click “Forgot Password” and enter Folio No. or DPID 
Client ID and PAN to generate a password.

c.	 Member may Call KFintech Toll free number 1- 800-309-4001

d.	 Member may send an e-mail request to evoting@kfintech.com / suresh.d@kfintech.com

10.	 However, if you are already registered with Kfintech for E-voting, you can use your existing User ID and password for 
casting your vote.

11.	 The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the 
meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not 
in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the Annual General 
meeting, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a 
person authorized in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

12.	 The Results on resolutions shall be declared at or after the Annual General Meeting of the Company and the resolutions 
will be deemed to be passed on the Annual General Meeting date subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes 
in favour of the Resolutions.
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13.	 The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report(s) will be available on website of the Company  
(www.radicokhaitan.com) and on Kfintech website (https://evoting.Kfintech.com). The results shall simultaneously be 
communicated to Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Other Instructions: 

1.	 Those persons, who have acquired shares and have become Members of the Company after the email of Notice of the 
AGM by the Company and whose names appear in the Register of Members or Register of beneficial holders as on 
the cut-off date i.e. 21.09.2021 shall view the Notice of the AGM on the Company’s website or on the website of KFin 
Technologies Private Limited.

2.	 Such persons may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@kfintech.com. However, if he/
she is already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then he/she can cast his/her vote by using existing User ID 
and password and by following the procedure as mentioned above or by voting at the AGM. 

3.	 Voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid- up equity share capital of the Company 
as on the cut-off date i.e. 21.09.2021. A person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for 
information purposes only. 

4.	 Every Client ID No./Folio No. will have one vote, irrespective of number of joint holders. 

5.	 The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during the 
AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not later than 48 (forty eight) hours of 
conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the 
Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same. 

	 The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website  
www.radicokhaitan.com immediately. The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.

By order of the Board

For Radico Khaitan Limited

(Dinesh Kumar Gupta)

Place: New Delhi	 VP– Legal & Company Secretary
Date: July 28, 2021		
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Radico Khaitan Limited
Registered Office: Bareilly Road, Rampur – 244 901 (UP) 

CIN L26941UP1983PLC027278
E-mail: Investor@radico.co.in | Website: www.radicokhaitan.com 

Ph: 0595-2350601-2 | Fax: 0595-2350009

EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The following Explanatory Statements set out all material facts relating to the Special Businesses mentioned in the 
accompanying Notice.

Item No. 4

(Disclosure Pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of Listing Regulations) 

In terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
made thereunder, lays down the criteria for appointment and mandatory rotation of Auditors. As per Section 139 of the 
said Act, the term of present Auditors of the Company, M/s. BGJC & Associates LLP (‘BGJC’), Chartered Accountants, will 
expire at the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. The total remuneration paid to BGJC for the financial year 2020-21 
is ` 53.89 Lakhs inclusive of goods and services tax and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses. 

On the recommendation of Audit Committee, the Board of Directors (‘the Board’) at its meeting held on July 28, 2021 has 
recommended the appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 
001076N/N500013), a Firm of Chartered Accountants, as Auditors of the Company, on a remuneration of ` 75 Lakhs (for 
first financial year) exclusive of goods and services tax and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, to hold office for a 
period of 5 (Five) financial consecutive years from the conclusion of this 37th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 
the 42nd Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held in year 2026. The Board shall also be authorised to alter and 
very the terms and conditions of appointment, revision including upward revision in the remuneration for remaining tenure 
of 4 (Four) years, in such manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with the Auditors. 

M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is a Chartered Accountancy Firm in practice since 1935. The Firm is registered with the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India having Firm Registration No.001076N1N5000 13. The registered office of the 
firm is situated at L-41, Connaught Circus, New Delhi – 110 001 and it has 13 offices in major cities of India. In India, the Firm 
has 50 Partners and total staff of more than 1500 people and it has experience of more than 100 listed & large Companies.

In deciding the appointment of auditors and finalising the proposed remuneration, the Board considered various 
parameters like capability to serve a diverse and complex business landscape as that of the Company, audit experience in 
the Company’s operating segments, market standing of the firm, clientele served, technical knowledge, relevant experience 
etc., and found M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP to be best suited to handle the scale, diversity and complexity associated 
with the audit of the financial statements of the Company. 

The proposed Auditors have consented to the aforesaid appointment and confirmed that their appointment, if made, will 
be within the limits specified under Section 141(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013. They have further confirmed that they 
are not disqualified to be appointed as Auditors of the Company and certified that satisfies the criteria provided under 
section 141 of the Act and rules made thereunder.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in 
the proposed resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice of the AGM for approval 
of the members.

Item No. 5

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) has amended certain provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’). Pursuant to amended Regulation 17(6)(e) of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations, which are effective from 1st April, 2019, approval of the Members by way of special resolution 
in general meeting shall be required, if the annual remuneration payable to Executive Directors, who are promoters or 
members of the promoter group, is in excess of the limits prescribed thereunder i.e. (i) where there is one such Director, 
` 5.00 Crore or 2.5 per cent of the net profits of the listed entity, whichever is higher; or (ii) where there is more than one 
such director, 5 per cent of the net profits of the listed entity. It is further prescribed that such approval once obtained shall 
be valid till the expiry of the term of the respective Executive Director.
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The members of the Company had at their 33rd Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) approved the remuneration payable to  
Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, Managing Director and Promoter of the Company, as per the limits mentioned below:

I)	 Salary, Allowances and Commission (hereinafter referred to as “Remuneration”):

a)	 Salary comprising:

(i)	 Basic salary: At the rate not exceeding ` 30,00,000/- per month; and

(ii)	 Allowances: Not exceeding one time the Basic salary, with increments as may be decided by the Board of 
Directors of the Company from time to time, subject to a ceiling on increment of 20% in a year over the 
existing Basic salary and Allowances.

b)	 Commission and Performance linked incentive: On net profits of the Company determined In accordance with 
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 at a rate to be determined by the Board of Directors from time 
to time.

	 The payment may be made on pro-rata basis every month or on an annual basis or partly monthly and partly on an 
annual basis at the discretion of the Board.

II) 	 Perquisites:

1.	 In addition to the Remuneration as stated above Mr. Abhishek Khaitan shall be entitled, as per Rules of the 
Company, to perquisites like:

a.	 Rent-free furnished residential accommodation with free use of all the facilities and amenities, such as air 
conditioners, geysers etc. In case no accommodation is provided by the Company, he shall be entitled to 
House Rent Allowance as per policy of the Company.

b.	 Reimbursement of all medical expenses incurred, including premium paid on health insurance policies, 
whether in India or abroad, for self andfamily including hospitalization.

c.	 Personal Accident Insurance Premium.

d.	 Air passage and / or leave travelallowance for self and members of hisfamily residing in India and for visit 
toIndia of the members of his family notresiding in India.

e.	 Subscription to clubs.

f.	 Use of Company maintained cars withdrivers for business and personal use.

g.	 Use of communication devices suchas telephones, audit and videoconference facilities etc., at theresidence. 
Personal long distancetelephone calls shall be borne by theCompany.

h.	 Education Allowance for children,whether abroad or in India.

i.	 Encashment of leave at the end of histenure or during the tenure as perpolicy of the Company.

j.	 Contributions to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fundand any other retirement benefits.

k.	 Expenses on shifting of residence.

l.	 Such other perquisites and allowancesin accordance with the rules of theCompany or as may be agreed to 
bythe Board of Directors andMr. Abhishek Khaitan.

	 The value of the perquisites evaluatedas per Income-tax Rules, 1962,wherever applicable, and at cost in theabsence 
of any such Rule, shall besubject to an overall annual ceiling of an amount not exceeding twice the Salary in I(a) 
above for the relevant period. The perquisites mentioned above from (h) to (l) shall be based on actual amounts and 
excluded from the aforesaid perquisite limit.

2. 	 The Board of Directors or Committee thereof may, in their discretion, revise / modify any of the terms from time to 

time, within the limits stipulated.
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III)	 Minimum Remuneration: Not with standing anything herein contained, where in any financial yearduring the period 
of his office as Managing Director, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may, 
subject to the requisite approvals, pay Mr. Abhishek Khaitan remuneration by way of salary, allowances, perquisites 
not exceeding the maximum limits laid down in Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, as may 
be agreed to by the Board of Directors and Mr. Abhishek Khaitan. 

IV)	 Other Terms: Subject to the superintendence, control and direction of the Board of Directors, Mr. Abhishek Khaitan 
shall manage and conduct the business and affairs of the Company. 

The terms of the reappointment and remuneration proposed are in conformity with the relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act 2013 read with Schedule V to the said Act. 

The Board of Directors recommend the payment of remuneration to Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, Managing Director and Promoter 
of the Company by way of Special Resolution as set out at Item No. 5.

Mr. Abhishek Khaitan and Dr. Lalit Khaitan being relative of Mr. Abhishek Khaitan are interested in the above resolution. 

Item No. 6

Pursuant to Section 148 (3) of the Companies Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the 
remuneration payable to Cost Auditors should be ratified by the members of the Company. The Board of Directors had in 
its meeting held on July 28, 2021 and on the basis of recommendations of the Audit Committee appointed Mr. R. Krishnan, 
Cost Accountant (Membership No. 7799), Cost Accountant as the Cost Auditor to conduct audit of cost records of the 
Company for the Financial Year 2021 – 2022 subject to ratification by members, fixed their remuneration at ` 1,10,000/- 
(Rupees One Lakh Ten thousand only) apart from reimbursement of actual expenses to be incurred by him in connection 
with conducting the said audit.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise in this resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No.6 as an ordinary resolution to the members for their approval.

By order of the Board

For Radico Khaitan Limited

(Dinesh Kumar Gupta)

Place: New Delhi	 VP– Legal & Company Secretary
Date: July 28, 2021		
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Radico Khaitan Limited
Registered Office: Bareilly Road, Rampur – 244 901 (UP) 

CIN L26941UP1983PLC027278
E-mail: Investor@radico.co.in | Website: www.radicokhaitan.com 

Ph: 0595-2350601-2 | Fax: 0595-2350009

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Regd. Folio No. / DP ID / Client ID: ______________________________________________________________________

Name & Address of First / Sole Shareholder:_______________________________________________________________ 

No. of Shares held:____________________________________________________________________________________ 

I hereby record my presence at the 37th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, September 28, 

2021 at 01.00 P.M. at Bareilly Road, Rampur – 244 901 (UP).

______________________________
Signature of Member / Proxy

Notes:

a)	 Only Member / Proxy can attend the meeting. No minors would be allowed at the meeting.
b)	 Member / Proxy wish to attend the meeting must bring this attendance slip to the meeting and handover at the 

entrance duly filled in and signed.

Route Map to the Venue of the 
 37th Annual General Meeting of

Radico Khaitan Limited

15
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FORM NO.MGT-11 

PROXY FORM

(Pursuant to Section 105 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19 (3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014)

Name of the Member (s)

Registered Address

Email id

Folio No. 

* DP ID/ Client Id:

I / We, being the member (s) of Radico Khaitan Ltd. (hereinafter called “the Company”) hereby appoint:

1.	 Name:_________________________________________________________________________

	 Address: _______________________________________________________________________	

	 Email Id:	___________________________________ Signature: __________________________ or failing him

3.	 Name:_________________________________________________________________________

	 Address: _______________________________________________________________________	

	 Email Id:	___________________________________ Signature: __________________________ or failing him

3.	 Name:_________________________________________________________________________

	 Address: _______________________________________________________________________	

	 Email Id:	___________________________________ Signature: _________________________

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 37th Annual General Meeting of 
the Company to be held on Tuesday, September 28, 2021 at 01:00 P.M. at the Registered office of the Company at Bareilly 
Road, Rampur – 244 901 (U.P.) and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

No. Ordinary Business Resolution Type For Against

1. To adopt the Standalone and Consolidated Annual Financial 
Statement of the Company including Report of Board of Directors 
and Auditors Report for the Financial Year 2020-21

Ordinary Resolution

2. To Declare Dividend on Equity Shares Ordinary Resolution

3. To re-appoint Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Ordinary Resolution

4. To appoint M/ s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, 
as the Statutory Auditor.

Ordinary Resolution

 Special Business

5. To approve the payments of remuneration to Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, 
Managing Director and Promoter of the Company.

Special Resolution

6. To ratify the remuneration payable to Mr. R. Krishnan, as Cost Auditor 
of the Company.

Ordinary Resolution

Signed this ........... day of September 2021

____________________		  _______________________			 

Affix Re. 1.00 
Revenue Stamp 

Signature
Signature of shareholder		  Signature of Proxy holder(s)
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Notes:

1.	 This form should be signed across the stamp as per specimen signature registered with the Company.

2.	 THIS FORM OF PROXY IN ENDED, TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DULY COMPLETED AND DEPOSITED AT THE 
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY, NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE 
MEETING.

3.	 A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

4.	 A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% 
of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share 
capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as 
a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

5.	 Please put a () in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or 
‘Against’ column blank against any or all the solutions, your Proxy will be titled to vote in the manner ashe/she thinks 
appropriate. This is only optional.

6.	 Instrument of Proxy which is unnamed, unstamped, not dated, multiple proxies bearing same date, shall be treated as 
invalid.

* Applicable for investors holding shares in demat form





High On 
Premium

The journey from 
being a distiller of 
spirits to a leading 
IMFL player with 
global brands has 
been remarkable. 

We are High on 
Premium!  

We have a generation today 
seeking new and interesting 
experiences. Something that 
matches and satisfies their 
aspirations. We are seeing many 
consumers buying products and 
services, beyond their basic-need, 
because of the way it makes them 
feel. 
 
Over the years, Radico Khaitan’s 
growth strategy has been centered 
around one simple principle – 
premiumization. Since the launch 
of our first premium brand, i.e. 
Magic Moments vodka, there has 
been no looking back.
 
We recognized the growth story 
of India, the increasing purchasing 
power of its consumers and their 
aspirations. Even as the world 
waited and allowed the story to 
unravel, we have been getting 
ready. In the last decade, we have 
launched twelve new brands of 
which eleven have been in the 
premium category.

We adopted an unconventional 
route to brand building. We 
identified gaps in the industry 

and gave consumers what they 
want - an entirely new experience. 
Whether it is Magic Moments 
vodka or Morpheus Super Premium 
brandy, we created consumer 
segments that didn’t exist. As 
a result, we established market 
leading positions in different 
industry segments.

We took a leap of faith when we 
launched Rampur Indian Single 
Malt Whisky and Jaisalmer Indian 
Craft Gin. Within a short period 
of its launch, both these products 
have established a mark for 
themselves in the global markets. 
This is true testament to our brand 
creation capabilities.

For Radico Khaitan, the last few 
years have been the phase of 
consolidation. Our performance 
during the last five years has been 
a result of our transformational 
strategy. With a robust brand 
portfolio, an exciting pipeline 
of new launches and a strong 
balance sheet, we are future ready 
and poised for the next stage of 
growth.



Disclaimer
In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable investors to comprehend our prospects and take informed investment 
decisions. This report and other statements – written and oral – that we periodically make may contain forward-looking statements that set out anticipated 
results based on the management’s plans and assumptions. We have tried, wherever possible, to identify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipates’, 
‘estimates’, ‘expects’, ‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’, and words of similar substance in connection with any discussion of future performance. We 
cannot guarantee that these forwardlooking statements will be realized, although we believe we have been prudent in our assumptions. The achievement of 
results is subject to risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying 
assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. Readers should bear this in mind. We 
undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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ABOUT  
RADICO KHAITAN
A legacy of over 75 years…

Started in 1943, steadily and patiently, we have evolved from being just a distiller of spirits and bottler for others 

to a leading Indian Made Foreign Liquor (IMFL) company with a diversified brand portfolio. Today, we have some 

of the best known brands being served in the nation and international markets including Rampur Indian Single 

Malt whisky, Jaisalmer Indian Craft Gin, Magic Moments Vodka, Morpheus XO Brandy, 8PM and 8PM Premium 

Black Whisky, 1965 Spirit of Victory Rum, Old Admiral Brandy, Contessa Rum, After Dark Premium Whisky, etc

Five millionaire 
brands in our 

portfolio – 8PM 
Whisky, 8PM Premium 
Black Whisky, Magic 

Moments Vodka, 
Contessa Rum and 

Old Admiral Brandy

One of the largest 
providers of branded 
IMFL to the Canteen 
Stores Department 
(CSD), which has 

significant business 
barriers to entry 

Formerly known  
as Rampur  

Distillery Company

A Fortune India 
500 company

Five owned  
and 28 contract 

bottling units spread 
across the country with 
a total annual capacity 

of 160 million litres

Strong distribution 
network. Sale 
through over 

75,000 retail and 
8,000 on premise 

outlets

Started the brand 
journey in 1998 with 
the launch of 8PM 

Whisky
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“Products are made in a factory but 
brands are created in the mind.”  
Walter Landor, Branding Pioneer

We are one of the few companies in the Indian Alcobev 
industry to compete with international premium 
companies with our own home growth brands. In line 
with our mission statement, ‘To develop products 
that customers love and endorse’, we have innovated, 
tested and ensured that we launch products and the 
customers will make them as Brands. 

BRAND PORTFOLIO

Jaisalmer Indian Craft Gin,  
The Royalty Awaits 

Jaisalmer Indian Craft Gin is as royal and spectacular 
in its lineage as the name suggests. Dedicated to this 
spectacular way of life, Jaisalmer Indian Craft Gin harks 
back to imperial age of Maharajas and Maharanis and 
their leisure moments. A triple-distilled neutral grain 
spirit, re-distilled in a traditional copper pot still; the 
recipe is handcrafted in a time-honoured way.

Derived from the ancient Indian knowledge of herbs; 
retaining the classic gin flavour of juniper berries, a 
refreshing twist has been added with hand-picked 

•	  Best Asian Gin by The Gin Guide Awards 2019    
•	  Gold Medal by The Fifty Best New York 2020
•	  Grand Gold at the Monde Selection for two consecutive 

years 2020 and 2021
•	  Scored 95 points at Ultimate Spirits Challenge 2020
•	  Double Gold by The Fifty Best New York 2021
•	  Gold Medal Winner at International Spirit Challenge 

2021
•	  Scored 94 points at Ultimate Spirits Challenge 2021

AWARDS

Rampur Indian Single Malt 
Whisky, Decades of Perfection

With footprint in over 45 countries, Rampur Indian 
Single Malt Whisky was made available in Delhi, 
India, for the very first time at select retails and the 
top 5-star properties. Rampur is a luxury brand that 
is manufactured at our plant in Rampur (UP). It is 
aged to perfection in the foothills of the Himalayas 
and is called the Kohinoor of single malts. Packaged 
in a stout bottle with a thick base, the bottle exhibits 
a quintessential look as it comes in a hand-crafted 
silk pouch. It has drawn global recognition for its 
smoothness, taste, and quality within a very short 
time, since its launch in FY2017, with expressions 
priced between US $70 and US $1400. Its success is 
an a©rmation of our R&D expertise. We have made 
investment in malt capacity expansion to cater to the 
demand for this product.

•	  Gold Medal Winner at The International Spirits 
Challenge 2021

•	 Scored 92 Points at The Ultimate Spirits Challenge 2021
•	 Scored 90 Points at The New York International 

Competition 2021

AWARDS

Indian botanicals. Of the 11 botanicals used in the 
distillation, 7 have been sourced from all four corners 
of India. Jaisalmer Indian Craft Gin is like an oasis 
in the desert, with an elegant refreshing finish that 
lingers long after.
 
Within a short span, Jaisalmer Indian Craft Gin has a 
global footprint in more than 25 countries and is loved 
and adored by our customers.
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•	 Ranked 11th largest vodka globally 
by the Millionaires’ Club, 2021

•	 Ranked 13th best-selling vodka 
globally on The Spirits Business 
Brand Champions list

•	 Magic Moments Premium Grain 
Vodka and Lemon flavour won 
Gold awards at the Monde 
Selection, 2021 

AWARDS

Magic Moments Vodka, 
Make Every Moment a 

Magic Moment 

Launched in 2006, Magic Moments is India’s 
largest premium vodka brand with around 
60% market share. Produced from the finest 
grains, its triple distilling process is a mark of 
absolute purity. This premium vodka is smooth 
and gives an enriched taste. No wonder, this 
brand of vodka is a millionaire brand of the 
Company winning many coveted laurels. As a 
brand extension, the Company’s brand Magic 
Moments Remix has been an instant hit. 
Available in di«erent flavours including Green 
Apple, Orange, Lemon, Lemongrass & Ginger, 
Grapefruit & Watermelon, the flavours have 
become a favourite amongst mixologists that 
take the experience up a notch.

•	 Won Gold in eight calendar years 
- 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 
2019, 2020 and 2021 at the Global 
Monde Selection Awards 

•	 Two flavours – Green Apple and 
Orange – won International High 
Quality Trophy and Gold award 
(for the third consecutive year) at 
the Monde Selection, 2021

•	 Two newly launched flavours 
Lemon Lush and Cranberry Tease 
won Gold and Silver awards, 
respectively, at the Monde 
Selection, 2021  

AWARDS

Magic Moments Verve, 
The Smooth Blend of 

Sophistication
Verve is a super-premium vodka launched in 
2012. Using a five-staged slow filtration process 
with silver and platinum filters, this vodka is 
unique, with distinct flavours that have made 
it a hit among consumers. With a 20% market 
share of the premium vodka category making, it 
continues to be one of the fastest growing vodka 
brand in the super premium segment.
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•	 Won Gold six times at the Monde Selection 
Awards in the calendar years – 2011, 2015, 
2016, 2017, 2018 and 2021

•	 Won International High Quality Trophy and 
Gold award (for the third consecutive year) 
at the Monde Selection, 2021

AWARDS

AWARDS

Morpheus XO Brandy, 
Dare to Dream 

With around 60% market share in the 
premium brandy category, Morpheus is 
India’s largest selling premium brandy. 
Crafted by our master blenders to challenge 
traditional brandy tenets, it’s rich blend 
is truly irresistible. Named after the Greek 
God of Dreams, it provides an exotic 
experience to the premium brandy lovers. 
Its goblet packaging and brand positioning 
have helped create a niche as a spirit that is 
intense and sophisticated. 

Morpheus Blue  
XO Premium Brandy,  

Dare to Dream  

Indulge in the taste of excellence the 
enriched XO blended premium brandy in 
the sublime allure of Morpheus Blue. The 
true embodiment of understated perfection. 
Crafted by our master blenders, Morpheus 
Blue is perfection in a bottle, packed for the 
most deserving of dreamers.
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•	 Won International High-Quality Award and a 
Gold award (for the fourth consecutive year) 
at the Monde Selection, 2021

•	 Won Gold award for being the Fastest 
growing brand at The Spiritz Achievers 
Awards 2020

•	 Ranked 9th largest whisky globally by the 
Millionaires’ Club, 2021

•	 Ranked 5th best-selling whisky globally on 
The Spirits Business Brand Champions list

•	 Ranked 6th Top Indian whisky by the 
Millionaires’ Club, 2021

AWARDS

AWARDS

8PM Premium Black 
Whisky, Rivals become 

friends 

India’s premium whisky, 8PM Premium 
Black achieves the perfect balance of 
strength and smoothness. Made with 
the finest quality grain, this whisky is the 
epitome of lavishness and quality drinking. 
With the packaging di«erentiation giving 
a look of an international scotch whisky, it 
evokes a sense of class and luxury. With a 
million cases plus volume sales during the 
financial year 2020-21, it is a testimony that 
our consumers use the smooth blend to 
celebrate success, friendship, and the spirit 
of camaraderie… even among rivals because 
when shared, rivals become friends. 

8PM Whisky,  
Har Shaam Ki Shuruat  

Launched in 1998, 8PM Whisky is the flagship 
brand of Radico Khaitan. It reflects the true 
essence of quality drinking, blended with 
the rich taste of finest quality grains. 8PM is 
the first brand in the liquor industry to make 
it to the Limca Book of Records for selling 
one million cases in the very first year of 
its launch. The growth of 8PM whisky as a 
brand marks the brand creation journey of 
Radico Khaitan.
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Regal Talons Premium Grain 
Whisky, Apne Dum Par 

Made for champions, Regal Talons is distilled for those 
who believe in conquering, winning and take charge of 
their own destiny. The unmatched spirit of adventure 
that has inspired the immaculate smoothness of this 
rare generation whisky. The fine taste of Regal Talons 
sets free the spirit of passion and perfection and takes 
one to a new level of supremacy. 

After Dark Premium Whisky, 
Your passion. Your blend.  

A brand in the fast-growing premium segment in 
India, After Dark is a drink meant to be savoured with 
friends. It is a bold celebration of fun and action. With 
a brand positioning around a unique world of desire, 
adventure and excitement, it is finding huge traction 
among the growing whisky lovers in the country. 

•	 Won the Gold Medal at the Monde Selection Quality 
Award, 2021

AWARDS

•	 Won Monde Selection Gold Quality Awards in the 
calendar years 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021 

AWARDS

•	 Won Gold at the Global Monde Selection Awards in the 
calendar years – 2017, 2018 and 2021

AWARDS

1965 The Spirit of Victory 
Premium XXX Rum, Experience 

The Spirit of Victory 

1965 The Spirit Of Victory, Premium XXX Rum, is a 
salute to the gallantry and bravery of India’s soldiers 
during the 1965 war. The product, with rich flavours 
like dried fruits, chocolate, oak and honey was created 
to cater to the demand of premium rum drinkers. It 
was launched for the CSD in 2017 and exclusively 
marketed to the Indian Defence Forces. Having tasted 
success in creating a strong emotional connect with 
the armed forces personnel, the brand has now been 
made available in select civil markets.
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Pluton Bay Rum, Spirit of 
Adventure

The journey of Pluton Bay is one of passion, a sense 
of adventure and a pursuit of excellence. It is a toast 
to the spirit of exploration as one sea captain said- 
“The spirits are now smoother to the tongue and have 
acquired a gold color during the voyage.” Pluton Bay 
is spicy, dark brown exotic rum, smoother than any 
other. It’s a promise of a million cheers for true lovers 
of quality rum.

•	 Won Monde Selection Gold Quality Awards in the 
calendar years 2019 and 2020

AWARDS

Whytehall Brandy,  
Legacy of Perfection 

The perfect sequel to a fabulous feast, Whytehall 
premium brandy is the after-dinner drink that, if had 
alone, can fill one with peace and calm or, if had with 
company can spark up great conversations. It is an 
exquisite drink for our elegant consumers. With a 
round and fruity start, the brandy slowly reveals its 
complexity in the mouth with a long and elegant 
finish.

•	 Ranked 11th best-selling Rum on the Spirits Business 
Brand Champions list

•	 Ranked 9th largest Rum globally by the Millionaires’  
Club 2021

AWARDS

Contessa Rum,  
For the Man of Courage

Contessa Rum is another millionaire brand from the 
house of Radico Khaitan. The highest selling rum 
brand in the defence segment with a formidable 
leadership in the Indian market, the rum is also 
available in parts of Africa, South East Asia, Middle 
East, The USA and Canada. The rum truly reflects the 
real meaning of courage while its taste simply touches 
the right chords and reflects true essence of bravery.

•	 Won Silver at the Global Monde Selection awards in the 
calendar years 2017 and 2018

AWARDS

HIGHRES IMAGE 
REQUIRED
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Old Admiral Brandy, For Real 
Men Only

Made especially for the men with pride, honor and 
courage, the splendid taste of this spectacular 
brandy celebrates the achievement of greatness and 
passion for all the good things in life. The classic taste 
perfectly blended with rich sensations and enthralling 
aroma ensures that it is savored the way it is desired 
and truly deserved.

•	 Ranked as the world’s 2nd largest selling brandy by the 
Drink International Millionaires’ Club 2021 rankings

•	 Best-selling Brandy globally on The Spirits Business 
Brand Champions list

AWARDS
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OUR RESPONSE 
TO COVID-19
The impact of pandemic during 
FY2021 has led to scaling down 
of operations and rationalizing 
of cost across industries. During 
this period, the need of the hour 
was agility and adaptability, and a 
focus on our employees along with 
brand and customer centricity. We 
were quick to realise the gravity of 
the COVID-19 induced pandemic 
and immediately put together a 
core team to tackle the situation. 
With employee safety as the 
top priority, we defined various 
standard operating procedures, 
relooked at the processes and 
safety guidelines across the 
organization. We ensured daily 
health monitoring at the time of 
entry and exit, regular sanitation 
and installation of sanitizer 
dispensers at all the common 
points and defined actions to be 
taken in case of direct or indirect 
exposure to COVID-19.

With the lockdown, there was 
a demand to shift the normal 
ways of working to a ‘new 
normal’. We focused on digital 
technology to make the shift 
seamless and smooth for our 
employees. We quickly created 
an eco-system where employees 
could work from home and 
continued with motivational and 
training programs for employees 
and their families. We ensured 
regular communication through 
various channels to highlight the 
importance of adopting COVID-19 
appropriate behaviours.

However, the big jolt came during 
the second wave as we saw a huge 
toll on human lives. We provided 
medical support to our employees 
and their families including 
arranging for teleconsultation, 
medicines, oxygen concentrators 
and vaccinations. We announced 

a welfare scheme for the extended 
family of our employees. In case 
of an unfortunate event of the 
demise of a team member due to 
COVID-19, we will provide support 
to the bereaved family for a period 
of up to three years. Although this 
cannot compensate for the family’s 
loss, but it will perhaps give them 
some time to recoup. 

We were cognizant of the 
challenges of working from home 
in a stressful time like the pandemic 
and ensured conducting COVID-19 
awareness sessions through 
reputed institutes. We did not lose 
focus on the mental stress of our 
employees and regular mental 
wellness sessions were conducted 
to equip people with the tools to 
fight against the challenging times. 
Most importantly, we would like to 
highlight, that there were no pay 
cuts for our employees nor any 
reduction in headcount. 

We have a commitment to our 
community and the country. 
During the fiscal year, we 
supported the government in 
its fight against the pandemic 
through contribution to relief funds 
and supply of sanitizers. We also 
started public area sanitization 

drive in Rampur district using 
Turbo Mist Sanitization Machine. 
Currently, we are working on the 
installations of oxygen generators 
at the government hospitals in six 
districts of Uttar Pradesh, a small 
gesture from Radico Khaitan to 
give back to the community and 
society. 

We are deeply committed to all 
our stakeholders and working 
to ensure that we continue to 
create value, pandemic or no 
pandemic. With the onset of 
the lockdown, we realised that 
it will not be business as usual. 
We reviewed and rationalized 
each cost line item to ensure that 
we can maintain robust margins 
which will give us ammunition to 
continue working on our brands. 
We continued to work with our 
partners and connected with them 
on digital platforms and increased 
the number of interactions with 
them. We expanded our scope of 
digital platform to engage with 
our customers and the millennial 
through targeted digital media 
campaigns to further our connect 
with them and strengthen our 
brand recall.   
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FINANCIAL 
HIGHLIGHTS

EBIDTA
(` in crore)

Net Profit
(` in crore)

407.8

2020-21

368.2

2019-20

349.2

2018-19

267.4

2017-18

210.1

2016-17

269.7

2020-21

224.8

2019-20

187.3

2018-19

121.9

2017-18

79.3

2016-17

Prestige & above brands as % to total 
volume (Lakh Cases)

Net Revenue from Operations 
(` in crore)

243.0

2019-20

223.4

2020-21

216.1

2018-19

195.0

2017-18

182.6

2016-17

1,679.9

2016-17

1,822.8

2017-18

2,096.9

2018-19

2,427.0

2019-20

2,418.1

2020-21

29.0% 29.1%28.3%
25.9%26.0%



Corporate overview  | Statutory Reports  |  Financial Statements

Annual Report 2020-21  |     13

Return on Average Equity
(%)

16.4

2020-21

15.9

2019-20

15.2

2018-19

11.2

2017-18

8.2

2016-17

Revenue Breakup 
FY2020-21

40.0%

39.1%

20.9%

 IMFL - Prestige & above 

 IMFL - Regulars & Others 

 Non-IMFL

Net Debt
(` in crore)

Net Debt/ EBDITA  
(x)

197.5

2020-21

382.0

2019-20

319.4

2018-19

569.7

2017-18

785.0

2016-17

0.5

2020-21

1.0

2019-20

0.9

2018-19

2.1

2017-18

3.7

2016-17

Net Worth
(` in crore)

Return on Average Capital employed
(%)

1,763.9 17.9

2020-21 2020-21

1,520.5

17.7

2019-20 2019-20

1,314.9

18.1

2018-19 2018-19

1,142.1
12.7

2017-18 2017-18

1,029.9
9.2

2016-17 2016-17
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TRANSFORMATIONAL 
JOURNEY

For a company with a legacy 
of over 75 years, we have been 
on a journey of evolution and 
transformation of sorts and hence 
not easily whittled down by 
adversities. Our journey began in 
1943 with a focus on distillation 
and bottling. Till 1996, we created 
large capabilities and gained 
expertise to manufacture high 
quality spirit for branded players 
and to the armed forces / canteen 
stores.

Our next stage of transformation 
was getting ready with our 
branded journey which began in 
1998. This phase saw us moving 
steadily in the branded, premium 
market with the launch of multiple 
brands including 8PM Whisky, 
Old Admiral Brandy, Contessa 
Rum, etc. We also ramped up our 
manufacturing platform with pan 
India manufacturing tie-up and 
developed a strong marketing 
machinery with a nationwide 
selling and distribution setup.  

We started our premiumization 
journey in 2006, launching multiple 
stellar, premium brands. We are 
one of the only few companies 
globally to have created the 
entire brand portfolio organically 

through in-house capabilities. Over 
the years, we have established a 
recognizable brand image even 
in the international market with 
our luxury brands, Rampur Indian 
Single Malt Whisky and Jaisalmer 
Indian Craft Gin.  

We took each adversity as another 
stepping stone to strengthen the 
delivery capability of the team, 
to test how resilient our business 
model is and gauge the power of 
our brands. 

“Every adversity, every failure and every heartache carries 
with it the seed of an equivalent or a greater benefit.” 

- Napoleon Hill

Our consolidation phase 
is complete, our knowhow 
has deepened and we have 
strengthened our infrastructure. 
Our brands have matured. We 
have plans to take our portfolio to 
newer heights with the launch of 
new super premium brands. We 
have a strong balance sheet and 
cash flows to support a sustainable 
and profitable growth. 

WE SAW 
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WE PLANNED 

Our business transformation 
journey continues to be work in 
progress and evolving with the 
changing situations. We are agile 
and adapt to the new challenging 
times, keeping in mind the 
premiumisation and long term 
sustainable growth of the business. 
   
Few years back, we reviewed 
our business model, looked at 
the evolution of the industry and 
mapped the scenarios of consumer 
expectations.  Based on our 
understanding, we implemented 
a number of strategic initiatives 
which formed the base for the 
next stage of our growth. Each 
employee is a part of this journey 
and we developed an incentive 
scheme for all employees (till the 
grass root level) to ensure that 
everyone is aligned with the focus 
on value growth and not volume 
growth. We also strengthened 
the leadership team and inducted 
leaders who believed in our 
vision and had solid experience 
in the industry. Further, given 
our premiumisation journey, we 
bolstered our sales and marketing 
team and brought in experts on 
brands, digital marketing, etc. In 
the pursuit of sustainable growth, 
we also divested from unprofitable 
volumes in certain markets. 

We realised that the 
premiumisation aspiration cannot 
happen without the necessary 
and consistent investment in our 
brands. This required a strong 
balance sheet and we have 
been focusing on free cash flow 
generation and reducing our debt 
levels. Given an understanding 
of the customer aspirations and 
a strong R&D team, we have 
been able to deliver successful 
premium brand launches such as 
Rampur Indian Single Malt Whisky, 
Jaisalmer Indian Craft Gin, 8PM 
Premium Black Whisky and 1965 
Spirit of Victory Rum. 

To prepare for our journey, we 
continue to engage with our 
stakeholders and have seen some 

“The greatest danger in times of turbulence is not the 
turbulence – it is to act with yesterday’s logic.” 

— Peter Drucker

positive developments which 
have benefitted the industry and 
importantly, us as the market 
leader. The recent shift in the Uttar 
Pradesh state’s excise policy which 
had moved from the monopolistic 
distribution to a free market 
helped us increase our market 
share, given the strong positioning 
we have in the state. 

Similarly, we continue to make 
marketing investment in each of 
the key markets we operate in 
and all these steps have certainly 
helped in making our journey 
successful, despite the challenges 
like the pandemic during the year. 



Corporate overview  | Statutory Reports  |  Financial Statements

Annual Report 2020-21  |     17



18    | Radico Khaitan Limited



Corporate overview  | Statutory Reports  |  Financial Statements

Annual Report 2020-21  |     19

WE CONQUERED 

FY2021 started on a di©cult 
note. And yet we prevailed and 
outperformed the industry, once 
again. That is the legacy of Radico 
Khaitan!

While the transformation journey 
continues, it fills our heart with 
joy on the path we have chosen 
and the impact we are seeing. Our 
premiumisation led transformation 
has helped us to consistently 
outperform the industry. In the 
year FY2019, the industry grew 
by 9.2% whereas we grew by 
10.8%. In FY2020, the industry 
grew by only 0.4% whereas we 
outperformed by a wide margin 
at 12.5% growth. In the current 
fiscal, because of pandemic, 
the industry had degrown by 
(13.6)% whereas we de-grew by 
only (8)% and hence continuing 
market share gain. In an uncertain, 
pandemic world, achieving the 
highest ever monthly volumes in 
December 2020 is a showcase of 
our transformation process. 

We had committed to reducing 
our debt in 2016 and that journey 
has seen us pare our debt by ̀  750 
crore since 2016, including debt 
reduction of ` 184 crore during 
the year. Another testimony to 
the success of our transformation 
story.

We are proud to report that 8 PM 
Premium Black Whisky registered 
sales volume of 1.2 million cases 
during the year despite the 
challenges in Q1 FY2021. The 
performance of our luxury brands, 
Rampur Indian Single Malt and 
Jaisalmer Indian Craft Gin was 
encouraging as we continue to 
expand our distribution width. 

The transformation journey has 
been exciting, but is far from over. 

“If you want to reach a goal, you must see the reaching in 
your mind before you actually arrive at your goals.”  

- Zig Ziglar

We will continue with our 
transformation journey till we 
reach our aspiration of “being the 
most valuable spirits company in 
India with global standards, whilst 
at the same time committed to 
environment, sustainability and 
governance.”

We know our goal and working 
each day to make it happen. For 
us at Radico Khaitan, it is just 
the beginning of an exhilarating 
tomorrow… We are High on 
Premium!
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LETTER TO 
SHAREHOLDERS 

Despite the uncertainties ahead, I continue to remain 
bullish about the economy and our business model... 
We have emerged stronger post the first two waves 
and this resilience will help us in the future as well. 
I am confident of our people and our capability to 

deliver the best premium products to our customers. 
We are ready to take on any challenges.
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Dear Shareholders,

These are extremely di©cult, 
uncertain times. In such times, I pray 
for the safety of all our shareholder 
members and their families. After 
two waves of COVID-19, we are 
living in an extremely challenging 
environment. I hope that you and 
your family members are taking all 
necessary precautions, adhering 
to the Government’s guidelines 
and have taken the vaccination 
as these are the only ways we 
can protect ourselves against the 
Coronavirus.

We faced a tough Financial 
Year 2020-21, the year of the 
‘new normal’ which brought 
in disruption for individuals, 
communities, organizations and 
countries. During a large part of 
the year, we have been impacted 
by the uncertainties induced by the 
lockdowns, forcing each one of us 
to find new ways of working. This 
severely impacted the economy 
in the first quarter of the fiscal 
year, posing challenges to our 
industry as well. As you are aware, 
we too felt the impact in our first 
quarter as we saw our volumes go 
down by 43.5% and Net Revenue 
from Operations fall by 34.4%, as 
compared to the previous year.

I believe that such challenges 
also bring in its wake unseen 
opportunities. We have been on a 
Premiumisation journey to shore up 
our profitability margins and these 
abnormal times saw us navigating 
through this tough situation and 

also preparing to be future ready. 
We focussed on investing behind 
our brands even as we optimized 
cost structure to sustain our 
margins. It is with satisfaction that 
I note that these not only helped 
strengthen our financial position 
but also enhanced our market 
share. While we managed to close  
FY2021 at the same level as the 
previous fiscal’s Net Revenues 
from Operations at `2,418 crore, 
we expanded our EBITDA margins 
by nearly 170 basis point to close 
the year with `408 crore, up 11%, 
as compared to the previous year.

During the whole year, employee 
health, safety and wellness was 
our top priority. In the pandemic, 
where we saw pay cuts and job 
loss across industries, it is with 
pride to mention that not a 
single member of our employee 
community was asked to leave nor 
did we undertake any salaries cuts. 

Despite the uncertainties ahead, I 
continue to remain bullish about 
the economy and our business 
model as we experienced 
improving trends during the 
second half of the year and have 
seen the economy and industry 
normalise. We have emerged 
stronger post the first two waves 
and this resilience will help us in 
the future as well. I am confident 
of our people and our capability to 
deliver the best premium products 
to our customers. We are ready to 
take on any challenges. 

I take this opportunity to thank 
each one of you for continuing to 
believe in our vision and execution 
as we step into the next phase 
of our strategic growth journey. I 
would also like to acknowledge 
the contribution of our partners 
and customers for reposing faith 
in Radico Khaitan and actively 
working for our combined success. 

Warm regards, 

Lalit Khaitan 
Chairman & Managing Director
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IN CONVERSATION WITH 
ABHISHEK KHAITAN, 
MANAGING DIRECTOR

How would you describe FY2021 
and what were the actions that 
you took to emerge stronger?

We will all remember FY2021 as 
the year of pandemic, lockdowns, 
disruption and chaos. It hit the 
economy, it impacted our industry 
and it had repercussion on the 
company and our employees. We 
were quick to realize the gravity 
of the situation and immediately 
actioned multiple measures to 
navigate through the challenging 
times. Our first and foremost 
priority remained, and remains, 
our employees and all e«orts were 
made to ensure their safety. 

In such tough times, conserving 
cash and generating cash are the 
imperatives to succeed and that 
is what we focussed on during 
the fiscal. We reviewed each and 
every cost line items, putting in 
place very strong credit controls. 
Yet we continued to invest in our 
A&SP spends which enabled us to 
continue the growth momentum. 

All these have helped us to 
not only come out through the 
pandemic but emerge stronger 
with increased market share. 
Importantly, we have been on a 
journey of debt reduction since 
April 2016 and it is noteworthy 
that since 2016, we have reduced 
our debt by ` 750 crores which is 
a testimony to our business model 
and the cash flow generation. 

How do you see the success of 
your Premiumisation and brand 
journey?

Since 2006, we took a decision that 
we need to have a strong premium 
brand portfolio which will help us 
not only to maintain high margins 
but make us less susceptible to 
the market vagaries and help drive 
sustainable growth. Understanding 
the customers need, and driven by 
our R&D team, we have launched 
multiple premium brands which 
have become market leaders. 
Product innovation catering to 
the consumer aspirations and 
identifying the gaps in the market 
has been the key to our success.
 

Our brands like Magic Moments 
Vodka, Morpheus Brandy, 8PM 
family of whiskies, Contessa Rum, 
etc. are market leaders in their own 
rights. We are possibly the rare 
Indian company in the industry 
which also has products (Rampur 
Indian Single Malt Whisky and 
Jaisalmer Indian Craft Gin) in 
the super-luxury space, a space 
occupied by international alcohol 
companies. It is with pride that I 
say, that our products are available 
across the world and being 
admired and recommended by 
top experts. Our focus on product 
quality and consumer satisfaction 
has won various awards and 
accolades internationally. 
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Even during the pandemic, our 
performance is a testament to 
our resilient business model, 
strong premium product 
portfolio and excellent execution 
capabilities of the management 
team. Importantly, we have been 
outperforming the industry by a 
wide margin. 

Looking ahead, we will continue 
to make judicious marketing 
investment to continue our market 
share expansion and continue the 
premiumisation journey. 

In the super premium/luxury 
space, you have launched Rampur 
Malt and Jaisalmer Gin. What 
is the future strategy for these 
brands?

Jaisalmer is available globally 
in over 25 countries and is now 
made available in 6 metros in 
India. It will be launched on pan-
India basis over the next year. 
Rampur Indian Single Malt is 
available in 45 countries and now 
made available in Delhi. We had 
expanded our malt distillation and 
maturation capacity three years 
back. With the increased capacity, 
Rampur will be made available 
in larger quantities in India in 2-3 
years’ time. In addition to civil 
market, both these brands will be 
launched in the defence market 
in FY2022. With the ban of BIO 
products in the defence markets, 
both these products have strong 
opportunities. Both these brands 
will start to make a meaningful 
contribution to our profitability in 
the years to come. In future, we will 
continue to enhance our premium 
portfolio whether it is whisky or 
vodka or any other category.

Radico Khaitan is probably the 
only company that has focused 
on white spirits with continued 
investments behind Magic 
Moments and now with Jaisalmer 
gin. What is the potential of this 
segment given it is still 4-5% of 
the IMFL market in India? 

Vodka currently accounts for less 
than 5% of the domestic IMFL 
volumes compared to around 25-
30% globally. With the favourable 
demographic profile and changing 
consumer preferences, we believe 
that Vodka industry is bound to 
expand. Over the last five years, 
premium vodka space has grown 
at a faster pace than the overall 
vodka industry which is a positive 
sign. Within vodka, flavours are 
gaining momentum. More than 
50% of our vodka volumes is 
flavours. To expand the vodka 
category, we are doing a number 
of things including new flavours, 
expressions and more premium 
o«erings to be launched in the 
near future. We are doing very 
targeted marketing campaigns 
which will also help us expand this 
category.

How important is ESG for Radico 
Khaitan?

Environmental, Social and 
Governance (ESG) has come in 
popular parlance only in recent 
times. With a legacy of over 75 
years, it has been our firm belief in 

creating value that is sustainable 
and in a manner that is economical, 
environmentally friendly and 
socially acceptable. Importantly, 
we have adopted this approach 
to our business, long before it was 
mandated by law. 

As a company, we believe in a 
strong governance framework and 
as you leaf through the annual 
report, you will read about our 
commitment in this area. Social 
continues to play a pivotal role 
for each one of us and we are 
doing everything possible to 
fulfil our social obligations to our 
communities and society. You 
would have already glanced few 
initiatives that we have taken in 
the other sections.   

As a company, we have taken 
environmental stewardship and 
supporting the planet in big and 
small ways. For example, in our 
Rampur distillery nearly 70% of the 
power consumed is from renewable 
energy sources and around 47% of 
the renewable power was through 
biogas generated through waste 
produced during the alcohol 
manufacturing process. We have 
been ramping up our usage of 
recycled glass bottles for certain 
large brands which stands at 
14% in FY2021 as compared to 
4.5% in FY2019. Other initiatives 
include water recharging and 
harvesting around our factories, 
educating farmers around water 
conversation through the use of 
technology. We are aligned to the 
UN Sustainability Development 
Goals (SDGs) and will continue to 
work under the ESG framework to 
create a better world. 

It is with pride 
that I say, that 

our products are 
available across 
the world and 

being admired and 
recommended by top 

experts. Our focus 
on product quality 

and consumer 
satisfaction has 

won various awards 
and accolades 
internationally. 
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BOARD AND 
LEADERSHIP

Dr. Lalit Khaitan 
Chairman and  
Managing Director

Abhishek Khaitan 
Managing Director

Krishnan Pal Singh 
Whole Time Director and 
Director – Operations

Dr. Raghupati 
Singhania
Independent Director 
Chairman and 
Managing Director of 
JK Tyre & Industries 
Limited

Sarvesh Srivastava 
Independent Director
Practicing Chartered 
Accountant with over 
30 years of experience 
in taxation laws and 
corporate restructuring

Tushar Jain 
Independent Director
Entrepreneur with over 
25 years of experience; 
Managing Director at 
Automat Industries 
and Smith Industrial 
Corporation

Sharad Jaipuria
Independent Director
Chairman and Managing 
Director of Ginni 
International and 
Chairman of Ginni Global

Sushmita Singha 
Independent Director
Director, Kajaria Ceramics 
Limited, Honorary 
member of BRICS 
Chamber of Commerce
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LEADERSHIP 
TEAM

Dilip Banthiya 
Chief Financial O©cer

Sanjeev Banga 
President - International 

Business

Abhishek Khaitan 
Managing Director

Dr. Lalit Khaitan 
Chairman and  

Managing Director

Amar Sinha 
Chief Operating O©cer

Krishnan Pal Singh
Whole Time Director and 

Director – Operations

Vinay Padroo 
Chief Human Resources 

O©cer

Atul Bhatia 
Chief Information O©cer

Dinesh Kumar Gupta
Vice President – Legal  
& Company Secretary

Saket Somani
Vice President –  

Finance & Strategy
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BUSINESS STRATEGY

Strengthening the 
premium brand portfolio 
Concerted e«orts have been 
made by the Company towards 
channelizing deep understanding 
of consumer preference and the 
industry dynamics to deliver 
superior products and brands. 
To this e«ect, Radico Khaitan 
continues to work on making its 
core brands more aspirational 
and driving premiumization by 
impactful innovations. Radico 
Khaitan continues to track the 
changing industry dynamics, 
consumption patterns and 
consumer preferences which 
drives product innovation. The 
Company has a pipeline of new 
premium brand launches in the 
coming year. It shall include brands 
in the biggest segment of the 
industry, i.e. whisky. Radico Khaitan 
is also planning to capitalize on 
the market leading position and 
expand the Vodka market with 
more premium o«erings. With 
Jaisalmer Indian Craft Gin, the 
Company has had the first mover 
advantage in the Indian craft gin 
which is gaining strong traction 
globally. Building upon its success, 
Radico Khaitan is also looking to 
launch new product in the super 
premium gin space.

investment behind brands despite 
the industry slowdown which 
has led to gaining market shares. 
The longstanding strategy of 
continuous innovation and value 
creation has also helped Radico 
Khaitan sustain its leadership 
position across key product 
categories and key liquor 
consuming markets.

Increasing global 
footprints 

Consistent brand building e«orts 
over the past few years are now 
paying rich dividends in the 
international markets. Despite 
the pandemic and frequent 
lockdowns, Radico Khaitan’s 
exports registered strong growth 
during FY2021 and contributed 
over 7% of the total net revenue 
from operations. Due to a strong 
brand equity, the Company’s 
brands were the preferred ones for 
home consumption. Online sales 
for its luxury portfolio was able to 
o«set the non-availability of Global 
Travel Retail channel. Radico 
Khaitan successfully launched a 
new expression of its Indian Single 
Malt – Rampur Asava at the virtual 
Whisky Show, London. For the first 
time in history, a Single Malt has 
been finished in an Indian Wine 
Cask. Rampur Asava has received 
very encouraging response from 
global Whisky experts, consumers 
as well as trade. 

Innovation to sustain 
consumer preferences

Investment in innovation has 
enabled the Company to grow its 
market share for existing products 
while at the same time capturing 
new categories (Rampur Indian 
Single Malt whisky) and new 
product segments (Jaisalmer 
Indian Craft gin). Furthermore, it 
has helped in bridging portfolio 
gaps (8PM Premium Black 
whisky) and providing long-
lasting customer experiences. It 
has also enabled the Company 
to o«er choices for its existing 
loyal consumers who are looking 
to upgrade (Magic Moments 
Verve vodka and Morpheus Blue 
brandy). Radico Khaitan’s wide 
portfolio across various categories 
o«ers its consumers a choice for 
all occasions and provides an edge 
over competing brands.

Expanding market share 
across regions 

Over the years, Radico Khaitan 
has been delivering industry 
outperforming growth. This has 
been made possible due to the 
Company’s diversified product 
portfolio across price points. The 
Company’s brands enjoy a strong 
consumer loyalty. Furthermore, 
Radico Khaitan has continued 
to make focused marketing 
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workforce. Radico Khaitan is driving 
enterprise-wide collaboration over 
a single platform and utilizing 
the power of machine learning 
to automate business-as-usual 
tasks. Strong technology core is 
not only limited to enhancing the 
remote work environment. It also 
includes leveraging unified data 
accessibility and AI-driven tools 
to implement intelligent business 
systems. This will enable real-time, 
consensus-driven decisions that 
will go a very long way in building 
an adaptive and agile organisation.

$

Lean cost structure
Radico Khaitan continues to 
focus on cost optimisation and 
making its operations much 
leaner. The Company is diligently 
putting conscious e«ort towards 
reviewing each and every fixed 
cost line item. Extra neutral alcohol 
(ENA) and packaging materials 
are two key components of the 
variable costs. The Company is 
largely self-dependent for its 
ENA requirements due to owning 
significant distillation capacity of 
160 Million liters. This also provides 
a cushion against fluctuations in 
the ENA prices. The Company has 
undertaken various initiatives to 
further optimise its cost structure. 
These includes rationalisation of 
the bottle supplies, diversification 
of its supplier base and weight 
optimisation of glass bottles.

Increasing e¨ciency in 
Supply Chain Management 
Radico Khaitan’s supply chain 
management strategy revolves 
around customer service, cost 
e©ciency and operational 
excellence. The Company has 33 
bottling units spanning across 
the entire country, of which 5 
are owned and 28 are contract 
bottling units. Radico Khaitan 
continuously strives to build 
flexibility and competitiveness in 
supply chain by developing more 
suppliers in the system across all 
materials as well as logistics to 
ensure reliable volume deliveries 
at the right place in a timely and 
cost-e«ective manner.

To mitigate supply chain risk 
due to COVID, Radico Khaitan is 
minimizing import from China and 
other countries. The Company is 
also developing the sourcing base 
in India to maximize the supply 
chain e©ciency. The Company has 
done reverse auction in past in 
logistics and is currently exploring 
the possibility in packaging and 
other materials to control cost and 
assess the market scenario. 

To enable more e©ciency in 
procurement process, Radico 
Khaitan is utilising IT based tools 
for full-fledged material requisition 
planning starting from sales 
forecast to ordering, inventory 
management to cost control 
and to service market fast. The 
Company is also identifying the 
key business partners to create 
collaborative approach to increase 
e©ciency in the supply chain.

Focus on digitalisation: 
Over the last few years, Radico 
Khaitan has been increasing its focus 
on digitalisation to enhance brand 
visibility and automation at work 
place for faster and e©cient decision 
making across the value chain. 

Digital marketing
The Company has expanded its 
presence on the digital platforms 
through social media promotions 
and targeted digital media 
campaigns to connect with the 
millennial and strengthen its 
brand recall. All of the Company’s 
leading brands such as Rampur 
Indian Single Malt and Jaisalmer 
Indian Craft Gin have their own 
microsites therefore enabling 
online consumer experience. 
Other core brands such as Magic 
Moments and 8PM Premium Black 
have significant online presence 
through dedicated social media 
pages. In order to make its 
marketing e«orts more targeted 
and e©cient, the Company 
leverages its digital marketing 
and consumer engagement 
technologies to connect with its 
potential consumers based on 
their choices and preferences. 

Digital transformation at  
work place

Radico Khaitan has been driving 
digital transformation across 
the organization and defining 
a clear roadmap to simplify 
and synergise processes. The 
Company is leveraging vital 
technology components, to 
drive transformation in the work 
environment and support the 
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ENVIRONMENT 
STEWARDSHIP

We believe in creating value and sustainable growth keeping in 
mind our commitment to environment and society. 

We have been aligning ourselves with the UN’s SDGs to ensure 
that our work with the communities and environment go hand in 
hand with achieving the overall objective of providing a better 
and sustainable future for all. It has been our endeavour to use 
renewable energy sources and consuming lesser resources per  

unit of production.

47%

29%

 Captive - Rice Husk
 Captive - Bio Gas
 Outsourced (Grid & Diesel Generator)

24%

Energy Consumption

Out of the total power consumption at the Rampur plant in FY2021, 
Radico Khaitan generated 71% through captive power plants using 
renewable energy/bio fuels. A significant portion of our generation comes 
from biogas generated through waste produced during the alcohol 
manufacturing process – significantly reducing out carbon footprint. 

UN SDGs

Use of Recycled Glass Bottles

Given the nature of our business and the high usage of glass bottles, we 
have been aiming to increase our consumption of recycled glass bottles. 
This continuous focus has seen us increasing the usage from 4.5% to 
14.1% in the past two years for key large brands. 

Consumption (million) FY2019 FY2020 FY2021

% Recycled Bottles 4.5% 7.4% 14.1%

UN SDGs
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Tree Plantation

During the year under review, Radico Khaitan undertook plantation of 

10,000 trees at various locations in the Rampur district.

Water Recharging

Water is at the core of sustainable 
development and is critical for 
socio-economic development, 
healthy ecosystems and for human 
survival itself. Water is at the heart 
of adaptation to climate change, 
serving as the crucial link between 
the climate system, human society 
and the environment.

Rainwater harvesting and 
ground level recharging is a 
common theme at our plants. 
We have installed 27 recharging 

structures across the premises. 
We have taken our success to our 
communities and have installed 
129 recharging structures across 
38 villages in Chamraua Block 
of District Rampur. Currently, 
we are able to recharge ~300% 
of total water we draw from the 
ground, giving back more to the 
ecosystem. Consequently, the 
ground water level in Chamraua 
Block has improved by about 1 
meter and reached a stable level.

Year Recharge water 
(million M3)

% of ground 
water used

No. of recharging 
shafts

Upto FY2019 2.04 215% 118

FY2020 2.38 251% 141

FY2021 2.80 295% 156

UN SDGs

Upto 
FY2019

215%

251%

295%

2.382.04 2.80

FY2020 FY2021

Water Consumption

We are proud to mention that our water consumption is one of the lowest 
in the Alcobev industry. We have been continuously working to bring 
down the water consumption through technology upgrade throughout 
the manufacturing process. Today both, the molasses and grain distilleries, 
use about 6.2-6.3 liters of water per bulk liter of alcohol production. This 
has come down by 48% in case of Molasses based distillery and 40% in 

case of Grain based distillery. 

Molasses based Grain based

Year FY2018 FY2021 FY2018 FY2021

% Recycled Streams 39% 70% 29% 63%

Fresh water 
consumption (liter/BL)

12.3 6.3 10.5 6.2

   

UN SDGs

 

UN SDGs
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Check Dam Recharging Well

Recharging shaft Water Pool

We have joined hands with ‘Vyakti 
Vikas Kendra India’ (The Art 
of Living) and the government 
to further replicate our water 
recharging success in other areas 
of Rampur. 

Under the project, we plan to cover 
three blocks of Rampur district out 
of the four blocks. A total of 451 
villages have been considered, out 

of 1,163 villages of Rampur district. 
We plan to cover a total area of 
831 sq km, out of the total of 2,298 
sq km area of Rampur district. 
Our project will benefit over 40% 
of the total population of Rampur 
district of 23.3 lakh.

This project will not only support 
the upliftment of water level in the 
Rampur district but also provide 

employment to a large number 
of youth. As part of the project, 
individuals will be trained and 
prepared to create awareness 
about the water resources in the 
area, rainfall patterns, hydrological 
cycle, and water accounting and 
budgeting. This will enable them 
to also prepare water security 
plans for the area and maintain 
recharge structures. Hand in hand, 
water literacy training programs 
will also be conducted across the 
area to educate farmers about 
more e«ective and sustainable 
irrigation techniques such as 
sprinkler systems or drip irrigation. 
Farmers utilizing e©cient irrigation 
techniques shall be incentivized 
and rewarded. 

UN SDGs

Radico - The Art of Living’s Bhujal Shakti Project
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Director’s Report 

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Thirty Seventh Annual Report on the business and operations together with the 
Audited Financial Statements of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2021.

Results of operations and state of Company’s affairs

(` in Crore)

Standalone Consolidated

FY2021 FY2020 Change (%) FY2021 FY2020 Change (%)

Revenue from Operations (Gross) 10,367.36 9,417.89 10.1% 10,367.36 9,417.89 10.1%
Revenue from Operations (Net) 2,418.14 2,427.04 (0.4)% 2,418.14 2,427.04 (0.4)%

Other Income 20.07 9.19 118.5% 20.07 9.19 118.5%
Income from Operations 2,438.21 2,436.23 0.1% 2,438.21 2,436.23 0.1%

Raw Materials Consumed 1,202.42 1,248.19 (3.7)% 1,202.42 1,248.19 (3.7)%
Employee Benefit Expenses 176.34 186.08 (5.2)% 176.34 186.08 (5.2)%
Selling & Distribution Expenses 316.52 311.25 1.7% 316.52 311.25 1.7%
Depreciation 53.90 52.53 2.6% 53.90 52.53 2.6%
Finance Cost 22.02 31.61 (30.4)% 22.02 31.61 (30.4)%
Other Operating Expenses 313.92 309.72 1.4% 313.92 309.72 1.4%
Total Expenses 2,085.11 2,139.37 (2.5)% 2,085.11 2,139.37 (2.5)%

Profit Before Tax & Exceptional Item 353.10 296.85 18.9% 353.10 296.85 18.9%
Exceptional Item 0.00 (24.17)  0.00 (24.17)  
Profit Before Tax 353.10 272.69 29.5% 353.10 272.69 29.5%

Current Tax 84.36 70.95 18.9% 84.36 70.95 18.9%
Previous Year Adjustments (3.89) 0.00  (3.89) 0.00  
Deferred Tax 2.07 (25.76) (108.0)% 2.07 (25.76) (108.0)%
Net Profit 270.56 227.50 18.9% 270.56 227.50 18.9%

Net Income Margin (%) 11.2% 9.4%  11.2% 9.4%  
Share in profit of Joint Venture    6.59 1.64 302.3%
Other Comprehensive Expenses / 
(Income)

0.86 2.70 (68.1)% 0.86 2.73 (68.7)%

Total Comprehensive Income 269.70 224.80 20.0% 276.30 226.41 22.0%

Total Comprehensive Income 
Margin (%)

11.2% 9.3%  11.2% 9.3%

Basic EPS (`) 20.26 17.05 18.8% 20.75 17.16 20.9%
Gross Profit 1,215.72 1,178.85  3.1% 1,215.72 1,178.85  3.1%

Gross Margin (%) 50.3% 48.6%  50.3% 48.6%  

EBITDA 407.79 368.19 10.8% 407.79 368.19 10.8%

EBITDA Margin (%) 16.9% 15.2%  16.9% 15.2%

Paid-up Equity Share Capital (Face 
Value of ` 2 each)

26.71 26.71 0.0% 26.71 26.71 0.0%

Reserves & Surplus 1,737.19 1,493.82 16.3% 1,766.20 1,516.23 16.5%
Transfer to General Reserve -   -       
Proposed Dividend and tax thereon 32.06 26.71 20.0% 32.06 26.71 20.0%

Performance Review (standalone)

Revenue from Operations 

Volume (Million Cases) FY2021 FY2020 Change (%)

Prestige & Above 6.51 7.05 (7.7)%
Regular & Others 15.83 17.25 (8.2)%
Total Volume 22.34 24.30 (8.0)%

Prestige & Above as % of Total 29.1% 29.0%
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Due to the pandemic induced lock downs in April 2020, 
our performance was impacted adversely. As a result, 
total volumes declined (8.0%) y-o-y and Revenue from 
Operations (Net) degrew by (0.4)%. Immediately after the 
nationwide lockdowns started to ease out in May 2020, 
our operations rebounded very quickly and we also saw 
improvement in the industry performance on a quarter-on-
quarter basis. Through the second half of FY2021, we had 
seen sustained improvement in various macroeconomic 
indicators demonstrating a strong economic revival. By 
the end of the year, eight out of eleven top markets that 
we operate in returned to growth. Against IMFL volume 
decline of (8.0)%, IMFL sales value decreased by (3.3)%. In 
value terms, Prestige & Above brands contributed to about 
50.6% of total IMFL sales value (vs. 49.5% last year). IMFL 
sales value accounted for 79.1% of the total Revenue from 
Operations (net) of the Company compared to 81.5% last 
year. Non-IMFL sales value growth was 12.6% during the year.

Gross Profit

Gross Margin expanded from 48.6% in FY2020 to 50.3% 
in FY2021. On Y-o-Y basis, ENA prices declined about 
4%. Raw material prices overall have been benign during 
FY2021. However, towards the end of the year we saw some 
inflationary pressures on the dry goods such as packing 
materials.

EBITDA

EBITDA increased by 10.8% y-o-y with margins of 16.9% 
(increased by 169 bps Y-o-Y). During FY2021, Advertising 
& Sales Promotion (A&SP) expenses were ` 139.63 Crore 
(flat Y-o-Y). The Company continues to invest behind 
brand building to support strategic growth and market 
share expansion initiatives.

Finance Cost	 

Finance Cost for FY2021 decreased by 30.4% y-o-y from  
` 31.61 Crore to ` 22.02 Crore.

Total Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income increased by 20.0% compared 
to last year to ` 269.70 Crore. 

Performance Review (Consolidated)

Radico Khaitan has a 36% equity stake in Radico NV 
Distilleries Maharashtra Limited. Consolidated financials of 
the Company include share in profit of this joint venture 
amounting to ` 6.59 Crore in FY2021 compared with ` 1.64 
Crore in FY2020.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has recommended a dividend of 
120% i.e. ` 2.40 per equity share of ` 2 each fully paid up 
Capital of the Company (last year ` 2 per equity share of  
` 2 each). The payment of dividend is subject to approval 
of the members at the forthcoming annual general meeting 
and shall be subject to deduction of income tax at source.

The dividend recommended is in accordance with the 
Company’s Dividend Distribution Policy. The Dividend 
Distribution Policy of the Company is available on the 
Company’s website and can be accessed at https://
www.radicokhaitan.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/
Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Share Capital

The Company has an authorized share capital of ` 94 Crore 
consisting of ̀  34 Crores equity share capital (17,00,00,000 
equity shares of ` 2 each) and ` 60 Crores preference share 
capital (60,00,000 preference shares of ` 100 each).

As on March 31, 2021, the issued, subscribed and paid up 
share Capital of the Company is ` 26.71 Crores divided into 
13,35,68,265 fully paid up equity shares of ` 2 each.

Employees’ Stock Option Scheme

The Company has an employee stock option scheme 2006 
(Scheme 2006). During the year, there was no material 
change in the scheme and the scheme is in compliance with 
the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 
2014 (the ‘SEBI ESOP Regulations’). 

During the year under review, no stock options were 
granted to employees under the Scheme 2006 and the 
Company has allotted 34,000 equity shares on exercise of 
stock options. Each Option entitles the holder to acquire 
one equity share of ̀  2 each of the Company at the exercise 
price fixed at the time of grant, being the market price as 
per the erstwhile SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme 
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999. 

The particulars of the options as required by SEBI (Share 
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 have been 
placed on the website of the company and web link of 
the same is https://www.radicokhaitan.com/wp-content/
uploads/2021/09/ESOP-Disclosure-Annual-Report-2021.pdf

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND 
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the year under review, the Company has no 
subsidiary. The Company has only one joint venture, namely, 
Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Limited (“RNV”). The 
Company has 36% stake in the said joint venture. In terms 
of the Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”), the financial results of RNV are consolidated with 
the accounts of the Company and the salient features of 
the financial statements of RNV as set out in the prescribed 
form AOC-1 is appended as Annexure – A to this report.

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and SEBI 
(Listing Obligation and Disclosures requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 read with Ind AS 110 Consolidated 
Financial Statement, Ind AS 28 Investments in Associates 
and Joint Ventures and Ind AS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures, 
the consolidated audited financial statement forms part of 
the Annual Report.

https://www.radicokhaitan.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf
https://www.radicokhaitan.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf
https://www.radicokhaitan.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf
https://www.radicokhaitan.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/ESOP-Disclosure-Annual-Report-2021.pdf
https://www.radicokhaitan.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/ESOP-Disclosure-Annual-Report-2021.pdf
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CREDIT RATING

The Company’s long-term credit facility is revised by 
CARE Ratings. The Company’s long-term credit facilities is 
now rated as CARE AA- (Double A Minus) with a positive 
outlook.

CARE AA rated instruments are considered to have high 
degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial 
obligations. Such instruments carry very low credit risk. 
Such instruments carry lowest credit risk. Modifiers (+/-) 
reflect the comparative standing within the category.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

Statutory Auditor

As per the provisions of the Act, the term of BGJC & 
Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company expires at the conclusion 
of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Based on the 
recommendations of the Audit Committee, it is proposed 
to appoint M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered 
Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a 
term of 5 (five) consecutive years. M/s. Walker Chandiok 
& Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, have confirmed their 
eligibility and qualifications required under the Act for 
holding the office as Statutory Auditors of the Company. 

Audit Report

The report of the Statutory Auditors along with notes 
to Schedules is enclosed to this annual report. The 
observations made in the Auditors’ Report are self-
explanatory and therefore do not call for any further 
comments. The Auditor’s Report does not contain any 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark. Further, the 
auditors have not reported any fraud u/s 143(12) of the Act.

Cost Auditor

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, has approved the appointment of Mr. R. 
Krishnan, Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditors, for the 
financial year ending March 31, 2021. In accordance with 
the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
since the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to 
be ratified by the shareholders, the Board recommends the 
same for approval by shareholders at the ensuing annual 
general meeting. 

Cost Records

Maintenance of cost records has been specified by the 
Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the prescribed cost records have been made 
and maintained by the Company.

Secretarial Auditor

The Company had appointed M/s TVA & Co. LLP, Company 
Secretaries to conduct its Secretarial Audit for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2021. The Secretarial Auditors have 
submitted their report, confirming compliance by the 
Company of all the provisions of applicable corporate laws. 
The Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, 
disclaimer or adverse remark. The Secretarial Audit Report 

is annexed as Annexure B to the Board’s report. The Board, 
on the recommendation of Audit Committee, has re-
appointed M/s. TVA & Co. LLP, Company Secretaries, New 
Delhi, as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for financial 
year 2021-22.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Induction, Re-appointment, Retirements and Resignations

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles 
of Association of the Company, Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, 
Managing Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the 
ensuing annual general meeting. The Board of Directors, on 
the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC), has recommended re-appointment of Mr. 
Abhishek Khaitan.

The members had, at the 33rd AGM of the Company 
held on September 29, 2017, approved re-appointment of 
and payment of remuneration to Mr. Abhishek Khaitan as 
Managing Directors for the Company for a period of five 
years effective from February 28, 2018.

Hence, the Board of Directors have recommended the 
payment of remuneration to Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, as 
per Regulation 17(6)(e) of SEBI Listing Regulations, with 
effects from April 01, 2019 for the remaining tenure of his 
appointment i.e. upto February 19,2023.

During the year, Mr. Dinesh Kumar Gupta was appointed 
as Vice President – Legal and Company Secretary in the 
category of key managerial personnel with effect from 
January 28, 2021 in place of Mr. Amit Manchanda who 
resigned from the services of the Company.

The Company has a Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
and formulated the criteria for determining the qualifications, 
positive attributes and independence of a Director (“the 
Criteria”). The policy relates to the remuneration of the 
Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees, as 
required under Section 178(3) of the Act. The Criteria includes 
that a person to be appointed on the Board of the Company 
should possess in addition to the fundamental attributes 
of character and integrity, appropriate qualifications, skills, 
experience and knowledge.

Meeting of Independent Directors 

The Independent Directors of the Company met separately 
on January 28, 2021 without the presence of the Non-
Independent Directors and the members of management. 
The meeting was conducted informally to enable the 
Independent Directors to discuss matters pertaining to the 
Company’s affairs and put forth their combined views to 
the Board of Directors of the Company. In accordance with 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), following matters 
were, inter-alia, discussed in the meeting: 

1. 	 Review of the performance of Non Independent 
Directors and the Board as a whole; 
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2. 	 Review of the performance of the Chairperson of the 
Company, taking into account the views of Executive 
Directors and Non-Executive Directors;

3. 	 Assess the quality, quantity and timelines of flow of 
information between the Company management and 
the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively 
and reasonably perform their duties.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company’s Independent Directors have submitted 
requisite declarations confirming that they continue to 
meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under 
Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the 
Listing Regulations. The Independent Directors have also 
confirmed that they have complied with Schedule IV of the 
Act and the Company’s Code of Conduct. The Company 
keeps a policy of transparency and arm’s length while 
dealing with its Independent Directors. No transaction was 
entered with Independent Directors during the year which 
could have any material pecuniary relationship with them. 
Apart from sitting fee, no other remuneration was paid to 
any of the Independent Directors.

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors 
hold highest standard of integrity and possess the requisite 
qualifications, experience, expertise and proficiency.

Policy on Nomination, Remuneration and Board Diversity

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down 
a framework in relation to the remuneration of Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the 
Company. This policy also lays down criteria for selection 
and appointment of the Board Members as well as diversity 
of the Board. Radico Khaitan recognizes the benefits and 
importance of having a diverse Board of Directors in terms 
of skill set and experience. The Company has an optimum 
mix of executive and non-executive, independent directors 
and woman director. The detail of the policy is explained 
in the Corporate Governance Report and full policy is also 
available on the Company’s website at the following link: 
http://www.radicokhaitan.com/ investor-relations.

Annual Board Evaluation

The Board is committed to transparency in assessing 
the performance of Directors. In accordance with the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, 
Schedule – IV of the Act and Regulation 4(2)(f) of the 
Listing Regulations, Radico Khaitan has framed a policy 
for the formal annual evaluation of the performance of the 
Board, Committees and individual Directors. The Company 
has put in place a robust framework for evaluation of the 
Board, its Committees, the Chairman, individual Directors 
and the governance processes that support the Board’s 
functioning. 

This framework covers specific criteria and the grounds 
on which all Directors in their individual capacity are 
evaluated. The key criteria for performance evaluation 
of the Board and its Committees include aspects such 

as composition and structure, effectiveness of board 
processes, information sharing and functioning. The 
criteria for performance evaluation of the individual 
Directors include aspects such as professional conduct, 
competency, and contribution to the Board and 
Committee meetings. The criteria for performance 
evaluation of the committees of the Board include aspects 
such as the composition of committees and effectiveness 
of committee meetings. The performance evaluation of 
the Independent Directors was done by the entire Board 
excluding the Director being evaluated. The performance 
evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent 
Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. 
The Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with 
the evaluation process.

Familiarisation Programme for the Board Members

A note on the familiarisation programme adopted by the 
Company for orientation and training of the Directors and 
the Board evaluation process undertaken in compliance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Listing Regulations is provided in the Report on Corporate 
Governance which forms part of the Annual Report.

Roles and Responsibilities of Board Members 

The Company has a clearly laid out policy defining the 
structure and role of the Board Members. The Company has 
an Executive Chairman and Managing Director, presently Dr 
Lalit Khaitan; a Managing Director, currently Mr. Abhishek 
Khaitan and an optimum combination of executive and 
non-executive independent directors. The duties of the 
Board Members including Independent Directors have 
been elaborated in the Listing Regulations, Section 166 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Schedule IV of the said Act. 
There is a clear segregation of responsibility and authority 
amongst the Board Members.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

In terms of the first proviso to Section 136 of the Act, the 
Reports and Accounts are being sent to the shareholders 
excluding the information required under Rule 5 (2) and 
(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Any shareholder 
interested in obtaining the same may write to the Company 
Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company on 
any working day of the Company up to the date of the 
36th Annual General Meeting. The statement containing 
information as required under the provisions of Section 
197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 (1), Rule 5(2) and Rule 
5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure – C  
and forms part of this Report.

BOARD COMMITTEE AND MEETINGS OF THE 
BOARD AND BOARD – COMMITTEES

In compliance with the statutory requirements, the 
Company has mandatory committees viz. Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee, Risk Management 

http://www.radicokhaitan.com
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Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and 
Committee of Directors.

All the recommendations made by the Committees of the 
Board, including the Audit Committee, were accepted by 
the Board.

The Board of Directors met four (4) times during the 
previous financial year. A detailed update on the Board, its 
composition, governance of committee including detailed 
charter, terms and reference of various Board Committees, 
number of Board and Committee meetings held during 
financial year 2020-21 and attendance of the Directors 
at each meeting is provided in the Report on Corporate 
Governance, which forms part of this Annual report.

CONVERSATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology 
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 
required to be disclosed pursuant to Section 134 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given as 
Annexure-D  and forms part of this Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION MEASURES 
TAKEN BY THE COMPANY 

In view of the corporate responsibility on environmental 
protection, the Company has adopted a number of 
measures for improvement in the field of environment, 
safety and health. Measures such as standard operating 
procedures, training programmes for all levels of employees 
regarding resource conservation, housekeeping, Green Belt 
development and onsite emergency plan have been taken. 
Sustainable living is a part of long-term business strategy 
and your Company continuously strives to reduce our 
environmental footprint, while enhancing the livelihood of 
people across our product value chain.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board of Directors of the Company has devised 
systems, policies, procedures and frameworks, which are 
currently operational within the Company for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, which 
includes adherence to policies, safeguarding its assets, 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records and timely 
preparation of reliable financial information.

The internal financial controls have been documented, 
digitised and embedded in the business process. Assurance 
on the effectiveness of internal financial controls is obtained 
through management reviews, controls self-assessment, 
continuous monitoring by functional experts as well as 
testing of the internal financial control systems by the 
internal auditors during the course of their audits. We 
believe that these systems provide reasonable assurance 
that our internal financial controls are designed effectively 
and are operating as intended.

Management team has assessed the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as at 
March 31, 2021. The Statutory Auditors of the Company 
have audited the financial statements included in this 
Annual Report and issued their report on internal control 
over financial reporting (as defined under section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013). The Company has appointed reputed 
firms of Chartered Accountants to carry out Internal Audits. 
The audit is based on focused and risk-based internal plans, 
which is reviewed every year in consultation with the Audit 
Committee. In line with international practices, the focus 
of Internal Audit is oriented towards the review of internal 
controls and risks in operations.

Risk Management Policy

Radico Khaitan’s business is exposed to a variety of risks 
which are inherent to a liquor manufacturing company 
in India. In this volatile, uncertain and complex operating 
environment, only companies that manage their risk 
effectively can sustain. Risk management is embedded 
in Radico Khaitan’s corporate strategies and operating 
framework, and the risk framework helps the Company 
meet its objectives by aligning operating controls with 
the corporate mission and vision. The Company has in 
place comprehensive risk assessment and minimization 
procedures, integrated across all operations and entails the 
recording, monitoring and controlling enterprise risks and 
addressing them timely and comprehensively. The risks 
that the Company faces as strategic, Security risks , cyber-
attack, financial, liquidity, regulatory, reputational and other 
risks are reviewed by the Risk Management Committee, 
the Audit Committee and the Board from time to time and 
new risks are identified based on new business initiatives 
and the same are assessed, minimisation framework and 
controls are designed and appropriately implemented.

DEMATERIALISATION

During the year 1,44,750 shares of the Company 
constituting 0.11% of the issued and subscribed Share 
Capital of the Company, were dematerialised. As on 
March 31, 2021, 99.04% of the shares of the Company have 
been dematerialized. Your Directors would request all the 
members who have not yet converted their holdings into 
dematerialized form, to do so thereby facilitating trading of 
their shares. As per SEBI guidelines it is mandatory that the 
shares of a company are in dematerialized form for trading.

INSURANCE OF FIXED ASSETS 

Your Company has adequately insured all its properties 
including Plant and Machinery, Building and Stocks.

ARCHIVAL POLICY 

Pursuant to the Listing Regulations and in line with 
Radico Khaitan’s Policy on Determination of Materiality 
of Events, the Company shall disclose all such events to 
the Stock Exchanges and such disclosures shall be hosted 
on the website of the Company for a period of 5 years 
and thereafter the same shall be archived so as to be 
available for retrieval for a further period of three years 
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by storing the same on suitable media. Thereafter the said 
information, documents, records may be destroyed as per 
the Company’s policy on preservation of documents.

SAFETY & WELLBEING OF WOMEN 

Gender equality and women safety is a very important part 
of Radico Khaitan’s human resource policies. The Company 
has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace 
and has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition 
and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line 
with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder for prevention and 
redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. 
The Company has endeavoured to encourage women 
professionals by creating proper policies to tackle issues 
relating to safe and proper working conditions and create 
and maintain a healthy and conducive work environment 
that is free from discrimination. During the year under 
review, there were no sexual harassment cases reported to 
the Safety & Wellbeing of Women.

Composition of the Sexual Harassment Committee as on 
March 31, 2021 compliance with conditions of corporate 
governance, as stipulated under the Listing Regulations, 
forms part of the Annual Report.

The internal financial controls have been documented, 
digitised and embedded in the business process. Assurance 
on the

1. Ms. Roopali Makhija Presiding Officer

2. Ms. Jyoti Negi Member

3. Mr. Dinesh Kumar Gupta Member

4. Ms. Manu Chaudhary Member

5. Mr. Vinay Padroo Member

6. Mr. Mukesh Arora Member

VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 177(9) & (10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Radico Khaitan has in place a robust 
vigil mechanism and has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy 
which allows employees of the Company to raise their 
concerns relating to fraud, malpractice or any other activity 
or event which is against the interest of the Company or 
society as a whole. All employees shall be protected from 
any adverse action for reporting any unacceptable or 
improper practice and/or any unethical practice, fraud or 
violation of any law, rule or regulation. This policy is also 
applicable to the Directors of the Company. All cases 
reported as part of whistle-blower mechanism are taken 
to their logical conclusion within a reasonable timeframe. 
Details of complaints received and the action taken are 
reviewed by the Audit Committee. The functioning of 
the Vigil Mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee 
from time to time. The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been 
uploaded on the website of the Company at http://www.
radicokhaitan.com/ investor-relations/.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (CSR) 

CSR at Radico Khaitan is creating sustainable programs that 
actively contribute to and support the social and economic 
development of the society. The Company is committed to 
community development, enhancing livelihood, promoting 
education and health care including preventive health care 
and ensuring environmental sustainability. As part of its CSR 
programmes, the Company partners with the community 
and addresses issues of water and sanitation, education, 
health and skill-building. Radico Khaitan also promotes 
and encourages responsible drinking through engaging 
with employees, taking preventative action, education and 
raising awareness and bringing communities on board to 
address local challenges at their root. The CSR policy of the 
Company is available on the Company’s website.

Composition of the CSR Committee as on March 31, 2021

1. Dr. Lalit Khaitan

2. Mr. Abhishek Khaitan

3. Mr. K.P. Singh

4. Ms. Sushmita Singha

The Company’s projects are in accordance with Schedule 
VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company’s CSR 
Policy. The Report on CSR activities as required under 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014 is set out as Annexure - E forming part of this Report.

The company had the obligation to spend ` 457.02 lakhs in 
the Financial Year 2020-21 however the company has spent 
` 528.08 which is excess by ` 71.06 Lakhs.

The Board has approved the adjustment excess amount 
spent against the obligations of next 3 years as per the 
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS 

There was no instance of a fraud during the year under 
review which required the statutory auditor to report to the 
Audit Committee or the Board under section 18 (12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 

CYBER RISK 

The failure of information Technology (IT) systems due 
to malicious attacks and / or non-compliance with data 
privacy laws can potentially lead to financial loss, business 
disruption and / or damage to the Company’s reputation. 
Radico Khaitan has in place a data protection policy. It also 
maintains a cyber security infrastructure. The Company 
uses standardised backup tools, service and procedures to 
ensure that information and data are stored at two or more 
diverse locations.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Based on the framework of Internal Financial Controls and 
compliance systems established and maintained by the 
Company, the work performed by the Internal Auditors, 

http://www.radicokhaitan.com
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Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors, including the 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting 
by the Statutory Auditors and the reviews performed by 
Management and the relevant Board Committees, including 
the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the 
Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and 
effective during FY2021.

To the best of knowledge and belief and according to 
the information and explanations obtained by them, your 
Directors make the following statement in terms of Section 
134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

i)	 In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the 
year ended March 31, 2021, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures, if any;

ii)	 The Board has selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgements and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the profit of the 
Company for the year ended on that date;

iii)	 The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities.

iv)	 The annual accounts have been prepared on a going 
concern basis;

v)	 The Directors had laid down internal financial controls 
to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively; and

vi)	 The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively.

OTHER DISCLOSUREs

(i)	 Extract of Annual Return

	 Pursuant to Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has placed a copy 
of the Annual Return as at March 31, 2021 on its website 
and by virtue of amendment to Section 92(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to 
provide extract of Annual Return (Form MGT-9) as part 
of the Board’s report.

	 Annual Return can be accessed at https://www.
radicokhaitan.com/wp content/uploads/2021/09/
MGT-7-Annual-Return-2021.pdf

(ii)	 Public Deposits

	 During the year under review, your Company has 
neither invited nor accepted any fixed deposits 

from the public within the meaning of Section 73 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

(iii)	L oans, Guarantees and Investments

	 Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments 
covered under the provisions of Section 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to 
Financial Statements.

(iv)	� Particulars of Contract or arrangements with 

Related Party

	 All transactions entered with Related Parties for 
the year under review were on arm’s length basis 
and in the ordinary course of business and that the 
provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
are not attracted. Thus, disclosure in form AOC-2 is 
not required.

	 Further, there are no material related party 
transactions during the year under review with the 
promoters, directors or key managerial personnel. 
The Company has developed a Related Party 
Transactions framework through Standard Operating 
Procedures for the purpose of identification and 
monitoring of such transactions.

	 All Related Party Transactions are placed before the 
Audit Committee as also to the Board for approval. 
Omnibus approval was obtained on a quarterly 
basis for transactions which are of repetitive nature. 
Transactions entered into pursuant to omnibus 
approval are audited by the Legal & Compliance 
Department and a statement giving details of all 
Related Party Transactions are placed before the 
Audit Committee and the Board for review and 
approval on a quarterly basis.

	 The Policy on Related Party Transactions as amended 
and approved by the Board of Directors has been 
uploaded on the website of the Company. The web-
link of the same has been provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report. None of the Directors has any 
pecuniary relationship of transactions vis-à-vis the 
Company.

(v)	 Orders passed by courts/regulators

	 The U.P. State Excise Department has issued a show 
cause notice (SCN) to us claiming an excise duty 
amounting to ` 1,822.77 Lakhs on the alcohol lost in 
the fire accident. Based on the opinion of the legal 
counsel, the Group has filed an appeal under Rule 813 
of the U.P. Excise Rule before the U.P. Commissioner 
of Excise seeking relief from the above claim by way of 
setting aside the above mentioned SCN, considering 
this loss of alcohol as an unavoidable accident of fire.

(vi)	 Secretarial Standards

	 The Company has followed applicable Secretarial 
Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings 
of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, 
respectively.

https://www.radicokhaitan.com/wp
https://www.radicokhaitan.com/wp
MGT-7-Annual-Return-2021.pdf
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(vii)	Corporate Governance Report

	 Report on Corporate Governance along with the 
certificate from Mr. Tanuj Vohra, Partner at M/s. TVA & 
Co. LLP, Company Secretaries, confirming compliance 
with conditions of corporate governance, as stipulated 
under the Listing Regulations, forms part of the Annual 
Report.

(viii)	General Reserve 

	 Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount 
to General Reserve and the entire amount of the 
profit for the year ended March 31, 2021 forms part of 
retained earnings.

(ix)	 Management Discussion and Analysis:

	 Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as 
required under the Listing Regulations is provided as a 
separate report and forms part of this Annual Report.

(x)	 Business Responsibility Report

	 The Business Responsibility Report for FY2021, as 
stipulated under Regulation 34(2)(f) of the Listing 
Regulations is annexed is a separate report and forms 
part of this Annual Report.

(xi)	 Change in the nature of business

	 There is no change in the nature of business during the 
year under the review.

(xii)	Details of material changes from the year end.

	 There is no material change since March 31, 2021.

(xiii)	Dispatch of Annual Report through electronic mode

	 In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI 
Circular dated May 12, 2020, notice of the AGM along 

with the Annual Report 2020-21 is being sent only 
through electronic mode to those members whose 
email addresses are registered with the Company/ 
Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and 
Annual Report 2020-21 will also be available on the 
Company’s website (https://www.radicokhaitan.com/
investorrelations), websites of the Stock Exchanges, 
i.e., BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited at www.bseindia.com and www. nseindia.com, 
respectively, and on the website of the Company’s 
Registrar and Transfer Agent, KFin Technologies 
Private Limited (“KFinTech”) at https://evoting.karvy.
com.
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ANNEXURE – A

Form-AOC-1

[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section(3) of section 129 read with rule5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014]

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or  

associate companies or joint ventures

Part A Subsidiaries

Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented Amounts in `

There is no Subsidiary of the Company NIL

Part B Associates and Joint Ventures	

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies 

Act,2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint 

Ventures Amounts in Lakhs

Name of Associates or Joint Ventures Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Ltd.

1.	 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2021
2.	 Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was 

associated or acquired
26.05.2007

3.	 Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the 
company on the year end

Equity shares Preference Shares

	 No. 13,58,503 20,00,000
	 Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Venture ` 18439.43
	 Extent of Holding (in percentage)     36%
4.	 Description of how there is significant influence As per Joint Venture and Shareholders Agreement 

dated 26.5.2007.  The day-to-day management for the 
operations of the Company shall be the responsibility of 
the Radico Khaitan Limited.

5.	 Reason why the associate/joint venture is not 
consolidated

N.A.

6. 	 Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest 
audited Balance Sheet

7093.22

7. 	 Profit or Loss for the year:
	 i.	 Considered in Consolidation 659.43
	 ii.	 Not Considered in Consolidation N.A.

1.	 There are no associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations

2.	 There are no associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For BGJC & Associates LLP				   Dilip K. Banthiya				    Dr. Lalit Khaitan
Chartered Accountants					    Chief Financial Officer			   Chairman & Managing Director
Firm Regn. No.003304N

Darshan Chhajer						      Dinesh Kumar Gupta			   Abhishek Khaitan
Partner								        Vice President – Legal &			   Managing Director
Membership No.088308				    Company Secretary

									         Alok K. Agarwal				    Director
									         Sr. Vice President - Finance & 
									         Accounts

Place: New Delhi
Dated: July 28, 2021	
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ANNEXURE – B

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,
The Members, 
Radico Khaitan Limited
CIN: L26941UP1983PLC027278
Bareilly Road, Rampur
Uttar Pradesh -244901

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by Radico Khaitan Limited 
(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, 
Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we 
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st 
March, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper board-
processes and compliance- mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter:

We have examined the Books, Papers, Minute Books, 
Forms and Returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 
2021 according to the provisions of:

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made 
thereunder;

(ii)	 The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 
(‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 
Bye-Laws framed thereunder;

(iv)	 The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and 
the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;

b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018;

d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 
2014;

e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, 
2013 and dealing with the client;

g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;

h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy 
Back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; 

i)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015; and 

j)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 
2018.

(vi)	 We further report that, having regard to the 
compliance system prevailing in the Company and 
on examination of the relevant documents and 
records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the 
Company has complied with following Acts, Laws and 
Regulations applicable specifically to the Company:-

i.	 Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 and Rules 
and Regulations made thereunder; 

ii.	 State Excise Laws relating to alcohol industry;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following:

(i)	 Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India.

(ii)	 The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company 
with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited (NSE). 
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(iii)	 Codes and Policies adopted by the Company.

We further report that during the period under review the 
following Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines were not 
applicable to the Company:

(i)	 The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the 
rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 
and External Commercial Borrowings;

(ii)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018;

(iii)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and 
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; and

(iv)	  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting 
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

(v)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back 
of Securities) Regulations, 2018.

We further report that during the period under review the 
Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company 
is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The 
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the period under review were carried out 
in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

We further report that adequate notice is given to all 
directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days 
in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting. Decisions carried through by the Board do not 
have any dissenting views and hence no relevant recordings 
were made in the minutes book maintained for the purpose.

We further report that there are adequate systems and 
processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and 
Guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were 
following events/actions in pursuance of the above referred 
Laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc, having 
a major bearing on the Company’s affairs:

(i)	 Change in Management

	 During the period under review, Mr. Amit Manchanda, 
Vice President-Legal & Company Secretary had 
resigned from the Company w.e.f. 28th January, 2021. 
The Company has duly filed necessary intimations in 

this regard with the Stock Exchange and the Registrar 
of Companies.

	 Mr. Dinesh Kumar Gupta was appointed as Vice 
President-Legal & Company Secretary and Compliance 
Officer w.e.f. 28th January, 2021 in the board meeting 
held on 28th January, 2021. The Company has duly 
filed necessary intimations in this regard with the 
Stock Exchange and the Registrar of Companies.

(ii)	 Declaration and Payment of Final Dividend

	 The Board in its meeting held on 28th May, 2020 
had proposed to recommend the final dividend on 
the equity shares of Rs. 2 (Rupees Two Only) per 
share, amounting to Rs 26,70,84,530 (Rupees Twenty 
Six Crore Seventy Lakh Eighty Four Thousand Five 
hundred Thirty Only), which shall be paid out of the 
profits of the Company for the year 2019-20 and the 
dividend as recommended by the Board was also 
approved by the shareholder of the Company in the 
Annual General Meeting held on 31st August, 2020. 
The Company has duly made the payment of such 
final dividend to its shareholders in compliance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iii)	R e-appointment of Cost Auditor

	 The Board had re-appointed Mr. R. Krishnan as the Cost 
Auditor of the Company to conduct the audit of the 
Cost Records of the Company for the Financial Year 
2020-21. The said re-appointment of Cost Auditors was 
made in its Board Meeting held on 28th May, 2020 as 
recommended by the Audit Committee in its meeting 
held on 28th May, 2020 and such appointment and 
remuneration was also approved by the shareholders 
of the Company in the Annual General Meeting held 
on 31st August, 2020.

(iv)	C losure of Sanitizer Business

	 Sanitizer Business was not core business and due to 
change in demand scenario, the management has 
decided to discontinue the sanitizer business.

For TVA & Co. LLP

Company Secretaries

				    Tanuj Vohra

Partner
M. No.: F5621, C.P. No.: 5253

Delhi, June 1, 2021	 UDIN:F005621C000405746
RP L2015UP000900

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date 
which is annexed as ‘Annexure 1’ and forms an integral part 
of our report.

* Due to the current COVID-19 pandemic outbreak 
throughout the nation. We have relied on the electronic 
information and records shared with us by the company 
through e-mail.
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Annexure-1

To,
The Members, 
Radico Khaitan Limited
CIN: L26941UP1983PLC027278
Bareilly Road, Rampur
Uttar Pradesh -244901

1	 Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring 
the various compliances but the maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion and the compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable 
Laws, Rules and Regulations is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our examination was limited to 
the verification of procedures on test basis.

3	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and Books of accounts of the 
Company.

4	 We have obtained necessary management representation about the compliance of various laws, correctness of 
information shared and happening of events, wherever required.

5	 Compliance with respect to the filings of various Reports, Returns, Forms, Certificates and Documents under the 
various statutes as mentioned in our report is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our examination 
was limited to checking the execution and timeliness of filing and we have not verified the contents of such Reports, 
Returns, Forms, Certificates etc.

6	 Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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�$SSRintPent 	 5ePuneUatiRn RI 0anageUiaO 3eUsRnneO� 5uOes� ����

(i) The Ratio of the remuneration of each director to 
the median remuneration of the employees of the 
Company for the financial year 2020-21

Director’s Name Ratio to mean 

remuneration

Dr. Lalit Khaitan 154.9:1
Mr. Abhishek Khaitan 155.0:1
Dr. Raghupati Singhania N.A.
Mr. K.P. Singh 30.6:1
Mr. Sarvesh Srivastava N.A.
Ms. Sushmita Singha N.A.
Mr. Sharad Jaipuria N.A.
Mr. Tushar Jain N.A.

(ii) The Percentage increase in remuneration of each 
Director, Chief Financial O©cer, Chief Executive 
O©cer, Company Secretary or Manager if any in 
the financial year 2020-21 compared to 2019-20.

Director’s/CFO/CEO/CS/Manager 
name

% age increase in 
remuneration

Dr. Lalit Khaitan, Chairman & 
Managing Director

13.8%

Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, Managing 
Director

13.7%

Mr. K.P. Singh, Director -
Mr. Dilip K. Banthiya, Chief Financial 
O©cer

-

Mr. Amit Manchanda, Vice 
President – Legal & Company 
Secretary

-

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Gupta, Vice 
President – Legal & Company 
Secretary

N.A

(iii) Percentage increase in the median remuneration 
of employees in the financial year 2020-21 
compared to 2019-20

0.5%

(iv) Number of permanent employees on the rolls of 
the Company

$s Rn ���������� $s Rn ����������

1179 1145
(v) Average percentile increase already made 

in the salaries of Employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the last financial year 
and its comparison with the percentile increase 
in the managerial remuneration and justification 
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration.

During 2020-21, the percentage 
increase is 3% which is based 
on remuneration policy of the 
Company and external market 
competitiveness.

During 2019-20, the 
percentage increase is 
9% which is based on 
remuneration policy 
of the Company that 
rewards people based 
on their contribution 
to the success of the 
company and external 
market competitiveness.

(vi) The Board of Directors of the Company a©rms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the 
Company.
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The information under Section 134 (3) (m)  of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 for the year ended 31st March 2021 is given here below and forms part of the Directors Report.

�$� &216(59$7,21 2) (1(5*<�

Steps taken or impact on 
conservation of energy

1. In molasses based 130 kl distillation plant, automatic power factor correction panel 
installed to improve power factor and power saving.

2. With thermal insulation audit, arrested the heat losses through steam lines, which 
cannot be identified manually.

3. With air leak survey, air leak arrested throughout the plant and saved the power.

4. By optimize the process parameter of heat integration in 100 KLPD GSP Distillation, 
flash steam of steam condensate utilization in Simmering re boiler and flash steam of 
rectifier lees utilize in aldehyde column. This resulted in saving of ` 14 Lakhs per Annum 

5. By utilising the process parameter of heat integration of both wash to ENA plant and 
BMSW evaporator, utilised 100% rectifier lees recycling in molasses wash to ENA plant & 
preheat the boiler DM water through recovery column vapor condenser thereby saving 
of steam and reducing DM water consumption and saving about ` 20 Lakhs /annum.

The steps taken by the 
company for utilizing 
alternate sources of energy

1. In molasses based 130 kl distillation plant installed automatic power factor correction 
panel to improve power factor from 0.82 to 0.95 and power saving 245 unit per day.

2. Steam line and furnace heat loss arrested in plant by improving the quality of insulation 
and arrested heat loss and saved ` 20 Lakhs.

3. Power saving thru air compressor by arresting the air leakage approx. 1048 kwh per day 
and saved ` 12.65 Lakhs (five months during 2020-21). Saving ` 30 Lakhs per year.

4. By utilizing the flash steam, saved direct steam consumption in plant.

5. By utilization of 100% plant lees, saved DM Water.

The capital investment 
on energy conservation 
equipment’s

1. The investment is ` 2.5 Lakhs for automatic power factor correction panel and power 
saving scheme.

2. The investment is ` 3.14 Lakhs for arresting the heat loss.

3. The investment is ` 7.20 Lakhs for arresting the air leakage.

4. By process improvements and small modifications. Approx ` 2.5 Lakhs.

5. By process improvements and small investments. Approx ` 3.5 Lakhs.

�%� 7(&+12/2*< $%62537,21�

Major e«orts made towards 
technology absorption and 
process improvement.

1. To enhance the cattle feed generation by optimization of feed distribution, energy 
integration and others parameter of GSP integrated evaporation to enhance e©ciency 
of evaporation and improvement in thick syrup quality. Saving of ` 60 Lakhs/Annum.

2. Installed new one alfa Laval decanter in place of old hum bolt stand by decanter to 
improve the e©ciency of decantation and enhance the cattle fodder generation. saving 
of ` 20 Lakhs.

3. To purchase 1470 oak wood casks for fresh malt spirit maturation to enhance the 
maturation facility to produce single malt whisky.

4. By optimize the process parameter and re use of steam condensate   of new 5kl malt 
plant, we have saved steam consumption by 1.0 Kg/BL and 5 M*3/KBL DM water 
consumption and saving about ` 14.50 Lakhs / annum.

5. Installation one new condenser with declined angle Lyn arm to spirit still of 5KL malt 
plant. To enhance sensory profile of FMS
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Benefits derived like 
product improvement, 
cost reduction, product 
development or import 
substitution

Apart from the monetary savings, there are other benefits from R&D which are product 
quality improvement and capacity enhancement.

Imported technology 
(imported during the 
last three years reckoned 
from the beginning of the 
financial year)-

None

(a) Detail of technology 
imported

(b) Year of Import

(c) Whether the 
technology been fully 
absorbed

(d) If not fully absorbed, 
areas, where this 
has not taken place, 
reasons thereof

Expenses incurred on 
Research and Development

None

�&� )25(,*1 (;&+$1*( ($51,1* $1' 287*2�

 Particulars of earnings and outgo of foreign exchange are given in Note 50 in Notes to Standalone Financial Statements.

�'� (19,5210(17 3527(&7,21�

 During the year 2020-21, the Company has enhanced the water recharging facilities through Water Recharging Shafts 
in ponds of near by villages. After installing the additional 33 Rain water Recharging Shafts, now total 129 no of shafts 
have been installed in 38 no of villages. The water recharging shafts are contributing into upliftment of groundwater 
level of the area. In comparison to the initial year 2017, ground water level has improved by around 1.5 mtr.  

)RU anG Rn beKaOI RI tKe %RaUG

'U� /aOit .Kaitan

Place: New Delhi            Chairman & Managing Director
Date: July 28, 2021                  DIN-00238222
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1 A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy including overview 
of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a 
reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or 
programs.

Refer Section: Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) in the Board’s Report.
Web-link for CSR Policy:
http://www.radicokhaitan.com/wp-content/
uploads/2019/03/CSR-Policies.pdf
Web-link for projects or programs:
http://www.radicokhaitan.com/
investor-relations/

2 The Composition of the CSR Committee 1. Dr. Lalit Khaitan
2. Mr. Abhishek Khaitan
3. Mr. K.P. Singh
4. Ms. Sushmita Singha

3 Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years ` 21552.98 Lakhs

4 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in 
item 3 above)

` 457.02 Lakhs (`431.06 Lakhs + ̀ 25.96 Lakhs)*

5 Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year ` 528.08 Lakhs

(b) Amount excess spent, if any; ` 71.06 Lakhs, to be adjusted in next three 
financial years

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial 
year is detailed below:

Details given below

$nnuaO 5eSRUt Rn &65 $ctiYities

      (Amount in ` Lakhs)

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Sl. 
No.

CSR Project 
or activity 
iGentifieG

Sector in which the 
project is covered

Projects or 
programs (1) 

local area 
or other 

(2) specify 
tKe state 	 

district where 
SURMects 	 
programs 

was 
undertaken

$PRunt 
outlay 

(budget) 
projects or 
programs 

wise

$PRunt 
spent on the 
projects or 
SURgUaPs� 

6ub KeaGs��    
(1) Direct 

expenditure 
on projects 
or programs 

(2) 
Overheads

Cumulative 
expenditure 

upto the 
reporting 

period

$PRunt 
sSent�� 'iUect 

or through 
implementing 

agency

1 Awareness for 
Sanitation and 
Safe Drinking 
Water

Promoting 
Sanitation, making 
availability of Safe 
Drinking Water and 
also to undertake 
health Care Project 

Rampur (U.P.) 42.50 0.04 0.04 Direct

2 Educational 
Development

Promoting 
Education including 
Enhancement of 
Vocational Skill

Rampur (U.P.) 15.00 31.71 31.71 Direct

3 Women’s 
Development

Empowering Women 
& Promoting Gender 
Equality

Rampur (U.P.) 0.10 0.10 0.10 Direct

4 Environmen-tal 
sustainability 
Ecological 
Balance

Ensuring 
Environmental 
Sustainability 
Ecological Balance

Rampur (U.P.) 10.00 70.27 70.27 Direct

5 Sports 
Promotional 
activities

Promotion of Sports 
& Cultural Activities

Rampur (U.P.) 16.00 7.30 7.30 Direct

http://www.radicokhaitan.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/CSR-Policies.pdf
http://www.radicokhaitan.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/CSR-Policies.pdf
http://www.radicokhaitan.com
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Sl. 
No.

CSR Project 
or activity 
identified

Sector in which the 
project is covered

Projects or 
programs (1) 

local area 
or other 

(2) specify 
the state & 

district where 
projects & 
programs 

was 
undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(budget) 
projects or 
programs 

wise

Amount 
spent on the 
projects or 
programs: 

Sub heads:-    
(1) Direct 

expenditure 
on projects 
or programs 

(2) 
Overheads

Cumulative 
expenditure 

upto the 
reporting 

period

Amount 
spent:- Direct 

or through 
implementing 

agency

6 Sanitation / 
Drinking water / 
Lab equipment 
& Furniture 
/ Sitting 
arrangements, 
Village lighting, 
Health Camp & 
Vaccine

Sanitation / 
Drinking water / 
Lab equipment & 
Furniture / Sitting 
arrangements, 
Village lighting, 
Health Camp & 
Vaccine

Rampur and 
Delhi

225.00 311.15 311.15 Direct

7 Project on 
Healthcare 
and Education 
through KDKCT

Bigger Project on 
Healthcare and 
Education though 
KDKCT

All India 35.00 24.66 24.66 Direct

8 Other Social 
Activities

Other Social 
Activities

Rampur and 
Delhi

47.40 107.51 107.51 Direct

9 Donation and 
Charity

Donation and 
Charity

Rampur and 
Delhi

69.00 0 0 Direct

Total - - 460.00 552.74 552.74 -
*Unspent amount for the last year

 For and on behalf of the Board

	

Dr. Lalit Khaitan

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN-00238222

Mr. Abhishek Khaitan

Managing Director
DIN-00772865

Place: New Delhi 
Date: July 28, 2021
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Management 
Discussion and 
Analysis
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EEECOONOOOMYY OOOOVEERVVIEEW
GLOBAL ECONOMY
Global economy is on its path to recovery with growth likely 
to approach 6.0% in 2021, after an estimated contraction 
of (3.3%) in CY2020. Advanced economies are expected 
to recover significantly faster due to rapid policy response 
and a widespread vaccination drive. Emerging markets and 
developing economies are expected to take longer time 
for recovery due to medium-term socio-economic losses 
because of low rates of vaccination and a lack of support 
to vulnerable groups during COVID-19 induced economic 
contractions. Youth, women workers and the informally 
employed have been hit the hardest by these contractions 
which are also expected to significantly increase income 
inequality. 

IMF expects that the downturn would have been much 
higher if it had not been for exceptional policy assistance in 
CY2020. Although GDP recovered faster than anticipated 
in the second half of CY2020, it is still below pre-pandemic 
levels in most countries. IMF projects an economic recovery 
in CY2021 and CY2022. Both developing economies and 
advanced economies are expected to have strong growth 
rates and undo some of the economic damage caused 
directly and indirectly due to the pandemic.

The following years are likely to be characterised by 
diverging recovery paths and agile policy making influenced 
primarily by the stage of recovery. Despite a wide range 
of outlooks across economies, the overarching policy 
priorities remain strikingly consistent, which is resolving 
the immediate health problem and restoring prosperity to 
pre-crisis levels. While the projected recovery brings some 
respite to low income nations and the aforementioned 
vulnerable groups, future recoveries depend on the global 
health situation which still remains uncertain. New strains of 
the virus may prove to be resistant to current vaccines which 
can prolong the pandemic and postpone global economic 
recovery. Different regions and countries are likely to see a 
significantly different path to recovery depending on the 
evolution of viral strains and the implementation of health 
policies to deal with them. 

Despite the current uncertainty regarding the global health 
paradigm, there are reasons to be confident about the 
future. Vaccines have proven to be incredibly effective. 
Countries with high vaccination rates like Canada and USA 
have seen a stark decline in daily cases and the removal of 
many public restrictions.

Source: IMF – World Economic Outlook, April 2021
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INDIAN ECONOMY
The Indian economy has faced its worst crisis ever and is 
projected to contract by (7.3%) in FY2021. The recent surge 
in daily coronavirus cases has sparked fears that India's 
recovery could be slower than expected. In Q3 and Q4 
of CY2020, economic growth had started to pick up. The 
progress indicated that the economy is gaining traction, 
with GDP growth gaining momentum in the short term. 

Coupled with the GDP contraction, India is facing significant 
supply side bottlenecks, which is leading to a situation 
dubbed stagflation. This situation has partially led to RBI 
facing a conundrum where easy monetary policies may help 
encourage GDP growth but also worsen the already high 
inflation. Given the incredibly complex economic situation, 
it is di©cult to predict the policies the government and RBI 
will implement to turn the situation around.

Nevertheless, IMF predicts strong rebound and real 
GDP growth of 12.5% in FY2022. The rebound is clearly 
evidenced by the uptick in consumption, manufacturing 
activity and bank credit. India is experiencing a V-shaped 
recovery. Global agencies such as the World Bank have 
acknowledged the fact that this recovery is phenomenal, 
given how the country has now opened up, and is organising 
large-scale vaccination drives on priority. 

India Economic Growth (%)
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Source: National Statistics O©ce; FY 2020-21 Provisional 
Estimates dated 31st May, 2021, 
* IMF – World Economic Outlook, April 2021

Even as the Indian economy faces multi-dimensional 
challenges in the short term, it remains one of the most 
dynamic major economies in the world with significant 
growth potential. With structural drivers firmly in place, 
the pace of economic growth is expected to pick up over 
time. Moreover, the expansionary growth inducing Union 
Budget 2021 aimed to significantly increase the spending 
would support the GDP growth and provide impetus to 
build India’s competitiveness on global platform and foster 
inclusive growth.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
CONSUMER SECTOR
With one of the largest consumer economies, India 
normally represents an incredibly attractive market given 

its significant growth opportunities. A growing upper-
middle class, more people being pushed out of poverty, low 
penetration rates for FMCG in rural areas, and rapidly rising 
consumerism has been the trend in India in the last decade.  
With a large number of people being pushed into poverty 
due to the economic recession induced by the pandemic, 
the short run attractiveness of the consumer sector in India 
has been impacted. 

Consumer mind-set will evolve when it comes to shopping, 
as considerations such as price and a faster transition to 
digital platforms will play a key role. After declining for the 
previous five years, savings have increased since February 
2020, owing to decreased mobility and lack of spending 
due to lockdowns, indicating consumption-led growth and 
high optimism in the future. Once the COVID-19 related 
restrictions are eased out and situation starts to normalise, 
consumer discretionary spending is expected to increase 
given people have been constrained for so long. 

The pandemic has been incredibly disruptive to supply 
chains and has significantly changed the way business is 
conducted. With lockdowns and the looming third wave 
being a potential threat, online storefronts are likely to 
become the primary form through which selling activities 
are conducted at least for some goods in the short run. 
With the increase in the accessibility of internet, especially 
amongst the younger demography, this transition can be 
an opportunity as it will help firms in the consumer sector 
develop additional supply chains. A number of states have 
recently allowed online booking/home deliveries of alcohol. 
Although still at a nascent stage, such developments open 
up new route to market opportunities in the long run.

Consumer goods companies are rethinking their existing 
strategies in order to gain traction in the industry and grab 
a larger share of consumer spending. As demand habits are 
evolving, it is posing new obstacles and opening up new 
opportunities for businesses. Understanding consumer 
behaviour after COVID-19 (their new demands and pain 
points), as well as the significance of technology and 
digital platforms, will go a long way toward improving the 
customer experience and fostering long-term connections.

SPIRITS INDUSTRY IN INDIA
Overall, the spirits industry volumes in FY2021 su«ered 
significantly due to COVID-19 induced lockdowns during the 
early part of the year. The second half of FY2021, however, 
featured quarter-on-quarter improvement with strong sales 
momentum as India emerged from national lockdown and 
approached a situation with some semblance of normality. 
By the fourth quarter of FY2021, eight out of eleven top 
liquor consuming states had returned to above pre-COVID 
levels. The strong recovery made by the industry in third and 
fourth quarters of FY2021 demonstrate the fundamental 
strength and resilience in the spirits industry in India. 
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This recovery is despite the high tax rates implemented 
on alcohol during the pandemic. Post reopening in May 
2020, to cover the loss of revenues, many states increased 
duties and taxes in the range of 10% to 75%. A partial 
recovery being made despite these factors suggest that 
price elasticity of demand for alcoholic beverages is still 
low, particularly for the premium category brands. Demand 
should continue to rise as supply chains are restored and 
things return to normal.

Government has fixed a target of 10% blending of fuel 
grade ethanol with petrol by 2022 and 20% blending by 
2025. It is expected that in the current ethanol supply year 
2020-21, about 325 Crore litres of ethanol is likely to be 
supplied to the oil marketing companies (OMCs) to achieve 
8.5% blending levels. It is likely that the Government will 
achieve 10% blending target by 2022 with supply of 400 
Crore litres of ethanol. Given this focus on ethanol blending, 
there may be some headwinds in the Extra neutral alcohol 
(ENA) prices. Furthermore, towards the end of the year, 
commodity prices, particularly dry good such as packaging 
materials, experienced sharp increase. Any short term raw 
material price increase is not expected to have a significant 
impact on profitability margins for the companies who are 
focused on premiumization.

According to Euromonitor International, during CY2020 
overall Indian Made Foreign Liquor (IMFL) volumes 
declined as much as (18.0)% to 274 Million cases of 9 litres 
each. Traditionally, brown spirits which include Whisky, 
Brandy and Dark Rum, have been the major contributors 
towards overall IMFL sales volume. During CY2020, whisky 
constituted the largest segment with 65.4% of the sales 
volumes and 74.2% of the value. The largest segment of 
the industry also su«ered severly with volume decline of 
(16.3)% and value degrowth of (22.7)%. White Spirits such 
as vodka and gin account for 3.6% of the total IMFL volumes 
and 6.8% of the value indicating a premiumization trend.

Overall

Premium 
Vodka

2021-25 volume growth  
2021-25 value growth of 11%

Super Premium 
Vodka

Vodka  
industry growth 

indicates a  
strong 

premiumization 
trend

8.6%

6.0%

5.6%

Flavored vodka continues to gain popularity and market 
share. It now constitutes about a third of the overall vodka 
industry. During CY2020, premium and super premium 
category vodka accounted for about 68% of the total vodka 
volumes compared with around 65% five years ago. This 
trend is expected to continue and the share of premium 
category vodka is anticipated to increase further. 

The industry’s focus on premium brands has enabled 
manufacturers to identify consumers who have relatively 
lower price sensitivities that ultimately drive value growth. 
Single malt scotch and blended scotch are expected to 
grow with CY2021-25 CAGR of 13.0% and 7.3%, respectively.

Sales of Spirits by Category (Volume): 2020

Whisky  65.4%

Brandy  18.9%

Rum   12.1%

White Spirit 3.6%

Sales of Spirits by Category (Value): 2020

Whisky  74.2%

Brandy  10.3%

Rum   8.7%

White Spirit 6.8%

THE INDIAN SPIRITS INDUSTRY 
OUTLOOK
Businesses are under pressure to rapidly adapt their 
operations to develop a resilient customer experience 
while maintaining convenience. COVID-19 lockdowns left 
restaurants and bars closed for a good part of last year and 
led to the subsequent rise of the at-home drinking. This 
is likely to have a long lasting impact on the way liquor is 
consumed in India. Furthermore, the launch of online sale 
and home delivery of liquor in certain states opened up an 
all-new route to market for consumers. It is still at a nascent 
stage and requires a lot of e«orts from both the state 
governments and the brand owners to make it successful. 

Demand for premium brands is relatively less impacted 
by the industry slowdown due to COVID-19. Furthermore, 
where spend on commuting, social activities or holidays are 
reducing, consumers are having more disposable incomes 
which they can use to have quality experience at home. 
Therefore, premium brands are likely to show much more 
resilience and grow in the near future.

The ready-to-drink (RTD) alcohol category, which includes 
hard seltzers, flavored alcohol beverages, and pre-mixed 
cocktails, is under rapid transformation across leading 
global markets, with volume growth out-pacing that of 
other beverage alcohol categories. This segment is likely to 
catch the fancy of Indian consumer. 
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India has an incredibly large young demography which 
presents many opportunities to firms in the industry. As 
the youth approaches the legal drinking age and becomes 
more affluent, they are likely to drive much of the expected 
and projected future demand. Brand owners are focused 
on appealing to the younger generation through online 
marketing and storefronts to capture as much of this 
segment as possible.

According to Euromonitor International, IMFL volume is 
expected to reach 353 Million cases in CY2025. During 
the CY2021-2025 period, IMFL sales volume is expected 
to grow at a CAGR of 4.2%. During the same period IMFL 
industry value is expected to grow by 4.6%. The vodka 
industry is expected to perform better during the same 
period with volume growth of 5.6% and value growth of 
11.0%.

GROWTH DRIVERS 
Economic Growth: The Indian economy has grown at a 
strong pace in the recent past, outperforming most of the 
emerging markets to become one of the fastest growing 
major economies in the world. Although, FY2020 and 
FY2021 have been impacted by global slowdown, IMF 
predicts a strong rebound and real GDP growth of 12.5% 
in FY2022. In the longer term, India is bound to be an 
important contributor of the global economic growth. 

Favourable Demographics: India has a young demographic 
profile and over 15 million people are expected enter 
the drinking age every year which represents significant 
growth opportunities for the industry. Total household 
consumption is expected to reach ` 300 trillion by 2030. 
Further, with proportion of high-income households 
getting widely distributed, the contribution from tier 2, 3 
and 4 cities to the consumption is likely to increase.

Urbanisation: Huge population in India are migrating 
towards bigger cities, where they are exposed to a wider 
variety of alcoholic beverage products, including IMFL 
and significantly contributing to the market growth. Rapid 
urbanization is expected to enhance disposable income, 
which is favourable for the growth of the industry.

Growth of rural consumption: Rural consumption is 
expected to grow faster with growing incomes and greater 
internet penetration. Even during the COVID-19 period, 
rural economy has shown more resilience over the last year 
due to better crops season and ongoing policy support. 

Changing Consumer Preferences: Rising affluence is the 
biggest driver of increasing consumption. Additionally, 
consumer behaviour and spending patterns are shifting as 
disposable incomes rise and Indian society evolves with a 
preference for lifestyle and aspirational brands. The rise in 
premiumization is evident in the higher focus of the big 
players on semi-premium and premium categories with an 
increase in launches and marketing of these categories.

Increased Alcohol Accessibility and Availability: Over the 
past few years, there has been a huge change in attitudes 
and lifestyle, making consumption of alcohol more socially 
acceptable. This acceptability of alcohol extends to drinking 
in family environments, at social events, and by females/
youngsters. There has been an increase in the variety of 
alcoholic beverages and brands with most of them easily 
available in government licensed outlets, government 
shops, private licensed retail chains, restaurants, pubs and 
bars. 

Improved Operating Environment: The importance 
of the liquor industry to the state’s exchequer cannot 
be understated. A significantly improved operating 
environment led by state-wide price increases and 
favourable policy changes resulted in this robust industry 
performance. Most of the excise policy changes last 
year have focused on enhancing state revenues without 
increasing taxes which bodes well for the organic growth 
in the industry.

COMPANY OVERVIEW
Radico Khaitan Limited (herein after referred as ‘Radico 
Khaitan" or the Company) is one of the oldest and the largest 
manufacturers of Indian Made Foreign Liquor ("IMFL") in 
India. The Company commenced its operations in 1943 and 
was earlier known as Rampur Distillery Company. Over the 
years, Radico Khaitan has emerged as a major bulk spirits 
supplier and bottler to other spirit manufacturers. It has 
become one of the most admired liquor brands across 
India.

The Company started its journey of building its own brand 
portfolio with the launch of 8PM Whisky in 1998. During the 
first decade (i.e. 1998-2006), the Company concentrated 
on building a strong manufacturing platform, establishing 
a robust pan India distribution network and achieved sales 
volume of over 10 Million cases. The next decade (i.e. 2006 
onwards) was the era of premiumisation that started with 
the launch of Magic Moments vodka, which became the 
largest selling vodka in India and one of the largest globally. 
During this period, Radico Khaitan achieved premium sales 
volume of over 7 Million cases.

In the last ten years, Radico Khaitan has been able to 
successfully expand its premium brand portfolio. The 
Company has launched twelve new brands over the last 
decade of which eleven has been from the premium 
category. Radico Khaitan is one of the few companies 
in India, which has developed its entire brand portfolio 
organically with in-house capabilities. This truly reflects 
the Company’s focus on innovation, R&D strength and 
understanding of customer preferences.

Wide Product Portfolio
Over the years, the Company has developed robust brand 
portfolio across the IMFL category comprising of Whisky, 
Brandy, Rum and White Spirits includes Magic Moments 
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and Magic Moments Verve Vodka, Morpheus and Morpheus 
Blue Brandy, 8PM and 8PM Premium Black Whisky, 1965 
– The Spirit of Victory Rum, Rampur Indian Single Malt 
Whisky, Jaisalmer Indian Craft Gin, Contessa Rum, Old 
Admiral Brandy, After Dark Whisky, Pluton Bay Rum and 
Regal Talon Whisky. The Company’s portfolio currently 
includes five millionaire brands namely 8PM Whisky, 
Contessa Rum, Old Admiral Brandy, Magic Moments Vodka 
and 8PM Premium Black Whisky. 

Despite the impact of COVID-19 in FY2021, 8 PM family of 
brands continued the growth trajectory and achieved sales 
volumes of 10.7 million cases. 8PM Premium Black whisky 
achieved sales volume of over a million case during the 
year.

Radico Khaitan is also one of the largest providers of 
branded IMFL to the Canteen Stores Department (CSD). 
There are stringent conditions for entering into CSD 
segment leading to entry barriers for new players. The 
recent restriction on the availability of BIO products in 
the CSD opens up significant opportunities for Radico 
Khaitan’s luxury products such as Rampur Indian Single 
Malt and Jaisalmer Indian Craft Gin. The Company has 
been successfully building its brand equity in international 
markets and currently exports its products to more than 85 
countries. The Company has been able to establish a niche 
position for itself in the global spirits market.

Significant Distillation 
Capacity at Manufacturing 
Units
The Company has three distilleries in Rampur (Uttar 
Pradesh) and two in joint venture RNV in Aurangabad 
(Maharashtra) in which Radico Khaitan owns 36% equity. 
The Company operates 5 own and 28 contract bottling units 
spread across the country with a combined capacity of 160 
Million litres. Its strategically located manufacturing facilities 
and distribution centres at various locations provide easy 
access to key markets. Apart from a nationwide presence, 
strategic location also helps to avoid the high taxes levied 
on interstate movement of finished and in-process liquor. 
Radico Khaitan remains focused on high productivity levels 
and product excellence across its manufacturing platform. 
The Company continues to introduce best practices to 
become more agile such as Demand-Driven Supply Chain, 
Total Productivity Management and Six-Sigma. Radico 
Khaitan has adopted the strategy of reduce, recycle and 
reuse with the objective to recover clean and green energy 
which is utilized in boiler as fuel and power generation 
through back pressure turbine and biogas gensets without 
affecting water, air and environment quality. 

Strong Distribution Network
Radico Khaitan has a strong sales and distribution network 
with a presence in retail and on-trade through over 
75,000 retail and 8,000 on-premise outlets in the relevant 
segments in different parts of India. Apart from wholesalers, 

a total of around 300 employees divided into four zones, 
each headed by a regional profit center head, ensure an 
adequate on-the-ground sales and distribution presence 
across the country. The robust distribution system enables 
the Company to ensure availability of products across 
channels and geographies.

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW
Operational Snapshot (million cases)
Year FY2021 FY2020 YoY 

Change

Prestige & Above 6.51 7.05 (7.7)%

Regular & Others 15.83 17.25 (8.2)%

Total Volume 22.34 24.30 (8.0)%

Prestige & Above as % of 
Total Volume

29.1% 29.0%  

Financial Snapshot (`Crore)
Year FY2021 FY2020 YoY 

Change

Net Sales 2,418.14 2,427.04 (0.4)%

Gross Profit 1,215.72 1,178.85 3.1%

EBITDA* 407.79 368.19 10.8%

Profit Before Tax (PBT) 353.10 272.69 29.5%

Total Comprehensive 
Income **

269.70 224.80 20.0%

Note: Above numbers are on standalone basis

*	 EBITDA for 12M FY2020 adjusted for `24.17 Crore 
pertaining to exceptional items: Write off of debtors 
in Bihar of `8.56 Crore in Q4 FY2020, `8.59 Crore 
paid under the SV Scheme during Q3 FY2020 and 
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Environmental Compensation of `7.02 Crore paid 
during H1 FY2020

** 	 Tax provision last year included `25.76 Crore of 
Deferred Tax benefit

Key Financial Ratios
Ratios FY2021 FY2020 YoY 

Change

Debtors Turnover (days) 
(on Gross Sales basis)

25 32 (23.0)%

Inventory Turnover (days) 
(on Gross Sales basis)

17 15 18.7%

Creditor Turnover (days) 
(on Gross Sales basis)

9 10 (10.0)%

Interest Coverage Ratio (x) 17.05 10.28 65.9%

Current Ratio (x) 1.98 1.69 17.7%

Debt Equity Ratio (x) 0.15 0.26 (41.2)%

EBITDA Margin (%) 16.9% 15.2% 169 bps

Total Comprehensive 
Income Margin (%)

11.2% 9.3% 189 bps

Return on Average Equity (%) 16.4% 15.9% 56 bps

Return on Average 
Capital Employed (%)

17.9% 17.7% 21 bps

Over the years, Radico Khaitan has been focused on strong 
cash flow generation and deleveraging. Despite COVID-19 
led disruptions in FY2021, the Company has successfully 
managed to reduce net debt by another `184 Crore. 
Consequently, there was significant improvement in debt 
equity ratio and interest coverage ratio in FY2021.

IMPACT OF COVID-19
The COVID 19 pandemic and its associated government 
measures limited the mobility, impacted patterns and 
places of alcohol consumption. During the lock down 
period, the Company’s IMFL bottling was fully suspended 
from 24-March to 4-May 2021, but manufacturing of 
ENA was partially operational as the Company started 
production of sanitizers to support the nation’s fight 
against COVID-19. Radico Khaitan has undertaken a number 
of preventive measures to ensure safety of its employees 
in the offices and manufacturing units. The Company has 
sufficient liquidity and demand of its products to continue 
its operations. There is no significant impact due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic and lockdown as assessed by the 
management. 

RISK AND MITIGATION
Economy Risk: The slowdown in global economic growth 
and other declines or disruptions in the Indian economy in 
general may result in a reduction in disposable income of 
consumers and slowdown in the IMFL industry. This could 
adversely affect the Company’s business and financial 
performance.

Mitigation: Radico Khaitan focuses on driving strong 
business growth, strategic investments in innovative 
products and marketing to gain market share, coupled 
with narrowing of operating expenses and reducing debt. 
Despite the lock down during the month of April 2020, 
the Company has registered a stable top line during 
the year and was able to expand profitability margins. 
Overall, Radico Khaitan is well placed to overcome the 
economy challenges due to its resilient business model, 
strong premium product portfolio and excellent execution 
capabilities. 

Regulatory Risk: Given a state subject, the Indian spirit 
industry is highly regulated and complex as each state 
has its own regulations governing the manufacture and 
sale of spirits. The industry faces challenges in the form 
of manufacturing setup duties and compliance state-
wise, taxation, no direct advertising, licensing to produce, 
store and distribute products. Any change in rules and 
regulations by the respective state governments and non-
compliance with laws and regulations could adversely 
impact the business.

Mitigation: With over 75 years of experience of liquor 
manufacturing and 25 years in IMFL business, Radico 
Khaitan is well versed with applicable laws and regulations 
across almost all states of India. The Company has in place 
the code of business conduct and supporting policies to 
comply with the laws and regulations of the country. The 
legal and compliance team is closely involved in monitoring 
and reviewing the practices and policies to provide 
reasonable assurance that the Company’s operations are in 
line with all relevant laws and legal obligations.

Competition Risk: The Company might face competition 
from international peers as the lucrative growth prospects 
of the spirit industries in India due to low per capital liquor 
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consumption are always attracting new players to the 
market. 

Mitigation: Given the strong barriers to entry in this industry 
it is difficult for a foreign player to establish footprints in 
India. Radico Khaitan has competitive edge with its strong 
brand loyalty among consumers and offering of better 
quality products across price points with a value for money 
proposition.

Raw Material Risk: ENA and packaging materials are the 
two key components of the raw materials required for 
the Company’s product portfolio and hence commodity 
price volatility remains one of the key considerations. The 
government’s ethanol blending policy may put pressure 
on the ENA prices in the future. Further there has been 
pressure on global commodity prices in the recent times 
which may have a bearing on the Company’s profitability.

Mitigation: Given the Company’s premiumization strategy, 
it continues to move towards grain based ENA which is 
impacted to a lesser extent by the ethanol blending policy. 
Grain production in India has been on all-time highs level 
last year therefore there is high availability of raw material. 
There are new capacities of grain alcohol coming up. 
Moreover, with the backward integration into captive ENA 
production, the Company is insulated from fluctuations in 
ENA prices to a large extent. Furthermore, as the Company 
moves up the premiumization ladder, the margins are less 
susceptible to commodity price increases. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY
Radico Khaitan is aimed at creating economic value and is 
committed to actively contributing towards the development 
of a sustainable society. Several projects are executed with 
better governance and ethical business practices. The 
Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) 
Committee in place, to formulate and recommend CSR 
Policy to the Board. The aim is to establish the Company 
image as a reliable, credible, responsible business partner 
by making a positive difference in the society, where the 
Company operates its business. During the year under 
review, the Company has spent an amount of `5.28 Crore 
towards CSR activities with primary focus on community 
development, enhancing livelihood, promoting education 
and health care including preventive health care and 
ensuring environmental sustainability. In addition, Radico 
Khaitan has pledged to give back to the society and lend 
its support to the government during the second wave of 
the COVID-19 pandemic with the installation of oxygen 
generators in 6 districts of Uttar Pradesh.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Radico Khaitan has evolved stronger, despite the challenges 
of the COVID- 19 pandemic, primarily due to the resilience 
and responsiveness shown by  Radico Khaitan’s team. 
This has strengthened the Company’s belief that human 

capital remains at the core for driving strategic growth. 
The Company has evolved a work culture which focuses 
on a future ready organisation and the pillars of this culture 
include: 

•	 Respect for people by recognising human capital and 
rewarding individual and team contributions 

•	 Continual innovation to stay ahead of the consumer 
expectations

•	 Customer focus to stay connected with existing 
customers to deliver a superior experience

•	 Working for excellence reflected in the attitude to 
do it better every time and set new benchmarks for 
excellence 

Radico Khaitan’s human resources management focuses 
on facilitating each employee to explore his/her potential 
and synergize it to work towards achieving corporate goals. 
This journey is facilitated by an inclusive work culture, 
which keeps throwing new work challenges and thereby 
helping continuous learning. Employee training and re-
training on structured learning paths and upgrading skills 
enhances the resource value. Talent development focuses 
on recognizing potential employees as New Generation 
Managers and developing them on capsuled learning plans 
to make them ready for taking up new roles in the future. 

Digitalizing the employee life cycle processes and employee 
engagement on the intranet platform is strengthening the 
work culture and belongingness of people. All employees 
have well defined performance plans and parameters 
for evaluating their performance. This objective based 
assessment ensures outcomes-based rewards, which further 
strengthens the Company’s performance management 
system and the culture of accountability. With the evolving 
culture, the Human Resources (HR) function is focused on 
creating a platform for employees to make a larger impact 
by doing more purposeful work and getting recognised 
and appreciated for it. 

Holistic development, welfare and wellbeing of employees 
is the core of the HR agenda, which was well recognized in 
the pandemic. HR teams pro-actively mobilised resources 
to avoid medical emergencies and scarcity of medical aid 
for employees and their families. To ensure the wellbeing of 
the family after the death of an employee in the pandemic, 
policy initiatives were taken for financial support for the 
family, education for the children and term insurance 
coverage of employees ensured a strong sense of security. 
HR function at Radico Khaitan will continue to strive to 
create new benchmarks for its culture and holistic wellbeing 
of employees who will create more value for the Company.       

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
Radico Khaitan leverages its technology and data for the 
efficient management of its business operations, better 
customer experience, enhancing the supply chain, and 
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making the sourcing and supply forecasts more accurate. 
The Company focuses on infusing digital technologies into 
business to ensure future readiness and meet the intrinsic 
needs of the business. 

During the unprecedented times of COVID-19, the IT team, 
supported by strong and stable network infrastructure, 
enabled the business to work as usual along with 
maintaining balance between access and security. 
Microsoft Teams and Zoom as communication solutions 
were successfully deployed and used by employees for 
secure communication. Disaster Recovery (DR) has been 
setup to ensure business operations should continue as 
usual without any interruptions in case of any event failure.

Data Security: The Company is implementing Data 
Leakage Protection (DLP) and cloud security tools to 
further strengthen its data protection along with on cloud 
advanced threat protection technology and data encryption 
tool. Radico Khaitan will implement Advanced Technology 
Program (ATP) to protect endpoints from advanced threats 
and from email phishing as well. To monitor and report 
real time threat status and compliance the Company will 
implement various dashboards. The Company uses various 
softwares to protect systems against Malware, Hacking & 
Phishing. Latest IT tools are being deployed to take care of 
IT assets, Networks, Servers etc.

Data Analytics: Data analytics will help Radico Khaitan to 
build strategies to achieve next level of growth. In order 
to further enhance the Company’s market reach and 
simultaneously get rich data of real time business, the 
Company has undertaken various digital initiatives for 
driving business efficiencies. Few of them are as follows: 

i.	 Sales Force Automation (SFA): SFA mobile application 
is being used by approx. 550 field executives to cover 
60500 retailers pan India with geo tagging technology

ii.	 Factory is enabled with Track and Trace technology 

iii.	 Employee Self Service (ESS) Portal

iv.	 Most recently the Company has also started the 
implementation of SAP SAC based EPM (enterprise 
performance management) tool. It will help the 
Company plan, budget and forecast across finance, 
supply chain and sales, streamline the financial close 
process, and drive better decisions through the 
provision of data analytics, what-if and predictive 
tools.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 
AND ADEQUACY 
The Company has an effective and reliable internal control 
system. In line with the business operations, Radico Khaitan 
has well-planned internal control framework, which covers 
various aspects of governance, compliance, audit, control 
and reporting. It ensured adherence to local statutory 
requirements for orderly and efficient conduct of business, 
safeguarding of assets, the detection and prevention 
of frauds and errors, adequacy and completeness of 
accounting records and timely preparation of reliable 
financial information. The efficacy of the internal checks 
and control systems is validated by and internal auditors 
and re-examined by the management.

A CEO and CFO Certificate, forming part of the Corporate 
Governance Report, confirms the existence and effectiveness 
of internal controls and reiterates their responsibilities to 
report deficiencies to the Audit Committee and rectify the 
same. The Company has appointed Grant Thornton as their 
internal auditors, which in turn submits quarterly reports to 
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee monitors and 
provides an effective supervision of the financial reporting 
process of the Company with a view to ensure accurate and 
timely disclosures with the highest level of transparency, 
integrity and quality. It also confirms adequacy and 
effectiveness of internal control systems and suggests for 
the improvements required. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis 
contains “forward looking statements” including, 
but without limitation, statements relating to the 
implementation of strategic initiatives, and other statements 
relating to Radico Khaitan’s future business developments 
and economic performance. While these forward-looking 
statements indicate our assessment and future expectations 
concerning the development of our business, a number 
of risks, uncertainties and other unknown factors could 
cause actual developments and results to differ materially 
from our expectations. These factors include, but are not 
limited to, general market, macro-economic, governmental 
and regulatory trends, movements in currency exchange 
and interest rates, competitive pressures, technological 
developments, changes in the financial conditions of third 
parties dealing with us, legislative developments, and other 
key factors that could affect our business and financial 
performance. Radico Khaitan undertakes no obligation to 
publicly revise any forward-looking statements to reflect 
future / likely events or circumstances.
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Report on Corporate Governance

Company’s Philosophy on Corporate 
Governance:

This report is prepared in accordance with the provisions 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
obligations and Disclosures requirements) regulations 
2015, and the report contains the details of Corporate 
Governance Systems and processes at Radico Khaitan 
Limited.

Corporate Governance is about ensuring transparency in 
disclosure and reporting that conforms fully to the existing 
laws of the country and to promote ethical conduct of 
business throughout organisation. The philosophy of the 
Company in relation to corporate governance is to ensure 
transparency in all its operations, make disclosures and 
enhance stakeholders value without compromising on 
compliance with the laws and regulations.

We consider stakeholders as partners in our success and 
remain committed to maximise stakeholders value. Your 
Company is committed to sound principles of corporate 
governance with respect to all its procedures, policies 
and practices. Under good corporate governance, we are 
committed to ensuring that all functions of the Company 
are discharged in a professionally sound, accountable and 
competent manner.

The Board of Directors fully supports corporate governance 
practices and actively participates in overseeing risks and 
strategic management. The organisation views corporate 
governance in its widest sense almost like a trusteeship, 
a progressive philosophy and ideology ingrained in the 
corporate culture. The governance processes and systems 
of your Company have strengthened over a period of time 
resulting in constant improvisation of sustainable and 
profitable growth.

The Company has complied with the requirements of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and listed below is the status with regard 
to the same.

Board of Directors:

Composition:

Radico Khaitan has a broad based Board of Directors, 
constituted in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, 
SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and in accordance with good corporate 
governance practices. The Board functions either as a full 
Board or through its Committees constituted to oversee 
specific operational areas.

The Chairman plays a key role in promoting and building 
integrity within Board and organisation for benefit of all its 

stakeholders. The Managing Director takes a lead role in 
steering the organisation towards achieving the long term 
goals.

The Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 
2021 comprises of eight (8) Directors of which five (5) 
are Non-Executive / Independent Directors, while three 
(3) are Executive Directors. The composition of the Board 
is in conformity with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and represents 
the optimum combination of professionalism, knowledge, 
experience and consists of eminent individuals from the 
industry, technical, legal and financial areas.

The details of the Director being re-appointed on retirement 
by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, as 
required pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 are mentioned in the Notice to the Annual General 
Meeting.

The brief profile of the Board Members are given on the 
website of the Company i.e. www.radicokhaitan.com.

Number of Board Meetings:

During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, four (4) 
meetings of the Board of Directors were held and the 
maximum time gap between two (2) meetings did not 
exceed 120 days. The dates on which the Board Meetings 
were held were as follows:

Date(s) on which meeting(s) were held

28th May 
2020

23rd July 
2020

28th October 
2020

28th January 
2021

The Board meets at least once in a quarter to review the 
quarterly financial results and operations of the Company. 
In addition to the above, the Board also meets as and when 
necessary to deliberate on various issues relating to the 
business of the Company. The tentative annual calendar 
of Board Meetings for the ensuing year is decided well 
in advance by the Board and is published as part of the 
Annual Report.

All the Directors have informed the Company periodically 
about their Directorship and Membership on the Board 
/ Committees of other companies. As per disclosure 
received from Director(s), none of the Director holds 
Membership in more than ten (10) Board level Committees 
and Chairmanship in more than five (5) such Committees.

The details of the composition, nature of directorship, 
the number of meetings attended and the directorships 
in other companies of the Directors of the Company are 

www.radicokhaitan.com
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detailed below. This table also signifies the relationship of the Directors with each other as required to be disclosed in 
terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

Name of the 
Director

Nature of 
Directorship

Relationship 
with each other

Attendance Directorship 
in other 

Companies
(*)

Membership and 
Chairmanship of the 

Committees of the Board 
of other Companies

(**)
At the 
Board 

Meetings

At the 
last 

AGM

Committee 
Member

Committee 
Chairman

Dr. Lalit Khaitan Promoter, 
Chairman & 
Managing 
Director

Father of Mr. 
Abhishek 
Khaitan 

4 Leave 
sought

- - -

Mr. Abhishek 
Khaitan

Promoter, 
Managing 
Director

Son of Dr. Lalit 
Khaitan 

4 Leave 
sought

- - -

Mr. K.P. Singh Whole Time 
Director

Not related 
to any of the 
Directors

4 Yes 1 - -

Dr. Raghupati 
Singhania

Non-
executive 
Independent

Not related 
to any of the 
Directors

4 No 9 1 1

Mr. Sarvesh 
Srivastava 

Non-
executive 
Independent

Not related 
to any of the 
Directors

4 Yes - - -

Ms. Sushmita 
Singha

Non-
executive 
Independent

Not related 
to any of the 
Directors

4 No 3 1 2

Mr. Sharad 
Jaipuria

Non-
executive 
Independent

Not related 
to any of the 
Directors

4 Yes 1 1 1

Mr. Tushar Jain Non-
executive 
Independent

Not related 
to any of the 
Directors

4 No - - -

Sl. No. Names of Directors Names of Listed entities and their category of Directorship as on March 31, 2021
1 Dr. Lalit Khaitan Radico Khaitan Ltd. – Chairman & Managing Director
2 Mr. Abhishek Khaitan Radico Khaitan Ltd. – Managing Director
3 Mr. K.P. Singh Radico Khaitan Ltd. – Whole Time Director
4 Dr. Raghupati Singhania JK Tyre & Industries Ltd. – Chairman & Managing Director / Member

JK Lakshmi Cement Ltd. – Director / Member
Bengal & Assam Company Ltd. – Director / Member
JK Agri Genetics Ltd. – Director / Member
Radico Khaitan Ltd. – Non Executive Director

5 Mr. Sarvesh Srivastava Radico Khaitan Ltd. – Non Executive Director
6 Ms. Sushmita Singha Ginni International Ltd. - Director

Kajaria Ceramics Ltd. – Director / Chairman
Green Panel Industries Ltd. – Director / Member
Radico Khaitan Ltd. – Non Executive Director

7 Mr. Sharad Jaipuria Ginni International Ltd. – Director / Member
Radico Khaitan Ltd. – Non Executive Director

8 Mr. Tushar Jain Radico Khaitan Ltd. – Non Executive Director

Notes:

(*)	� Excludes directorship and committee membership in Radico Khaitan Limited. Also excludes directorship in Private 
Limited Companies, foreign Companies and companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(**) 	�For the purpose of considering the limit of the Committee Memberships and Chairmanships of a Director, the Audit 
Com- mittee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Public Limited Companies have been considered.
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Tenure:

In compliance of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 
at ensuing Annual General Meeting, except the Chairman 
& Managing Director and Independent Directors, all other 
Directors of the Company are liable to retire by rotation. 
One-third of the said rotational directors are liable to 
retire every year and if eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

Board Procedures:

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide 
on business strategies / policies and review the financial 
position of the Company.

The board meetings are governed by a structured 
agenda. The agenda along with comprehensive notes 
and background material are circulated 7 days in advance 
before each meeting to all the Directors for facilitating 
effective discussion and decision making. The Board 
members may bring up any matter for consideration of the 
Board, in consultation with the Chairman. The information 
as specified in Part A of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 is regularly made available to the Board.

Presentations are made by the Chairman & Managing 
Director, Managing Director and the Senior Management 
on the Company’s performance, operations, plans and 
other matters on a periodic basis. The proceedings of the 
meetings of the Board and its Committees are recorded 
in the form of minutes, which are circulated to the Board 
for perusal within stipulated period under the Companies 
Act, 2013. The important decisions taken at the Board / 
Committee meetings are communicated to the concerned 
departments / divisions.

The Board has complete access to any information within 
the Company which as specified in Part A of Schedule II of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

Independent Directors:

The Non-Executive Independent Directors fulfil the 
conditions of independence specified in Section 149 (6) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder 
and meet with requirement of Regulation 25 (Obligation 
with respect to independent Directors) and Regulation 
16(1)(b) (1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent 
of the management. A formal letter of appointment to 
Independent Directors as provided in Companies Act, 
2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been issued and 
disclosed on the website of the Company viz. http://www. 
radicokhaitan.com/investor-relations.

Familiarisation Programme for Directors:

At the time of appointing a Director, a formal letter of 
appointment is given to him/her, which inter alia explains 
the role, function, duties and responsibilities expected of 
him/her as a Director of the Company. The Director is also 

explained in detail the compliance required from him under 
the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other 
relevant regulations and affirmation taken with respect to 
the same. The Chairman and Managing Director also have 
one to one discussion with the newly appointed director 
to familiarise him with the Company’s operations. Further, 
the Company has put in place a system to familiarise the 
Independent directors about the Company, its products, 
business and the on-going events relating to the Company.

The familiarisation programme as attended by the 
Independent Directors has been put on the website of 
the Company at http://www. radicokhaitan.com/investor-
relations.

Key Board qualification, expertise and attributes

The Board of Directors are collectively responsible for 
selection of a member on the Board. The Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee of the Company follows 
defined criteria for identifying, screening, recruiting and 
recommending candidates for election as a Director on the 
Board.

The Board comprises qualified members who bring in 
the required skills, competence and expertise that allow 
them to make effective contributions to the Board and 
its committees. The Board members are committed to 
ensuring that the Radico Khaitan’s Board is in compliance 
with the highest standards of corporate governance.

The criteria for appointment to the Board include:

•	 composition of the Board, which is commensurate with 
the size of the Company, its portfolio, geographical 
spread and its status as a listed Company;

•	 desired age and diversity on the Board;

•	 size of the Board with optimal balance of skills and 
experience and balance of Executive and Non-
Executive Directors consistent with the requirements 
of law;

•	 professional qualifications, expertise and experience 
in specific area of relevance to the Company;

•	 balance of skills and expertise in view of the objectives 
and activities of the Company;

•	 avoidance of any present or potential conflict of 
interest;

•	 availability of time and other commitments for proper 
performance of duties;

•	 personal characteristics being in line with the 
Company’s values, such as integrity, honesty, 
transparency, pioneering mind-set.

The table below summarises the key, skills/expertise/ 
competencies identified by the Board as required in the 

radicokhaitan.com/investor
radicokhaitan.com/investor
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context of the business and sector in which the Company functions effectively and which are actually available with the 
board, and attributes which are taken into consideration while nominating candidates to serve on the Board.

Financial Management of the Finance function of an enterprises, resulting in proficiency in complex financial 
management, capital allocation and financial reporting processes or experience in actively supervising 
a principal financial officer, principal accounting officers, controller, auditor or persons performing 
similar functions.

Gender, ethnic, 
national, or 
other diversity

Representation of gender, ethnic, geographic, cultural, or other perspectives that expand the Board’s 
understanding of the needs and viewpoints of our customers, employees, governments and other 
stakeholders.

Global 
Business

Experience in driving business success in markets around the world, with an understanding of diverse 
business environment, economics conditions, cultures and regulatory frameworks and a board 
perspective on global market opportunities.

Leadership Extended leadership experiences for a significant enterprise, resulting in a practical understanding 
of organisations, processes, strategic planning and risk management. Demonstrated strengths in 
developing talent, planning succession and driving change and long –term growth.

Technology Significant background in technology, resulting in knowledge of how to anticipate technological 
trends, generate disruptive innovation and extend or create new business models.

Strategy and 
Planning

Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic choices and experience in guiding and leading management 
teams to make decisions in uncertain environments.

Governance Experience in developing governance practices, serving the best interests of all stakeholders, 
maintaining board and management accountability, building long-term effective stakeholder 
engagements and driving corporate ethics and values.

In the table below, the specific areas of focus or expertise of individual board members have been highlighted. However, the 
absence of a mark against a member’s name does not necessarily mean the member does not possess the corresponding 
qualification or skill.

Key Board qualifications/expertise/competencies:

Director Area of expertise
Financial Diversity Global 

business
Leadership Technology Mergers and 

acquisitions
Board 

service and 
governance

Strategy 
and 

planning
Dr. Lalit Khaitan √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √
Mr. Abhishek 
Khaitan

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Mr. K.P. Singh √ √ √ √ √ - √ √
Dr. Raghupati 
Singhania

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Mr. Sarvesh 
Srivastava

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ -

Ms. Sushmita 
Singha

√ √ √ - - - √ √

Mr. Sharad 
Jaipuria

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ -

Mr. Tushar Jain √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Succession Planning:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee works with 
the Board on the leadership succession plan to ensure 
orderly succession in appointments to the Board and in 
senior management. The Company strives to maintain an 
appropriate balance of skills and experience within the 
organisation and the Board in an endeavour to introduce 
new perspectives while maintaining experience and 
continuity.

By interacting workforce planning with strategic business 
planning, the Company puts the necessary financial and 
human resources in place so that its objectives can be met.

Our Board includes 8 directors with broad and diverse 
skills and viewpoints to aid the Company in advancing its 
strategy. In addition, promoting senior management within 
the organisation fuels the ambitions of the talent force to 
earn future leadership roles.

Conflict of interests:

Each Director informs the Company on an annual basis 
about the Board and the Committee positions he / she 
occupies in other companies including Chairmanships and 
notifies changes during the year. Members of the Board 
while discharging their duties, avoid conflict of interest in 
the decision making process. The members of the Board 
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restrict themselves from any discussions and voting in 
transactions that they have concern or interest.

Pecuniary relationships of transaction with the Company 
of Non-Executive Directors:

The Non-executive directors had no pecuniary relationship 
or transactions with the Company in their personal capacity 
during the financial year 2020-2021.

Committees of the Board:

Currently, there are eight (8) Committees of the Board, 
namely: Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee, ESOP 
Compensation Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) Committee, Risk Management Committee, 
Committee of Independent Directors and Committee of 
Directors. The Board has decided the terms of reference 
for these Committees.

The minutes of the meetings of the Committees are placed 
before the Board for information and noting. The details as 
to the composition, terms of reference, number of meetings 
and related attendance of Committees mandatory under 
the Companies Act and listing regulations are provided 
hereunder.

Audit Committee:

Composition and terms of reference

As on March 31, 2021, the Audit Committee comprises 
of three(3) Independent, Non- executive Directors. The 
members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sarvesh Srivastava 
(Chairman of the Committee), Dr. Raghupati Singhania and 
Mr. Tushar Jain. All Members of the Audit Committee are 
financially literate and bring in expertise in the fields of 
finance, taxation, economics, industry and risk.

The Audit Committee invites the Chairman & Managing 
Director, Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer, 
Statutory Auditor(s) and Internal Auditor and Cost Auditors 
to attend the meetings of the Audit Committee. The 
Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee. 
The minutes of each Audit Committee meeting are placed 
and discussed at the next meeting of the Board.

The scope of activities and terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee is in accordance with Regulation 18 and 
Part C of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 
177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The details as to the date(s) on which the meetings were held and attendance of the Audit Committee members during 
the financial year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:

Date(s) on which the meeting(s) were held

28th May 2020 23rd July 2020 28th October 2020 28th January 2021

Name Position Category Meeting details
Held Attended

Mr. Sarvesh Srivastava Chairman Non-Executive Independent 4 4
Dr. Raghupati Singhania Member Non-Executive Independent 4 4
Mr. Tushar Jain Member Non-Executive Independent 4 4

The role of the Audit Committee inter alia includes the following:

1.	 Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process 
and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure 
that the financial statements are correct, sufficient 
and credible.

2.	 Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-
appointment and, if required, the replacement or 
removal of the statutory auditor, fixing of audit fees 
and approving payments for any other service.

3.	 Recommending to the Board of Directors, the 
appointment of Cost Auditor for the Company.

4.	 Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial 
statements before submission to the Board for 
approval, with particular reference to:

A.	 Matters required to be included in the Directors’ 
Responsibility Statement to be included in 
the Board’s report as per Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013;

B.	 Changes in the Accounting policies and practices 
and the reasons for the same, major accounting 
entries and significant adjustments made in the 
financial statements arising out of audit findings;

C.	 Compliance with listing and other legal 
requirements relating to financial statements;

D.	 Disclosure of any related party transactions; and

E.	 Qualifications in the draft audit report, if any.

5.	 Reviewing with management quarterly, half-yearly, 
nine-months and annual financial statements, 
standalone as well as consolidated before submission 
to the Board for approval.

6.	 Reviewing with the management performance of 
statutory and internal auditors.

7.	 Discussion with the internal auditors, cost auditor on 
any significant findings and follow-up thereon.
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8.	 Discussion with the statutory auditors before the audit 
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post- audit discussion to ascertain any area of 
concern.

9.	 Reviewing reports furnished by the internal auditors 
and statutory auditors and ensuring suitable follow-up 
thereon.

10.	 Reviewing the Company’s financial and risk 
management policies, forex policy, management 
discussion and analysis, significant related party 
transactions.

11.	 Reviewing with the management and the Statutory 
Auditors anticipated changes in the Accounting 
Standards.

12.	 Review of the Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower 
mechanism of the Company;

13.	 The Audit Committee has power to investigate 
any activity within its terms of reference, to seek 
information from employees and to obtain outside 
financial and legal advise; and

14.	 Any other matter referred to by the Board of Directors. 

Apart from the above, the Company has an internal 
audit team, headed by Mr. Mukesh Agarwal, who reports 
to the Chief Financial Officer and the Audit Committee. 

From time to time, the Company’s adequacy of internal 
controls covering financial, operational, compliance, IT 
applications, etc., are reviewed by the Internal Audit team 
and presentations are made to the Audit Committee on 
the findings of such reviews. The Audit Committee, inter 
alia, reviews the adequacy of internal audit function and 
the internal audit reports including those related to internal 
control weaknesses. 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Composition:

As on March 31, 2021, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee comprises of three (3) Directors, viz., Dr. 
Raghupati Singhania (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. 
Tushar Jain and Mr. Sharad Jaipuria. The Committee’s 
terms of reference includes reviewing and recommending 
to the Board the salary, commission, other benefits, service 
agreements and employment conditions of the Whole-time 
and the Managing Director and to approve the selection, 
appointment and remuneration of relatives of Directors for 
holding an office or place of profit pursuant to Section178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Meeting and Attendance:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met three 
(2) times during the year on 28.05.2020 and 28.01.2021. 
The necessary quorum was present for the meeting.

The Table below provides the attendance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee members:

Sl. No. Name Position Category Meeting details

Held Attended

1 Dr. Raghupati Singhania Chairman Non-Executive Independent 2 2

2 Mr. Tushar Jain Member Non-Executive Independent 2 2

3 Mr. Sharad Jaipuria Member Non-Executive Independent 2 2

Terms of reference:

The Board has framed the Remuneration and Nomination 
Committee Charter which ensures effective compliance of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 
and part D of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Board 
has clearly defined terms of reference for the Remuneration 
and Nomination committee, which are as follows:

1.	 Reviewing the overall compensation policy, service 
agreements and other employment conditions of 
Managing / Whole-time Director(s) and Senior 
Management (one level below the Board);

2.	 to help in determining the appropriate size, diversity 
and composition of the Board;

3.	 to recommend to the Board appointment / re-
appointment and removal of Directors;

4.	 to frame criteria and determining qualifications, 
positive attributes and independence of Directors;

5.	 to recommend to the Board remuneration payable 
to the Directors (while fixing the remuneration to 
Executive Directors the restrictions contained in the 
Companies Act, 2013 is to be considered);

6.	 to create on evaluation framework for Independent 
Directors and the Board;

7.	 to provide necessary reports to the chairman after the 
evaluation process is completed by the Directors;

8.	 to assist in developing a succession plan for the Board;
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9.	 to assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities entrusted 
from time to time;

10.	 delegation of any of its powers to any Members of the 
Committee or the Compliance Officer.

Details of remuneration paid to all the Directors in the 

Financial Year 2020-21:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee decides 
the remuneration payable to the Chairman & Managing 
Director, Managing Director, Whole Time Director and Key 

Managerial Personnel’s, considering the performance of 
the Company and their achievements against objectives as 
set out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
and approved by the Board and industry standards. The 
remuneration structure comprises of salary, perquisites, 
commission, etc. Annual increments are decided by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and recommend 
to the Board, within the limits mentioned in the contract 
and as approved by the shareholders. No severance is 
payable to them on termination of employment.

Executive Directors:	 (` in Lakhs)

Sl. No. Name of director Salary & 
Allowances

Commission Perquisites Retiral 
benefits*

No. of Stock
options

Incentive Tenure

1 Dr. Lalit Khaitan 746.77 125.00 36.31 56.01 NIL NIL 5 Years
2 Mr. Abhishek Khaitan 746.77 125.00 28.86 57.01 NIL NIL 5 Years
3 Mr. K.P. Singh 163.62 NIL 1.75 7.48 NIL 28.22 5 Years
*	 Contributions to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund.
*	 There is no fixed component and performance linked incentives, along with the performance criteria.
*	 There is no service contracts, notice period and severance fees.

Non Executive Directors*:

Sl. No. Name Sitting Fees (in `)
1 Dr. Raghupati Singhania 2,50,000/-
2 Mr. Sarvesh Srivastava 2,80,000/-
3 Ms. Sushmita Singha 1,75,000/-
4 Mr. Tushar Jain 2,50,000/-
5 Mr. Sharad Jaipuria  2,50,000/-
*	� Non executive directors were paid sitting fees of `40,000/- 

for attending each meetings of the Board and ` 15,000/- for 
Committees thereof and reimbursement of local conveyance. Non 
executive directors were not paid any amount by way of salary, 
perquisites and other benefits including stock options except the 
above mentioned sitting fees.

Number of equity shares of the Company held by non-
executive directors as on March 31, 2021 is as under:

1.	 Sharad Jaipuria 	 - 	 6000 Shares

2.	 Tushar Jain        	 - 	 8950 Shares

The Company has adopted remuneration criteria for 
Non Executive Directors in compliance with Regulation 
46(2)(f) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Criteria for making 
payment to Non Executive Directors is available on the  
website of the Company i.e. www.radicokhaitan.com

Performance Evaluation and its Criteria:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual 
performance evaluation of its own performance, the 
Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working 
of its Board Committees. A structured questionnaire was 
prepared after circulating the draft forms, covering various 
aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of 
the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board 
culture, execution and performance of specific duties, 
obligations and governance.

The performance evaluation of the Chairman and Managing 
Director and the Non- Independent Directors was carried 
out by the Independent Directors. The Directors express 
their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

The Independent Directors performance was evaluated on 
the basis of the company’s Performance Evaluation Policy 
as posted on the company’s website www.radicokhaitan.
com under head investor relations.

Risk Management Committee:

Composition:

The Board had constituted Risk Management Committee 
to focus on risk management including determination of 
Company’s risk appetite, risk tolerance and regular risk 
assessments (risk identification, risk quantification and risk 
evaluation) etc.

Terms of Reference:

1.	 Formulate and review risk management policy;

2.	 Oversee implementation of the same;

3.	 Monitor and evaluate risks basis appropriate 
methodology, processes and systems;

4.	 Appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of 
Chief Risk Officer, if any

The Risk Management Committee has powers to seek 
information from any employee, obtain outside legal 
or other professional advice and secure attendance of 
outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

Meeting and Attendance:

During the year, Risk Management Committee met once on 
January 22, 2021. The necessary quorum was present for 
the meeting.

www.radicokhaitan.com
www.radicokhaitan.com
www.radicokhaitan.com
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The Table below provides the attendance of the Risk Management Committee members:

Sl. No. Name Position Category Meeting details

Held Attended

1 Dr. Lalit Khaitan Chairman Executive Director 1 1

2 Mr. Abhishek Khaitan Member Executive Director 1 1

3 Mr. Sharad Jaipuria* Member Non-Executive Independent 1 0

4 Mr. Dilip K. Banthiya Member Chief Financial Officer 1 1

* On June 01, 2021 Mr. Sharad Jaipuria was appointed as 
Member and Chairman of the Committee in compliance 
with SEBI Listing Regulations. 

Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee:

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the 
Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee which is chaired by 
a Non-Executive Independent Director to specifically look 
into the redressal of shareholders queries and complaints.

The details as to the composition of the Stakeholder’s 
Relationship Committee, date(s) on which the meetings 
were held and the attendance of the members of the 
Committee during the financial year ended March 31, 2021 
are as follows:

Date(s) on which the meeting(s) were held

28th May 
2020

23rd July 
2020

28th October 
2020

28th January 
2021

The Table below provides the attendance of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee members:

Name Position Category Meeting details
Held Attended

Mr. Sharad Jaipuria Chairman Non-Executive Independent 4 4
Mr. Sarvesh Srivastava Member Non-Executive Independent 4 4
Mr. K.P. Singh Member Non-Executive Independent 4 4

The terms of reference of the Committee include the 
following:

1.	 To specifically look into queries and complaints 
received from the shareholders, Lenders and other 
stakeholders of the Company.

2.	 To oversee the performance of the Registrar and 
Transfer Agent of the Company and

3.	 To recommend measures for overall improvement in 
the quality of services to the investors.

4.	 To fix record date / book closure of share / debenture 
transfer book of the Company from time to time.

Name and Designation of the Compliance Officer:

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Gupta
Vice President - Legal & Company Secretary 
Radico Khaitan Limited

Plot No. J-1, Block B-1, Mohan Co-operative Industrial Area, 
Mathura Road, New Delhi – 110 044. 
Tel. Nos.: 40975400/444/500/555, 
Fax Nos.41678841-42 Email: investor@radico.co.in

Shareholders’ complaints/queries

Details pertaining to the number of complaints/ queries 
received and responded and the status thereof during the 

financial year ended March 31, 2021 are given as follows:

Nature of queries/complaints Received 
during the year

Non-receipt of Dividend warrants 276
Non-receipt of Share Certificate(s) 
lodged for transfer / splitting of the 
share certificates etc.

454

Letters received from Stock 
Exchange(s) / SEBI

4

Others/Miscellaneous 702
Total 1436

All the requests, queries and complaints received during the 
financial year ended March 31, 2021, were duly addressed 
and no queries are pending for resolution on that date.

The Company provided Shareholder services in the 
following time frame:

Sl. 

No.

Nature of Complaints/ Queries No. of days 
for disposal

1 Demat of Shares 15 days
2 Dividend revalidation / issue of 

Dividend Drafts
7 days

3 Change of Address/ Bank 
Mandate

2 days

5 General queries 2 days

mailto:investor@radico.co.in
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Board of Directors has constituted the CSR Committee 
comprising of four (4) Directors. The Members of the 
Committee are Dr. Lalit Khaitan, Mr. Abhishek Khaitan,  
Mr. K.P. Singh and Ms. Sushmita Singha (Independent 
Women Director).

The purpose of the Committee is to formulate and 
monitor the CSR Policy of the Company and to make it 
more comprehensive so as to indicate the activities to be 
undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII 

of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee monitors and 
gives guidance on various CSR activities to be undertaken 
by the Company. The constitution of CSR Committee and 
the CSR Policy of the Company is available on our website 
i.e. www.radicokhaitan.com

Meeting and Attendance:

The CSR Committee met during the year on May 28, 2020. 
The necessary quorum was present for the meeting. The 
Composition of the CSR Committee as at March 31, 2021 
and the details of meeting of the Committee are as under:

The Table below provides the attendance of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee members.

Name Position Category Meeting details

Held Attended

Dr. Lalit Khaitan Chairman Executive 1 1

Mr. Abhishek Khaitan Member Executive 1 1

Mr. K.P. Singh Member Executive 1 1

Ms. Sushmita Singha Member Non-Executive Independent 1 1

Subsidiary Companies:

During the year under review, the Company did not have 
any subsidiary as defined under 2 (ZM) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and Section 2 (87) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Independent Directors’ Meeting:

During the year under review, the Independent Directors 
met on January 28, 2021, to discuss matters pertaining to 
Company’s affairs and put forth their views.

All Independent Directors were present for this Meeting.

CEO / CFO Certification:

As stipulated under Regulation 17(8) and Part B of 
Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation 2015, the CEO / CFO Certificate 
for the financial year 2020-21 and Regulation 33 (2) (a) 
of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation 2015, signed by Mr. Abhishek 
Khaitan, Managing Director as CEO and Mr. Dilip K Banthiya, 
CFO is enclosed as Annexure-A.

Ethics / Governance Policies

At Radico, we strive to conduct our business and strengthen 
our relationships in a manner that is dignified, distinctive 
and responsible. We adhere to ethical standards to ensure 
integrity, transparency, independence and accountability 
in dealing with all the stakeholders. Therefore, we have 
adopted various codes and policies to carry out our duties 
in an ethical manner.

Some of these codes and policies are listed below:

•	 Code of Conduct and Our Code

•	 Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading

•	 Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure 
of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information

•	 Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) Policy

•	 Vigil Mechanism and Whistle-blower Policy

•	 Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy

•	 Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

•	 Policy for selection of Directors and determining 
Directors’ independence

•	 Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other employees

•	 Dividend Distribution Policy

•	 Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries

•	 Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and 
on dealing with Related Party Transactions

•	 Policy on Determination and Disclosure of Materiality 
of Events and Information and Web Archival Policy

•	 Policy for Preservation of Documents

•	 Risk Management Policy

•	 Foreign Exchange and Derivatives Risk Management 
Policy

•	 Data & Cyber Security Policy

•	 Anti-Corruption and Bribery Policy

www.radicokhaitan.com
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General Body Meetings:

The venue and time of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company are as follows:

Year Location Meeting Date Time No. of special resolutions 

set out at the AGM
2019-2020 Rampur Distillery Bareilly Road 

Rampur – 244 901 (U.P.)
August 31, 2020 01:00 P.M. Nil

2018-2019 Rampur Distillery Bareilly Road 
Rampur – 244 901 (U.P.)

September 26, 2019 01:00 P.M. 2

2017-2018 Rampur Distillery Bareilly Road 
Rampur – 244 901 (U.P.)

August 31, 2018 01:00 P.M. Nil

All special resolutions set out in the notices for the Annual 
General Meetings were passed by the shareholders at the 
respective meetings with requisite majority. There is no 
Resolution passed through postal ballot during the year.

Means of Communication:

A.	 Quarterly/ Half-yearly/ Nine-months and Annual 
Audited Financial Results of the Company are 
published in the Business Standard, Delhi and Mumbai 
editions and Hindustan, Moradabad edition.

	 The results of the Company are also posted up on the 
Company’s corporate website: www.radicokhaitan.
com. The Company’s official news releases and 
presentations made to the institutional investors and 
analysts are also available on the Company’s website. 
Management Discussions and Analysis forms part of 
this Annual Report, which is also being posted to all 
the Members of the Company.

B.	� All important information pertaining to the Company is 
also mentioned in the Annual Report of the Company 
which is circulated to the members and others entitled 
thereto for each financial year.

C.	 Your Company provides necessary information to 
the Stock Exchanges and other rules and regulations 
issued by the Securities Exchange Board of India.

D.	� For the year ending March 31, 2022, quarterly financial 
results will be announced as per the tentative schedule 
detailed below

Not later than 
August 15, 2021

First Quarter

Not later than 
November 15, 2021

Second Quarter and Half 
Yearly

Not later than 
February 15, 2022

Third Quarter and Nine Months

Not later than 
May 30, 2022

Fourth Quarter and Annual

General Shareholder Information:

A.	 Company Registration details:

	 The Company is registered in the State of Uttar 
Pradesh, India. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) 
allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (MCA) is L26941UP1983PLC027278.

B.	� Date, time and venue of the 37th Annual General 

Meeting:

	 Tuesday, 28 day of September, 2021 at 1.00 p.m. at 
Rampur Distillery, Bareilly Road, Rampur – 244 901, 
Uttar Pradesh.

C.	F inancial Year:

	 Company follows the Financial Year beginning from 
1st April of every year and ends on March 31, of the 
next subsequent year.

D.	 Book closure and Dividend payment details:

	 The Book closure will start from September 22, 2021 to 
September 28, 2021 (both day inclusive) and Dividend  
shall be paid after October 03, 2021.

E.	L isting on Stock Exchanges:

	 The Company’s securities are listed on the following 
stock exchanges:

Name 
of Stock 
Exchange

Address Code

Bombay Stock 
Exchange Ltd. 
(BSE)

Floor 25, P.J. Towers 
Dalal Street,  
Mumbai – 400 001.

532497

National Stock 
Exchange 
of India Ltd. 
(NSE)

Exchange Plaza, 5th 
Floor  
Plot no.C/1, G Block 
Bandra-Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (E)  
Mumbai – 400 051.

RADICO

	 The Company has paid the listing fees for the financial 
year 2021-22 to the stock exchange(s) on which 
Company’s shares are listed. The Company has also 
paid custodial fees for the year 2021-22 to National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The 
International Security Identification Number (ISIN) 
allocated to the Company by NSDL and CDSL is 
INE944F01028.

F.	R egistered Office:

	 Bareilly Road, Rampur – 244 901, Uttar Pradesh.

G.	 Website:

	 www.radicokhaitan.com

www.radicokhaitan.com
www.radicokhaitan.com
www.radicokhaitan.com
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H. E-mail ID for Investor’s Grievances:

 investor@radico.co.in

 The above exclusive e-mail id is disclosed by the Company on its website and all the various material correspondence, 
publications and communication to the shareholders at large.

I. Stock price data:

 The monthly high and low prices and volumes of your Company’s shares at BSE and NSE for the year 2021 are given 
as follows:

Month BSE NSE

High (`) Low (`) Volume  
(No. of Shares)

High (`) Low (`) Volume  
(No. of Shares)

2020
April 331.00 259.60 926286 329.90 259.00 13801480
May 338.00 280.10 1373803 338.70 279.95 23551805
June 393.10 322.50 1147863 393.70 321.95 15705488
July 412.70 363.95 785924 414.00 363.55 12917630
August 429.30 361.00 524982 429.90 360.50 7811437
September 471.75 376.65 1143377 472.00 376.40 11989814
October 471.00 391.15 410369 460.00 384.00 6783857
November 471.50 418.05 324606 471.75 418.45 5570698
December 484.00 422.65 597354 485.00 422.00 6726722
2021
January 529.90 452.90 1245121 529.85 452.75 11796383
February 584.00 490.35 1926058 580.70 490.60 8385228
March 628.30 516.20 1491793 650.00 516.00 7591962

 Note:

 High and low are in Rupees per traded share. Volume is the total monthly volume of trade in Radico Khaitan’s shares 
on BSE and NSE

  The Chart below shows the comparison of your Company’s share price movement on BSE vis-à-vis the movement of 
the BSE Sensex for the year 2020 -21. The shares of the Company are traded in the B category at BSE and are also 
actively traded on NSE.
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Radio Khaitan share price versus Nifty 50 (Rebased)
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J. Share transfer system:

 The share transfer activities in respect of the shares in physical mode are carried out by the Company’s Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent (RTA). The Shares lodged for transfer are processed and returned within the stipulated time. 
The applications and requests received by your Company for transfer of shares held in physical form are processed 
and the share certificates for the same are sent to the transferee within the stipulated period under the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Board of Directors of the Company have delegated the authority to approve the transfer of shares, 
transmission of shares or requests for deletion of name of the shareholder, etc., as mentioned in Regulation 40 of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 to the designated o©cials of the Company. 
The transactions in respect of issue of duplicate share certificates, split, rematerialisation, consolidation and renewal 
of share certificates are approved by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

 A summary of all the transfers, transmissions, deletion requests, etc., are placed before the Board of Directors from 
time to time for their review.

K. Distribution of Shareholdings:

 The distribution of shareholding of the Company as on March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Sl. No. Category of Shareholders Total No. of Shares % of Total no. of Shares

1 Promoters 53829818 40.30

2 Mutual Funds 20591569 15.42

3 Banks, Indian Financial Institution 3958 0.00

4 FIIs/FPIs 25990443 19.46

5 Private Corporate Bodies 5527006 4.14

6 Indian Public 26438948 19.79

7 NRIs/OCBs 1154903 0.86

8 State Government 31,620 0.02

Total 133568265 100.00
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	 Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2021

Sl.No. Category 

(Amount)

No. of 

Holders

% To 

Holders

Physical 

(Shares)

Electronic 

(Shares)

Total Shares Amount  

(`)

% To 

Equity

1 up to 5000 63954 98.19 1074127 9193570 10267697 20535394 7.69
2 5001 - 10000 582 0.89 127185 1928470 2055655 4111310 1.54
3 10001-20000 253 0.39 25420 1837200 1862620 3725240 1.39
4 20001-30000 84 0.13 10,850 1047659 1058509 2117018 0.79
5 30001-40000 49 0.08 15,500 849742 865242 1730484 0.65
6 40001-50000 24 0.04 0 555214 555214 1110428 0.42
7 50001-60000 21 0.03 0 587633 587633 1175266 0.44
8 60001-100000 43 0.07 31620 1695940 1727560 3455120 1.29
9 100001 and above 120 0.18 0 114588135 114588135 229176270 85.79

Total 65130 100.00 1284702 132283563 133568265 267136530 100.00

L.	D ematerialization of shares and liquidity

	� Radico Khaitan Limited shares are tradable in the 
electronic form only. We have established connectivity 
with the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 
and Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
(CDSL) through KFin Technologies Private Limited, 
the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA). 
The International Securities Identification Number 
(ISIN) allotted to our shares under the Depository 
System is INE944F01028.

	 As on March 31, 2021, 132,283,563 shares were held in 
dematerialize form and the rest in physical form.

	 SEBI, effective April 01, 2019, barred physical transfer 
of shares of listed companies and mandated transfers 
only through demat.

	 However, investors are not barred from holding shares 
in physical form. We request shareholders whose 
shares are in the physical mode to dematerialize their 
shares and update their bank accounts and email IDs 
with the respective depository participants to enable 
us to provide better service.

	 List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along 
with any revisions thereto during the relevant financial 
year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed 
deposit programme or any scheme or proposal of the 
listed entity involving mobilization of funds, whether 
in India or abroad (Not applicable)

M.	 Unclaimed Dividend/Shares: 

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, if the dividend transferred to the 
Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company remains 
unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from 
the date of such transfer then such unclaimed or 
unpaid dividend shall be transferred by the Company 
along with interest accrued, if any to the Investor 
Education And Protection Fund (“the IEPF”), a fund 
established under sub-section (1) of Section 125 of the 
Act. The details of unclaimed / unpaid dividend are 

available on the website of the Company viz. www.
radicokhaitan.com

	 Mandatory Transfer of Shares to Demat Account of 
Investors Education and Protection Fund Authority 
(IEPFA) in case of unpaid dividend on shares for a 
consecutive period of seven years.

	 In terms of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 6 of the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, 
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, (as amended from 
time to time) (IEPF Rules) shares on which dividend 
has not been paid or claimed by a shareholder for a 
period of seven consecutive years or more shall be 
credited to the Demat Account of Investor Education 
and Protection Fund Authority (IEPFA) which a period 
of thirty days of such shares becoming due to be so 
transferred. Upon transfer of such shares, all benefits 
(lie bonus, etc.), if any, accruing on such shares shall 
also be credited to such Demat Account and the 
voting rights on such shares shall remain frozen till the 
rightful owner claims the shares.

	 Shares which are transferred to the Demat Account of 
IEPFA can be claimed back by the shareholders from 
IEPFA by following the procedure prescribed under 
the aforesaid rules.

	 The Company has sent out individual communication 
to the concerned Members whose shares are liable 
to be transferred to IEPFA on 15.06.2021, to take 
immediate action in the matter.

	 As required under the IEPF Rules, the Company has 
also published a Notice informing the Members’ who 
have not claimed their dividend for a period of 7 years 
to claim the same from the Company before they are 
transferred to IEPFA.

	 As per Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V of the 
Listing Regulations, the details of the shares in the 
Suspense Account are as follows:

Sl.No
www.radicokhaitan.com
www.radicokhaitan.com
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Particulars Number of shareholders Number of equity shares
Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding 
shares in the suspense account lying as on April 01, 
2020

Nil Nil

Shareholders who approached the Company for 
transfer of shares from suspense account during the 
year

Nil Nil

Shareholders to whom shares were transferred from 
the suspense account during the year

Nil Nil

During the year (2020-21) shareholders whose shares 
were transferred to the demat account of the IEPF 
Authority as per Section 124 of the Act

203 99,566

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding 
shares in the suspense account lying as on March 31, 2021

Nil Nil

	 The voting rights on the shares outstanding in the suspense account as on March 31, 2021 shall remain frozen till the 
rightful owner of such shares claims the shares.

N.	T ransfer to Investor Education & Protection Fund:

	 As per the Companies Act, 2013, dividends that are unclaimed for a period of seven years, statutorily get transferred 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) administered by the Central Government and thereafter 
cannot be claimed by investors. To ensure maximum disbursement of unclaimed dividend, the Company sends 
reminders to the concerned investors, before transfer of dividend to IEPF. Pursuant to Section 125 of the Companies 
Act 2013, unclaimed dividend has been transferred to IEPF as per below table:

Financial Year Date of Declaration 

of Dividend

Total Dividend Unclaimed Dividend  

as on 31-3-2019

Due Date of Transfer to 

IEPF account
FY 2002 16.07.2002 38,579,176.00 730,556.00 22.08.2009
FY 2003 19.07.2003 34,721,258.40 914,312.00 24.08.2010
FY 2004 17.07.2004 38,579,176.00 973,284.00 22.08.2011
FY 2005 16.11.2005 42,437,093.60 983,341.00 21.12.2012
FY 2006 25.09.2006 48,223,970.00 1,135,840.00 30.10.2013
FY 2007 26.09.2007 51,231,109.50 922,432.00 05.11.2014
FY2008 30.09.2008 51,231,109.50 1,065,509.00 16.10.2015
FY2009 15.09.2009 30,738,665.70 699,978.00 07.10.2016
FY2010 09.09.2010 79,300,632.60 1,620,668.00 26.10.2017
FY2011 09.09.2011 92,853,567.80 1,630,738.00 24.09.2018
FY2012 24.09.2012 106,195,503.20 2,312,827.00 11.10.2019
FY2013 30.09.2013 106,356,544.00 2349982.00 21.10.2020

O.	�P lant locations:

	 These details have been provided in ‘Corporate Information’ in the Annual Report.

P.	 Credit Ratings:

	 The details about the credit ratings of the Company has been provided in the Director’s Report.

Q.	 Green initiative:

	 Pursuant to Circular No. 17/2011 dated 21st April, 2011, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has undertaken a Green Initiative in 
Corporate Governance whereby the shareholders desirous of receiving notices, documents and other communication 
from the Company through electronic mode, can register their e-mail addresses with the Company.

	 Your Company encourages the shareholders to register their e-mail addresses with the Company or its Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent, M/s.KFin Technologies Private Limited, by sending a letter signed by the shareholders on addresses 
given below and intimate changes in the email address from time to time.

	 Radico Khaitan Limited

	 Plot No.J-1, Block B-1
	 Mohan Co-operative Industrial Area, Mathura Road, New Delhi – 110 044.

	 Tel: +91 11 40975400/444/500/555
	 Fax:+91 11 41678841-42
	 Email: investor@radico.co.in

s.KFin
mailto:investor@radico.co.in
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	 M/s. KFin Technologies Private Limited

	 Registered Office:
	 Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot number 31 & 32,
	 Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
	 Serilingampally, Hyderabad – 500032, Telangana
	 Ph: +91 040 6716 1517
	 www.kfintech.com
	 Toll Free No.18 00 3454 001
	 Fax No. 040-23430814
	 Email Id: einward.ris@kfintech.com

	 Delhi Office:
	 305, New Delhi House, 27, Barakhamba Road, 
	 Connaught Place, New Delhi – 110 001.
	 Telephone No. 011- 43681700 Fax No.011-43681710.

Affirmations and Disclosures:

Compliances with Governance Framework

The Company is in compliance with all mandatory 
requirements under the Listing Regulations.

A.	 Going concern:

	 The Board is satisfied that the Company has adequate 
resources to continue its business for the foreseeable 
future and consequently considers it appropriate 
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 
financial statements.

B.	 Related party transactions:

	 All transactions entered into with the Related Parties as 
defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 
23 of the Listing Regulations during the financial year 
were on arm’s length basis and do not attract the 
provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
There were no materially significant transactions with 
Related Parties during the financial year. Related party 
transactions have been disclosed under significant 
accounting policies and notes forming part of the 
Financial Statements in accordance with “IND AS”. 
A statement in summary form of transactions with 
Related Parties in ordinary course of business and 
arm’s length basis is periodically placed before the 
Audit committee for review and recommendation to 
the Board for their approval.

	 As required under Regulation 23(1) of the Listing 
Regulations, the Company has formulated a policy on 
dealing with Related Party Transactions. The Policy is 
available on the website of the Company viz. www. 
radicokhaitan.com None of the transactions with 
Related Parties were in conflict with the interest of 
Company. All the transactions are on arm’s length 
basis and have no potential conflict with the interest 
of the Company at large and are carried out on an 
arm’s length or fair value basis.

C.	D etails of non-compliance by the Company:

	 The Company has complied with all requirements 
specified under the Listing Regulations as well as other 

regulations and guidelines of SEBI. Consequently, 
there were no strictures or penalties imposed by either 
SEBI or Stock Exchanges or any statutory authority for 
non-compliance of any matter related to the capital 
markets during the last three Financial years.

D.	V igil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy: 

	 Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, 
the Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy for 
vigil mechanism of Directors and employees to report 
to the management about the unethical behavior, 
fraud or violation of Company’s code of conduct. The 
mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against  
victimisation of employees and Directors who use such 
mechanism and makes provision for direct access to 
the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional 
cases. None of the personnel of the Company have 
been denied access to the Audit Committee. The 
Whistle Blower Policy is displayed on the Company’s 
website viz. www.radicokhaitan.com

E	D isclosure of Accounting Treatment:

	 The Company follows Accounting Standards prescribed 
by the Companies Accounting Standard Rules, 2006 
(as amended) and relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013. In preparation of financial statements, the 
Company has not adopted a treatment different from 
what is prescribed in the Accounting Standards. The 
financial statements for the year have been prepared 
in accordance with and in compliance of Schedule III of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

F.	 Audit Qualifications:

	 During the year under review, there was no audit 
qualification in the Company’s financial statements. 
The Company continues to adopt best practices to 
ensure a regime of unqualified financial statements.

G.	 Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy:

	 Your Company has adopted a Sexual Harassment Policy 
with an objective to ensure a protective and equal 
platform for working of women in the organisation. 
The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual 
harassment and it’s an important part of our corporate 
culture. Radico Khaitan has a special committee in this 
regards which meets at regular intervals.

	 The details of number of complaints filed and disposed 
of during the year and pending as on March 31, 2020 is 
given in the Directors’ report.

H.	P revention of Insider Trading:

	 Your Company has adopted the Insider Trading Policy 
and Corporate Policy statement on Investor Relations 
in line with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018. This policy includes 
policy and procedures for inquiry in case of a leak 
of UPSI or suspected leak of UPSI. The Company 
has automated the declarations and disclosures to 

www.kfintech.com
mailto:einward.ris@kfintech.com
radicokhaitan.com
www.radicokhaitan.com
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identified designated persons and the Board reviews 
the policy on need basis. The amended policy is 
available on our website, at https://www.radicokhaitan. 
com

I.	 Code of Conduct:

	 Your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for 
all the employees including the Board Members 
and Senior Management Personnel of the Company 
in accordance with the requirement under SEBI 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The 
Code of Conduct has been posted on the website of 
the Company www.radicokhaitan.com. All the Board 
Members and the Senior Management Personnel 
have affirmed their compliance with the said Code of 
Conduct for the financial year ended March 31, 2019.

	D eclaration of Compliance with the Code of Conduct

	 I hereby confirm that:

	 The Company has obtained from all the members 
of the Board and Senior Management Personnel, 
affirmation(s) that they have complied with the 
Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior 
Management Personnel in respect of the financial year 
ended March 31, 2021.

Abhishek Khaitan

	 New Delhi	  Managing Director
	 Date: July 28, 2021	 DIN - 00772865
 

J.	A nti-Corruption and Bribery Policy:

	 We at Radico Khaitan conduct our business in an 
ethical and honest manner.

	 We believe in zero-tolerance approach to bribery 
and corruption. We believe in doing business in a 
professional and fair manner and with integrity in 
all our business dealings and relationships and to 
implement effective systems to counter bribery. 
Our Associates are prohibited from engaging in any 
bribery, including direct bribery and indirect bribery 
and payments through third parties.

	 The Company has adopted Anti- Corruption and 
Bribery Policy to set out responsibilities to comply 
with the laws of Bribery and Corruption.

	 The Company undertakes a periodic bribery and 
corruption risk assessment across its business to 
understand the bribery risks it faces and ensure that it 
has adequate procedures in place to address those risks.

K.	 Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ 
subsidiaries is disclosed; N.A

L.	 Disclosure of commodity price risks or foreign 
exchange risk and commodity hedging activities:

	 The Company has adequate risk assessment and 
minimisation system in place including for commodities. 
The Company does not have material exposure of any 
commodity and accordingly, no hedging activities 
for the same are carried out. Therefore, there is no 
disclosure to offer in terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/
HO/ CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2018/0000000141 dated 
November 15, 2018.

	 Details of utilisation of funds raised through preferential 
allotment or qualified institutions placement as 
specified under Regulation 32 (7A). Not Applicable

M.	 Certificate from Secretarial Auditor regarding 
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by 
the Company attached herewith as a part of the report 
as Annexure-B

N.	 Certificate from a Company Secretary in practice that 
none of the directors on the board of the company 
have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as directors of companies by 
the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
statutory authority .

	 The Certificate of Company Secretary in practice 
is annexed herewith as a part of the report as  
Annexure-C

O.	 Where the board had not accepted any 
recommendation of any committee of the board 
which is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial 
year. Not Applicable

P.	 Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity 
and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the 
statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/
network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part. 
Details relating to fees paid to the Statutory Auditors 
are given in Note 47 to the Standalone Financial 
Statements and Note 47 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

Q.	 The Company has complied with the corporate 
governance requirements as specified in Regulations 
17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation(2) of 
Regulation 46 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

DETAILS OF ADOPTION OF NON- MANDATORY 
(DISCRETIONARY) REQUIREMENTS

Adoption of non-mandatory requirements of the Listing 
Regulations is being reviewed by the Board from time-to 
time. The status of compliance with the non- mandatory 
requirements of the Listing Regulations is provided below:

•	 The requirement relating to maintenance of office 
and reimbursement of expenses of Non- Executive 
Chairman is not applicable to the Company since the 
Chairman of the Company is an Executive Director.

https://www.radicokhaitan
www.radicokhaitan.com
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•	 The Company has not adopted the practice of sending out half-yearly declaration of financial performance to 
shareholders. Quarterly results as approved by the Board are disseminated to Stock Exchanges and updated on the 
website of the Company.

•	 Modified opinion(s) in audit report There are no modified opinions in audit report.

•	 Reporting of Internal Auditor In accordance with the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Company has appointed an Internal Auditor who reports to the Audit Committee. Quarterly internal audit reports are 
submitted to the Audit Committee which reviews the audit reports and suggests necessary action.

 	  For and on behalf of the Board

	

Dr. Lalit Khaitan

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN-00238222

Place: New Delhi 
Date: July 28, 2021
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ceo/cfo certification

Annexure - A

This is to certify that:

A.	 We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2021 and that to 
the best of our knowledge and belief:

1.	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading;

2.	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B.	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which 
are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

C. 	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have 
disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if 
any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. 	 We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee:

1. 	 significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

2. 	 significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to 
the financial statements; and

3. 	 instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial 
reporting.

For and on behalf of the Board

Dilip Kumar Banthiya�A bhishek Khaitan 

Chief Financial Officer� Managing Director

� DIN: 00772865

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 01, 2021
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To,
The Members of
Radico Khaitan Limited
CIN: L26941UP1983PLC027278
Bareilly Road Rampur
Uttar Pradesh, 244901

1.	 We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Radico Khaitan Limited (‘the 
Company’) for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2021, as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) 
of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

2.	 The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination 
has been limited to the review of the procedures and implementations thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 
the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the 
financial statements of the Company.

3.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the representation 
made by the directors and the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the mandatory 
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

4.	 We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

TVA & Co. LLP

Company Secretaries

				    Tanuj Vohra

Partner
M. No.: F5621, C.P. No.: 5253

Place: New Delhi	 UDIN: F005621C000405823
Date: June 01, 2021	 RP L2015UP000900

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AUDIT REPORT

Annexure - B
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To, 
The Members of 
Radico Khaitan Limited
CIN: L26941UP1983PLC027278
Bareilly Road, Rampur
Uttar Pradesh -244901

We have examined the relevant Registers, Records, Forms, Returns and Disclosures received from the Directors of Radico 
Khaitan Limited having CIN L26941UP1983PLC027278 and having registered office at Bareilly Road, Rampur, Uttar Pradesh 
-244901 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 
Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V, Para C, clause (10)(i) of the Securities Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the 
Company and its officers and the representation given by the Management, we hereby certify that none of the Directors 
on the Board of the Company as stated below, for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2021, have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority:

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company
1 Lalit Kumar Khaitan 00238222 28/01/2003
2 Abhishek Khaitan 00772865 28/01/2003
3 Krishan Pal Singh 00178560 28/01/2003
4 Raghupati Singhania 00036129 28/01/2003
5 Sarvesh Srivastava 06869261 30/05/2014
6 Sharad Jaipuria 00017049 08/08/2019
7 Tushar Jain 00053023 08/08/2019
8 Sushmita Singha 02284266 01/04/2019

It is solemnly the responsibility of Directors to submit relevant declarations and disclosures with complete and accurate 
information in compliance with the relevant provisions. Further, ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity 
of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For TVA & Co. LLP

Company Secretaries

				    Tanuj Vohra

Partner
M. No.: F5621, C.P. No.: 5253

Place: New Delhi	 UDIN: F005621C000405812
Date: June 01, 2021	 RP L2015UP000900

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V, Para C, clause (10)(i) of the SEBI  

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

Annexure - C

www.mca.gov.in
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Business Responsibility Report

Pursuant to the regulation 34 (2) (f) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 which 
has mandated the inclusion of a Business Responsibility Report (BRR) as part of company’s Annual Report for top 1000 
listed entities based on market capitalisation at the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and the National Stock Exchange 
(NSE).  Following is the Business Responsibility Report of the Company for the Financial Year ended March, 31,2021.

SECTION A:

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1 Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company L26941UP1983PLC027278

2 Name of the Company Radico Khaitan Limited

3 Registered Address Bareilly Road, Rampur, Uttar Pradesh – 244901 

4 Website www.radicokhaitan.com

5 Email ID info@radico.co.in

6 Financial Year Reported 1st April, 2020 to 31st March, 2021

7 Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial activity 
code-wise) - Name and description of main products

Manufacturing of Alcohol and Alcoholic Products 
NIC Code of the product: 1101

8 List three key products/services that the Company 
manufactures/ provides (as in balance sheet)

Manufacturing of Alcohol and Alcoholic Products

9 Total number of locations where business activity is 
undertaken by the Company

32

a. Number of International Locations  
(Provide details of major 5)

Nil 

b. Number of National Locations 32

10 Markets served by the Company – Local/State/National/ 
International

Apart from serving entire country, company 
exports to more than 50 countries.

SECTION B:

FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

1 Paid-up Capital ` 26.71 Crores

2 Total Turnover ` 10367.36 Crores (Gross)

` 2418.14 Crores (Net of Excise Duty)

3 Total Profit After Tax ` 270.56 Crores

4 Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) as percentage of profit after tax (%)

` 528.07 Lakhs

5 List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has 
been incurred

Refer to the Annexure E to the Directors’ Report

SECTION C:

OTHER DETAILS

1 Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/ Companies? No

2 Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in the BR Initiatives of the parent company? 
If yes, then indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s)

NA

3 Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that the Company does business 
with, participate in the BR initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate the percentage of 
such entity/entities? [Less than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%]

NA

www.radicokhaitan.com
mailto:info@radico.co.in
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SECTION D:

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1.	 Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR

	 A.	� Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR Policy / Policies

# Particulars Details

1 DIN Number 00772865

2 Name Mr. Abhishek Khaitan

3 Designation Managing Director

	 B.	 Details of the BR Head

# Particulars Details

1 DIN Number 00772865

2 Name Mr. Abhishek Khaitan

3 Designation Managing Director

4 Details of the BR Head +91 11 4097 5500

5 Email ID Investor@radico.co.in

2.	 Principle Wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy / Policies

	 The nine principles are as under

1. Principle

Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics,  
Transparency and Accountability.

2. Principle

Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to  
sustainability throughout their life cycle.

3. Principle

Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees.

4. Principle

Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive towards all stakeholders,  
especially those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised.

5. Principle

Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy,  
should do so in a responsible manner

6. Principle

Businesses should respect and promote human rights.

7. Principle

Businesses should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment.

8. Principle

Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner.

9. Principle

Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner.

mailto:Investor@radico.co.in
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A.	 Details of compliance (Reply in Y / N)

# Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1 Do you have any policy/policies for? Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

2 Has the policy being formulated in consultation with 
the relevant stakeholders?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

3 Does the policy conform to any national / international 
standards? If yes, specify? (50 words)

All the Policies have been developed considering relevant 
national & International Standards.

4 Has the policy being approved by the Board?
If yes, has it been signed by MD / owner / CEO / 
appropriate Board Director?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

5 Does the Company have a specified committee 
of the Board / Director /Official to oversee the 
implementation of the policy?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

6 Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online? http://www.radicokhaitan.com/investor-relations.

7 Has the policy been formally communicated to all 
relevant internal and external stakeholders?

The policy has been posted on the Company’s website for 
information of all the internal and external stakeholders of 
the Company.

8 Does the Company have in–house structure to 
implement the policy / policies.

Yes, the Company have necessary structure in place to 
implement the policy.

9 Does the Company have a grievance redressal 
mechanism related to the policy / policies to address 
stakeholders’ grievances related to the mechanism, 
policy /policies?

Yes, the Company have necessary grievance redressal to 
address stakeholders grievances related to the policy. The 
CSR committee of the Board of Directors is responsible for 
addressing stakeholders concerns related to BR policy.

10 Has the Company carried out independent audit /
evaluation of the working We are in the process of 
appointing independent of this policy by an internal or 
external agency?

The BR policy is evaluated internally. Time to time evaluation 
of its working is done by an internal or external agency.

B.	 Details of compliance (Reply in Y / N)

# Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1 The Company has not understood the Principles NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

2 The Company is not at a stage where it finds itself in 
a position to formulate and implement the policies on 
specified principles

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

3 The Company does not have financial or manpower 
resources available for the task

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

4 It is planned to be done within next 6 months NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

5 It is planned to be done within the next 1 year NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

6 Any other reason (please specify) NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

3.	 Governance Related to BR

# Particulars Details

A	 Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to assess 
the BR performance of the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year

Annually

B Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this 
report? How frequently it is Published?

Published 
Annually

Yes, the BR Report is published on annual basis. The report for the financial year 2010-21 can be assessed through the link: 
http://www.radicokhaitan.com/investor-relations.

http://www.radicokhaitan.com/investor
http://www.radicokhaitan.com/investor
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SECTION E:

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

Principle 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability. 

Description Response

Does the policy relating to ethics, 
bribery and corruption cover only 
the Company? Yes / No. Does 
it extend to the Group / Joint 
Ventures / Suppliers / Contractors 
/ NGOs / Others?

Radico Khaitan have strong and rich foundation of ethics and responsibility which 
is absolutely necessary to sustainable economic value. With its legacy of fair, 
transparent and ethical governance, Radico Khaitan has adopted an Anti-Bribery 
policy under which strict action is envisaged against employees

if found indulged into the practice of giving undue favours to government servants 
or any other stakeholders like vendors, bankers, etc

Radico Khaitan Limited also has its own self explanatory code of conduct which 
defines the importance & commitment on ethics, bribery and any other kind of 
behaviour which are not acceptable by the company and all employees sign that 
code with full commitment.

The Company encourages and expects the parties associated with its value chain 
partners like dealers, vendors, supplier, contractors, employees etc. to follow 
the Code of Business Conduct and principles envisaged in the policy while their 
interactions with Radico Khaitan Limited.

From time to time, drives are initiated for responsible drinking, don’t drink and 
driving, etc. The Company promotes the policy of responsible drinking amongst 
its consumers.Employees are involved in decision making through making of 
committees where they have say to express their concerns.

How many stakeholder 
complaints have been received in 
the past financial year and what 
percentage was satisfactorily 
resolved by the management? 
If so, provide details thereof, in 
about 50 words or so.

For query / compliant please refer to Corporate Governance Report under the head 
of Stack Holder Relationship Committee.

The Company did not have any significant external stakeholder complaint in the last 
financial year.

Principle 2: Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their 

life cycle.

Description Response

List upto 3 of your products 
or services whose design 
has incorporated social or 
environmental concerns, risks and 
/ or opportunities.

1.	 The effluent treatment facility in Rampur and other plants complies with 
Zero liquid Discharge concept as set up by CPCB/ State pollution Board. The 
treatment has varied by products, which not only improves operational stability 
of the plants but also adds on to company’s profitability. Primary treatment of 
the effluent yields bio gas, which is used as fuel in cogen boiler to generate 
steam and then power through a backpressure turbine. The backpressure 
steam is used again in the distillation plant to produce extra neutral alcohol 
and rectified spirit.

2.	 The cogeneration plant of Rampur Distillery consist of 26 MT capacity India’s 
first standalone bio gas fired steam boiler and 2 MW turbine generator and 
30 MT capacity bio gas and rice husk based boiler and 2.5 MW in tandem to 
make Radico Khaitan self reliant on its requirement for power for its normal 
operation.

3.	 Meeting out 100% pollution control norms, the treated effluent is not discharged 
outside and in turn is mixed and cured with organic mass like press mud of 
sugar mills and suitable organic manures to manufacture bio manure or bio 
compost, a bio fertiliser used successfully in growing the crop of sugar canes, 
etc.

consumers.Employees
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Description Response

For each such product, provide 
the following details in respect of 
resource use (energy, water, raw 
material etc.) per unit of product 
(optional)

The Company has been continuously striving hard to reduce the power and fuel 
consumption thereby contributing for the improvement of environment.

Radico Khaitan has been focusing on tree plantation nearby its manufacturing 
plants. It has planted large number of trees and plans to add huge numbers soon 
in various other locations. Further, the company has also contributed a lot to its 
nearby areas through CSR activities.

1.	 Does the Company have 
procedures in place for 
sustainable sourcing 
(including transportation)?

A.	 If yes, what percentage 
of your inputs was 
sourced sustainably? 
Also, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 
words or so

The resources involved in the manufacturing processes are efficient and sustainable 
and 100% of the inputs are sustainably sourced by the Company.

The Company has very first backward integration project that has come in the form 
of setting up a fully automatic 750 ml kidney shape PET bottle manufacturing plant 
in low cost and tax benefited area like Uttaranchal.

The unit started with production rate of 0.85 crore bottles per year in October 2004 
and is now geared up to produce 60 crore PET bottles to cater Radico Khaitan’s 
own captive consumption of approx. 30 crore bottles per year and rest is being sold 
to outside clients in liquor, pharmaceutical and FMCG. This project has also given 
employment to workers and helped them in living better life.

Further the Company gives preference in selection of vendors for procurement of 
raw material, who comply with the various principles of sustainability. Majority of 
suppliers of raw material are located within a radius of 200 Kms of the manufacturing 
units of the Company which helps to minimise transportation.

2.	 Has the Company taken 
any steps to procure goods 
and services from local & 
small producers, including 
communities surrounding 
their place of work?

A.	 If yes, what steps have 
been taken to improve 
their capacity and 
capability of local and 
small vendors?

The Company has always given the preference to local vendors for supply of 
stores, spares and repair works. Our contractors who are engaged in the repairs 
and maintenance of plants are employing workmen from the nearby villages by 
providing opportunities to them to earn livelihood.

The local labours are provided with safety equipment and apparatus and are 
expected to adhere to the safety procedures of the Company.

3.	 Does the Company have 
a mechanism to recycle 
products and waste? If yes 
what is the percentage of 
recycling of products and 
waste (separately as <5%, 
5-10%, >10%). Also, provide 
details thereof, in about 50 
words or so.

The production process of the Company is based on principles of optimising the 
material and energy resources. Therefore, the Company lays high degree of stress 
to reduce waste associated with its products.

In the said direction, it has installed Effluent Treatment Plant (“ETP”) and filter 
processes at all of its plants and whatever, liquid and solid waste is generated, the 
same is being recycled and reused in the process. The current waste generation is 
less than 1% of the total production, majority of which is recycled.

Principle 3: Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees.

Description Response

1. Please indicate the Total number of employees. 1179 as on March 31, 2021

2. Please indicate the Total number of employees hired 
on temporary/ contractual / casual basis.

1683

3. Please indicate the Number of permanent women 
employees.

19

4. Please indicate the Number of permanent employees 
with disabilities

NIL

5. Do you have an employee association that is 
recognised by Management?

Yes. There are recognised trade unions constituted as 
per the terms of the Trade Unions Act at the Company’s 
manufacturing units.
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Description Response

6. What percentage of your permanent employees is 
members of this recognised employee association?

12%

7. Please indicate the Number of complaints relating to 
child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual 
harassment in the last financial year and pending, as 
on the end of the financial year.

Nil

# Category No. of complaints filed No. of 

complaints pending as during the 

financial year

No. of complaints pending as during 

the financial year on end of the 

financial year

1 Child labour / forced labour / 
involuntary labour

Nil Nil

2 Sexual Harassment Nil Nil

3 Discriminatory employment Nil Nil

The company is fully compliant with the prevailing laws on the prevention of sexual harassment of women at 
workplace. The policy for the prevention of sexual harassment of women at workplace is available on the website 
of the Company at http://www.radicokhaitan.com/ investor-relations/. All complaints received during the year 
were attended on time with no pending complaint at the end of the year.

Radico Khaitan has in place a robust vigil mechanism and has adopted a whistle blower policy which allows 
employees of the Company to raise their concerns relating to fraud, malpractice or any other activity or event 
which is against the interest of the Company or society as a whole.

4 What percentage of your under 
mentioned employees were given 
safety & skill up-gradation training 
in the last year?

A.	 Permanent Employees 8 hours of training per employee

B.	� Permanent  Women 
Employees

8 hours of training per employee

C.	� Casual / Temporary / 
Contractual Employees:

Safety and work instructions are given before they start working.

D.	 Employees with Disabilities NIL

Principle 4: Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who 

are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised. 

Description Response

1. Has the Company mapped its internal and external 
stakeholders? Yes/No

Yes. The Company has mapped its internal stakeholders as 
well as external stakeholders. The Company believes that 
an effective stakeholder engagement process is necessary 
for achieving its sustainability and growth.

2. Out of the above, has the company identified 
the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalised 
stakeholders.

The Company has appointed a consultant to identify its 
marginalised stakeholders by way of vendors, stockists, 
contract workers who are situated in and around its 
factory locations which are essentially under-developed 
locations requiring attention.

The Company has put in place systems and procedures 
to identify, prioritise and address the needs and 
concerns of its stakeholders across businesses and units 
in a continuous, consistent and systematic manner. It 
has implemented mechanisms to facilitate effective 
dialogues with all stakeholders across businesses, identify 
material concerns and their resolution in an equitable 
and transparent manner. These measures have helped 
the Company develop strong relationships, which have 
withstood the test of time

http://www.radicokhaitan.com
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Description Response

3. Are there any special initiatives taken by the Company 
to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and 
marginalised stakeholders. If so, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The Company’s collaborative stakeholders are manifest 
in its programmes which company has done under CSR 
which are mostly are towards the welfare of the people 
and stakeholders in and around our factory locations by 
providing health and sanitary care, educational facilities 
and vocational training, infrastructural facilities like road, 
water, etc. Most of the welfare schemes undertaken by the 
Company are targeted towards upliftment of the poor and 
down-trodden and marginalised stakeholders located in 
and around our factories.

These initiatives augment the natural resource base of the 
nation and create sustainable rural livelihoods.

Principle 5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights.

Description Response

1. Does the policy of the Company on human rights 
cover only the Company or extend to the Group / 
Joint Ventures / Suppliers / Contractors / NGOs / 
Others?

The Company has a Code of Conduct for Directors and 
Senior Management of the Company. The Company 
complies with the National and Local Laws as far as the 
individual rights are concerned. However, there is no 
specific human rights policy for the time being, which is 
being formulated for the approval of the Board.

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been 
received in the past financial year and what percent 
was satisfactorily resolved by the management?

No complaints for violation of human rights were received 
by the Company during the financial year.

Principle 6: Business should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment.

Description Response

1. Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the 
Company or extends to the Group / Joint Ventures / 
Suppliers / Contractors / NGOs / others.

The Company has a Policy on Safety Health and 
Environment (SHE), which covers all the operations of the 
Company.

The Policy includes implementation of a low carbon 
growth strategy across its businesses, integrated soil and 
water conservation programmes and the creation of large-
scale sustainable livelihoods amongst the marginalised 
sections of society.

The policy is applicable to the Companies all the location.

The company has done tie up with various organisation 
for recycling of pet bottles, collection of glass bottles and 
management of e-waste.

2. Does the Company have strategies / initiatives to 
address global environmental issues such as climate 
change, global warming, etc? Y / N. If yes, please 
give hyperlink for webpage etc.

Yes. The Company is committed to reduce Greenhouse 
Gas (GHG) emissions and have short-term and long- term 
targets in this regard. All these targets are aimed at:

•	 Reduce water use through a 50%   improvement in 
water use efficiency.

•	 Continuous focus on reduction of thermal and 
electrical energy consumption.

•	 Installation of Waste Recovery System.

•	 Utilisation of waste products from its thermal power 
plants like fly ash to improve the environment.

•	 Development of ponds and afforestation of the mined 
area to ensure greener environment.

•	 Installation of high efficiency bag filters in place 
of ESPs to ensure emissions are well within the 
permissible limits.
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Description Response

3. Does the Company identify and assess potential 
environmental risks? Y / N

Yes. 

4. Does the Company have any project related to Clean 
Development Mechanism? If so, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether 
any environmental compliance report is filed?

No.

5. Has the Company undertaken any other initiatives 
on-clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable 
energy, etc. Y / N. If yes, please give hyperlink for 
webpage etc.

Yes, the Company produces powers in its own plants 
through use of turbine and waste. The details are provided 
in annexure - E.

Further, it has also installed heat recovery systems and 
latest generation energy lighting and equipment, to save 
energy and fuel cost. The Company has also commissioned 
Rain Water harvesting projects within the plant and nearby 
villages. Details are given on the company website www.
radicokhaitan.com.

6. Are the Emissions / Waste generated by the Company 
within the permissible limits given by CPCB / SPCB 
for the financial year being reported?

Emission / waste generated by the Company are within the 
permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the financial 
year 2020-21.

7. Number of show cause / legal notices received from 
CPCB / SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to 
satisfaction) as on end of Financial Year.

The Company is in compliance with various environmental 
laws as per joint inspection conducted by CPCB/ UPCB 
from time to time.

Principle 7: Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner.

Description Response

1. Is your company a member of any trade and chamber 
or association? If Yes, Name only those major ones 
that your business deals with:

1.	 PHD Chamber of Commerce and Industry.

2.	 All India Distillery Association.

3.	 Confederation of Indian Alcoholic Beverages 
Companies (CIABC)

2. Have you advocated / lobbied through above 
associations for the advancement or improvement 
of public good? Yes / No; if yes specify the broad 
areas (drop box: Governance and Administration, 
Economic Reforms, Inclusive Development Policies, 
Energy security, Water, Food Security, Sustainable 
Business Principles, Others)?

The Company was also a party to various initiatives taken 
through the aforesaid associations for development 
of art and culture, addressal of natural calamities, and 
involvement in Swachh Bharat Mission.

The Company as part of its activities under corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR), has also taken steps for 
improvement of health, education, health and safety of 
the people in the village around its factories,

conservative of water in the usage of concrete, biodiversity 
conservation, increased usage of blended cement as 
sustainable building materials.

Principle 8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development. 

Description Response

1. Does the Company have specified programmes / 
initiatives / projects
in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 8? If yes 
details thereof

As part of CSR, the Company has developed detailed 
programmes focused on developing the neighbourhood 
and ensuring a better livelihood for the underprivileged 
people. Towards these programmes, all stakeholder groups 
are addressed which, inter alia, include promotion of basic 
education, rural employment, sustainable operations of 
the public health centres, development of infrastructure 
like roads, lights, drinking water supply and social reforms, 
which will ultimately pave way for a higher livelihood for 
the neighbourhood.

www.radicokhaitan.com
www.radicokhaitan.com


86    | Radico Khaitan Limited

Description Response

2. Are the programmes / projects undertaken through 
in-house team / own foundation / external NGO / 
government structures / any other organisation?

The Company’s CSR projects are implemented through 
an In-House CSR Department. Some of the healthcare 
and welfare activities are also being undertaken through 
governmental agencies/ NGO.

3. Have you done any impact assessment of your 
initiative?

The Company has appointed Grant Thornton LLP for 
reviewing the impact assessment of its CSR initiatives. The 
company has prepared a scheme for systematic review of 
the performance of the various

4. What is your company’s direct contribution to 
community development projects- Amount in INR 
and the details of the projects undertaken?

Details of amount spent by the Company by way of CSR 
programmes towards the development of the Community 
have been provided in Annexure E of the Directors’ Report 
for the financial year 2020-21.

5. Have you taken steps to ensure that this community 
development initiative is successfully adopted by the 
community? Please explain in 50 words, or so.

The Company undertakes CSR activities after assessing 
the needs of the community. Further, all CSR activities are 
rolled out directly to the society. The Company believes 
that they will benefit the society at large.

This helps in increased reach as well as ensuring the 
adoption of initiative by communities. Project teams track 
the reach and take necessary steps to make it successful.

Principle 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner.

Description Response

1. What percentage of customer complaints / consumer 
cases are pending as on the end of financial year.

Nil

2. Does the Company display product information on 
the product label, over and above what is mandated 
as per local laws? Yes / No / N.A. / Remarks

Yes, the company display all the information regarding its 
products, its ingredients etc. as per the applicable laws on 
the company.

3. Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against 
the Company regarding unfair trade practices, 
irresponsible advertising and / or anticompetitive 
behaviour during the last five years and pending as 
on end of financial year? If so, provide details thereof, 
in about 50 words or so.

The company does not indulge in any anti – competitive 
activities. And there are no such complaints pending.

4. Did your company carryout any consumer survey / 
consumer satisfaction trends?

The Company periodically visits its main customers, 
namely, stockists, sub-dealers, consumers, as part of 
the appraisal programme and get the feedback on the 
satisfaction levels on supply, quality and other terms, etc.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Radico Khaitan Limited

Dr. Lalit Khaitan

Place: New Delhi	 Chairman & Managing Director
Date: July 28, 2021	 DIN No - 00238222
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of RADICO KHAITAN LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
statements of Radico Khaitan Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income) for the year ended on that date, 
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of 
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to 
the financial statements including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial 
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at March 31, 2021, the profit and total comprehensive 
income for the year ended on that date, changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI). Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and 
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined 
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to 
be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter Audit Response

Trade Receivables

Receivables (net of provisioning) of 
` 69745.74 lakhs constitute 43% of 
the current assets of the company 
as at March 31, 2021 and are spread 
across geography, covering State 
Corporations, Defence canteens and 
open market customers (including 
exports). The realization is linked with 
actual sales by State Corporations.

Principal Audit Procedures 

•	 Evaluating and testing the controls for managing trade receivables, 
including subsequent collection and provisioning.

•	 Validating the basis of ECL policy as approved by the Board of Directors, in 
the present context based on historical data and recent developments.

•	 Validating the Aging of receivables, review of trend customer wise, reasons 
for long outstanding balances, evaluation of disputes and possibility of 
recovery and existence of the customers.

•	 Obtaining independent customer confirmations during the current COVID 
19 Pandemic was a challenge. Hence greater reliance was placed on 
alternate substantive audit procedures. 

•	 Assessing the appropriateness and completeness of the related disclosure 
in the company’s Financial Statements.

Conclusion 

Our procedures did not identify any material exceptions.
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Inventory 

Inventories (net of provisions) of ` 
48906.57 Lakhs constitute 30% of 
the current assets of the company 
as at March 31, 2021. The Inventory is 
lying at various locations, including at 
3rd party premises. Packing material 
constitutes a major part of inventory 
and has risk of impairment.

Principal Audit Procedures 

•	 Testing the inventory provisioning and challenging the assumptions for 
inventory valuation basis non-moving/slow moving items.

•	 Review the policy of the management for physical verification and the 
documents related to management’s physical count procedure actually 
followed at different locations.

•	 Observed the physical verification process at locations of financial 
significance during year end audit along with sample testing.

•	 Relied on physical verification report by zonal internal auditors.

•	 Identifying obsolete inventory, if any.

•	 Obtain confirmation from Tie up units being inventory at 3rd party locations 
and applying substantive procedure

•	 Assess the appropriateness and completeness of the related disclosure in 
the company’s Financial Statements.

Conclusion 

Our procedures did not identify any material exceptions.

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board 
of Directors of the Company is responsible for assessing 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing 
the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the standalone financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of this standalone 
financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance 
with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Information other than the standalone 
financial statements and auditor’s 
report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis, Board’s Report including annexure to Board’s 
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate 
Governance and Shareholder’s Information,, but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

The other information has not been made available to us 
as at the date of this auditor’s report. We have nothing to 
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and 
Those Charged with Governance for 
the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
the preparation of these standalone financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance, total comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The 
Board of Directors of the company are responsible for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
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•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the standalone financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company 
has adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
standalone financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions 
of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of 
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

(1)	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central  
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of 
the Act, we give in “Annexure 1”, a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 
to the extent applicable.

(2)	 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report 
that:

a.	 We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit;

b.	 In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books;

c.	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including other comprehensive income), 
the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement 
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are 
in agreement with the relevant books of account;

d.	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements read with notes thereto comply with 
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act read with rule 7 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e.	 On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on March 31, 2021, 
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, 
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none of the directors is disqualified as on March 
31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f.	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, we give our 
separate report in “Annexure 2”.

g.	 With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended:

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors 
during the year is in accordance with the provisions 
of section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V.

h.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us:

(i)	 The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position 
in its standalone financial statements – Refer 
Note 39b on Contingent Liabilities to the 
standalone financial statements; 

(ii)	 The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts. 
Hence, the question of any material 
foreseeable losses does not arise;

(iii)	 There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company.

For BGJC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056

Darshan Chhajer

Partner
Date: June 1, 2021	 Membership No. 088308
Place: Gurugram	 UDIN: 21088308AAAABB3547
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s 

Report of even date to the members of Radico Khaitan Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year 

ended March 31, 2021]

(i)	 (a)	� The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including   quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets.  

	 (b)	� The Company has a regular program of physical 
verification of its property, plant and equipment 
under which property, plant and equipment are 
verified in a phased manner over a block of three 
years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature 
of its assets. However, no physical verification of 
its property, plant and equipment was conducted 
during the year.

	 (c)	� The title deeds of immovable properties recorded 
in the books of account are held in the name of 
the Company, except 5 land parcels (1,45,282sq 
mts) valuing `. 3706.55 Lakhs, grouped under 
freehold land, where title is determined based on 
long term possession and revenue records.

(ii)	 The inventory, except goods in transit, has been 
physically verified by the management during the 
year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is 
reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed 
on physical verification carried out during the year.

(iii)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3 (iii)(a), 3 (iii)(b) and 3 (iii)(c) of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company.

(iv)	  The company has not given any loan or provided any 
guarantee or security to parties covered under section 
185 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, according to 
the information and explanation given to us in respect 
of loans, investments, guarantees and securities, the 
Company has complied with the provisions of Section 
186 of the Act.

(v)	 In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits from the public within the 
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules 
framed there under. Further, as informed, no Order has 
been passed by the Company Law Board or National 
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any 
Court or any other Tribunal on the Company in respect 
of the aforesaid deposits.

(vi)	 We have broadly reviewed the books of account 
maintained by the Company in respect of products 
where the maintenance of cost records has been 
specified by the Central Government under sub-section 
(1) of Section 148 of the Act and the rules framed there 
under and we are of the opinion that prima facie, the 
prescribed accounts and records have been made and 
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view to determine 
whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii)	(a)	� The Company is regular in depositing with 
appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory 
dues including provident fund, employees’ 
state insurance, income tax, sales tax, goods 
and services tax, service tax, value added tax, 
customs duty, excise duty, cess and any other 
material statutory dues applicable to it.

	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of provident fund, employees’ state 
insurance, income tax, sales tax, goods and 
services tax, service tax, value added tax, customs 
duty, excise duty, cess and any other material 
statutory dues applicable to it, were outstanding, 
at the year end, for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable.

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanation 
given to us, the dues outstanding with respect 
to, income tax, sales tax, goods and services tax, 
service tax, value added tax, customs duty, excise 
duty on account of any dispute, are as follows:
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Nature of dues Disputed 

Amount (` in 

Lakhs)

Period to 

which the 

amount relates

Forum where dispute 

is pending

Amount paid 

under protest

(` in Lakhs)

UP VAT ACT/ 
KARNATAKA VAT ACT 
/DELHI VAT ACT

Sales Tax/ Entry 
Tax/VAT

       6.86 1999-00 Trade Tax Tribunal, 
Moradabad

2.74

        1.81 1998-99 Allahabad High Court 1.00
       1.21 1999-00 Trade Tax Tribunal, 

Moradabad
0.75

     33.79 2012-13 Hyderabad High Court 16.89
       8.45 2012-13 Hyderabad High Court 2.11
     84.13 2014-15 Karnataka High Court -

Finance Act 1994 Service Tax 49.90 2016-17 &  
2017-18

Assistance 
Commissioner (CGST 
Division)

-

United Provinces 
(Uttar Pradesh ) Excise 
Act, 1910

Excise Duty      102.32 1995 to 2005 Allahabad High Court, 
Lucknow Bench

-

246.17 1995-2005 Allahabad High Court, 
Lucknow Bench

246.17

     22.00 1997-98 Allahabad High Court, 
Lucknow Bench

4.63

 181.25 2016-17 Supreme Court -
The Custom Act 1962 Custom Duty      10.73 2015 Commissioner of 

Customs (Appeals)

(viii)	In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to 
financial institutions, banks, governments. There are 
no debenture holders. 

(ix)	 The Company has not raised the money by way of 
public issue offer/ further public offer. Money raised 
by way of term loans during the year were utilized for 
the purposes for which they were raised.

(x)	 To the best of our knowledge and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by 
the Company and no material fraud on the Company 
by its officers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the year. 

(xi)	 In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, 
managerial remuneration has been paid and provided 
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated 
by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V 
to the Act. 

(xii)	In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)	In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us the Company is in compliance 
with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

where applicable, for all transactions with the related 
parties and the details of the related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the Financial Statements, as 
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)	The Company has not made any preferential allotment 
or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures during the year under review. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(xv)	In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, during 
the year the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected 
with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)	According to the information and explanation given to 
us, the Company is not required to be registered under 
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

For BGJC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No.: 003304N/N500056

Darshan Chhajer

Partner
Date:  July 1, 2021	 Membership Number: 088308
Place: Gurugram	 UDIN: 21088308AAAABB3547
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
[Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s 

Report of even date to the members of Radico Khaitan Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year 

ended March 31, 2021]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Radico Khaitan Limited (“the Company”) as of 
March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal 
Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued 
by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 

the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is 
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;(2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s Registration No.: 003304N/N500056

Darshan Chhajer
Partner

Place: Gurugram	 Membership Number: 088308
Date: May 28, 2020	 UDIN: 21088308AAAABB3547
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Standalone Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Note 

No

As at  

March 31, 2021

As at  

March 31, 2020

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2  77,838.87  72,953.60 
Capital work-in-progress  3,778.49  1,808.29 
Intangible assets 2  1,151.13  1,388.95 
Financial assets  

Investment in a joint venture 3  15,538.53  15,538.53 
Investment in others 4  0.60  0.60 
Loans 5  973.33  1,658.26 
Others 6  66.61  179.95 

Other non-current assets 7  6,716.21  10,305.95 
Total non-current assets  106,063.77  103,834.13 
Current assets 
Inventories 8  48,906.57  37,417.54 
Financial assets

Trade receivables 9  69,745.74  82,305.44 
Cash and cash equivalents 10  12,110.36  1,010.43 
Bank balances other than above 11  887.71  813.55 
Loans 12  4,573.15  4,073.86 
Others 13  2,896.58  2,050.18 

Current tax assets (Net) 14  97.47  750.18 
Other current assets 15  23,253.93  13,783.92 
Total current assets  162,471.51  142,205.10 
Total assets 268,535.28 246,039.23 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16  2,671.37  2,670.69 
Other Equity 17  173,719.31  149,382.18 

 176,390.68  152,052.87 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
     Borrowings 18  26.91  153.31 
     Others 19  1,143.30  514.96 
Provisions 20  1,028.74  1,110.35 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 21  8,024.78  7,846.60 
Other non current liabilities 22  16.58  16.58 
Total non-current liabilities  10,240.31  9,641.80 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
     Borrowings 23  27,182.44  39,736.97 
     Trade payables
Outstanding dues of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 24  3,073.83  2,786.51 
Other Enterprises 24  23,116.94  23,637.27 
     Others 25  3,331.96  3,186.65 
Provisions 26  10,037.89  5,277.61 
Other current liabilities 27  15,161.23  9,719.55 
Total current liabilities  81,904.29  84,344.56 
Total Equity & Liabilities  268,535.28  246,039.23 
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Other Notes to Accounts 2-61

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For BGJC & Associates LLP Dilip K. Banthiya Dr. Lalit Khaitan
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Chairman & Managing Director
Firm Registration No. 003304N
Darshan Chhajer Dinesh Kumar Gupta Abhishek Khaitan
Partner Vice President - Legal & Managing Director
Membership No.: 088308 Company Secretary
Place  : Gurugram

Place: New Delhi 
Date: June 01, 2021

Alok Agarwal Director
Sr Vice President  
(Finance & Accounts)
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended March 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Note 

No

For the year  ended 

March 31, 2021

For the year ended  

March 31, 2020

INCOME

Revenue from operations 28  1,036,736.12  941,789.14 

Other income 29  2,007.37  918.67 

Total income  1,038,743.49  942,707.81 

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 30  123,883.30  127,091.18 

Excise duty  794,922.31  699,085.12 

Purchase of stock-in-trade 31  177.00  358.90 

Change in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-
progress

32  (3,818.04)  (2,630.99)

Employee benefits expense 33  17,633.56  18,608.08 

Finance costs 34  2,201.65  3,161.46 

Depreciation and amortization expense 35  5,389.91  5,252.73 

Other expenses 36  63,043.64  62,096.04 

Total Expenses  1,003,433.33  913,022.52 

Profit for the year before exceptional items & tax   35,310.16  29,685.29 

Exceptional items 37  -    2,416.62 

Profit for the year before tax   35,310.16  27,268.67 

Less: Tax expense

Current tax  8,435.85  7,095.03 

For earlier years  (389.24)  -   

Deferred tax  207.19  (2,576.43)

Profit for the year from continuing operations  27,056.36  22,750.07 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) 38 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (115.25)  (361.38)

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  29.01  90.95 

Total other comprehensive income/(loss)  (86.24)  (270.43)

Total comprehensive income for the year  (Comprising profit and 

other comprehensive income for the year)

 26,970.12  22,479.64 

Earning per share for Continuing Operations

Basic earnings per share in INR (face value of ` 2/- each) 42  20.26  17.05 

Diluted earnings per share in INR (face value of ` 2/- each) 42  20.25  17.04 

Significant Accounting Policies 1

Other Notes to Accounts 2-61

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For BGJC & Associates LLP Dilip K. Banthiya Dr. Lalit Khaitan
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Chairman & Managing Director
Firm Registration No. 003304N
Darshan Chhajer Dinesh Kumar Gupta Abhishek Khaitan
Partner Vice President - Legal & Managing Director
Membership No.: 088308 Company Secretary
Place  : Gurugram

Place: New Delhi 
Date: June 01, 2021

Alok Agarwal Director
Sr Vice President  
(Finance & Accounts)
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Standalone Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended March 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars

For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

For the year ended  

March 31, 2020

 At the beginning of the year  2,670.69  2,668.19 
 Changes in Equity Share capital during the year  0.68  2.50 
 At the end of the year  2,671.37  2,670.69 

B. Other Equity 

Particulars

 Securities 

Premium 

Reserve  

 General 

Reserves   

 Employee 

Stock 

Options 

outstanding 

account 

 Retained 

Earnings   Total 

Balance as at March 31, 2019  37,930.08  40,000.00  39.49  50,856.53  128,826.10 

Profit/ (Loss) for the year  (1)  -    -    -    22,750.07  -   

Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) (2)  -    -    -    (270.43)  -   

Total Comprehensive Income/ (loss)  (1+2)  -    -    -    22,479.64  22,479.64 

Dividends including tax thereon (Refer note 41)  -    -    -    (1,929.98)  (1,929.98)

Lease assets - Ind As 116 adjustment  (130.58)  (130.58)

Share based payments  151.50  (14.50)  137.00 

Balance as at March 31, 2020  38,081.58 40,000.00  24.99  71,275.61  149,382.18 

Profit/ (Loss) for the year  (1)  -    -    -    27,056.36  -   

Other Comprehensive Income / (loss) (2)  -    -    -    (86.24)  -   

Total Comprehensive Income/ (loss)  (1+2)  -    -    -    26,970.12  26,970.12 

Dividends (Refer note 41)  -    -    -    (2,670.85)  (2,670.85)

Share based payments  42.55  (4.69)  -    37.86 

Balance as at March 31, 2021  38,124.13 40,000.00  20.30  95,574.88  173,719.31 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For BGJC & Associates LLP Dilip K. Banthiya Dr. Lalit Khaitan
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Chairman & Managing Director
Firm Registration No. 003304N
Darshan Chhajer Dinesh Kumar Gupta Abhishek Khaitan
Partner Vice President - Legal & Managing Director
Membership No.: 088308 Company Secretary
Place  : Gurugram

Place: New Delhi 
Date: June 01, 2021

Alok Agarwal Director
Sr Vice President  
(Finance & Accounts)
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Standalone Statement  of Cash Flows 
for the year ended March 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year  ended 

March 31, 2021

For the year ended  

March 31, 2020

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit for the year before tax  35,310.16  27,268.67 

Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortization expense  5,389.91  5,252.73 

Profit on sale of fixed assets  (2.41)  (6.10)

Loss on sale / write off assets  61.07  77.58 

Finance costs  2,201.65  3,161.46 

Interest income  (653.56)  (498.33)

Provision for Expected credit loss and Bad Debt  140.03  2,092.75 

Provision for Non-moving/ obsolete Inventory  155.26  875.00 

Employees stock option scheme  1.79  8.59 

Dividend income on investments  (811.30)  (359.57)

Operating profit before working capital changes  41,792.60  37,872.78 

Changes in working capital

Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories  (11,644.29)  (2,321.25)

Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables  12,419.68  (20,223.30)

Decrease/(Increase) in current financial assets (loans)  (499.29)  596.09 

Decrease/(Increase) in current financial assets (Others)  (912.39)  105.38 

Decrease/(Increase) in other current assets  (9,470.01)  (239.92)

Decrease/(Increase) in non-current financial assets (loans)  684.93  (855.18)

Decrease/(Increase) in non-current financial assets (Others)  0.90  11.79 

Decrease/(Increase) in other non-current assets  2,601.80  1,469.36 

Increase/(Decrease) in non-current financial liabilities (others)  (80.42)  105.68 

Increase/(Decrease) in long term provisions  (81.61)  73.66 

Increase/(Decrease) in short term provisions  4,645.03  (1,918.97)

Increase/(Decrease) in current Trade Payables  (233.01)  1,940.21 

Increase/(Decrease) in current financial liabilities (others)  431.49  584.11 

Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities  5,441.68  (2,693.62)

Cash generated from operating activities before taxes  45,097.09  14,506.82 

Net income tax paid  (7,393.90)  (8,538.08)

Net Cash flow from operating activities (A)  37,703.19  5,968.74 

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Additions in tangible assets  (8,906.76)  (7,024.47)

Additions in intangible assets  -    (22.67)

Additions in CWIP  (1,970.20)  (208.40)

Capital Advances  987.94  (750.17)

Sale of fixed assets  (1.65)  74.99 

Interest received  721.18  555.59 

Dividend received  811.30  559.57 

Fixed deposits matured during the year  36.00  84.11 

Net Cash flow from Investing activities (B)  (8,322.19)  (6,731.45)
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Particulars

For the year  ended 

March 31, 2021

For the year ended  

March 31, 2020

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Increase/(Decrease) in share capital (including securities premium)  36.74  130.90 

Leased Payment  (692.52)  (752.79)

Net Loans (repaid) / taken  (12,691.58)  6,325.23 

Dividend paid including Dividend Distribution Tax  (2,670.85)  (1,929.98)

Interest paid  (2,262.86)  (2,825.62)

Net Cash flow from financing activities (C)  (18,281.07)  947.74 

Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  11,099.93  185.03 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  1,010.43  825.40 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  12,110.36  1,010.43 

Note -   		

The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of 
Cash Flows’.			 

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For BGJC & Associates LLP Dilip K. Banthiya Dr. Lalit Khaitan
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Chairman & Managing Director
Firm Registration No. 003304N
Darshan Chhajer Dinesh Kumar Gupta Abhishek Khaitan
Partner Vice President - Legal & Managing Director
Membership No.: 088308 Company Secretary
Place  : Gurugram

Place: New Delhi 
Date: June 01, 2021

Alok Agarwal Director
Sr Vice President  
(Finance & Accounts)
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Background

Radico Khaitan Limited (the Company) is a company 
limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India. The 
Company is engaged in the manufacturing and trading of 
Alcoholic products such as Indian Made Foreign Liquor 
(IMFL), Alcohol, Country Liquor etc. The Company has its 
presence in India as well as various other global markets.

Significant Accounting Policies	

1.01	 Basis of preparation

	 The standalone financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

	 The entity has prepared its financial statements 
in accordance with accounting standards notified 
under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, 
read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). These financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been 
prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

	 The standalone financial statements have been 
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the 
following assets and liabilities which have been 
measured at fair value:

- 	 Derivative financial instruments,

- 	 Defined benefit plans

- 	 Share Based Payments

- 	 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured 
at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding 
financial instruments). 

1.02	Current versus non-current classification

	 The company presents assets and liabilities in the 
Balance Sheet based on current / non-current 
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- 	 expected to be realised or intended to be sold or 
consumed in normal operating cycle,

- 	 held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- 	 expected to be realised within twelve months 
after the reporting period, or

- 	 cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from 
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the  reporting period. 

	 All other assets are classified as non-current. 

	 A liability is current when:

- 	 it is expected to be settled in normal operating 
cycle,

- 	 it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- 	 it is due to be settled within twelve months after 
the reporting period, or 

- 	 there is no unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the liability for atleast twelve 
months after the reporting period.

	 All other liabilities classified as non-current.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities respectively.

	 The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition 
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
and cash equivalents. The entity has assumed twelve 
months as its operating cycle.

1.03	Fair value measurement

	 The entity measures financial instruments, such as, 
derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell 
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- 	 in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- 	 in the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability

	 The principal or the most advantageous market must 
be accessible by the company.

	 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured 
using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best interest.

	 A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset 
takes into account a market participant’s ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its 
highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its highest and 
best use.

	 The company uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data is available to measure fair value, 
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, 
based on the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement as a whole:

- 	 Level 1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

- 	 Level 2-Valuation techniques for which the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable,

- 	 Level 3-Valuation techniques for which the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable. 

	 For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the 
financial statements on a recurring basis, the company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between 
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of 
each reporting period.

	 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company 
has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the 
asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy 
as explained above. 

1.04	Foreign Currency Transactions

	 The standalone financial statements are presented in 
INR, which is also its functional currency.

	 Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for at 
the exchange rate prevailing on the day of transaction. 
The outstanding liabilities/ receivables are translated 
at the year end rates.

	 Exchange differences arising on settlement or 
translation of monetary items are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency, 
are valued at the exchange rate prevailing on the date 
of transaction. Any gain or losses arising on translation 
or settlement are recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss as per the requirements of Ind AS 21.

1.05	Revenue recognition

	 The company revenue is derived from single 
performance obligation under arrangements in which 
the transfer of control of product and the fulfillment 
of companies performance obligation occur at the  
same time. 

	 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that the economic benefits will flow to the company 

and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless 
of when the payment is being made. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable (net of returns and allowances, 
trade discounts and volume rebates), taking into 
account contractually defined terms of payment and 
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the 
government with an exception to excise duty. The 
company has concluded that it is the principal in all 
of its revenue arrangements with tie up units since 
the company is the primary obligor in all the revenue 
arrangements, has pricing latitude and is also exposed 
to inventory and credit risks. In arrangements with tie 
up units, revenue is recognised at gross value with 
corresponding cost being recognised under cost of 
production.

	 However, in case of revenue arrangements with royalty 
units, the company has concluded that it is acting as 
an agent in all such revenue arrangements since the 
company is not the primary obligor in all such revenue 
arrangements, has no pricing latitude and is not 
exposed to inventory and credit risks. Company earns 
fixed royalty for sales made of its products which is 
recognised as revenue.

	 The company has assumed that recovery of excise 
duty flows to the entity on its own and liability for 
excise duty forms part of the cost of production, 
irrespective of whether the goods are sold or not. 
Revenue therefore includes excise duty.

	 Interest income

	 For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, 
interest income is recorded using the effective interest 
rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the 
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the 
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter 
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount 
of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a 
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest 
rate, the company estimates the expected cash flows 
by considering all the contractual terms of the financial 
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call 
and similar options) but does not consider the expected 
credit losses. Interest income is included in finance 
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Royalty Income

	 Royalties are recognised on an accrual basis in 
accordance with the substance of the relevant 
agreement.

	 Export Incentives 

	 Income from export incentives such as duty drawback 
etc. are recognised on accrual basis.
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for the year ended March 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

	 Dividend Income

	 Dividend is recognised when the right to receive 
the payment is established, which is generally when 
shareholders approve the dividend.

1.06	Excise Duty

	 In respect of stocks covered by Central Excise, excise 
duty is provided on closing stocks and also considered 
for valuation. In respect of country liquor and IMFL 
stocks, applicable State excise duty/ export duty 
is provided on the basis of state-wise dispatches 
identified. In the case of Rectified Spirit/ ENA, it is 
not ascertainable as to how much would be converted 
finally into country liquor or IMFL or sold as such and 
also to which particular state or exported outside 
India. Duty payable in such cases is not determinable 
(as it varies depending on the places and the form in 
which these are dispatched). Hence, the excise duty 
on such stocks lying in factory is accounted for on 
clearances of such goods. The method of accounting 
followed by the company has no impact on the 
financial statements of the year. 

1.07	Government grants

	 Government grants are recognised at fair value where 
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and all attached conditions are complied 
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is 
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the 
periods that the related costs, for which it is intended 
to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates 
to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts 
over the expected useful life of the related asset.

	 When the company receives grants of non-monetary 
assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair 
value amounts and released to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of 
consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset i.e. 
by equal annual installments. When loans or similar 
assistance are provided by Governments or related 
institutions, with an interest rate lower than the current 
applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable 
interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan 
or assistance is initially recognised and measured 
at fair value and the government grant is measured 
as the difference between the initial carrying value 
of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is 
subsequently measured as per the accounting policy 
applicable to financial instruments.

1.08	Taxes

	 Current Income Tax

	 Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured 
at the amount expected to be recovered from or 

paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax 
laws used to compute the amount are those that are 
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting 
date in the countries where the entity operates and 
generates taxable income.

	 Current income tax relating to items recognised 
outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit 
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in 
equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation 
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly 
in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions 
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations 
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to 
interpretation and establishes provisions where 
appropriate.

	 Deferred Tax

	 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on 
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 
reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

	 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences, except:

	 When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial 
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, 
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 
accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

	 In respect of taxable temporary differences associated 
with interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the 
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled 
and it is probable that the temporary differences will 
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused 
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax 
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profit will be available against which 
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses 
can be utilised, except:

- 	 When the deferred tax asset relating to the 
deductible temporary difference arises from 
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination 
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither 
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- 	 In respect of deductible temporary differences 
associated with interests in joint ventures, 
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the 
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extent that it is probable that the temporary 
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future 
and taxable profit will be available against which 
the temporary differences can be utilised

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed 
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit 
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax 
assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognised to the extent that it has become probable 
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the 
tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when 
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based 
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

	 Deferred tax on Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit 
is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent 
there is reasonable certainty that the Company will 
pay normal income-tax during the specified period. 
The Company reviews the same at each balance 
sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of 
deferred tax relating to MAT credit entitlement to the 
extent there is no longer reasonable certainty that 
the Company will pay normal income-tax during the 
specified period.

	 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside 
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss 
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). 
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to 
the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in 
equity.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are 
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the 
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and 
the same taxation authority.

1.09	Property, plant and equipment

	 Property, plant and equipment have been measured 
at fair value at the date of transition to Ind AS. The 
entity recognised the fair value as deemed cost at the 
transition date, viz., April 01, 2015.

	 Assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

	 Capital work in progress is stated at cost, less 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost 

includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and 
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term 
construction projects if the recognition criteria are 
met.

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s 
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow 
to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. The carrying amount of any component 
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised 
when replaced. When significant parts of plant and 
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, 
the entity depreciates them separately based on 
their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major 
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a 
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All 
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. (Refer to 
note 1.23 regarding significant accounting judgements, 
estimates and assumptions).

	 Depreciation

	 Cost of leasehold land and leasehold improvements 
are amortised over the period of lease.

	 Depreciation is provided as per Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013, on straight line method with 
reference to the useful life of the assets specified 
therein.

	 On additions costing less than ` 5000, depreciation is 
provided at 100% in the year of addition.

	 The determination of the useful economic life and 
residual values of property, plant and equipment 
is subject to management estimation. The residual 
values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of 
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate.

1.10	 Intangible assets

	 On transition to Ind AS, the entity has elected to 
continue with the carrying value of all of intangible 
assets (except goodwill which was impaired) and use 
that carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible 
assets.

	 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured 
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible 
assets acquired in a business combination is their 
fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial 
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less 
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
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impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, 
excluding capitalised development costs, are not 
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in 
profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is 
incurred.

	 Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over 
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible 
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and 
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with 
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end 
of each reporting period. Changes in the expected 
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption 
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset 
are considered to modify the amortisation period or 
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes 
in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on 
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure 
forms part of carrying value of another asset.

	 Amortization

	 Based on the anticipated future economic benefits, 
the life of Brands & Trade Marks are amortised over 
twenty years on straight line method.

	 Software are amortised over a period of three years on 
straight line method.

1.11	 Borrowing costs

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost 
of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed 
in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs 
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs 
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing 
costs also include exchange differences to the extent 
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

1.12	 Segment reporting

	 Operating segments are defined as components of 
an enterprise for which discrete financial information 
is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief 
operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate 
resources and assessing performance. Operating 
segments are reported in a manner consistent with 
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision maker.

1.13	 Inventories

	 Finished goods and work-in-progress are valued at 
lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes 
cost of conversion and other expenses incurred in 

bringing the goods to their location and condition. 
Raw materials, packing materials, stores and spares 
are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost 
is ascertained on “moving weighted average” basis for 
all inventories.

	 “Physical verification of all major Inventory items is 
carried out atleast once a year. The variations is any 
are duly accounted for after thorough verification. At 
the year end the stock is rolled over and verified.

	 Borrowing cost on Malt under maturation is not being 
capitalised to cost of inventory. This is in accordance 
with Ind AS 23, as they are manufactured of large 
quantity on the repetitive basis.”

1.14	 Leases

	 The company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified 
retrospective approach and therefore the comparative 
information has not been restated and continues to be 
reported under Ind AS 17.

	 Entity as a lessee

	 The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a 
lease liability at the lease commencement date. The 
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which 
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before 
the commencement date, plus any initial direct 
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle 
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the 
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less 
any lease incentives received.

	 The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated 
using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the 
useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the 
lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use 
assets are determined on the same basis as those of 
property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use 
asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if 
any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the 
lease liability.

	 The lease liability is initially measured at the present 
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest 
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be 
readily determined, company’s incremental borrowing 
rate.Generally, the company uses its incremental 
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

	 Lease payments included in the measurement of the 
lease liability comprise the following:

–	 Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed 
payments;
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– 	 Variable lease payments that depend on an index 
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate 
as at the commencement date;

– 	 Amounts expected to be payable under a residual 
value guarantee; and

– 	 The exercise price under a purchase option that 
the company is reasonably certain to exercise, 
lease payments in an optional renewal period if 
the company is reasonably certain to exercise 
an extension option, and penalties for early 
termination of a lease unless the company is 
reasonably certain not to terminate early.

	 The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method. It is remeasured when 
there is a change in future lease payments arising 
from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change 
in the company’s estimate of the amount expected 
to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if 
company changes its assessment of whether it will 
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

	 When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a 
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in 
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use 
asset has been reduced to zero.

	 Short-term leases

	 The company has elected not to recognise right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases 
that have a lease term of 12 months. The company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these 
leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

	U nder Ind AS 17

	 A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance 
lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership to the company is classified as a finance 
lease.

	 Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement 
of the lease at the inception date fair value of the 
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of 
the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are 
apportioned between finance charges and reduction 
of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate 
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Finance charges are recognised in finance costs 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless they are 
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case 
they are capitalized in accordance with the entity’s 
general policy on the borrowing costs (See note 1.11). 

Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the 
periods in which they are incurred.

	 Leased assets are depreciated over the useful life of 
the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty 
that the company will obtain ownership by the end of 
the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the lower 
of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease 
term.

	 As on transition date, the entity has newly classified a 
land lease as a finance lease and has recognised such 
asset and liability at fair value with differential being 
recognised in retained earnings.

	 Operating lease rentals are charged off to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.15	 Impairment of non-financial assets

	 At each reporting date, the company reviews the 
carrying amount of it assets to determine whether 
there are any indication that those assets have 
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication 
exists, recoverable amount of the assets is estimated 
in order to determine the extent of impairment loss.

	 An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less 
costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable 
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless 
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets or 
entity’s of assets. When the carrying amount of an 
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its 
recoverable amount.

	 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less 
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken 
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, 
an appropriate valuation model is used. These 
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, 
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or 
other available fair value indicators.

1.16	�P rovisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 

Assets

	P rovisions

	 Provisions are recognized when the company has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to 
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settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation. When the 
company expects some or all of a provision to be 
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a 
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is 
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is 
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of 
any reimbursement.

	 If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to 
the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in 
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised 
as a finance cost.

	 Contingent liability and Contingent Assets

	 Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are 
disclosed where possibility of any outflow in settlement 
is remote.

	 Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed 
where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

1.17	 Employee benefits

	 Short-term obligations 

	 Liabilities for salaries and wages, including non-
monetary benefits, that are expected to be settled 
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period 
in which the employees render the related service are 
recognized up to the end of the reporting period and 
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 
on settlement of such liabilities. The liabilities are 
presented as current employee benefit obligations in 
the Balance Sheet. 

	 Other long-term employee benefit obligations 

	 The liabilities for earned and sick leave are not 
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after 
the end of the period in which the employees render 
the related service. They are therefore measured at the 
present value of expected future payments to be made 
in respect of services provided by employees up to the 
end of the reporting period using the projected unit 
credit method. The benefits are discounted using the 
market yields at the end of the reporting period that 
have terms approximating to the terms of the related 
obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

	 The obligations are presented as current liabilities in 
the Balance Sheet since the company does not have an 
unconditional right to defer the settlement for atleast 
twelve months after the reporting period, regardless 
of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

	 Post-employment obligations 

	 The Company operates the following post-employment 
schemes: 

	G ratuity obligations 

	 The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity 
plan for employees. The Company has obtained 
group gratuity scheme policies from Life Insurance 
Corporation of India to cover the gratuity liability of 
these employees. The difference in the present value 
of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value 
of plan assets at the end of the reporting period is 
recognized as a liability or asset, as the case may be, 
in the Balance Sheet. The defined benefit obligation is 
calculated annually on the basis of actuarial valuation 
using the projected unit credit method. 

	 The net interest cost is calculated by applying the 
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost 
is included in the employee benefit expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

	 Re-measurement gains and losses arising from 
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognized in the period in which 
they occur, directly in OCI. 

	 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation resulting from plan amendments or 
curtailments are recognized immediately in statement 
of profit or loss as past service cost. 

	P rovident Fund Obligation

	 The Company makes contribution to the recognised 
provident fund - “ The Rampur Distillery & Chemical 
Company Limited Employee Provident Fund Trust”, 
which is a defined benefit plan to the extent that 
the Company has an obligation to make good 
the shortfall, if any, between the return from the 
investments of the trust and the notified interest rate. 
The Company’s obligation in this regard is determined 
by an independent actuary and provided for if the 
circumstances indicate that the Trust may not be able 
to generate adequate returns to cover the interest 
rates notified by the Government.

	 Company’s contribution to the provident fund is 
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss”

1.18	 Share-based payments 

	 Employees of the Company receive remuneration 
in the form of share-based payments, whereby 
employees render services as consideration for equity 
instruments (equity-settled transactions). The cost 
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of equity-settled transactions is determined by the 
fair value at the date when the grant is made using 
an appropriate valuation model. The fair value of the 
options granted is recognized as an employee benefits 
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. Total 
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to 
the fair value of the option granted: 

- 	 including any market performance conditions 
(e.g., the Company’s share price), 

- 	 excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (e.g., 
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining 
and employee of the entity over a specified time 
period), and 

- 	 including the impact of any non-vesting 
conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees 
to save or holding shares for a specific period of 
time). 

	 The total expense is recognized over the vesting 
period, which is the period over which all of the 
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the 
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of 
the number of options that are expected to vest based 
on the non-market vesting and service conditions. 
It recognizes the impact of the revision to original 
estimates, if any, in statement of profit or loss, with a 
corresponding adjustment to equity.

1.19	 Earnings Per Share

	 Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the 
net profit for the period attributable to the equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. The weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period and for all 
periods presented is adjusted for events, such as 
bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential 
equity shares that have changed the number of equity 
shares outstanding, without a corresponding change 
in resources.

	 Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing 
the net profit for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of 
shares outstanding during the period adjusted for the 
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1.20	Financial instruments

	 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
financial assets and financial liabilities, other than 
those designated as fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL), are added to or deducted from the fair 
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as 
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial 
assets or financial liabilities recognised at FVTPL are 
recognized immediately in Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

	 A. 	F inancial Assets

	 Financial assets are recognised when the 
company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument

		  Subsequent measurement

	 Financial assets are subsequently classified as 
measured at:

	 - 	 amortised cost

	 - 	� fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVTOCI)

	 - 	 fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

		  Trade Receivables and Loans:

	 Trade receivables and Loans are initially 
recognised at fair value. Subsequently these 
assets are held at amortised cost, using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any 
expected credit losses (ECL). The EIR is the rate 
that discounts estimated future cash income 
through the expected life of financial instrument.

		F  inancial assets measured at amortised cost:

	 A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if 
both the following conditions are met:

	 a).	� The asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets for 
collecting contractual cash flows, and

	 b).	� Contractual terms of the instruments give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on 
the principal amount outstanding.

		�  After initial measurement, such financial assets 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. 
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts (including all fees and points 
paid or received that form an integral part of the 
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EIR, transaction costs and other premiums or 
discounts) through the expected life of the debt 
instrument or where appropriate, a shorter period, 
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

	 The EIR amortisation is included in other income 
in the statement of profit and loss. The losses 
arising from impairment are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. This category 
generally applies to trade and other receivables, 
loans, etc.

	 Measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income:  

	 Financial assets that are held within a business 
model whose objective is achieved by both, 
selling financial assets and collecting contractual 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest, are subsequently measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income. Fair 
value movements are recognized in the other 
comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income 
measured using the EIR method and impairment 
losses, if any are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is 
reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Measured at fair value through Profit or Loss: 

	 A financial asset not classified as either amortised 
cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such 
financial assets are measured at fair value with 
all changes in fair value, including interest income 
and dividend income if any, recognised as ‘other 
income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		  Equity investments

	 All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are 
measured at fair value. Equity instruments which 
are held for trading and contingent consideration 
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination 
to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as FVTPL. 
For all other equity instruments, the company may 
make an irrevocable election to present in other 
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the 
fair value. The entity makes such election on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification 
is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

	 Equity instruments included within the FVTPL 
category are measured at fair value with all 
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

		  Derecognition

	 The Company derecognizes a financial asset 
when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the financial asset expire or the same are 
transferred.

	 Impairment of financial assets

	 Expected credit losses (ECL) are recognized 
for all financial assets subsequent to initial 
recognition other than financials assets in FVTPL 
category, as per policy approved by the Board of 
Directors.

	 For financial assets, as per Ind AS 109, the 
Company recognises 12 months expected credit 
losses for all originated or acquired financial 
assets if at the reporting date. The credit risk of 
the financial asset has not increased significantly 
since its initial recognition.

	 Expected credit losses are measured as lifetime 
expected credit losses if the credit risk on 
financial asset increases significantly since its 
initial recognition.

	 The impairment losses and reversals are 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 B. 	F inancial liabilities 

	 Financial liabilities are recognised when the 
company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument

		  Subsequent measurement

	 -	� Financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the EIR 
method.

	 - 	� Financial liabilities carried at fair value 
through profit or loss are measured at fair 
value with all changes in fair value recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		  Trade and other payables

	 In case of trade and other payables, they are 
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently, 
these liabilities are held at amortised cost, using 
the effective interest rate method.

	 Trade and other payables represent liabilities for 
goods and services provided to the Company 
prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. 
The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid 
as per credit period. Trade and other payables are 
presented as current liabilities unless payment is 
not due within 12 months after the reporting period.
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		  Derecognition

	 A financial liability is de-recognised when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires.

		  Reclassification of financial assets

	 No reclassification is made for financial assets 
which are equity instruments and financial 
liabilities. For financial assets which are debt 
instruments, a reclassification is made only if there 
is a change in the business model for managing 
those assets. Changes to the business model are 
expected to be infrequent. The company’s senior 
management determines change in the business 
model as a result of external or internal changes 
which are significant to the entity’s operations. 
Such changes are evident to external parties. A 
change in the business model occurs when the 
company either begins or ceases to perform an 
activity that is significant to its operations. If the 
company reclassifies financial assets, it applies 
the reclassification prospectively from the 
reclassification date which is the first day of the 
immediately next reporting period following the 
change in business model. The entity does not 
restate any previously recognised gains, losses 
(including impairment gains or losses).

	 C. 	 Offsetting of financial instruments

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 
and the net amount is reported in the standalone 
Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable 
legal right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously, includes balances written off 
against provisions. 

1.21	 Derivative financial instruments

	 The entity uses derivative financial instruments, such 
as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps 
to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest 
rate risks. Such derivative financial instruments 
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on 
which a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives 
are carried as financial assets when the fair value is 
positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value 
is negative.

1.22	Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet 
comprise balance at banks and cash on hand and 
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three 
months or less, highly liquid investments that are 

readily convertible which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value.

1.23	�Significant accounting judgements, estimates and 

assumptions

	 The preparation of the standalone financial statements 
requires management to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, contingent 
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. 
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates, 
in the COVID19 pandemic environment of lockdown, 
could result in out comes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or 
liabilities affected in future periods. These have been 
assessed to the best of understanding but the degree 
of uncertainty has increased.

	 Judgements

	 In the process of applying the accounting policies, 
management has made the following judgements, 
which have most significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the separate financial statements:

	 a)	 Arrangement containing lease

	 “Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease 
term as the non-cancellable period of a lease 
adjusted with any option to extend or terminate 
the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably 
certain. The Company makes an assessment on 
the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis 
and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably 
certain that any options to extend or terminate 
the contract will be exercised. In evaluating 
the lease term, the Company considers factors 
such as any significant leasehold improvements 
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to 
the termination of the lease and the importance of 
the underlying asset to Radico’s operations taking 
into account the location of the underlying asset 
and the availability of suitable alternatives. The 
lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure 
that the lease term reflects the current economic 
circumstances. After considering current and 
future economic conditions, the Company has 
concluded that no changes are required to lease 
period relating to the existinglease contracts.

	 b)	 Revenue recognition

	 The entity assesses its revenue arrangements 
against specific criteria, i.e. whether it has 
exposure to the significant risks and rewards 
associated with the sale of goods or the rendering 
of services, in order to determine if it is acting as a 
principal or as an agent. The entity has generally 
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concluded that it is acting as a principal in all its 
revenue arrangements.

	 When deciding the most appropriate basis for 
presenting revenue or costs of revenue, both 
the legal form and substance of the agreement 
between the entity and its business partners are 
reviewed to determine each party’s respective 
role in the transaction. 

	 Where the entity’s role in a transaction is that of a 
principal, revenue is recognised on a gross basis. 
This requires revenue to comprise the gross value 
of the transaction billed to the customer, net off 
sales tax/VAT/GST, trade discounts and rebates 
but inclusive of excise duty with any related 
expenditure charged as an operating cost.

		  Estimates and assumptions

	 The key assumptions concerning the future and 
other key sources of estimation and uncertainty 
at the reporting date, that have a significant 
risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next financial year, are described below. 
The entity based its assumptions and estimates 
on parameters available when the financial 
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances 
and assumptions about future developments, 
however, may change due to market changes or 
circumstances arising that are beyond the control 
of the entity, especially in the current COVID19 
Pandemic environment. Management has made 
the estimates and assumptions considering the 
short to medium term impact, to the best of 
understanding. Such changes are reflected in the 
assumptions when they occur.

	 a)	 Impairment reviews

	 At each reporting date, the entity reviews the 
carrying amount of its non-financial assets to 
determine whether there are any indication that 
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If 
any such indication exists, recoverable amount of 
the assets is estimated in order to determine the 
extent of impairment loss.

	 Impairment reviews in respect of the relevant 
CGUs are performed at least annually or more 
regularly if events indicate that this is necessary.

	 Impairment reviews are based on discounted 
future cash flows. The future cash flows which 
are based on business forecasts, the long-term 
growth rates and the pre-tax discount rates, that 
reflects the current market assessment of the time 

value of money and the risk specific to the asset 
or CGU, used are dependent on management 
estimates and judgements. Future events could 
cause the assumptions used in these impairment 
reviews to change.

	 There is no significant impact due to the COVID 
19 pandemic and lockdown as assessed by the 
management.

	 b)	� Allowance for uncollectible account receivables 

and advances

	 Trade receivables and certain financial assets 
do not carry any interest unlike other interest 
bearing financials assets viz intercorporate 
deposits. Such financial assets are stated at 
their carrying value as reduced by impairment 
losses determined in accordance with expected 
credit loss. Allowance as per expected credit loss 
model is based on simplified approach which is 
based on historically observed default rates and 
changed as per forward-looking estimates. In 
case of trade receivables entity uses a provision 
matrix to determine impairment loss allowance 
on portfolio of its trade receivables which is also 
based on its historically observed default rates 
over the expected life of the trade receivables and 
is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. The 
actual loss could differ from the estimate made 
by the management, especially in the current 
environment of COVID19 Pandemic.

	 c)	 Taxes

	 The entity is subject to income tax laws as 
applicable in India. Significant judgement is 
required in determining the provision for taxes as 
the tax treatment is often by its nature complex, 
and cannot be finally determined until a formal 
resolution has been reached with the relevant 
tax authority which may take several years to 
conclude. Amounts provided are accrued based 
on management’s interpretation of country 
specific tax laws and the likelihood of settlement. 
The entity recognises liabilities for anticipated tax 
issues based on estimates of whether additional 
taxes will be due. Actual liabilities could differ 
from the amount provided which could have a 
consequent adverse impact on the results and 
net position of the entity.

	 d)	 Pension and post-retirement benefits

	 The cost of defined benefit plans viz. gratuity, 
provident fund, leave encashment, etc. are 
determined using actuarial assumptions. An 
actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions that may differ from actual 
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developments in the future. These include 
the determination of the discount rate, future 
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the 
complexities involved in the valuation and its 
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is 
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. 
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting 
date. 

	 The parameter most subject to change is the 
discount rate. In determining the appropriate 
discount rate for plans operated in India, the 
management considers the interest rates of 
government bonds in currencies consistent with 
the currencies of the post-employment benefit 
obligation.

	 The mortality rate is based on publicly available 
mortality tables for the specific countries. Those 
mortality tables tend to change only at interval in 
response to demographic changes. Future salary 
increases and gratuity increases are based on 
expected future inflation rates.

	 Further details about defined benefit plans are 
given in note no. 53.

	 e) 	� Depreciation / amortisation and useful lives 

of property plant and equipment / intangible 

assets 

	 Property, plant and equipment / intangible assets 
are depreciated / amortised over their estimated 
useful lives, after taking into account estimated 
residual value. Management reviews the 
estimated useful lives and residual values of the 
assets annually in order to determine the amount 
of depreciation / amortisation to be recorded 

during any reporting period. The useful lives 
and residual values are based on the Company’s 
historical experience with similar assets and take 
into account anticipated technological changes. 
The depreciation / amortisation for future periods 
is revised if there are significant changes from 
previous estimates.

1.24	Recent Accounting Developments

	� Standard issued but not yet effective: (based on 

Exposure drafts available as on date)

	 Issue of Ind AS 117 – Insurance Contracts

	 Ind AS 117 supersedes Ind AS 104 Insurance contracts. 
It establishes the principles for the recognition, 
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance 
contracts within the scope of the standard. Under the 
Ind AS 117 model, insurance contract liabilities will be 
calculated as the present value of future insurance 
cash flows with a provision for risk. Application of 
this standard is not expected to have any significant 
impact on the Company’s financial statements.

	 Amendments to existing Standards

	 Ministry of Corporate Affairs has carried out 
amendments of the following accounting standards:

1. 	 Ind AS 103 – Business Combination

2. 	 Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements 
and Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors

3. 	 Ind AS 40 – Investment Property

	 The Company is in the process of evaluating the 
impact of the new amendments issued but not 
yet effective.
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2	Pro perty, plant and equipment 

Description of Assets

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

As at  
April 01, 2020 Additions

Disposals/ 
Adjsuments

As at  
March 31, 2021

Up to  
March 31,2020

For the 
year

Accumulated 
Depreciation 
on Disposals

Up to  
March 31,2021

As at  
March 31,2021

Tangible Assets

Freehold land  12,865.48  -    -    12,865.48  -    -    -    -    12,865.48 
Leasehold land  3,467.56  -    -    3,467.56  229.65  45.93  -    275.58  3,191.98 
Buildings  10,068.39  1,127.94  -    11,196.33  1,719.80  450.91  -    2,170.71  9,025.62 

Plant & equipments  61,103.28  4,271.40  194.20  65,180.48  14,548.69  3,839.18  161.34  18,226.53  46,953.95 
Furniture & Fixtures  489.28  1,023.42  0.08  1,512.62  177.60  94.94  0.08  272.46  1,240.16 
Vehicles  935.95  415.94  75.31  1,276.58  291.39  131.42  51.99  370.82  905.76 
Office equipments  199.88  181.90  7.69  374.09  101.08  50.52  6.86  144.74  229.35 
Right to use (Leased Assets) 

(Refer note 39 ( c)) 

 1,300.45  1,187.61  -    2,488.06  560.37  499.46  -    1,059.83  1,428.23 

Leasehold improvements  288.40  1,886.16  -    2,174.56  136.49  39.73  -    176.22  1,998.34 
 90,718.67  10,094.37  277.28  100,535.76  17,765.07  5,152.09  220.27  22,696.89  77,838.87 

Intangible Assets

 Brands & trade marks  2,552.26  -    -    2,552.26  1,220.53  215.49  -    1,436.02  1,116.24 
 Software  393.91  -    -    393.91  336.69  22.33  -    359.02  34.89 

 2,946.17  -    -    2,946.17  1,557.22  237.82  -    1,795.04  1,151.13 

Total  93,664.84  10,094.37  277.28  103,481.93  19,322.29  5,389.91  220.27  24,491.93  78,990.00 

Description of Assets

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

As at  
April 01, 2019 Additions

Disposals/ 
Adjsuments

As at  
March 31,2020

Up to  
March 31,2019

For the 
year

Accumulated 
Depreciation 
on Disposals

Up to  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31,2020

Tangible Assets

 Freehold land  12,927.50  -    62.02  12,865.48  -    -    -    -    12,865.48 
 Leasehold land  3,467.56  -    -    3,467.56  183.72  45.93  -    229.65  3,237.91 
 Buildings  8,782.51  1,311.93  26.05  10,068.39  1,319.35  425.12  24.67  1,719.80  8,348.59 
 Plant & equipments  56,663.84  5,664.22  1,224.78  61,103.28  12,008.18  3,694.22  1,153.71  14,548.69  46,554.59 
 Furniture & fittings  480.94  8.34  -    489.28  108.59  69.01  -    177.60  311.68 
 Vehicles  1,004.02  4.96  73.03  935.95  225.88  131.14  65.63  291.39  644.56 
 Office equipments  174.94  35.02  10.08  199.88  53.80  52.75  5.47  101.08  98.80 
 Right to use (Leased Assets) 

(Refer note 39 ( c)) 

 -    1,300.45  -    1,300.45  -    560.37  -    560.37  740.08 

 Leasehold improvements  288.40  -    -    288.40  97.81  38.68  -    136.49  151.91 
 83,789.71  8,324.92  1,395.96  90,718.67  13,997.33  5,017.22  1,249.48  17,765.07  72,953.60 

Intangible Assets

 Brands & trade marks  2,552.26  -    -    2,552.26  1,005.04  215.49  -    1,220.53  1,331.73 
 Software  457.23  22.67  85.99  393.91  402.66  20.02  85.99  336.69  57.22 

 3,009.49  22.67  85.99  2,946.17  1,407.70  235.51  85.99  1,557.22  1,388.95 

Total  86,799.20  8,347.59  1,481.95  93,664.84  15,405.03  5,252.73  1,335.47  19,322.29  74,342.55 

3 	 Investment in a joint venture

	U nquoted Investments

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Unquoted Investments

Equity Shares (at amortised cost) (Refer note 58)
Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Limited - 13,58,503 (previous year: 
13,58,503) equity shares of ` 100 each, fully paid up

 13,538.53  13,538.53 

Preference Shares (at amortised cost)
Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Limited - 20,00,000 (previous year: 
20,00,000) 10% cumulative, non-convertible preference shares of ` 100 
each, fully paid up

 2,000.00  2,000.00 

 15,538.53  15,538.53 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  15,538.53  15,538.53 
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments.  -    -   
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4 	 Investment in Others (Unquoted at FVTPL)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

New Urban Cooperative Bank Ltd. - 2,388 (previous year: 2,388)
equity shares of ` 25 each, fully paid up

 0.60  0.60 

 0.60  0.60 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  0.60  0.60 
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments  -    -   

5 	 Loans

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Unsecured- Considered good)
Security Deposits  973.33  1,658.26 

 973.33  1,658.26 

6 	 Others

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Interest accrued on term deposits  10.72  12.60 

Deposits with more than 12 months maturity (Refer note-11)  55.89  166.45 

Advances recoverable  -    0.90 

 66.61  179.95 

7 	 Other non-current assets

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Capital Advances  3,532.43  4,520.37 
Advances other than capital advances

Advances recoverable  3,092.00  5,592.00 
Prepaid Assets  91.78  193.58 

 6,716.21  10,305.95 

8 	 Inventories

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Refer note-1.13 on valuation of inventories)

Raw materials  8,846.51  7,691.42 

Work-in-progress  3,724.71  3,729.67 

Finished goods *  25,949.54  17,253.87 

Stock-in-trade  192.53  160.68 

Stores & spares (Including promotional material)  4,451.06  3,581.36 

Packing materials  5,929.72  5,978.31 

Goods in transit - Raw material  2.75  11.69 

 49,096.82  38,407.00 

Less: Provision for obsolete and non-moving inventories  (190.25)  (989.46)

 48,906.57  37,417.54 

	 Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

	 Write-down of inventories to net realisable value ,  resulted in net loss / (gain) of ̀  155.26 lakhs (previous year ̀  875.00 
lakhs). These were recognised as an expense / income during the year in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 * Includes provision for excise duty/Custom duty ` 9356.87 lakhs (previous year ` 4409.04 lakhs)

	 * Include ENA and Malt Spirit under maturation.				  
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9 	 Trade Receivables

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured  67,736.65  77,591.55 

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk  4,534.89  6,777.63 

Trade Receivables - credit impaired  -    357.09 

 72,271.54  84,726.27 

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  (2,525.80)  (2,420.83)

 69,745.74  82,305.44 

	 Trade Receivables relate to company’s contract with its customers, are non interest bearing and are generally on 
credit terms not exceeding 12 months.

10 	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balances with banks*  12,087.82  986.77 

Cash in hand  22.54  23.66 

 12,110.36  1,010.43 

	 *Including cheques on hand ` Nil (previous year ` 22.10 Lakhs)				  

11 	 Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balances with banks
In unpaid dividend accounts  152.49  152.89 
In term deposits  #  791.11  827.11 

Deposits with more than 12 months maturity (Refer note-6)  (55.89)  (166.45)
 887.71  813.55 

#  Deposit are:
Under lien with Government departments and banks as security  791.11  827.11 

12 	 Loans 

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Unsecured- Considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Security Deposits  1,435.10  1,173.29 
Others
Advances recoverable  449.37  202.36 
Inter corporate deposits (Refer note-54)
ICDs Considered good - Unsecured  2,688.68  2,698.21 
ICDs - credit impaired.  -    461.00 

 4,573.15  4,534.86 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  -    (461.00)

 4,573.15  4,073.86 

13 	 Others

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Accrued export incentives  598.15  418.99 
Other balances recoverable from Statutory/ Government authorities  2,078.43  1,345.20 
Interest accrued on term deposits  44.55  32.05 
Loans and advances
Considered good - Unsecured  175.45  253.94 
Credit impaired  112.31  112.31 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  (112.31)  (112.31)

 2,896.58  2,050.18 
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14 	 Current Tax assets (Net)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Income Tax *  97.47  750.18 
 97.47  750.18 

	 *Net of provisions of ` 15,549.95 ( Previous year ` 25,635.42 )

15 	 Other current assets

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Unsecured -  Considered good)
Advances recoverable in kind  1,637.93  1,837.88 
Others

Amount paid under protest  807.14  520.69 
Claims and duties adjustable from Excise Department  14,173.73  6,687.10 
Other Advances recoverable  3,399.77  2,099.77 
Prepaid assets  3,235.36  2,638.48 

 23,253.93  13,783.92 

16 	 Equity share capital

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Authorised

17,00,00,000 (Previous year 17,00,00,000) equity shares of ` 2/- each  3,400.00  3,400.00 
60,00,000  (Previous year 60,00,000) preference shares of ` 100/- each  6,000.00  6,000.00 

 9,400.00  9,400.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid

13,35,68,265 (Previous Year 13,35,34,265) equity shares of ` 2/- each  2,671.37  2,670.69 
 2,671.37  2,670.69 

	 Rights, Preferences & Restrictions attached to equity shares				  

a. 	 The Company has issued only one class of shares, referred to as equity shares having a par value of ` 2/-. Each 
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders 
of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential 
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

	 b. 	 Reconciliation of the number of shares

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

No. of Shares No. of Shares

Outstanding at the beginning of the year  133,534,265  133,409,265 
Add: Issued during the year  34,000  125,000 
Outstanding at the end of the year  133,568,265  133,534,265 

	 c.	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of total equity shares of the company

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Percentage  
of Holding No. of Shares

Percentage of 
Holding No. of Shares

Sapphire Intrex Ltd. 33.97%  45,379,098 33.98%  45,379,098 
TIMF Holdings 5.83%  7,781,575 5.83%  7,781,575 

	 d. 	 Shares reserved for issue under options: ESOPs				  

	 The Company established Employee Stock Options Plan, duly approved by the shareholders in the meeting held 
on May 25, 2006  which was effective from July 25, 2006.  Accordingly, the Company has granted 42,80,000 
equity options up to March 31, 2021 which will get vested over a period of 4 years from the date of the grant. 
The employees have the options to exercise their right within a period of  3 years from the date of vesting. The 
compensation cost of stock options granted to employees is accounted by the Company using the fair value 
method.
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e. 	 Summary of Stock Option

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

No. of Shares No. of Shares

Option granted up to the year end  4,280,000  4,280,000 
Options forfeited up to the year end  1,741,451  1,741,451 
Options exercised up to the year end  2,433,049  2,399,049 
Option outstanding at the year end  105,500  139,500 
Exercise price (weighted average)  ` 86.29  ` 85.98 

	 In respect of Options granted under the Employee Stock Options plan, in accordance with the guidelines issued by 
SEBI, the accounting value of the options is accounted as deferred employee compensation, which is amortized 
on a straight line basis over the period between the date of grant of options and eligible dates for conversion 
into equity shares. Consequently, Employee benefits expense (Refer note-33) includes ` 1.79 lakhs (previous year 
` 8.59 lakhs) being the amortisation of deferred employee compensation.

17 	 Other Equity #

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Reserves & Surplus
Retained Earning  95,574.88  71,275.61 
Securities Premium Reserve  38,124.13  38,081.58 
General Reserve  40,000.00  40,000.00 
Employee Stock Options Outstanding Account  20.30  24.99 

 173,719.31  149,382.18 

	 # Refer statement of changes in equity for detailed movement in above reserves and surplus.

18 	 Borrowings 

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Secured #

Vehicle loans  153.51  290.56 
 153.51  290.56 

Less : Shown in current maturities of long-term debt (Refer note- 25)  (126.60)  (137.25)
 (126.60)  (137.25)

 26.91  153.31 

	 # Notes				  

	 i). The above loans are secured by a pari-passu first charge on Vehicles procured.	 	 	 	

	 ii).  Terms of repayment are as follows:-				  

Name Year of Maturity
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2021 
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2020 

HDFC Bank * Jan 2022  106.20  224.50 
HDFC Bank * June 2023  21.11  29.27 
YES Bank * May 2023  26.20  36.79 

 153.51  290.56 

	 Monthly Installment

19 	 Others (at amortised cost)

Name
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2021 
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2020 

Security Payable  72.45  152.87 
Lease Liabilities (Refer note no. 39 ( c))  1,070.85  362.09 

 1,143.30  514.96 
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20 	Provisions

Name
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2021 
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2020 

Provision for employee benefits
Leave encashment  1,028.74  1,110.35 

 1,028.74  1,110.35 

21 	 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (Refer note-43)

Name
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2021 
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2020 

Deferred Tax Liabilities  9,825.07  9,955.33 

Deferred Tax Assets  (1,800.29)  (2,108.73)

Deferred Tax Liability (Net)  8,024.78  7,846.60 

22 	Other non-current liabilities

Name
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2021 
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2020 

Other Payables  16.58  16.58 

 16.58  16.58 

23 	Borrowings

Name
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2021 
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2020 

Secured #

Cash credit from banks  682.45  21,736.97 

Unsecured

Loan from banks  26,499.99  18,000.00 

 27,182.44  39,736.97 

	 # Secured by hypothecation of inventories and trade receivables. Further secured by a second charge on fixed assets 
of the Company.				  

	 Non-fund based facilities provided by banks are also secured by second charge on the fixed assets (Property, Plant 
and Equipment excluding Intangible Assets) of the Company.				  

24 	Trade Payables

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Outstanding dues of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Refer note no. 57)  3,073.83  2,786.51 

Other Enterprises  23,116.94  23,637.27 

 26,190.77  26,423.78 

25 	Others (Financial liability carried at amortised cost)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Current maturities of long-term debt

Rupee loan from banks  126.60  137.25 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  53.63  239.51 

Lease Liabilities (Refer note 39 ( c))  413.39  502.96 

Security Payable  2,585.85  2,154.40 

Unclaimed dividends #  152.49  152.53 

 3,331.96  3,186.65 

	 # This does not include any amount due and outstanding, to be credited to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund.
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26 	Provisions

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

For employee benefits

Gratuity (Refer note-53)  170.77  388.08 

Leave encashment  510.24  480.49 

For excise duty on closing stock  9,298.72  4,371.21 

For custom duty on closing stock  58.16  37.83 

 10,037.89  5,277.61 

27 	Other Current Liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

On account of capital goods/ services  391.32  341.18 

Advances from customers  8,072.51  5,642.88 

Other payables

Accrued salary and benefits  715.25  633.11 

Statutory dues  5,982.15  3,102.38 

 15,161.23  9,719.55 

28 	Revenue from Operations

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Refer note-1.05 on revenue recognition)
Sale of 

Alcohol and other alcoholic products  1,029,468.68  933,105.93 
Pet bottles & caps  2,719.53  3,755.74 
Jaivik khad  393.62  348.88 
Others  654.48  328.38 

Sale of traded goods
Indian Made Foreign Liquor  -    -   
Imported Liquor  241.94  659.78 
Royalty Income  779.39  1,001.53 

Other operating revenues
Export incentives  264.33  202.58 
SAD refund  -    -   
Scrap sales  2,214.15  2,386.32 

 1,036,736.12  941,789.14 

29 	Other Income

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Interest income on

Term deposit with banks and financial institutions  53.39  53.15 

Loans (including inter corporate deposits)  421.12  414.11 

Deferred income on deposit  25.59  31.07 

Interest on income tax refunds  153.46  -   

Dividend income on non-current (trade) investments  811.30  359.57 

Other non-operating income

Profit on sale of current investments  0.57  -   

Profit on sale of fixed assets  2.41  6.10 

Excess provisions written back  80.68  24.82 

Miscellaneous income   458.85  29.85 

 2,007.37  918.67 
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30 	Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Raw Materials

Opening Stock  7,691.42  6,977.32 

Add: Purchases  68,063.46  68,325.40 

 75,754.88  75,302.72 

Less: Closing Stock  (8,846.51)  (7,691.42)

Raw material consumed  66,908.37  67,611.30 

Packing materials consumed  56,974.93  59,479.88 

 123,883.30  127,091.18 

31 	P urchase of stock-in-trade

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Imported Liquor  177.00  358.90 

 177.00  358.90 

32 	Change in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Opening Stock

Stock-in-trade  160.68  309.59 

Finished goods  17,253.87  17,186.17 

Work-in-progress  3,729.67  3,616.92 

 21,144.22  21,112.68 

Less : Closing Stock

Stock-in-trade  192.53  160.68 

Finished goods  25,949.54  17,253.87 

Work-in-progress  3,724.71  3,729.67 

 29,866.78  21,144.22 

Increase / (Decrease) of excise duty CL Depot stock  (22.98)  (748.08)

Increase / (Decrease) of excise duty on Finished Goods  4,927.50  (1,851.37)

 (3,818.04)  (2,630.99)

33 	Employee benefits expense

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Salaries, wages and allowances  15,896.90  17,019.70 

Contribution to provident and other funds  992.03  834.96 

Gratuity  229.27  181.32 

Share based payment to Employee (Refer note-16)  1.79  8.59 

Staff welfare expenses  513.57  563.51 

 17,633.56  18,608.08 

34 	Finance costs

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Interest  2,005.19  2,948.69 

Finance cost on Leased Assets (Refer note 39 (c))  124.67  140.44 

Other borrowing costs  71.79  72.33 

 2,201.65  3,161.46 
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35 	Depreciation and amortization expense

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Depreciation on tangible assets  5,152.09  5,017.22 

Amortisation of intangible assets  237.82  235.51 

 5,389.91  5,252.73 

36 	Other expenses

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Power and fuel  4,684.53  5,026.71 

Stores and spares consumed  1,966.67  1,944.90 

Repairs and maintenance

Building  133.58  220.86 

Plant and equipment  2,081.38  1,747.59 

Others  216.16  307.01 

Machinery and other hire charges  5.14  5.09 

Insurance  797.82  645.97 

Rent  148.95  138.03 

Rates and taxes  12,288.81  9,586.67 

Travelling

Directors  55.20  156.34 

Others  811.19  1,219.57 

Directors' fee  20.97  18.91 

Foreign exchange fluctuations (net)  (65.88)  (407.20)

Provision for Non-moving/ obsolete Inventory  155.26  875.00 

Charity and donation  26.78  522.60 

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer note-48)  528.08  401.22 

Provision for Expected Credit Losses (Net)  177.36  739.00 

Bio composting expenses  241.84  239.35 

Professional Fee & retainership expenses  432.21  491.93 

Communication  116.49  126.01 

Sundry balances written off  43.35  522.54 

Loss on sale / write off of assets  61.07  77.58 

Bank charges  31.11  29.72 

Other overheads  3,083.29  3,117.17 

Bottling Charges  3,350.66  3,218.95 

Selling and distribution:

 Freight outwards  10,738.47  10,986.75 

 Supervision charges after sales  773.37  716.63 

 Supervision charges to supervisors  2,792.33  2,223.07 

 Rebate discount and allowance  3,384.31  3,236.81 

 Advertisement & sales promotion  13,963.14  13,961.26 

 63,043.64  62,096.04 

37 	Exceptional items (Refer note 59)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Enviromental Compensation  -    702.00 

Settlement under Sabka Vikas Scheme  -    858.59 

Written-off towards matters arising consequent to prohibition in the state 
of Bihar 

 -    856.03 

 -    2,416.62 
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38 	Other comprehensive income

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Actuarial Gain / (loss) on employee benefits  (115.25)  (361.38)

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  29.01  90.95 

 (86.24)  (270.43)

39 a)	 Capital Commitments

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Estimated amount of Capital commitments (Net of advances)  879.64  2,503.98 

 879.64  2,503.98 

39 b)	 Contingent Liabilities not provided for:

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

i) Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts

(a) Disputed liability relating to ESI contribution  0.89  0.89 

(b) Disputed liability relating to PF contribution of contractor labour  24.35  24.35 

(c) Disputed liability relating to payment of late re-calibration fees on 
verification and stamping of manufacturing vats/tanks installed 
at the distillery

 155.00  155.00 

(d) Disputed VAT/Sales/GST/Entry/Service Tax matters under appeal  186.15  186.15 

(e) Disputed Excise matters  551.75  551.75 

(f) Disputed Stamp duty claim arising out of amalgamation, being 
contested

 80.00  80.00 

(g) Disputed customs duty  10.73  16.63 

 1,008.87  1,014.77 

ii)	 In February 2007, the Madhya Pradesh State Industrial Development Corporation Ltd. demanded a sum of  
` 168.09 lakhs besides unspecified expenses arising out of the alleged non-compliance of conditions relating to 
its holding of shares in Abhishek Cement Ltd., prior to its merger with Radico Khaitan Ltd. in the financial year 
2002-03. The writ petition filed by the Company before the Madhya Pradesh High Court has been partly allowed 
by confirming the recovery of ` 167.32 lakhs against the Company. However, the division bench of the Madhya 
Pradesh High Court has stayed the recovery proceedings initiated by local collector office. The court has ordered 
to maintain ` 100 lakhs in State Bank of India till the final adjudication of the matter. The matter is since sub-
judice.

iii)	 (a)	� The applicability of Goods & Service Tax Act, 2017 on Extra Neutral Alcohol (ENA) was kept on hold by 
the GST council vide their minutes of meeting dated 05.08.2017, 22.12.2018 and 20.09.2019 wherein the 
ENA meant for the potable purpose was kept under the control of respective State Governments, and 
accordingly the Company is paying the state taxes on ENA as applicable in the respective states.

	 (b)	� The Deputy Commissioner (Commercial Tax), Sector I, Rampur had issued notices on 14.11.2019, 15.11.2019 
and 16.11.2019 for the leviability of GST on ENA w.e.f. July 2017. Radico Khaitan has filed writ petition before 
Hon’ble High Court of Allahabad, challenging these notices, with the plea that potable ENA is kept out of the 
purview of GST by the GST Council. The Hon’ble Court on 10th January 2020, granted stay to the Company  
against any proceedings under GST and also advised the department to file a response.

iv)	 A minor fire occurred at the Company (UP) Rampur plant on 6th March, 2021 involving two of the alcohol storage 
tanks. The Company’s emergency response team along with the local fire brigades were able to bring the fire 
under control without further spread to the plant’s other areas. There was no loss of life.
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	 This accident resulted in loss of Extra Neutral Alcohol to the tune of 1.81 Lakh alcoholic liters stored in these 
two tanks translating into a financial loss of ` 270 Lakhs including the replacement cost of damaged tanks. The 
Company immediately filed the insurance claim which is being assessed by the Insurer. Meanwhile, an interim 
measure claim of ` 50 lakhs has already been received.

	 Beside this, the U.P. State Excise Department has issued a show cause notice (SCN) to us claiming an excise 
duty amounting to ` 1,822.77 Lakhs on the alcohol lost in the accident. Based on the opinion of the legal counsel, 
the Company has filed an appeal under Rule 813 of the U.P. Excise Rule before the U.P. Commissioner of Excise 
seeking relief from the above claim by way of setting aside the above mentioned SCN, considering this loss of 
alcohol as an unavoidable accident of fire. 

 39 c) 	 Lease Commitments:	

		  Disclosure as per Ind AS 116

	 On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of ‘Right of Use’ asset of ` 1029.17 lakhs, 
and a lease liability of ̀  1203.67 lakhs. The cumulative effect of applying the standard, amounting to ̀ 130.58 lakhs 
was debited to retained earnings, net of taxes of ` 43.92 lakhs. Ind AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows 
from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments.

	 The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

	 1.	� Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with 
a similar end date.

	 2.	� Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months 
of lease term on the date of initial application.

	 3.	� Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial 
application.

	 4.	� Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. 
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17. 
5. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as applicable.

		F  ollowing are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets :

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year  740.08 1029.17

Additions  1,187.61 271.28

Deletion  -   0

Depreciation  (499.46)  (560.37)

Balance at end of the year  1,428.23  740.08 

	 The aggregate depreciation expense on Right to use assets is included under depreciation and amortization 
expense in the statement of Profit and Loss

		  The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Current lease liabilities  413.39  502.96 

Non current lease liabilities  1,070.85  362.09 

Total  1,484.24  865.05 
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		  The following is the movement in lease liabilities:				  

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year  865.05  1,206.12 

Additions  1,187.36  271.28 

Finance cost accrued during the year  124.67  140.44 

Payment of lease liabilities (Total cash outflow)  (692.84)  (752.79)

Balance at end of the year  1,484.24  865.05 

	 The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are 
sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

	 Rental expense recorded for short-term leases is ` 148.95 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2021, (previous year 
` 138.03 Lakhs).

		  Impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 on statement of profit & loss						    

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 34)  124.67  140.44 

Depreciation of right-to-use asset (refer note 2)  499.46  560.37 

Deferred tax (credit)  -    (13.08)

Impact on statement of profit & loss during the year  624.13  687.73 

40 	 In the opinion of the Management and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on realisation of current/
non current  assets, loans and advances in the ordinary course of business would not be less than the amount at which 
they are stated in the financial statements.						    

41 	 Dividend on Equity Shares

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

Dividend on Equity Shares declared and paid during the year

Dividend of ` 2.00 per share (Previous Year ` 1.20 per share) for financial 
year 2019-20

 2,670.85  1,600.91 

Dividend Distribution Tax  -    329.07 

 2,670.85  1,929.98 

Proposed dividends on Equity shares not recognised as liability

Dividend of ` 2.40 per share (Previous Year ` 2.00 per share) for financial 
year 2020-21

 3,205.64  2,670.69 

Dividend Distribution Tax  -    -   

 3,205.64  2,670.69 

	 Proposed dividends on equity shares are subject to approval at the annual general meeting and are not recognised as 
a liability as at March 31. All proposed dividends were approved as proposed and paid in subsequent year.
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42 	Earnings per equity share (EPS) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to 
equity holders of the entity by the weighted average number of Equity 
shares outstanding during the year (Amount in INR)

 20.26  17.05 

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity 
holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding 
during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that 
would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares 
into Equity shares (Amount in INR).

 20.25  17.04 

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and 
diluted EPS computations:

Profit attributable to equity holder for basic earnings  27,056.36  22,750.07 

Effect of dilution:

Share options (ESOP)  1.79 8.59 

Profit attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution  27,058.15  22,758.66 

Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic EPS  133,544,276  133,443,402 

Effect of dilution:

Share options (Refer Note 16 (e))  105,500  139,500 

Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of 

dilution

 133,649,776  133,582,902 

43 	Income Tax

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

Current Income Tax:

Current income tax charge  8,435.85  7,095.03 

Total (A)  8,435.85  7,095.03 

Deferred Tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences  207.19  (2,576.43)

Total (B)  207.19  (2,576.43)

OCI section

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

Net loss/(gain) on re-measurements of defined benefit plans  (29.01)  (90.95)

Income tax charged to OCI  (29.01)  (90.95)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by 

India’s domestic tax rate for:-

Differential tax impact for land indexation at a rate different from the 
statutory rate

 71.80  56.00 

Amortisation of certain assets not claimed as deduction under tax  (47.98)  (47.72)

Differential impact of provisions  -    -   

Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)  (14.62)  (17.99)

Deduction claimed in Tax but not in books  204.19  203.36 

Others  30.43  2,150.73 

Total (C)  243.82  2,344.38 

Total (A)+ (B)+ (C)  8,886.86  6,862.98 

Accounting profit before tax 35,310.16 27,268.67

Income tax calculated at India’s statutory Income Tax Rate  8,886.86  6,862.98 

Other non-deductible expenses  -    -   

Total  8,886.86  6,862.98 
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	 Deferred tax

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Deferred tax relates to the following:

Property, plant and equipment  (9,575.14)  (9,429.54)

Other Ind-AS adjustments (security deposit, lease liability etc.)  914.67  1,031.30 

Provision created under Expected credit loss  635.69  551.64 

Tax holiday units  -    -   

Mat Credit Entitlement  -    -   

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)  (8,024.78)  (7,846.60)

Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:

Deferred tax assets (continuing operations)  1,800.29  2,108.73 

Deferred tax liabilities (continuing operations)  (9,825.07)  (9,955.33)

Mat Credit Entitlement  -    -   

Deferred tax liabilities (net)  (8,024.78)  (7,846.60)

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities (net):

Opening balance  7,846.60  10,404.90 

Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in profit or loss  207.19  (2,576.43)

Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in OCI  (29.01)  (90.95)

Impact of Ind AS 116  -    (43.92)

Change in MAT Credit  -    153.00 

Closing balance  8,024.78  7,846.60 

	 The entity offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the 
same tax authority

44 	List of Investment

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

 Joint Venture  Joint Venture 

(i)The name of Investee  Radico NV 
Distilleries 

Maharashtra 
Limited 

 Radico NV 
Distilleries 

Maharashtra 
Limited 

(ii)The principal place of business  Aurangabad 
(Maharashtra) 

 Aurangabad 
(Maharashtra) 

(iii)The ownership interest held 36% 36%

(iv)The method used to account for the investment  Accounted at cost  Accounted at cost 

 45 	Segment reporting						   

i)	 Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is 
available that is evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Officer, in deciding how to allocate resources and 
assessing performance. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting 
provided to the chief operating decision maker. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, 
the Chief Operating Officer evaluates the company’s performance based on only one segment i.e. manufacturing 
and trading in Liquor & Alcohol.
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	 ii)	 Geographical information						    

	 The geographical segments have been considered for disclosure as the secondary segment, under which the 
domestic segment includes sales to customers located in India and overseas segment includes sales to customer 
located outside India.

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Revenue from Operation

Domestic  223,652.46  232,945.82 

Overseas  18,161.35  9,758.20 

 241,813.81  242,704.02 

	 Note: There are no non-current assets located outside India.

 46 	Related party transactions and disclosures						    

	 (1)	 Related parties and their relationship :						    

		  I 	 Key Management personnel :						    

			   (1) Dr. Lalit Khaitan,  Chairman & Managing Director 						    

			   (2) Mr. Abhishek  Khaitan,  Managing  Director 						    

	  		  (3) Mr. K.P.Singh,  Whole Time  Director 						    

	  		  (4) Mr. Dilip K Banthiya, Chief Financial Officer						    

	  		  (5) Mr. Amit Manchanda, Company Secretary (upto 28.01.2021)						   

	  		  (6) Mr. Dinesh Kumar Gupta, Company Secretary (w.e.f. 28.01.2021)	

		  II 	 Relatives of Key Management personnel :						    

			   (1) Mrs. Deepshikha Khaitan (Wife of Mr Abhishek Khaitan)						    

		  III 	� Enterprises that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, 

or are under common control with, the reporting enterprise :						   

	  		  (1) Sapphire Intrex Ltd. 						   

	  		  (2) The Rampur Distillery & Chemical Company Ltd. (Employees P. F. Trust) 

	  		  (3) The Rampur Distillery & Chemical Company Ltd. (Employees Group Gratuity Trust) 	

	  		  (4) The Rampur Distillery & Chemical Company Ltd. (Employees Superannuation Scheme) 

 		  IV 	 Joint Ventures:						    

	  	 	 (1) Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Limited 	 	 	 	 	 	
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	 (2)	 Transaction with above in the ordinary course of business :	

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

Key Management Personnel :

Dr. Lalit Khaitan, Chairman & Managing Director
Remuneration
    Salary and Allowances  871.77  797.04 
    Contribution to Provident and other Funds  56.01  49.14 
    Value of benefits, calculated as per Income Tax Rules  36.31  22.43 
Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, Managing  Director
Remuneration
    Salary and Allowances  871.77  797.04 
    Contribution to Provident and other Funds  57.01  50.14 
    Value of benefits, calculated as per Income Tax Rules  28.86  19.51 
Mr. K.P.Singh, Whole Time  Director
Remuneration
    Salary and Allowances  191.83  181.86 
    Contribution to Provident and other Funds  7.48  8.48 
    Value of benefits, calculated as per Income Tax Rules  1.75  52.14 
Mr. Dilip K Banthiya, Chief Financial Officer
Remuneration
    Salary and Allowances  204.08  222.97 
    Contribution to Provident and other Funds  10.21  10.21 
    Value of benefits, calculated as per Income Tax Rules  3.70  50.70 
Mr. Amit Manchanda, Company secretary
Remuneration
    Salary and Allowances  44.14  54.29 
    Contribution to Provident and other Funds  2.82  3.21 
    Value of benefits, calculated as per Income Tax Rules  0.82  25.14 
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Gupta, Company secretary
Remuneration
    Salary and Allowances  14.85 
    Contribution to Provident and other Funds  0.65 
    Value of benefits, calculated as per Income Tax Rules  0.34 
Relatives of Key Management personnel :

Mrs. Deepshikha Khaitan (wife of Mr. Abhishek Khaitan)
Remuneration
    Salary and Allowances  -    11.60 
    Contribution to Provident and other Funds  -    1.95 
    Value of benefits, calculated as per Income Tax Rules  -    1.18 
Enterprises that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or are 

under common control with, the reporting enterprise :

Sapphire Intrex Ltd.
Security Receivable  60.00  60.00 
Rent Paid  69.48  69.48 
Contribution paid (Employer's contribution only)

The Rampur Distillery & Chemical Company Ltd. (Employees P. F. 
Trust) 

 563.26  541.65 

The Rampur Distillery & Chemical Company Ltd. (Employees Group 
Gratuity Trust) 

 344.52  542.70 

The Rampur Distillery & Chemical Company Ltd. (Employees 
Superannuation Scheme) 

 102.79  105.30 
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Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Joint Venture

Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Limited

Sale of Fixed Assets  -    23.18 

Commission Income  428.19  0.47 

Lease rent paid  7.08  7.08 

Bottling Charges Paid *  716.62  523.22 

Tie-up operation income  4.00  13.72 

Dividend on Preference Shares  200.00  200.00 

Dividend on Equity Shares  611.30  159.57 

Purchase of material  3,580.49  3,068.58 

Sale of material  2.89  -   

Advances Recoverable  -    22.29 

Payable  142.26  140.29 

Dividend receivable  -    -   

Investment in preference share & equity share  15,538.53  15,538.53 

	 * Excluding GST refundable on export consignment bottling ` 15.32 Lakhs.	

	 Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties						    

	 The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length 
transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. 
There have been no outstanding guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables in 
the current financial year. For the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has not recorded any impairment of 
receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2020: ` Nil). This assessment is undertaken in each 
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party 
operates.	

47 	Payment to Auditors 						    

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

i)  Audit Fee  31.50  31.50 
ii) Limited Review Fee  13.50  13.50 
iii) GST on (i) and (ii) above  8.10  8.10 
iv) Other Services (Certification Fee including Taxes)  0.24  1.31 
v) Reimbursement of Out of Pocket Expenses (including taxes)  0.55  2.26 

 53.89  56.67 

 48 	Details of CSR expenditure

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2021 For the year ended March 31, 2020

 i) Gross amount required to 
be spent by the company 
(including carry forwarded 
unspent amount)

 457.02 427.18 

In cash/  
Payable

 Yet to  
be paid in cash 

In cash 
/ Payable

Yet to  
be paid in cash

 ii) Amount spent during the year :
For construction / acquisition of 
assets

 -    -    -    -   

For other purposes  528.08  -    401.22  -   
 iii) Unspent amount  (71.06)  -    25.96  -   
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49 	 i)	 Remittance in foreign currency / or to the mandate banks on account of dividends to non residents

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

(i) Number of non resident shareholders  16  16 

(ii) Number of shares held by them  14,880  14,880 

(iii) Dividend per share 2.00 1.20 

(iv) Financial year to which the dividend relates 2019-20 2018-19

ii) Earnings in foreign exchange  -  Export of goods on FOB basis  17,623.93  9,513.54 

50 	Foreign currency exposure						    

	 Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments						    

	 The entity uses foreign currency denominated borrowings and foreign exchange forward contracts to manage some 
of its transaction exposures. However such foreign currency denominated borrowings have not been designated as 
hedge. Such derivatives are recorded at mark to market at each reporting date with a corresponding recognition in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.						    

	 Details of foreign currency exposure of the company :						    

Particulars

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

Foreign  
Currency  INR 

Foreign 
Currency  INR 

Other foreign currency exposures:
Trade Receivables 

USD  87.00  6,394.64  55.42  4,178.09 
EURO  0.14  12.05  0.90  75.02 
GBP  0.02  2.49  -    -   

Advances from Customers
USD  0.71  52.23  1.14  85.84 
GBP  -    -    0.00  0.03 

Trade payables 
USD  1.79  131.56  7.06  532.59 
EURO  0.02  1.66  0.26  21.29 
GBP  0.00  0.08  0.23  21.87 

Advances to Vendors
USD  0.13  9.80  2.32  174.95 
EURO  1.46  125.64  2.06  170.93 
GBP  0.62  62.90  0.56  52.50 

Balance with banks
USD  1.59  116.69  0.37  28.20 

51 	Financial  Instruments						   

	 A- Fair values 						    

	 The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities except for certain financial assets i.e. “instrument carried at fair 
value” appearing in the financial statement are reasonable approximation of fair value. Such investments of those 
financial instruments carried at fair value are disclosed below:-						    

Particulars

Fair value Carrying value

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Financial assets measured at fair value 
through profit and loss
Investments
Equity shares  0.60  0.60  0.60  0.60 
Total  0.60  0.60  0.60  0.60 
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	 B- Fair value hierarchy						   

	 The following table provides fair value management hierarchy of the company`s assets:	

Quoted prices in 

active markets 

 (Level 1)

Significant 

observable inputs        

(Level 2)

Significant 

unobservable inputs  

 (Level 3)

March 31, 2021
Investment
Equity share  -    -    0.60 
Total  -    -    0.60 
March 31, 2020
Investment
Equity share  -    -    0.60 
Total  -    -    0.60 

	 There have been no transfer between level 1, level 2 and level 3 during the year.

	 C- Valuation techniques and processes used to determine fair value 						    

	 Fair value of unquoted investments is determined based on the present values, calculated using generally accepted 
valuation principles.

	 D- Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value 						    

	 Significant unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value measurement:-

	 Non current investment - Unquoted						    

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Fair Value  0.60  0.60 

Significant unobservable inputs*

  Earnings growth rate (%)  10.00  10.00 

  Risk adjusted discount rate (%)  10.00  10.00 

* There were no significant inter-relationships between unobservable inputs that materially affect fair values.

E- Reconciliation of financial instruments categorised under level 3

Opening at the beginning of the year  0.60  0.60 

Additions during the year  -    -   

Gain/(Loss) recognised in OCI during the year  -    -   

Closing at the end of the year  0.60  0.60 

 52 	Financial risk management objectives and policies	

	 The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, security deposits and trade and other 
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide 
guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, investment in preference 
shares & equity shares, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from its 
operations.						    

	 The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely market risks, credit risk and liquidity 
risk. The Company’s senior management has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s 
risk management framework. The Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for 
developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The Company’s risk management policies are 
established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and 
controls, periodically review the changes in market conditions and reflect the changes in the policy accordingly. The 
key risks and mitigating actions are also placed before the Audit Committee of the Company.
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	 (a)	 Market Risk

	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and 
price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include interest bearing loans and borrowings, fixed 
deposits and FVTPL investments.

	 The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating 
interest rates of the debt and the proportion of financial instruments are all constant as at 31 March 2017 and 31 
March 2016.

	 The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other 
post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities.

	 The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

	 The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. 
This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk and currency risk and equity price risk. 
Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

	 The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

	 The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating 
interest rates of the debt and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies  to total debts.

	 The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other 
post-retirement obligations and provisions. 

	 The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

	 The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. 
This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

		  (i)	 Interest Rate Risk

			�   Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The entity’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest 
rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

			   Interest rate sensitivity:

			�   The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that 
portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before 
tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows

			�   At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the entity’s interest bearing financial instrument is as its fair 
value:

Particulars

Carrying amounts

As at 
 March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

Variable rate instruments

Long term borrowings  26.91  153.31 

Current maturities of long term debt  126.60  137.25 

Short term borrowings  27,182.44  39,736.97 

			   Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments						    

			�   The Company does not have any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. 
Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss and neither would 
it affect the equity.
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			�   A change of 100 basis points in interest rates for variable rate instruments at the reporting date would 
have increased/(decreased) profit or loss for the below years by the amounts shown below. With all other 
variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate 
borrowings, as follows:						   

Particulars

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

Increase/ (decrease) in basis points  100  (100)  100  (100)
Effect on profit before tax (increase)/ decrease 273.36 (273.36) 400.28  (400.28)

	 The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently 
observable market environment.	

		  (ii)	F oreign currency risk						    

	 The Indian National Rupee is the entity’s most significant currency. As a consequence, the company’s 
results are presented in Indian National Rupee and exposures are managed against Indian National Rupee 
accordingly. The company has limited foreign currency exposure which are mainly on account of imports 
and exports.The company has not hedged its imports and exports, since they have short recovery cycle and 
act as natural hedging reducing the foreign currency risk.						    

			F   oreign currency sensitivity:

	 The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign currency 
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax due to 
changes in the fair value of foreign currency exposure.

			   Sensitivity to risk

Particulars

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

Increase/ (decrease) in Currency rate (USD/EURO/GBP) 2.75% (2.75%) 2.75% (2.75%)

Effect on profit before tax increase/ (decrease)  USD  174.28  (174.28)  103.48  (103.48)
Effect on profit before tax increase/ (decrease)  EURO  3.74  (3.74)  1.48  (1.48)
Effect on profit before tax increase/ (decrease) GBP  1.80  (1.80)  0.84  (0.84)

		  (iii)	 Equity price risk						    

			�   The company’s equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about 
future values of the investment securities. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the company’s 
senior management on a regular basis. The company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity 
investment decisions.

			   At the reporting date, the exposure to:

			   -unlisted equity securities at fair value is ` 0.60 Lakhs. 

	 	 	 -unlisted equity in Joint Venture at cost of ` 13,538.53 Lakhs

	 (b)	 Credit Risk

		�  Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer 
contract, leading to a financial loss. The entity is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily 
trade receivables) and from its financing activities, financial assets. Management has a credit policy in place and 
the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers 
requiring credit over a certain amount.

		  Trade receivables and loans

		�  Credit risk is managed by company in accordance with the company’s established policy, procedures and control 
relating to credit risk management. Credit quality is assessed based on an extensive credit rating and individual 
credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables and loans are 
regularly monitored.
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		�  An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for receivables and loans. The 
calculation is based on historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying 
value of each class of financial assets disclosed in note below. The company does not hold collateral as security. 
The company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are 
located in several jurisdictions and has been rated highly based on internal credit assessment parameters.

	 	 �Presently, In the current COVID-19 scenario, there are no indication of any material risk. However going forward 
this could be possible risk which will be addressed as & when they arise. 

		F  inancial instruments and cash deposits

		�  Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the entity’s treasury department 
in accordance with the entity’s policy. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the entity’s Board of Directors 
on an annual basis. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss 
through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

		�  The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance Sheet at March 31, 2021 and 
March 31, 2020 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in note below. 

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Non Current Financial assets

Investment in a joint venture  15,538.53  15,538.53 
Investment in others  0.60  0.60 
Loans  973.33  1,658.26 
Others  66.61  179.95 

 16,579.07  17,377.34 

Current Financial assets

Trade receivables  69,745.74  82,305.44 
Cash and cash equivalents  12,110.36  1,010.43 
Bank balances other than above  887.71  813.55 
Loans  4,573.15  4,073.86 
Others  2,896.58  2,050.18 

 90,213.54  90,253.46 

	 (c)	 Liquidity Risk						   

		�  The Company monitors its risk of shortage of funds on a regular basis. The Company’s objective is to maintain 
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts and bank loans. The 
Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. 

		�  The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual 
undiscounted payments:

Particulars

Payable within 

one year

Payable within one 

year to five years Total

As at March 31, 2021:

Term loans from banks  126.60  26.91  153.51 
Short term loan  27,182.44  -    27,182.44 
Trade payables  26,190.77  -    26,190.77 
Other Financial Liabilities  3,205.36  1,143.30  4,348.66 

As at March 31, 2020:

Term loans from banks  137.25  153.51  290.76 
Short term loan  39,736.97  -    39,736.97 
Trade payables  26,423.78  -    26,423.78 
Other Financial Liabilities  3,049.40  514.96  3,564.36 
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	 It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at 
significantly different amounts.						    

		  Excessive risk concentration						    

	 Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities 
in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual 
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate 
the relative sensitivity of the entity’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

	 In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the entity’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines 
to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and 
managed accordingly.

		  Collateral

	 The Company has created a charge in favour of the lenders for loans and borrowings (Refer note-18 and 23 on 
Borrowings for details).						   

53 	 (I) Post-employment benefit plans

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Gratuity  170.77  388.08 

	 The entity has a defined benefit plans for Gratuity, Provident Fund and Leave Encashment. For provident fund, entity 
makes contribution to provident fund trust. Gratuity plan is funded with LIC and requires contributions to be made 
to a separate fund administered by LIC. Leave encashment liability of the entity is unfunded. The gratuity plan is 
governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is 
entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at 
retirement age. 

	 Each year, the Board of Trustees reviews the level of funding in the Gratuity plan and Provident fund. Such a review 
includes the asset-liability matching strategy and investment risk management policy. The Board of Trustees decides 
its contribution based on the results of this annual review. The Board of Trustees aim to keep annual contributions 
relatively stable at a level such that no plan deficits (based on valuation performed) will arise.

	 The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet for the respective plans.

	 Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020

Particulars

Gratuity
Defined benefit 

obligation
Fair value of  

plan assets
Benefit  
liability

April 01, 2020  (3,350.02)  2,961.95  (388.07)
Cost charged to profit or loss
Service cost  (198.11)  (198.11)
Net interest expense  (227.80)  201.41  (26.39)
Sub-total included in profit or loss  (425.91)  201.41  (224.50)
Benefits paid  187.48  (187.48)  -   
Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other 
comprehensive income

 -    -    -   

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in 
net interest expense)

 -    (10.86)  (10.86)

Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic 
assumptions

 -    -    -   

Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial 
assumptions

 -    -    -   

Experience adjustments  (104.39)  -    (104.39)
Sub-total included in OCI  (104.39)  (10.86)  (115.25)
Contributions by employer  -    557.05  557.05 
March 31, 2021  (3,692.84)  3,522.07  (170.77)
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Particulars

Gratuity
Defined benefit 

obligation
Fair value of  

plan assets
Benefit  
liability

April 01, 2019 (2762.71) 2621.16 (141.55)
Cost charged to profit or loss
Service cost  (188.62)  -    (188.62)
Net interest expense  (211.62)  200.78  (10.84)
Sub-total included in profit or loss  (400.24)  200.78  (199.46)
Benefits paid  157.01  (157.01)  -   
Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other 
comprehensive income

 -    -    -   

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in 
net interest expense)

 -    (17.30)  (17.30)

Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic 
assumptions

 0.35  -    0.35 

Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial 
assumptions

 (186.07)  -    (186.07)

Experience adjustments  (158.36)  -    (158.36)
Sub-total included in OCI  (344.08)  (17.30)  (361.38)
Contributions by employer  -    314.32  314.32 
March 31, 2020  (3,350.02)  2,961.95  (388.07)

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Funds Managed by Insurer  3,522.07  2,961.95 
Total  3,522.07  2,961.95 

	 Significant assumptions used in calculation of post-employment defined benefit obligation of the company’s are 
shown below:	

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Discount rate % %
Future salary increases 6.80% 6.80%
Mortality rate 5.50% 5.50%

100% of IALM 
(2012 - 14)

100% of IALM 
(2012 - 14)

	 A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 :

Particulars

Gratuity Gratuity

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

Assumption  Discount Rate  Discount Rate
Sensitivity Level 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%

Increase Increase Decrease Decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation  (106.54)  (110.85)  113.21  117.96 

Assumption Future Salary Future Salary
Sensitivity Level 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%

Increase Increase Decrease Decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation  114.09  118.87  (108.31)  (112.69)

	 The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined 
benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

	 Expected contribution to post employment benefit plans for the next Annual reporting period is ` 216.42 lakhs.
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	 The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particulars

Gratuity

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)  511.76  328.09 
Between 2 and 5 years  431.65  384.29 
Beyond 5 years  2,749.45  2,637.64 
Total expected payments  3,692.86  3,350.02 

The average duration of the Gratuity at the end of the reporting period 14.93 14.54
(II) Defined Contribution Plans

Contribution to defined contribution plan, recognised as expenses for the year 
are as under:
i) Recognised Providend Fund (including family pension)  820.67  655.83 
ii) Super annuation Fund  102.79  105.30 
iii) Group Insurance Scheme  41.75  42.54 
iv) Employees' State Insurance  26.81  31.30 

 992.02  834.97 

54 	Information under 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

Particulars

Gratuity

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

(a) Loans given:

i)	 In the form of unsecured short-term Inter corporate Deposits *
	 Opening Balance  3,159.21  4,895.00 
	 Given during the year  600.00  750.00 
	 Received / adjusted during the year  (1,070.53)  (2,485.79)
	 Closing Balances  2,688.68  3,159.21 

(b) Investments made (As disclosed under Note.3 & 4)

	 * All loans  are given to unrelated entities at interest rates ranging from 10% to 12% per annum.All the loans are 
provided for business purposes of respective entities, repayable on demand with prepayment option to the borrower.

55 	Capital management						    

	 For the purpose of the company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and other equity 
attributable to the equity holders of the company. The primary objective of the company’s capital management is to 
maximise the shareholder’s wealth. 						    

	 The company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence 
and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitor the return on capital employed as 
well as the level of dividend to shareholders.						    

	 The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and 
the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the 
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital 
using a debt equity ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. The company’s policy is to keep the debt equity 
ratio between 70% and 100%. The company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash 
and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.						    
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	 The Company’s debt equity ratio was as follows:						    

Particulars

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

Borrowings  27,335.95  40,027.53 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents  (12,110.36)  (1,010.43)
Net debt  15,225.59  39,017.10 

Equity Capital  2,671.37  2,670.69 
Other Equity  173,719.31  149,382.18 
Total Equity  176,390.68  152,052.87 

Debt Equity Ratio 8.63% 25.66%

	 In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure 
that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure 
requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and 
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in 
the current financial year. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during 
the year ended March 31, 2021.						    

56 	 The nationwide lockdown imposed by the Government of India, due to the COVID -19 pandemic, was lifted in a phased 
manner. Accordingly, the Company’s operations including bottling facilities have become operational with necessary 
safety measures, even though temporary disruptions occurred from time to time, including recent surge.

	 The Company has evaluated the impact of this pandemic on its business operations and financial position. Based 
on such review, there is no significant impact on the Company’s assets, capital and financial resources, profitability 
parameters or liquidity positions as at March 31, 2021.						    

	 The Management does not envisage any impact on the going concern assumption in the foreseeable future. However, 
the impact assessment of COVID-19 will be a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and 
duration.

57 	 Details of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under MSMED Act 2006

Particulars

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 
supplier at the end of each accounting year;

 3,073.83  2,768.72 

Nil  17.79 
(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along 
with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed 
day during each accounting year;

Nil Nil
(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) 
but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

Nil Nil
(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year; and

 Nil  17.79 
(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually 
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006.

 Nil  17.79 
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	 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the 
basis of information collected by the Management and relied upon by the auditors. Interest, if any, on these have been 
provided since identified.

58 	� Note on Reduction of Share Capital of Joint Venture Entity (given in the financial 
statement adopted on June 25, 2019)						    

	 Based on NCLT order dated 16th December 2019, the joint venture entity (Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Ltd.) 
has reduced its equity capital from ` 7387.72 lakhs to ` 3773.58 lakhs w.e.f. March 31,2019. As a result, the reserve of 
the joint venture increased to ` 39610.95 lakhs from ` 35996.81 lakhs. The impact of the said change has reflected in 
the annualised accounts as at March 31, 2020 by the JV company. Proportionately impact on the nos. of equity shares 
held in the joint venture has been taken.						    

59 	Exceptional items (Refer note no. 37)						    

	 (a)	� The Central Pollution Control Board (CPCB) vide its letter dated August 06, 2019 pursuant to Company’s 
representation and their subsequent inspection has allowed the Company to restore capacity of its molasses 
plant from 77 KLD to 200 KLD. Environmental Compensation of ` 702.00 lakhs as levied by CPCB, has been paid 
and accounted for during the year.  						    

	 (b)	 �In accordance with Sabka Vishwas Scheme 2019, ` 858.59 Lakhs was paid towards Central excise duty as one-
time settlement, for the period April 2007 to June 2017 in line with legal advice and accounted for during the 
reporting year.

	 (c)	� The Government of Bihar in exercise of the powers conferred under Section 19(4) of the Bihar Excise Act, 1915 
through its notification dated April 5, 2016, imposed a ban on trade and consumption of Liquor in the State of 
Bihar.  As on March 31, 2019, the Company had an outstanding of ` 1259.12 lakhs with the Bihar State Beverages 
Corporation Limited (“”BSBCL””). An amount of ` 403.09 lakhs pertaining to VAT refund from the Government 
of Bihar under the applicable law at that time, in respect of billed stocks returned by BSBCL or stocks destroyed 
pursuant relevant notifications, has been received in June`2019. The balance of ` 856.03 lakhs, has been written 
off, as a matter of prudence and it is disclosed as an exceptional item.	

60 	Social Security Code						    

	 The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the 
company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for 
the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are 
under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject 
rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes 
effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

61 	 Previous year figures have been re-grouped, wherever necessary, to correspond to current year figures.			 
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Radico Khaitan Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated 
Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of Radico Khaitan Limited (the “Holding 
Company”) and its Joint Venture ( Holding Company and 
its joint venture together referred to as “the Group”), which 
comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 
31, 2021, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including consolidated other comprehensive income) for 
the year ended on that date, the consolidated Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to 
the financial statements including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial 
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of 
the Group as at March 31, 2021, its consolidated profit and 
consolidated total comprehensive income for the year 

ended on that date, consolidated changes in equity and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI). Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the consolidated financial statements under 
the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and 
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined 
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to 
be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter Audit Response

Trade Receivables

Receivables (net of provisioning) of 
` 69745.74 lakhs constitute 43% of 
the current assets of the company 
as at March 31, 2021 and are spread 
across geography, covering State 
Corporations, Defence canteens and 
open market customers (including 
exports). The realization is linked with 
actual sales by State Corporations.

Principal Audit Procedures 

•	 Evaluating and testing the controls for managing trade receivables, 
including subsequent collection and provisioning.

•	 Validating the basis of ECL policy as approved by the Board of Directors, in 
the present context based on historical data and recent developments.

•	 Validating the Aging of receivables, review of trend customer wise, reasons 
for long outstanding balances, evaluation of disputes and possibility of 
recovery and existence of the customers.

•	 Obtaining independent customer confirmations during the current COVID 
19 Pandemic was a challenge. Hence greater reliance was placed on 
alternate substantive audit procedures. 

•	 Assessing the appropriateness and completeness of the related disclosure 
in the company’s Financial Statements.

Conclusion 

Our procedures did not identify any material exceptions.
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Key Audit Matter Audit Response

Inventory 

Inventories (net of provisions) of ` 
48906.57 Lakhs constitute 30% of 
the current assets of the company 
as at March 31, 2021. The Inventory is 
lying at various locations, including at 
3rd party premises. Packing material 
constitutes a major part of inventory 
and has risk of impairment.

Principal Audit Procedures 

•	 Testing the inventory provisioning and challenging the assumptions for 
inventory valuation basis non-moving/slow moving items.

•	 Review the policy of the management for physical verification and the 
documents related to management’s physical count procedure actually 
followed at different locations.

•	 Observed the physical verification process at locations of financial 
significance during year end audit along with sample testing.

•	 Relied on physical verification report by zonal internal auditors.

•	 Identifying obsolete inventory, if any.

•	 Obtain confirmation from Tie up units being inventory at 3rd party locations 
and applying substantive procedure

•	 Assess the appropriateness and completeness of the related disclosure in 
the company’s Financial Statements.

Conclusion 

Our procedures did not identify any material exceptions.

Information other than the 
consolidated financial statements and 
auditor’s report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Management Discussion 
and Analysis, Board’s Report including annexure to 
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate 
Governance and Shareholder’s Information,, but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does 
not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

The other information has not been made available to us 
as at the date of this auditor’s report. We have nothing to 
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and 
Those Charged with Governance for 
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial 
performance, consolidated total comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the 
Group in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 
The Board of Directors of the company are responsible 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 

of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the 
Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, is the 
respective Board of Directors of the Companies included 
in the Group are responsible for assessing the Companies’ 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Companies or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies 
included in the Group is also responsible for overseeing the 
Companies’ financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
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with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of this consolidated 
financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance 
with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding 
company, its joint venture based on other auditor’s 
report, which are incorporated in India, have adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along 
with the consideration of audit report of the other auditor 
referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
consolidated financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions 
of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of 
any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial 
statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

The Consolidated financial Statement include share of net 
profit of ` 658.78 Lakhs (including other comprehensive 
income of ` 0.65 Lakhs) for the year ended March 31, 2021 
as considered in the Consolidated financial statement, in 
respect of the joint venture, whose financial statements 
have been audited by us. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not 
modified in respect of the above matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

(1)	 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report 
that:

a.	 We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements;

b.	 In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law relating to preparation of the 
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aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements 
have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;

c.	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, 
consolidated total comprehensive income, the 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the 
consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and 
notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
including a summary of accounting policies and 
other explanatory information dealt with by this 
report are in agreement with the relevant books 
of account;

d.	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act 
read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014;

e.	 On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors of the Holding 
Company and Joint Venture Company 
incorporated in India as on March 31, 2021, and 
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the 
Holding Company, none of the directors of the 
Holding Company and Joint Venture Company 
incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 
31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f.	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, we give our 
separate report in “Annexure 1”.

g.	 With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended:

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Holding Company and 
Joint Venture to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of 
the Act read with Schedule V.

h.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us:

(i)	 The Group has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position in 
its consolidated financial statements – Refer 
Note 39b on Contingent Liabilities to the 
consolidated financial statements; 

(ii)	 The Group did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts. 
Hence, the question of any material 
foreseeable losses does not arise;

(iii)	 There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Group.

For BGJC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056

Darshan Chhajer

Partner
Date: June 1, 2021 	 Membership No. 088308
Place: Gurugram	 UDIN: 21088308AAAABC3866
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
[Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s 

Report of even date to the members of Radico Khaitan Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year 

ended March 31, 2021

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial 

Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 

143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of Radico Khaitan Limited (“the Holding 
Company”) and its Joint Venture (the Holding company 
and its joint venture together referred to as “the Group”) 
as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for 
Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Group which 
are companies incorporated in India are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the respective Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the respective company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding 
Company and its joint venture company’s internal financial 
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over 

financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of consolidated financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company;(2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate, 
especially in the COVID 19 global Pandemic situation.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group, which are companies incorporated 
in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the respective Companies considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For BGJC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056

Darshan Chhajer

Partner
Date: June 1, 2021 	 Membership No. 088308
Place: Gurugram	 UDIN: 21088308AAAABC3866
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Note 

No

As at  

March 31, 2021

As at  

March 31, 2020

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2  77,838.87  72,953.60 
Capital work-in-progress  3,778.49  1,808.29 
Intangible assets 2  1,151.13  1,388.95 
Financial assets  

Investment in a joint venture 3  18,439.43  17,779.35 
Investment in others 4  0.60  0.60 
Loans 5  973.33  1,658.26 
Others 6  66.61  179.95 

Other non-current assets 7  6,716.21  10,305.95 
Total non-current assets  108,964.67  106,074.95 
Current assets 
Inventories 8  48,906.57  37,417.54 
Financial assets

Trade receivables 9  69,745.74  82,305.44 
Cash and cash equivalents 10  12,110.36  1,010.43 
Bank balances other than above 11  887.71  813.55 
Loans 12  4,573.15  4,073.86 
Others 13  2,896.58  2,050.18 

Current tax assets (Net) 14  97.47  750.18 
Other current assets 15  23,253.93  13,783.92 
Total current assets  162,471.51  142,205.10 
Total Assets  271,436.18  248,280.05 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16  2,671.37  2,670.69 
Other Equity 17  176,620.21  151,623.00 

 179,291.58  154,293.69 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
     Borrowings 18  26.91  153.31 
     Others 19  1,143.30  514.96 
Provisions 20  1,028.74  1,110.35 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 21  8,024.78  7,846.60 
Other non current liabilities 22  16.58  16.58 
Total non-current liabilities  10,240.31  9,641.80 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
     Borrowings 23  27,182.44  39,736.97 
     Trade payables

Outstanding dues of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 24  3,073.83  2,786.51 
Other Enterprises 24  23,116.94  23,637.27 

     Others 25  3,331.96  3,186.65 
Provisions 26  10,037.89  5,277.61 
Other current liabilities 27  15,161.23  9,719.55 
Total current liabilities  81,904.29  84,344.56 
Total Equity & Liabilities  271,436.18  248,280.05 
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Other Notes to Accounts 2-63

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For BGJC & Associates LLP Dilip K. Banthiya Dr. Lalit Khaitan
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Chairman & Managing Director
Firm Regn. No. 003304N/N500056
Darshan Chhajer Dinesh Kumar Gupta Abhishek Khaitan
Partner Vice President - Legal & Managing Director
Membership No.: 088308 Company Secretary
Place  : Gurugram

Place: New Delhi 
Date: June 01, 2021

Alok Agarwal Director
Sr Vice President 
(Finance & Accounts)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended March 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Note 

No

For the year  ended 

March 31, 2021

For the year ended  

March 31, 2020

INCOME

Revenue from operations 28  1,036,736.12  941,789.14 

Other income 29  2,007.37  918.67 

Total income  1,038,743.49  942,707.81 

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 30  123,883.30  127,091.18 

Excise duty  794,922.31  699,085.12 

Purchase of stock-in-trade 31  177.00  358.90 

Change in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-
progress

32  (3,818.04)  (2,630.99)

Employee benefits expense 33  17,633.56  18,608.08 

Finance costs 34  2,201.65  3,161.46 

Depreciation and amortization expense 35  5,389.91  5,252.73 

Other expenses 36  63,043.64  62,096.04 

Total Expenses  1,003,433.33  913,022.52 

Profit for the year before exceptional items, tax & share in profit of 

Joint Venture

 35,310.16  29,685.29 

Exceptional items 37  -    2,416.62 

Profit for the year before tax and share in profit of Joint Venture  35,310.16  27,268.67 

Less: Tax expense

Current tax  8,435.85  7,095.03 

For earlier years  (389.24)  -   

Deferred tax  207.19  (2,576.43)

Net Profit after tax but before share in  profit of Joint Venture  27,056.36  22,750.07 

Add: Share in profit of joint venture  659.43  163.92 

Net Profit for the year from continuing operations  27,715.79  22,913.99 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) 38 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (115.25)  (361.38)

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or 
loss

 29.01  90.95 

Share in other comprehensive income/(loss) of joint venture  0.65  (3.00)

Total other comprehensive income/(loss)  (85.59)  (273.43)

Total comprehensive income for the year  (Comprising profit and 

other comprehensive income for the year)

 27,630.20  22,640.56 

Earning per share for Continuing Operations

Basic earnings per share in INR (face value of ` 2/- each) 42  20.75  17.16 

Diluted earnings per share in INR (face value of ` 2/- each) 42  20.74  17.15 

Significant Accounting Policies 1 

Other Notes to Accounts 2-63

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For BGJC & Associates LLP Dilip K. Banthiya Dr. Lalit Khaitan
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Chairman & Managing Director
Firm Regn. No. 003304N/N500056
Darshan Chhajer Dinesh Kumar Gupta Abhishek Khaitan
Partner Vice President - Legal & Managing Director
Membership No.: 088308 Company Secretary
Place  : Gurugram

Place: New Delhi 
Date: June 01, 2021

Alok Agarwal Director
Sr Vice President 
(Finance & Accounts)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended March 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year  ended 

March 31, 2021

For the year ended  

March 31, 2020

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit before Taxation and Share of Profit in Joint Venture  35,310.16  27,268.67 

Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortization expense  5,389.91  5,252.73 

Profit on sale of fixed assets  (2.41)  (6.10)

Loss on sale / write off assets  61.07  77.58 

Finance costs  2,201.65  3,161.46 

Interest income  (653.56)  (498.33)

Provision for Expected credit loss and Bad Debt  140.03  2,092.75 

Provision for Non-moving/ obsolete Inventory  155.26  875.00 

Employees stock option scheme  1.79  8.59 

Dividend income on investments  (811.30)  (359.57)

Operating profit before working capital changes  41,792.60  37,872.78 

Changes in working capital

Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories  (11,644.29)  (2,321.25)

Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables  12,419.68  (20,223.30)

Decrease/(Increase) in current financial assets (loans)  (499.29)  596.09 

Decrease/(Increase) in current financial assets (Others)  (912.39)  105.38 

Decrease/(Increase) in other current assets  (9,470.01)  (239.92)

Decrease/(Increase) in non-current financial assets (loans)  684.93  (855.18)

Decrease/(Increase) in non-current financial assets (Others)  0.90  11.79 

Decrease/(Increase) in other non-current assets  2,601.80  1,469.36 

Increase/(Decrease) in non-current financial liabilities (others)  (80.42)  105.68 

Increase/(Decrease) in long term provisions  (81.61)  73.66 

Increase/(Decrease) in short term provisions  4,645.03  (1,918.97)

Increase/(Decrease) in current Trade Payables  (233.01)  1,940.21 

Increase/(Decrease) in current financial liabilities (others)  431.49  584.11 

Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities  5,441.68  (2,693.62)

Cash generated from operating activities before taxes  45,097.09  14,506.82 

Net income tax paid  (7,393.90)  (8,538.08)

Net Cash flow from operating activities (A)  37,703.19  5,968.74 

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Additions in tangible assets  (8,906.76)  (7,024.47)

Additions in intangible assets  -    (22.67)

Additions in CWIP  (1,970.20)  (208.40)

Capital Advances  987.94  (750.17)

Sale of fixed assets  (1.65)  74.99 

Interest received  721.18  555.59 

Dividend received  811.30  559.57 

Fixed deposits matured during the year  36.00  84.11 

Net Cash flow from Investing activities (B)  (8,322.19)  (6,731.45)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended March 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year  ended 

March 31, 2021

For the year ended  

March 31, 2020

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Increase/(Decrease) in share capital (including securities premium)  36.74  130.90 

Leased Payment  (692.52)  (752.79)

Net Loans (repaid) / taken  (12,691.58)  6,325.23 

Dividend paid including Dividend Distribution Tax  (2,670.85)  (1,929.98)

Interest paid  (2,262.86)  (2,825.62)

Net Cash flow from financing activities (C)  (18,281.07)  947.74 

Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  11,099.93  185.03 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  1,010.43  825.40 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  12,110.36  1,010.43 

Note -   		

The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of 
Cash Flows’.			 

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For BGJC & Associates LLP Dilip K. Banthiya Dr. Lalit Khaitan
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Chairman & Managing Director
Firm Regn. No. 003304N/N500056
Darshan Chhajer Dinesh Kumar Gupta Abhishek Khaitan
Partner Vice President - Legal & Managing Director
Membership No.: 088308 Company Secretary
Place  : Gurugram

Place: New Delhi 
Date: June 01, 2021

Alok Agarwal Director
Sr Vice President 
(Finance & Accounts)
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Consolidated Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended March 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars

For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

For the year ended  

March 31, 2020

 At the beginning of the year  2,670.69  2,668.19 
 Changes in Equity Share capital during the year  0.68  2.50 
 At the end of the year  2,671.37  2,670.69 

B. Other Equity 

Particulars

 Securities 

Premium 

Reserve  

 General 

Reserves   

 Employee 

Stock 

Options 

outstanding 

account 

 Retained 

Earnings   Total 

 Balance as at March 31, 2019  37,930.08  40,000.00  39.49  52,936.43  130,906.00 

 Profit/ (Loss) for the year  (1)  -    -    -    22,913.99  -   

 Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) (2)  -    -    -    (273.43)  -   

 Total Comprehensive Income/ (loss)  (1+2)  -    -    -    22,640.56  22,640.56 

 Dividends including tax thereon (Refer note 41)  -    -    -    (1,929.98)  (1,929.98)

 Lease assets - Ind As 116 adjustment  (130.58)  (130.58)

 Share based payments  151.50  (14.50)  137.00 

 Balance as at March 31, 2020  38,081.58 40,000.00  24.99  73,516.43  151,623.00 

 Profit/ (Loss) for the year  (1)  -    -    -    27,715.79  -   

 Other Comprehensive Income / (loss) (2)  -    -    -    (85.59)  -   

 Total Comprehensive Income/ (loss)  (1+2)  -    -    -    27,630.20  27,630.20 

 Dividends  (Refer note 41)  -    -    -    (2,670.85)  (2,670.85)

 Share based payments  42.55  (4.69)  -    37.86 

 Balance as at March 31, 2021  38,124.13 40,000.00  20.30  98,475.78  176,620.21 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For BGJC & Associates LLP Dilip K. Banthiya Dr. Lalit Khaitan
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Chairman & Managing Director
Firm Regn. No. 003304N/N500056
Darshan Chhajer Dinesh Kumar Gupta Abhishek Khaitan
Partner Vice President - Legal & Managing Director
Membership No.: 088308 Company Secretary
Place  : Gurugram

Place: New Delhi 
Date: June 01, 2021

Alok Agarwal Director
Sr Vice President 
(Finance & Accounts)
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Background

Radico Khaitan Limited (the Company) is a company 
limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India. The 
Company is engaged in the manufacturing and trading of 
Alcoholic products such as Indian Made Foreign Liquor 
(IMFL), Alcohol, Country Liquor etc. The Company has its  
presence in India as well as various other global markets. 
The joint venture (Radico NV Distelleries Maharashtra 
Limited) is in the business of manufacturing of potable and 
industrial alcohol and also bottling of IMFL for other brand 
owners, country liquor and allied activities.

Significant Accounting Policies	

1.01	 Basis of preparation

	 The consolidated financial statements of the 
Company, its joint venture (together referred to as 
the “Group”), comprising of Consolidated Balance 
Sheet and Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, 
Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows together 
with the consolidated notes have been prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015.

	 The group has prepared its financial statements 
in accordance with accounting standards notified 
under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, 
read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). These financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been 
prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

	 The Consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the 
following assets and liabilities which have been 
measured at fair value:

	 - 	 Derivative financial instruments,

	 - 	 Defined benefit plans

	 - 	 Share Based Payments

	 - 	� Certain financial assets and liabilities measured 
at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding 
financial instruments). 

1.02	Current versus non-current classification

	 The group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance 
Sheet based on current / non-current classification. 
An asset is treated as current when it is:

	 -	� expected to be realised or intended to be sold or 
consumed in normal operating cycle,

	 - 	 held primarily for the purpose of trading,

	 - 	� expected to be realised within twelve months 
after the reporting period, or

	 - 	� cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from 
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting period.  

	 All other assets are classified as non-current. 

	 A liability is current when:

	 - 	� it is expected to be settled in normal operating 
cycle,

	 - 	 it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

	 - 	� it is due to be settled within twelve months after 
the reporting period, or 

	 - 	� there is no unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the liability for atleast twelve 
months after the reporting period.

	 All other liabilities classified as non-current.

	� Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities respectively.

	� The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition 
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
and cash equivalents. The group has assumed twelve 
months as its operating cycle.

1.03	Fair value measurement

	� The group measures financial instruments, such as, 
derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell 
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

	 - 	 in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

	 - 	� in the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability

	 The principal or the most advantageous market must 
be accessible by the group.

	 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured 
using the assumptions that market participants would 
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use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best interest.

	 A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 
into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

	 The group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate 
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is 
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs.

	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, 
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement as a whole:

	 - 	� Level 1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

	 - 	� Level 2-Valuation techniques for which the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable,

	 - 	� Level 3-Valuation techniques for which the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable.

	 For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the 
financial statements on a recurring basis, the group 
determines whether transfers have occurred between 
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of 
each reporting period.

	 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the group 
has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset 
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above. 

1.04	Foreign Currency Transactions

	 The Consolidated financial statements are presented in 
INR, which is also its functional currency.

	 Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for at 
the exchange rate prevailing on the day of transaction. 
The outstanding liabilities/ receivables are translated at 
the year end rates.

	 Exchange differences arising on settlement or 
translation of monetary items are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency, 
are valued at the exchange rate prevailing on the date 
of transaction. Any gain or losses arising on translation 
or settlement are recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss as per the requirements of Ind AS 21.

1.05	Revenue recognition

	 The group revenue is derived from single performance 
obligation under arrangements in which the transfer 
of control of product and the fulfillment of companies 
performance obligation occur at the same time. 

	 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that the economic benefits will flow to the group and 
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of 
when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured 
at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable (net of returns and allowances, trade 
discounts and volume rebates), taking into account 
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding 
taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government 
with an exception to excise duty. The group has 
concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue 
arrangements with tie up units since the group is the 
primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements, has 
pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and 
credit risks. In arrangements with tie up units, revenue 
is recognised at gross value with corresponding cost 
being recognised under cost of production.

	 However, in case of revenue arrangements with royalty 
units, the group has concluded that it is acting as an 
agent in all such revenue arrangements since the 
group is not the primary obligor in all such revenue 
arrangements, has no pricing latitude and is not 
exposed to inventory and credit risks. group earns 
fixed royalty for sales made of its products which is 
recognised as revenue.

	 The group has assumed that recovery of excise duty 
flows to the group on its own and liability for excise 
duty forms part of the cost of production, irrespective 
of whether the goods are sold or not. Revenue 
therefore includes excise duty.

	 Interest income

	 For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, 
interest income is recorded using the effective interest 
rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the 
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the 
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter 
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying 
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost 
of a financial liability. When calculating the effective 
interest rate, the group estimates the expected cash 
flows by considering all the contractual terms of 
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the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, 
extension, call and similar options) but does not 
consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is 
included in finance income in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

	 Royalty Income

	 Royalties are recognised on an accrual basis in 
accordance with the substance of the relevant 
agreement.

	E xport Incentives 

	 Income from export incentives such as duty drawback 
etc. are recognised on accrual basis.

	D ividend Income

	 Dividend is recognised when the right to receive 
the payment is established, which is generally when 
shareholders approve the dividend.

1.06	Excise Duty

	 In respect of stocks covered by Central Excise, excise 
duty is provided on closing stocks and also considered 
for valuation. In respect of country liquor and IMFL 
stocks, applicable State excise duty/ export duty 
is provided on the basis of state-wise dispatches 
identified.  In the case of Rectified Spirit/ ENA, it is 
not ascertainable as to how much would be converted 
finally into country liquor or IMFL or sold as such and 
also to which particular state or exported outside 
India. Duty payable in such cases is not determinable 
(as it varies depending on the places and the form in 
which these are dispatched).  Hence, the excise duty 
on such stocks lying in factory is accounted for on 
clearances of such goods. The method of accounting 
followed by the group has no impact on the financial 
statements of the year.  

1.07	Government grants

	 Government grants are recognised at fair value where 
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and all attached conditions are complied 
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is 
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the 
periods that the related costs, for which it is intended 
to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates 
to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts 
over the expected useful life of the related asset.

	 When the group receives grants of non-monetary 
assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair 
value amounts and released to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of 
consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset i.e.  
by equal annual installments. When loans or similar 
assistance are provided by Governments or related 

institutions, with an interest rate lower than the current 
applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable 
interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan 
or assistance is initially recognised and measured 
at fair value and the government grant is measured 
as the difference between the initial carrying value 
of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is 
subsequently measured as per the accounting policy 
applicable to financial instruments.

1.08	Taxes

	 Current Income Tax

	 Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured 
at the amount expected to be recovered from or 
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax 
laws used to compute the amount are those that are 
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting 
date in the countries where the group operates and 
generates taxable income.

	 Current income tax relating to items recognised 
outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit 
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in 
equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation 
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly 
in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions 
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations 
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to 
interpretation and establishes provisions where 
appropriate.

	D eferred Tax

	 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on 
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 
reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

	 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences, except:

	 When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial 
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, 
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 
accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

	 In respect of taxable temporary differences associated 
with interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the 
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled 
and it is probable that the temporary differences will 
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused 
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax 
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable 
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that taxable profit will be available against which 
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses 
can be utilised, except:

	 - 	� When the deferred tax asset relating to the 
deductible temporary difference arises from 
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination 
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither 
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

	 - 	� In respect of deductible temporary differences 
associated with interests in joint ventures, 
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the 
extent that it is probable that the temporary 
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future 
and taxable profit will be available against which 
the temporary differences can be utilised

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed 
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit 
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax 
assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognised to the extent that it has become probable 
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the 
tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when 
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based 
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

	 Deferred tax on Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit 
is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent 
there is reasonable certainty that the group will pay 
normal income-tax during the specified period. The 
group reviews the same at each balance sheet date 
and writes down the carrying amount of deferred tax 
relating to MAT credit entitlement to the extent there 
is no longer reasonable certainty that the group will 
pay normal income-tax during the specified period.

	 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit 
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in 
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax 
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are 
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the 
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable group and 
the same taxation authority.

1.09	Property, plant and equipment

	 Property, plant and equipment have been measured 
at fair value at the date of transition to Ind AS. The 
group recognised the fair value as deemed cost at the 
transition date, viz., April 01, 2015.

	 Assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

	 Capital work in progress is stated at cost, less 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost 
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and 
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term 
construction projects if the recognition criteria are 
met.

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s 
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow 
to the group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. The carrying amount of any component 
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised 
when replaced. When significant parts of plant and 
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, 
the group depreciates them separately based on 
their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major 
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a 
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All 
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. (Refer to 
note 1.23 regarding significant accounting judgements, 
estimates and assumptions).

	D epreciation

	 Cost of leasehold land and leasehold improvements 
are amortised over the period of lease.

	 Depreciation is provided as per Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013, on straight line method with 
reference to the useful life of the assets specified 
therein.

	 On additions costing less than `5000, depreciation is 
provided at 100% in the year of addition.

	 The determination of the useful economic life and 
residual values of property, plant and equipment 
is subject to management estimation. The residual 
values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of 
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate.
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1.10	 Intangible assets

	 On transition to Ind AS, the group has elected to 
continue with the carrying value of all of intangible 
assets (except goodwill which was impaired) and use 
that carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible 
assets.

	 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured 
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible 
assets acquired in a business combination is their 
fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial 
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less 
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, 
excluding capitalised development costs, are not 
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in 
profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is 
incurred.

	 Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over 
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible 
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and 
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with 
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end 
of each reporting period. Changes in the expected 
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption 
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset 
are considered to modify the amortisation period or 
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes 
in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on 
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure 
forms part of carrying value of another asset.

	 Amortization

	 Based on the anticipated future economic benefits, 
the life of Brands & Trade Marks are amortised over 
twenty years on straight line method.

	 Software are amortised over a period of three years on 
straight line method.

1.11	 Borrowing costs

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of an asset 
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to 
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised 
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing 
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. 
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs 
that an group incurs in connection with the borrowing 
of funds. Borrowing costs also include exchange 
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment 
to the borrowing costs.

1.12	S egment reporting

	 Operating segments are defined as components of 
an enterprise for which discrete financial information 
is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief 
operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate 
resources and assessing performance. Operating 
segments are reported in a manner consistent with 
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision maker.

1.13	 Inventories

	 Finished goods and work-in-progress are valued at 
lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes 
cost of conversion and other expenses incurred in 
bringing the goods to their location and condition. 
Raw materials, packing materials, stores and spares 
are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost 
is ascertained on “moving weighted average” basis for 
all inventories.

	 Physical verification of all major Inventory items is 
carried out atleast once a year. The variations is any 
are duly accounted for after thorough verification. At 
the year end the stock is rolled over and verified.

	 Borrowing cost on Malt under maturation is not being 
capitalised to cost of inventory. This is in accordance 
with Ind AS 23, as they are manufactured of large 
quantity on the repetitive basis.”

1.14	 Leases

	 The group has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified 
retrospective approach and therefore the comparative 
information has not been restated and continues to be 
reported under Ind AS 17.

	G roup as a lessee

	 The group recognises a right-of-use asset and a 
lease liability at the lease commencement date. The 
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which 
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before 
the commencement date, plus any initial direct 
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle 
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the 
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less 
any lease incentives received.

	 The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated 
using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the 
useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the 
lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use 
assets are determined on the same basis as those of 
property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use 
asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if 
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any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the 
lease liability.

	 The lease liability is initially measured at the present 
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest 
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, group’s incremental borrowing rate.
Generally, the group uses its incremental borrowing 
rate as the discount rate.

	 Lease payments included in the measurement of the 
lease liability comprise the following:

	 –	� Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed 
payments;

	 –	� Variable lease payments that depend on an index 
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate 
as at the commencement date;

	 –	� Amounts expected to be payable under a residual 
value guarantee; and

	 – 	� The exercise price under a purchase option 
that the group is reasonably certain to exercise, 
lease payments in an optional renewal period 
if the group is reasonably certain to exercise 
an extension option, and penalties for early 
termination of a lease unless the group is 
reasonably certain not to terminate early.

	 The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method. It is remeasured when 
there is a change in future lease payments arising from 
a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in 
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be 
payable under a residual value guarantee, or if group 
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a 
purchase, extension or termination option.

	 When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a 
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in 
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use 
asset has been reduced to zero.

	S hort-term leases

	 The group has elected not to recognise right-of-use 
assets and lease liabilities for short term leases that 
have a lease term of 12 months. The group recognises 
the lease payments associated with these leases as an 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.”

	U nder Ind AS 17

	 A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance 
lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers 

substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership to the group is classified as a finance lease.

	 Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement 
of the lease at the inception date fair value of the 
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of 
the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are 
apportioned between finance charges and reduction 
of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate 
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Finance charges are recognised in finance costs 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless they are 
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case 
they are capitalized in accordance with the group’s 
general policy on the borrowing costs (See note 1.11). 
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the 
periods in which they are incurred.

	 Leased assets are depreciated over the useful life of 
the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty 
that the group will obtain ownership by the end of the 
lease term, the asset is depreciated over the lower of 
the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease 
term.

	 As on transition date, the group has newly classified a 
land lease as a finance lease and has recognised such 
asset and liability at fair value with differential being 
recognised in retained earnings.

	 Operating lease rentals are charged off to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.15	 Impairment of non-financial assets

	 At each reporting date, the group reviews the carrying 
amount of it assets to determine whether there 
are any indication that those assets have suffered 
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, 
recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order 
to determine the extent of impairment loss.

	 An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less 
costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable 
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless 
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets or 
group’s of assets. When the carrying amount of an 
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its 
recoverable amount.

	 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less 
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costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken 
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, 
an appropriate valuation model is used. These 
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, 
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or 
other available fair value indicators.

1.16	�P rovisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 

Assets

	P rovisions

	 Provisions are recognized when the group has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation. When the group 
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, 
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, 
but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. 
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

	 If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to 
the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in 
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised 
as a finance cost.

	 Contingent liability and Contingent Assets

	 Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are 
disclosed where possibility of any outflow in settlement 
is remote.

	 Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed 
where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

1.17	 Employee benefits

	S hort-term obligations 

	 Liabilities for salaries and wages, including non-
monetary benefits, that are expected to be settled 
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period 
in which the employees render the related service are 
recognized up to the end of the reporting period and 
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 
on settlement of such liabilities. The liabilities are 
presented as current employee benefit obligations in 
the Balance Sheet. 

	 Other long-term employee benefit obligations 

	 The liabilities for earned and sick leave are not 
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after 
the end of the period in which the employees render 
the related service. They are therefore measured at the 
present value of expected future payments to be made 

in respect of services provided by employees up to the 
end of the reporting period using the projected unit 
credit method. The benefits are discounted using the 
market yields at the end of the reporting period that 
have terms approximating to the terms of the related 
obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

	 The obligations are presented as current liabilities in 
the Balance Sheet since the group does not have an 
unconditional right to defer the settlement for atleast 
twelve months after the reporting period, regardless 
of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

	P ost-employment obligations 

	 The group operates the following post-employment 
schemes: 

	G ratuity obligations 

	 The group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for 
employees. The group has obtained group gratuity 
scheme policies from Life Insurance Corporation of 
India to cover the gratuity liability of these employees. 
The difference in the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets 
at the end of the reporting period is recognized as a 
liability or asset, as the case may be, in the Balance 
Sheet. The defined benefit obligation is calculated 
annually on the basis of actuarial valuation using the 
projected unit credit method. 

	 The net interest cost is calculated by applying the 
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost 
is included in the employee benefit expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

	 Re-measurement gains and losses arising from 
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognized in the period in which 
they occur, directly in OCI. 

	 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation resulting from plan amendments or 
curtailments are recognized immediately in statement 
of profit or loss as past service cost. 

	P rovident Fund Obligation

	 The Company makes contribution to the recognised 
provident fund - “ The Rampur Distillery & Chemical 
Company Limited Employee Provident Fund Trust”, 
which is a defined benefit plan to the extent that 
the Company has an obligation to make good 
the shortfall, if any, between the return from the 
investments of the trust and the notified interest rate. 
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The Company’s obligation in this regard is determined 
by an independent actuary and provided for if the 
circumstances indicate that the Trust may not be able 
to generate adequate returns to cover the interest 
rates notified by the Government.

	 Company’s contribution to the provident fund is 
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss

1.18	S hare-based payments 

	 Employees of the group receive remuneration in the 
form of share-based payments, whereby employees 
render services as consideration for equity instruments 
(equity-settled transactions). The cost of equity-
settled transactions is determined by the fair value at 
the date when the grant is made using an appropriate 
valuation model. The fair value of the options granted 
is recognized as an employee benefits expense with a 
corresponding increase in equity. Total amount to be 
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value 
of the option granted: 

	 - 	� including any market performance conditions 
(e.g., the group’s share price), 

	 - 	� excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (e.g., 
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining 
and employee of the group over a specified time 
period), and 

	 - 	� including the impact of any non-vesting 
conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees 
to save or holding shares for a specific period of 
time). 

	 The total expense is recognized over the vesting 
period, which is the period over which all of the 
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the 
end of each period, the group revises its estimates of 
the number of options that are expected to vest based 
on the non-market vesting and service conditions. 
It recognizes the impact of the revision to original 
estimates, if any, in statement of profit or loss, with a 
corresponding adjustment to equity.

1.19	E arnings Per Share

	 “Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing 
the net profit for the period attributable to the 
equity shareholders of the group by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. The weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period and for all 
periods presented is adjusted for events, such as 
bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential 
equity shares that have changed the number of equity 

shares outstanding, without a corresponding change 
in resources.

	 Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing 
the net profit for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of 
shares outstanding during the period adjusted for the 
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1.20	Financial instruments

	 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one group and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another group.

	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
financial assets and financial liabilities, other than 
those designated as fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL), are added to or deducted from the fair 
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as 
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial 
assets or financial liabilities recognised at FVTPL are 
recognized immediately in Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

	 A. 	F inancial Assets

	 Financial assets are recognised when the group 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument

		S  ubsequent measurement

	 Financial assets are subsequently classified as 
measured at:

		  - 	 amortised cost

		  - 	� fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVTOCI)

		  - 	 fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

		  Trade Receivables and Loans:

	 Trade receivables and Loans are initially 
recognised at fair value. Subsequently these 
assets are held at amortised cost, using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any 
expected credit losses (ECL). The EIR is the rate 
that discounts estimated future cash income 
through the expected life of financial instrument.

		F  inancial assets measured at amortised cost:

	 A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if 
both the following conditions are met:
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	 a). 	� The asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets for 
collecting contractual cash flows, and

	 b). 	� Contractual terms of the instruments give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on 
the principal amount outstanding.

	 After initial measurement, such financial assets 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. 
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts (including all fees and points 
paid or received that form an integral part of the 
EIR, transaction costs and other premiums or 
discounts) through the expected life of the debt 
instrument or where appropriate, a shorter period, 
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

	 The EIR amortisation is included in other income 
in the statement of profit and loss. The losses 
arising from impairment are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. This category 
generally applies to trade and other receivables, 
loans, etc.

		�  Measured at fair value through other 

comprehensive income:  

	 Financial assets that are held within a business 
model whose objective is achieved by both, 
selling financial assets and collecting contractual 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest, are subsequently measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income. Fair 
value movements are recognized in the other 
comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income 
measured using the EIR method and impairment 
losses, if any are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is 
reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		  Measured at fair value through Profit or Loss: 

	 A financial asset not classified as either amortised 
cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such 
financial assets are measured at fair value with 
all changes in fair value, including interest income 
and dividend income if any, recognised as ‘other 
income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		E  quity investments

	 All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 
are measured at fair value. Equity instruments 

which are held for trading and contingent 
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a 
business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies 
are classified as FVTPL. For all other equity 
instruments, the group may make an irrevocable 
election to present in other comprehensive 
income subsequent changes in the fair value. The 
group makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on 
initial recognition and is irrevocable.

	 Equity instruments included within the FVTPL 
category are measured at fair value with all 
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

		D  erecognition

	 The group derecognizes a financial asset when 
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire or the same are transferred.

		  Impairment of financial assets

	 Expected credit losses (ECL) are recognized 
for all financial assets subsequent to initial 
recognition other than financials assets in FVTPL 
category, as per policy approved by the Board of 
Directors.

	 For financial assets, as per Ind AS 109, the group 
recognises 12 months expected credit losses for 
all originated or  acquired financial assets if at 
the reporting date. The credit risk of the financial 
asset has not increased significantly since its 
initial recognition.

	 Expected credit losses are measured as lifetime 
expected credit losses if the credit risk on 
financial asset increases significantly since its 
initial recognition.”

	 The impairment losses and reversals are 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 B. 	F inancial liabilities 

	 Financial liabilities are recognised when the group 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument

		S  ubsequent measurement

	 - 	� Financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the EIR 
method.

	 - 	� Financial liabilities carried at fair value 
through profit or loss are measured at fair 
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value with all changes in fair value recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		  Trade and other payables

	 In case of trade and other payables, they are 
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently, 
these liabilities are held at amortised cost, using 
the effective interest rate method.

	 Trade and other payables represent liabilities for 
goods and services provided to the group prior 
to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The 
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid as 
per credit period. Trade and other payables are 
presented as current liabilities unless payment is 
not due within 12 months after the reporting period.

		D  erecognition

	 A financial liability is de-recognised when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires.

		  Reclassification of financial assets

	 No reclassification is made for financial assets 
which are equity instruments and financial 
liabilities. For financial assets which are debt 
instruments, a reclassification is made only if there 
is a change in the business model for managing 
those assets. Changes to the business model are 
expected to be infrequent. The group’s senior 
management determines change in the business 
model as a result of external or internal changes 
which are significant to the group’s operations. 
Such changes are evident to external parties. A 
change in the business model occurs when the 
group either begins or ceases to perform an 
activity that is significant to its operations. If 
the group reclassifies financial assets, it applies 
the reclassification prospectively from the 
reclassification date which is the first day of the 
immediately next reporting period following the 
change in business model. The group does not 
restate any previously recognised gains, losses 
(including impairment gains or losses).

	 C. 	 Offsetting of financial instruments

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are 
offset and the net amount is reported in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on 
a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously, includes balances 
written off against provisions. 

1.21	 Derivative financial instruments

	 The group uses derivative financial instruments, such 
as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps 
to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest 
rate risks. Such derivative financial instruments 
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on 
which a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives 
are carried as financial assets when the fair value is 
positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value 
is negative.

1.22	Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet 
comprise balance at banks and cash on hand and 
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three 
months or less, highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value.

1.23	�Significant accounting judgements, estimates and 

assumptions

	 The preparation of the Consolidated financial 
statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, 
liabilities, contingent liabilities, and the acgrouping 
disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and 
estimates, in the COVID19 pandemic environment of 
lockdown, could result in out comes that require a 
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets 
or liabilities affected in future periods. These have 
been assessed to the best of understanding but the 
degree of uncertainty has increased.

	 Judgements

	 In the process of applying the accounting policies, 
management has made the following judgements, 
which have most significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the separate financial statements:

	 a)	 Arrangement containing lease

	 Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease 
term as the non-cancellable period of a lease 
adjusted with any option to extend or terminate 
the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably 
certain. The group makes an assessment on the 
expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis 
and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably 
certain that any options to extend or terminate 
the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the 
lease term, the group considers factors such 
as any significant leasehold improvements 
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to 
the termination of the lease and the importance 
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of the underlying asset to Radico’s operations 
taking into account the location of the underlying 
asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. 
The lease term in future periods is reassessed to 
ensure that the lease term reflects the current 
economic circumstances. After considering 
current and future economic conditions, the 
group has concluded that no changes are required 
to lease period relating to the existinglease 
contracts. 

	 b)	 Revenue recognition

	 The group assesses its revenue arrangements 
against specific criteria, i.e. whether it has 
exposure to the significant risks and rewards 
associated with the sale of goods or the rendering 
of services, in order to determine if it is acting as a 
principal or as an agent. The group has generally 
concluded that it is acting as a principal in all its 
revenue arrangements.

	 When deciding the most appropriate basis for 
presenting revenue or costs of revenue, both 
the legal form and substance of the agreement 
between the group and its business partners are 
reviewed to determine each party’s respective 
role in the transaction. 

	 Where the group’s role in a transaction is that of a 
principal, revenue is recognised on a gross basis. 
This requires revenue to comprise the gross value 
of the transaction billed to the customer, net off 
sales tax/VAT/GST, trade discounts and rebates 
but inclusive of excise duty with any related 
expenditure charged as an operating cost.

		E  stimates and assumptions

	 The key assumptions concerning the future and 
other key sources of estimation and uncertainty 
at the reporting date, that have a significant 
risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next financial year, are described below. 
The group based its assumptions and estimates 
on parameters available when the financial 
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances 
and assumptions about future developments, 
however, may change due to market changes or 
circumstances arising that are beyond the control 
of the group, especially in the current COVID19 
Pandemic environment. Management has made 
the estimates and assumptions considering the 
short to medium term impact, to the best of 
understanding. Such changes are reflected in the 
assumptions when they occur.

	 a)	 Impairment reviews

	 At each reporting date, the group reviews the 
carrying amount of its non-financial assets to 
determine whether there are any indication that 
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If 
any such indication exists, recoverable amount of 
the assets is estimated in order to determine the 
extent of impairment loss.

	 Impairment reviews in respect of the relevant 
CGUs are performed at least annually or more 
regularly if events indicate that this is necessary.

	 Impairment reviews are based on discounted 
future cash flows. The future cash flows which 
are based on business forecasts, the long-term 
growth rates and the pre-tax discount rates, that 
reflects the current market assessment of the time 
value of money and the risk specific to the asset 
or CGU, used are dependent on management 
estimates and judgements. Future events could 
cause the assumptions used in these impairment 
reviews to change.

	 There is no significant impact due to the COVID 
19 pandemic and lockdown as assessed by the 
management.

	 b)	� Allowance for uncollectible account receivables 

and advances

	 Trade receivables and certain financial assets 
do not carry any interest unlike other interest 
bearing financials assets viz intercorporate 
deposits. Such financial assets are stated at 
their carrying value as reduced by impairment 
losses determined in accordance with expected 
credit loss. Allowance as per expected credit loss 
model is based on simplified approach which is 
based on historically observed default rates and 
changed as per forward-looking estimates. In 
case of trade receivables group uses a provision 
matrix to determine impairment loss allowance 
on portfolio of its trade receivables which is also 
based on its historically observed default rates 
over the expected life of the trade receivables and 
is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. The 
actual loss could differ from the estimate made 
by the management, especially in the current 
environment of COVID19 Pandemic.

	 c)	 Taxes

	 The group is subject to income tax laws as 
applicable in India. Significant judgement is 
required in determining the provision for taxes as 
the tax treatment is often by its nature complex, 
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and cannot be finally determined until a formal 
resolution has been reached with the relevant 
tax authority which may take several years to 
conclude. Amounts provided are accrued based 
on management’s interpretation of country 
specific tax laws and the likelihood of settlement. 
The group recognises  liabilities for anticipated tax 
issues based on estimates of whether additional 
taxes will be due. Actual liabilities could differ 
from the amount provided which could have a 
consequent adverse impact on the results and 
net position of the group.

	 d)	 Pension and post-retirement benefits

	 The cost of defined benefit plans viz. gratuity, 
provident fund, leave encashment, etc. are 
determined using actuarial assumptions. An 
actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions that may differ from actual 
developments in the future. These include 
the determination of the discount rate, future 
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the 
complexities involved in the valuation and its 
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is 
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. 
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting 
date. 

	 The parameter most subject to change is the 
discount rate. In determining the appropriate 
discount rate for plans operated in India, the 
management considers the interest rates of 
government bonds in currencies consistent with 
the currencies of the post-employment benefit 
obligation.

	 The mortality rate is based on publicly available 
mortality tables for the specific countries. Those 
mortality tables tend to change only at interval in 
response to demographic changes. Future salary 
increases and gratuity increases are based on 
expected future inflation rates.

	 Further details about defined benefit plans are 
given in note no. 53.

	 e)	�D epreciation / amortisation and useful lives 

of property plant and equipment / intangible 

assets 

	 Property, plant and equipment / intangible 
assets are depreciated / amortised over their 
estimated useful lives, after taking into account 
estimated residual value. Management reviews 
the estimated useful lives and residual values 
of the assets annually in order to determine the 
amount of depreciation / amortisation to be 
recorded during any reporting period. The useful 
lives and residual values are based on the group’s 
historical experience with similar assets and take 
into account anticipated technological changes. 
The depreciation / amortisation for future periods 
is revised if there are significant changes from 
previous estimates.

1.24	Recent Accounting Developments

	 Standard issued but not yet effective: (based on 
Exposure drafts available as on date)

	 Issue of Ind AS 117 – Insurance Contracts

	 Ind AS 117 supersedes Ind AS 104 Insurance contracts. 
It establishes the principles for the recognition, 
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance 
contracts within the scope of the standard. Under the 
Ind AS 117 model, insurance contract liabilities will be 
calculated as the present value of future insurance 
cash flows with a provision for risk. Application of 
this standard is not expected to have any significant 
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

	 Amendments to existing Standards

	 Ministry of Corporate Affairs has carried out 
amendments of the following accounting standards:

	 1.	 Ind AS 103 – Business Combination

	 2.	� Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements 
and Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors

	 3. 	 Ind AS 40 – Investment Property

	 The group is in the process of evaluating the impact of 
the new amendments issued but not yet effective.
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2	Pr operty, plant and equipment 

	 (Refer notes 1.09 ,1.10 and 1.14)

Description of Assets

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

As at  
April 01, 2020 Additions

Disposals/ 
Adjsuments

As at  
March 31, 2021

Up to  
March 31,2020

For the 
year

Accumulated 
Depreciation 
on Disposals

Up to  
March 31,2021

As at  
March 31,2021

Tangible Assets

 Freehold land  12,865.48  -    -    12,865.48  -    -    -    -    12,865.48 

 Leasehold land  3,467.56  -    -    3,467.56  229.65  45.93  -    275.58  3,191.98 

 Buildings  10,068.39  1,127.94  -    11,196.33  1,719.80  450.91  -    2,170.71  9,025.62 

 Plant & equipments  61,103.28  4,271.40  194.20  65,180.48  14,548.69  3,839.18  161.34  18,226.53  46,953.95 

 Furniture & Fixtures  489.28  1,023.42  0.08  1,512.62  177.60  94.94  0.08  272.46  1,240.16 

 Vehicles  935.95  415.94  75.31  1,276.58  291.39  131.42  51.99  370.82  905.76 

 Office equipments  199.88  181.90  7.69  374.09  101.08  50.52  6.86  144.74  229.35 

 Right to use (Leased Assets) 

(Refer note 39 ( c)) 

 1,300.45  1,187.61  -    2,488.06  560.37  499.46  -    1,059.83  1,428.23 

 Leasehold improvements  288.40  1,886.16  -    2,174.56  136.49  39.73  -    176.22  1,998.34 

 90,718.67  10,094.37  277.28  100,535.76  17,765.07  5,152.09  220.27  22,696.89  77,838.87 

Intangible Assets

 Brands & trade marks  2,552.26  -    -    2,552.26  1,220.53  215.49  -    1,436.02  1,116.24 

 Software  393.91  -    -    393.91  336.69  22.33  -    359.02  34.89 

 2,946.17  -    -    2,946.17  1,557.22  237.82  -    1,795.04  1,151.13 

Total  93,664.84  10,094.37  277.28  103,481.93  19,322.29  5,389.91  220.27  24,491.93  78,990.00 

Description of Assets

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

As at  
April 01, 2019 Additions

Disposals/ 
Adjsuments

As at  
March 

31,2020
Up to  

March 31,2019
For the 

year

Accumulated 
Depreciation 
on Disposals

Up to  
March 31, 

2020

As at  
March 

31,2020

Tangible Assets

 Freehold land  12,927.50  -    62.02  12,865.48  -    -    -    -    12,865.48 

 Leasehold land  3,467.56  -    -    3,467.56  183.72  45.93  -    229.65  3,237.91 

 Buildings  8,782.51  1,311.93  26.05  10,068.39  1,319.35  425.12  24.67  1,719.80  8,348.59 

 Plant & equipments  56,663.84  5,664.22  1,224.78  61,103.28  12,008.18  3,694.22  1,153.71  14,548.69  46,554.59 

 Furniture & fittings  480.94  8.34  -    489.28  108.59  69.01  -    177.60  311.68 

 Vehicles  1,004.02  4.96  73.03  935.95  225.88  131.14  65.63  291.39  644.56 

 Office equipments  174.94  35.02  10.08  199.88  53.80  52.75  5.47  101.08  98.80 

 Right to use (Leased 
Assets) (Refer note 39 ( c)) 

 -    1,300.45  -    1,300.45  -    560.37  -    560.37  740.08 

 Leasehold improvements  288.40  -    -    288.40  97.81  38.68  -    136.49  151.91 

 83,789.71  8,324.92  1,395.96  90,718.67  13,997.33  5,017.22  1,249.48  17,765.07  72,953.60 

Intangible Assets

 Brands & trade marks  2,552.26  -    -    2,552.26  1,005.04  215.49  -    1,220.53  1,331.73 

 Software  457.23  22.67  85.99  393.91  402.66  20.02  85.99  336.69  57.22 

 3,009.49  22.67  85.99  2,946.17  1,407.70  235.51  85.99  1,557.22  1,388.95 

Total  86,799.20  8,347.59  1,481.95  93,664.84  15,405.03  5,252.73  1,335.47  19,322.29  74,342.55 
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3 	 Investment in a joint venture

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Unquoted Investments

Equity Shares (at amortised cost) (Refer note 58)

Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Limited - 13,58,503 (previous year: 
13,58,503) equity shares of ` 100 each, fully paid up

 13,538.53  13,538.53 

Add: Share of profit/reserve of Joint Venture  2,901  2,240.82 

 16,439  15,779 

Preference Shares (at amortised cost)

Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Limited - 20,00,000 (previous year: 
20,00,000) 10% cumulative, non-convertible preference

 2,000.00  2,000.00 

shares of `100 each, fully paid up  18,439.43  17,779.35 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  18,439.43  17,779.35 

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments.  -    -   

4 	 Investment in Others (Unquoted at FVTPL)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

New Urban Cooperative Bank Ltd. - 2,388 (previous year: 2,388)
equity shares of ` 25 each, fully paid up

 0.60  0.60 

 0.60  0.60 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  0.60  0.60 

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments  -    -   

5 	 Loans

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Unsecured- Considered good)

Security Deposits  973.33  1,658.26 

 973.33  1,658.26 

6 	Ot hers

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Interest accrued on term deposits  10.72  12.60 

Deposits with more than 12 months maturity (Refer note-11)  55.89  166.45 

Advances recoverable  -    0.90 

 66.61  179.95 

7 	Ot her non-current assets

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Capital Advances  3,532.43  4,520.37 

Advances other than capital advances

Advances recoverable  3,092.00  5,592.00 

Prepaid Assets  91.78  193.58 

 6,716.21  10,305.95 
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8 	 Inventories

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Refer note-1.13 on valuation of inventories)

Raw materials  8,846.51  7,691.42 

Work-in-progress  3,724.71  3,729.67 

Finished goods *  25,949.54  17,253.87 

Stock-in-trade  192.53  160.68 

Stores & spares (Including promotional material)  4,451.06  3,581.36 

Packing materials  5,929.72  5,978.31 

Goods in transit - Raw material  2.75  11.69 

 49,096.82  38,407.00 

Less: Provision for obsolete and non-moving inventories  (190.25)  (989.46)

 48,906.57  37,417.54 

	 Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

	 Write-down of inventories to net realisable value, resulted in net loss / (gain) of ` 155.26 lakhs (previous year `875.00 
lakhs). These were recognised as an expense / income during the year in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 * Includes provision for excise duty/Custom duty ` 9,356.87 lakhs (previous year ` 4,409.04 lakhs)

	 * Include ENA and Malt Spirit under maturation.

9 	 Trade Receivables

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured  67,736.65  77,591.55 

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk  4,534.89  6,777.63 

Trade Receivables - credit impaired  -    357.09 

 72,271.54  84,726.27 

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  (2,525.80)  (2,420.83)

 69,745.74  82,305.44 

	 Trade Receivables relate to company’s contract with its customers, are non interest bearing and are generally on 
credit terms not exceeding 12 months.

10 	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balances with banks*  12,087.82  986.77 

Cash in hand  22.54  23.66 

 12,110.36  1,010.43 

	 *Including cheques on hand ` Nil (previous year ` 22.10 Lakhs)				  

11 	 Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balances with banks
In unpaid dividend accounts  152.49  152.89 
In term deposits  #  791.11  827.11 

Deposits with more than 12 months maturity (Refer note-6)  (55.89)  (166.45)
 887.71  813.55 

#  Deposit are:
Under lien with Government departments and banks as security  791.11  827.11 
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12 	 Loans 

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Unsecured- Considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Security Deposits  1,435.10  1,173.29 
Others
Advances recoverable  449.37  202.36 
Inter corporate deposits (Refer note-54)
ICDs Considered good - Unsecured  2,688.68  2,698.21 
ICDs - credit impaired.  -    461.00 

 4,573.15  4,534.86 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  -    (461.00)

 4,573.15  4,073.86 

13 	Ot hers

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Accrued export incentives  598.15  418.99 
Other balances recoverable from Statutory/ Government authorities  2,078.43  1,345.20 
Interest accrued on

term deposits  44.55  32.05 
Loans and advances

Considered good - Unsecured  175.45  253.94 
Credit impaired  112.31  112.31 

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  (112.31)  (112.31)
 2,896.58  2,050.18 

14 	 Current Tax assets (Net)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Income Tax *  97.47  750.18 
 97.47  750.18 

	 *Net of provisions of ` 15,549.95 (Previous year ` 25,635.42)

15 	Ot her current assets

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Unsecured -  Considered good)
Advances recoverable in kind  1,637.93  1,837.88 
Others

Amount paid under protest  807.14  520.69 
Claims and duties adjustable from Excise Department  14,173.73  6,687.10 
Other Advances recoverable  3,399.77  2,099.77 
Prepaid assets  3,235.36  2,638.48 

 23,253.93  13,783.92 

16 	E quity share capital

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Authorised

17,00,00,000 (Previous year 17,00,00,000) equity shares of ` 2/- each  3,400.00  3,400.00 
60,00,000  (Previous year 60,00,000) preference shares of ` 100/- each  6,000.00  6,000.00 

 9,400.00  9,400.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid

13,35,68,265 (Previous Year 13,35,34,265) equity shares of ` 2/- each  2,671.37  2,670.69 
 2,671.37  2,670.69 

	 Rights, Preferences & Restrictions attached to equity shares				  

a. 	 The Company has issued only one class of shares, referred to as equity shares having a par value of ` 2/-. Each 
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders 
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of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential 
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

	 b. 	 Reconciliation of the number of shares

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

No. of Shares No. of Shares

Outstanding at the beginning of the year  133,534,265  133,409,265 
Add: Issued during the year  34,000  125,000 
Outstanding at the end of the year  133,568,265  133,534,265 

	 c.	D etails of shareholders holding more than 5% of total equity shares of the company

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Percentage  
of Holding No. of Shares

Percentage of 
Holding No. of Shares

Sapphire Intrex Ltd. 33.97%  45,379,098 33.98%  45,379,098 
TIMF Holdings 5.83%  7,781,575 5.83%  7,781,575 

	 d. 	S hares reserved for issue under options: ESOPs				  

	 The Company established Employee Stock Options Plan, duly approved by the shareholders in the meeting held 
on May 25, 2006  which was effective from July 25, 2006.  Accordingly, the Company has granted 42,80,000 
equity options up to March 31, 2021 which will get vested over a period of 4 years from the date of the grant. 
The employees have the options to exercise their right within a period of  3 years from the date of vesting. The 
compensation cost of stock options granted to employees is accounted by the Company using the fair value 
method.	

	 e. 	S ummary of Stock Option

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

No. of  
stock option

No. of  
stock option

Option granted up to the year end  4,280,000  4,280,000 
Options forfeited up to the year end  1,741,451  1,741,451 
Options exercised up to the year end  2,433,049  2,399,049 
Option outstanding at the year end  105,500  139,500 
Exercise price (weighted average)  ` 86.29  ` 85.98 

	 In respect of Options granted under the Employee Stock Options plan, in accordance with the guidelines issued by 
SEBI, the accounting value of the options is accounted as deferred employee compensation, which is amortized 
on a straight line basis over the period between the date of grant of options and eligible dates for conversion 
into equity shares. Consequently, Employee benefits expense (Refer note-33) includes ` 1.79 lakhs (previous year 
` 8.59 lakhs) being the amortisation of deferred employee compensation.	

17 	Ot her Equity #

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Reserves & Surplus

Retained Earning  98,475.78  73,516.43 
Securities Premium Reserve  38,124.13  38,081.58 
General Reserve  40,000.00  40,000.00 
Employee Stock Options Outstanding Account  20.30  24.99 

 176,620.21  151,623.00 

	 # Refer statement of changes in equity for detailed movement in above reserves and surplus.



166    | Radico Khaitan Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

18 	 Borrowings 

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Secured #

Vehicle loans  153.51  290.56 
 153.51  290.56 

Less : Shown in current maturities of long-term debt (Refer note- 25)  (126.60)  (137.25)
 (126.60)  (137.25)

 26.91  153.31 

	 # Notes				  

	 i). The above loans are secured by a pari-passu first charge on Vehicles procured.				  

	 ii).  Terms of repayment are as follows:-

Name Year of Maturity
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2021 
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2020 

HDFC Bank * Jan 2022  106.20  224.50 
HDFC Bank * June 2023  21.11  29.27 
YES Bank * May 2023  26.20  36.79 

 153.51  290.56 

	 * Monthly Installment

19 	Ot hers (at amortised cost)

Name
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2021 
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2020 

Security Payable  72.45  152.87 
Lease Liabilities (Refer note no. 39 ( c))  1,070.85  362.09 

 1,143.30  514.96 

20 	Provisions

Name
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2021 
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2020 

Provision for employee benefits
Leave encashment  1,028.74  1,110.35 

 1,028.74  1,110.35 

21 	D eferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (Refer note-43)

Name
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2021 
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2020 

Deferred Tax Liabilities  9,825.07  9,955.33 

Deferred Tax Assets  (1,800.29)  (2,108.73)

Deferred Tax Liability (Net)  8,024.78  7,846.60 

22 	Other non-current liabilities

Name
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2021 
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2020 

Other Payables  16.58  16.58 

 16.58  16.58 
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23 	Borrowings

Name
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2021 
 Outstanding as at 

March 31, 2020 

Secured #

Cash credit from banks  682.45  21,736.97 

Unsecured

Loan from banks  26,499.99  18,000.00 

 27,182.44  39,736.97 

	 # Secured by hypothecation of inventories and trade receivables. Further secured by a second charge on fixed assets 
of the Company.				  

	 Non-fund based facilities provided by banks are also secured by second charge on the fixed assets (Property, Plant 
and Equipment excluding Intangible Assets) of the Company.				  

24 	Trade Payables

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Outstanding dues of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Refer note no. 57)  3,073.83  2,786.51 

Other Enterprises  23,116.94  23,637.27 

 26,190.77  26,423.78 

25 	Others (Financial liability carried at amortised cost)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Current maturities of long-term debt

Rupee loan from banks  126.60  137.25 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  53.63  239.51 

Lease Liabilities (Refer note 39 ( c))  413.39  502.96 

Security Payable  2,585.85  2,154.40 

Unclaimed dividends #  152.49  152.53 

 3,331.96  3,186.65 

	 # This does not include any amount due and outstanding, to be credited to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund.

26 	Provisions

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

For employee benefits

Gratuity (Refer note-53)  170.77  388.08 

Leave encashment  510.24  480.49 

For excise duty on closing stock  9,298.72  4,371.21 

For custom duty on closing stock  58.16  37.83 

 10,037.89  5,277.61 

27 	Other Current Liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

On account of capital goods/ services  391.32  341.18 

Advances from customers  8,072.51  5,642.88 

Other payables

Accrued salary and benefits  715.25  633.11 

Statutory dues  5,982.15  3,102.38 

 15,161.23  9,719.55 
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28 	Revenue from Operations

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Refer note-1.05 on revenue recognition)
Sale of 

Alcohol and other alcoholic products  1,029,468.68  933,105.93 
Pet bottles & caps  2,719.53  3,755.74 
Jaivik khad  393.62  348.88 
Others  654.48  328.38 

Sale of traded goods
Indian Made Foreign Liquor  -    -   
Imported Liquor  241.94  659.78 
Royalty Income  779.39  1,001.53 

Other operating revenues
Export incentives  264.33  202.58 
SAD refund  -    -   
Scrap sales  2,214.15  2,386.32 

 1,036,736.12  941,789.14 

29 	Other Income

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Interest income on

Term deposit with banks and financial institutions  53.39  53.15 

Loans (including inter corporate deposits)  421.12  414.11 

Deferred income on deposit  25.59  31.07 

Interest on income tax refunds  153.46  -   

Dividend income on non-current (trade) investments  811.30  359.57 

Other non-operating income

Profit on sale of current investments  0.57  -   

Profit on sale of fixed assets  2.41  6.10 

Excess provisions written back  80.68  24.82 

Miscellaneous income   458.85  29.85 

 2,007.37  918.67 

30 	Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Raw Materials

Opening Stock  7,691.42  6,977.32 

Add: Purchases  68,063.46  68,325.40 

 75,754.88  75,302.72 

Less: Closing Stock  (8,846.51)  (7,691.42)

Raw material consumed  66,908.37  67,611.30 

Packing materials consumed  56,974.93  59,479.88 

 123,883.30  127,091.18 

31 	P urchase of stock-in-trade

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Imported Liquor  177.00  358.90 

 177.00  358.90 
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32 	Change in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Opening Stock

Stock-in-trade  160.68  309.59 

Finished goods  17,253.87  17,186.17 

Work-in-progress  3,729.67  3,616.92 

 21,144.22  21,112.68 

Less : Closing Stock

Stock-in-trade  192.53  160.68 

Finished goods  25,949.54  17,253.87 

Work-in-progress  3,724.71  3,729.67 

 29,866.78  21,144.22 

Increase / (Decrease) of excise duty CL Depot stock  (22.98)  (748.08)

Increase / (Decrease) of excise duty on Finished Goods  4,927.50  (1,851.37)

 (3,818.04)  (2,630.99)

33 	Employee benefits expense

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Salaries, wages and allowances  15,896.90  17,019.70 

Contribution to provident and other funds  992.03  834.96 

Gratuity  229.27  181.32 

Share based payment to Employee (Refer note-16)  1.79  8.59 

Staff welfare expenses  513.57  563.51 

 17,633.56  18,608.08 

34 	Finance costs

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Interest  2,005.19  2,948.69 

Finance cost on Leased Assets (Refer note 39 (c))  124.67  140.44 

Other borrowing costs  71.79  72.33 

 2,201.65  3,161.46 

35 	Depreciation and amortization expense

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Depreciation on tangible assets  5,152.09  5,017.22 

Amortisation of intangible assets  237.82  235.51 

 5,389.91  5,252.73 
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36 	Other expenses

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Power and fuel  4,684.53  5,026.71 

Stores and spares consumed  1,966.67  1,944.90 

Repairs and maintenance

Building  133.58  220.86 

Plant and equipment  2,081.38  1,747.59 

Others  216.16  307.01 

Machinery and other hire charges  5.14  5.09 

Insurance  797.82  645.97 

Rent  148.95  138.03 

Rates and taxes  12,288.81  9,586.67 

Travelling

Directors  55.20  156.34 

Others  811.19  1,219.57 

Directors' fee  20.97  18.91 

Foreign exchange fluctuations (net)  (65.88)  (407.20)

Provision for Non-moving/ obsolete Inventory  155.26  875.00 

Charity and donation  26.78  522.60 

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer note-48)  528.08  401.22 

Provision for Expected Credit Losses (Net)  177.36  739.00 

Bio composting expenses  241.84  239.35 

Professional Fee & retainership expenses  432.21  491.93 

Communication  116.49  126.01 

Sundry balances written off  43.35  522.54 

Loss on sale / write off of assets  61.07  77.58 

Bank charges  31.11  29.72 

Other overheads  3,083.29  3,117.17 

Bottling Charges  3,350.66  3,218.95 

Selling and distribution:

 Freight outwards  10,738.47  10,986.75 

 Supervision charges after sales  773.37  716.63 

 Supervision charges to supervisors  2,792.33  2,223.07 

 Rebate discount and allowance  3,384.31  3,236.81 

 Advertisement & sales promotion  13,963.14  13,961.26 

 63,043.64  62,096.04 

37 	Exceptional items (Refer note 59)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Enviromental Compensation  -    702.00 

Settlement under Sabka Vikas Scheme  -    858.59 

Written-off towards matters arising consequent to prohibition in the state 
of Bihar 

 -    856.03 

 -    2,416.62 
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38 	Other comprehensive income

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Actuarial Gain / (loss) on employee benefits  (115.25)  (361.38)

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  29.01  90.95 

Share in other comprehensive income/(loss) of joint venture  0.65  (3.00)

 (85.59)  (273.43)

39 a)	 Capital Commitments

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Estimated amount of Capital commitments (Net of advances)  879.64  2,503.98 

 879.64  2,503.98 

39 b)	 Contingent Liabilities not provided for:

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

i) Claims against the group, not acknowledged as debts

(a) Disputed liability relating to ESI Contribution  0.89  0.89 

(b) Disputed liability relating to PF contribution of contractor labour  24.35  24.35 

(c) Disputed liability relating to payment of late re-calibration fees on 
verification and stamping of manufacturing vats/tanks installed 
at distillery.

 155.00  155.00 

(d) Disputed VAT/Sales/GST/Entry/Service Tax matters under appeal  186.15  186.15 

(e) Disputed Excise matters  551.75  551.75 

(f) Disputed Stamp duty claim arising out of amalgamation, being 
contested

 80.00  80.00 

(g) Disputed customs duty  10.73  16.63 

 1,008.87  1,014.77 

ii)	 In February 2007, the Madhya Pradesh State Industrial Development Corporation Ltd. demanded a sum of  
` 168.09 lakhs besides unspecified expenses arising out of the alleged non-compliance of conditions relating to 
its holding of shares in Abhishek Cement Ltd., prior to its merger with Radico Khaitan Ltd. in the financial year 
2002-03. The writ petition filed by the Group before the Madhya Pradesh High Court has been partly allowed 
by confirming the recovery of ` 167.32 lakhs against the Company. However, the division bench of the Madhya 
Pradesh High Court has stayed the recovery proceedings initiated by local collector office. The court has ordered 
to maintain ` 100 lakhs in State Bank of India till the final adjudication of the matter. The matter is since sub-
judice.	

iii)	 (a)	� The applicability of Goods & Service Tax Act, 2017 on Extra Neutral Alcohol (ENA) was kept on hold by 
the GST council vide their minutes of meeting dated 05.08.2017, 22.12.2018 and 20.09.2019 wherein the 
ENA meant for the potable purpose was kept under the control of respective State Governments, and 
accordingly the Group is paying the state taxes on ENA as applicable in the respective states.

	 (b)	� The Deputy Commissioner (Commercial Tax), Sector I, Rampur had issued notices on 14.11.2019, 15.11.2019 
and 16.11.2019 for the leviability of GST on ENA w.e.f. July 2017. Radico Khaitan has filed writ petition before 
Hon’ble High Court of Allahabad, challenging these notices, with the plea that potable ENA is kept out of 
the purview of GST by the GST Council. The Hon’ble Court on 10th January 2020, granted stay to the Group  
against any proceedings under GST and also advised the department to file a response.

iv)	 A minor fire occurred at the Company (UP) Rampur plant on 6th March, 2021 involving two of the alcohol storage 
tanks. The Group’s emergency response team along with the local fire brigades were able to bring the fire under 
control without further spread to the plant’s other areas. There was no loss of life.	
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	 This accident resulted in loss of Extra Neutral Alcohol to the tune of 1.81 Lakh alcoholic liters stored in these two 
tanks translating into a financial loss of ` 270 Lakhs including the replacement cost of damaged tanks. The Group 
immediately filed the insurance claim which is being assessed by the Insurer. Meanwhile, an interim measure claim 
of ` 50 lakhs has already been received.						    

	 Beside this, the U.P. State Excise Department has issued a show cause notice (SCN) to us claiming an excise duty 
amounting to ` 1,822.77 Lakhs on the alcohol lost in the accident. Based on the opinion of the legal counsel, the 
Group has filed an appeal under Rule 813 of the U.P. Excise Rule before the U.P. Commissioner of Excise seeking 
relief from the above claim by way of setting aside the above mentioned SCN, considering this loss of alcohol as 
an unavoidable accident of fire. 						    

39 c) 	 Lease Commitments:	

		  Disclosure as per Ind AS 116

	 On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of ‘Right of Use’ asset of ` 1029.17 lakhs, 
and a lease liability of ̀  1203.67 lakhs. The cumulative effect of applying the standard, amounting to ̀ 130.58 lakhs 
was debited to retained earnings, net of taxes of ` 43.92 lakhs. Ind AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows 
from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments.

	 The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

	 1. 	� Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with 
a similar end date.

	 2. 	� Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months 
of lease term on the date of initial application.

	 3.	� Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial 
application.

	 4.	� Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, 
Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

	 5. 	 The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as applicable.

		F  ollowing are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets :

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year  740.08 1029.17

Additions  1,187.61 271.28

Deletion  -   -

Depreciation  (499.46)  (560.37)

Balance at end of the year  1,428.23  740.08 

	 The aggregate depreciation expense on Right to use assets is included under depreciation and amortization 
expense in the statement of Profit and Loss

		  The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Current lease liabilities  413.39  502.96 

Non current lease liabilities  1,070.85  362.09 

Total  1,484.24  865.05 
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		  The following is the movement in lease liabilities:				  

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year  865.05  1,206.12 

Additions  1,187.36  271.28 

Finance cost accrued during the year  124.67  140.44 

Payment of lease liabilities (Total cash outflow)  (692.84)  (752.79)

Balance at end of the year  1,484.24  865.05 

	 The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are 
sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.	

	 Rental expense recorded for short-term leases is ` 148.95 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2021, (previous year 
` 138.03 Lakhs).

		  Impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 on statement of profit & loss						    

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 34)  124.67  140.44 

Depreciation of right-to-use asset (refer note 2)  499.46  560.37 

Deferred tax (credit)  -    (13.08)

Impact on statement of profit & loss during the year  624.13  687.73 

40 	 In the opinion of the Management and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on realisation of current/
non current  assets, loans and advances in the ordinary course of business would not be less than the amount at which 
they are stated in the financial statements.

41 	Di vidend on Equity Shares

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

Dividend on Equity Shares declared and paid during the year

Dividend of ` 2.00 per share (Previous Year ` 1.20 per share) for financial 
year 2019-20

 2,670.85  1,600.91 

Dividend Distribution Tax  -    329.07 

 2,670.85  1,929.98 

Proposed dividends on Equity shares not recognised as liability

Dividend of ` 2.40 per share (Previous Year ` 2.00 per share) for financial 
year 2020-21

 3,205.64  2,670.69 

Dividend Distribution Tax  -    -   

 3,205.64  2,670.69 

	 Proposed dividends on equity shares are subject to approval at the annual general meeting and are not recognised as 
a liability as at March 31. All proposed dividends were approved as proposed and paid in subsequent year.
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42 	Earnings per equity share (EPS) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to 
equity holders of the group by the weighted average number of Equity 
shares outstanding during the year (Amount in INR)

 20.75  17.16 

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity 
holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding 
during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that 
would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares 
into Equity shares (Amount in INR).

 20.74  17.15 

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Profit attributable to equity holder for basic earnings  27,715.79  22,913.99 

Effect of dilution:

Share options (ESOP)  1.79 8.59 

Profit attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution  27,717.58  22,922.58 

Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic EPS  133,544,276  133,443,402 

Effect of dilution:

Share options (Refer Note 16 (e))  105,500  139,500 

Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of 

dilution

 133,649,776  133,582,902 

43 	Income Tax

The major components of Income Tax expense 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

Current Income Tax:

Current income tax charge  8,435.85  7,095.03 

Total (A)  8,435.85  7,095.03 

Deferred Tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences  207.19  (2,576.43)

Total (B)  207.19  (2,576.43)

OCI section

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

Net loss/(gain) on re-measurements of defined benefit plans  (29.01)  (90.95)

Income tax charged to OCI  (29.01)  (90.95)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by 

India’s domestic tax rate for:-

Differential tax impact for land indexation at a rate different from the 
statutory rate

 71.80  56.00 

Amortisation of certain assets not claimed as deduction under tax  (47.98)  (47.72)

Differential impact of provisions  -    -   

Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)  (14.62)  (17.99)

Deduction claimed in Tax but not in books  204.19  203.36 

Others  30.43  2,150.73 

Total (C)  243.82  2,344.38 

Total (A)+ (B)+ (C)  8,886.86  6,862.98 

Accounting profit before tax 35,310.16 27,268.67

Income tax calculated at India’s statutory Income Tax Rate  8,886.86  6,862.98 

Other non-deductible expenses  -    -   

Total  8,886.86  6,862.98 
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	D eferred tax

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Deferred tax relates to the following:

Property, plant and equipment  (9,575.14)  (9,429.54)

Other Ind-AS adjustments (security deposit, lease liability etc.)  914.67  1,031.30 

Provision created under Expected credit loss  635.69  551.64 

Tax holiday units  -    -   

Mat Credit Entitlement  -    -   

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)  (8,024.78)  (7,846.60)

Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:

Deferred tax assets (continuing operations)  1,800.29  2,108.73 

Deferred tax liabilities (continuing operations)  (9,825.07)  (9,955.33)

Mat Credit Entitlement  -    -   

Deferred tax liabilities (net)  (8,024.78)  (7,846.60)

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities (net):

Opening balance  7,846.60  10,404.90 

Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in profit or loss  207.19  (2,576.43)

Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in OCI  (29.01)  (90.95)

Impact of Ind AS 116  -    (43.92)

Change in MAT Credit  -    153.00 

Closing balance  8,024.78  7,846.60 

	 The group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the 
same tax authority		

44 	List of Investment

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

 Joint Venture  Joint Venture 

(i)The name of Investee  Radico NV 
Distilleries 

Maharashtra 
Limited 

 Radico NV 
Distilleries 

Maharashtra 
Limited 

(ii)The principal place of business  Aurangabad 
(Maharashtra) 

 Aurangabad 
(Maharashtra) 

(iii)The ownership interest held 36% 36%

(iv)The method used to account for the investment  Accounted at cost  Accounted at cost 

 45 	Segment reporting						   

i)	 Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is 
available that is evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Officer, in deciding how to allocate resources and 
assessing performance. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting 
provided to the chief operating decision maker. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, 
the Chief Operating Officer evaluates the group’s performance based on only one segment i.e. manufacturing 
and trading in Liquor & Alcohol.		

	 ii)	 Geographical information						    

	 The geographical segments have been considered for disclosure as the secondary segment, under which the 
domestic segment includes sales to customers located in India and overseas segment includes sales to customer 
located outside India.
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Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Revenue from Operation

Domestic  223,652.46  232,945.82 

Overseas  18,161.35  9,758.20 

 241,813.81  242,704.02 

	 Note: There are no non-current assets located outside India.

 46 	Related party transactions and disclosures						    

	 (1)	 Related parties and their relationship :						    

		  I 	 Key Management personnel :						    

			    (1) Dr. Lalit Khaitan,  Chairman & Managing Director 

 			   (2) Mr. Abhishek  Khaitan,  Managing  Director 

 			   (3) Mr. K.P.Singh,  Whole Time  Director 

			   (4) Mr. Dilip K Banthiya, Chief Financial Officer

 			   (5) Mr. Amit Manchanda, Company Secretary (upto 28.01.2021)

 			   (6) Mr. Dinesh Kumar Gupta, Company Secretary (w.e.f. 28.01.2021)

		  II 	 Relatives of Key Management personnel :						    

			   (1) Mrs. Deepshikha Khaitan (Wife of Mr Abhishek Khaitan)						    

		  III 	�E nterprises that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, 

or are under common control with, the reporting enterprise :

	  		   (1) Sapphire Intrex Ltd. 

			   (2) The Rampur Distillery & Chemical Company Ltd. (Employees P. F. Trust) 

 			   (3) The Rampur Distillery & Chemical Company Ltd. (Employees Group Gratuity Trust) 

 			   (4) The Rampur Distillery & Chemical Company Ltd. (Employees Superannuation Scheme) 

 		  IV 	 Joint Ventures:						    

	  		   (1) Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Limited 						    
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	 (2)	 Transaction with above in the ordinary course of business :	

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

Key Management Personnel :

Dr. Lalit Khaitan, Chairman & Managing Director
Remuneration
    Salary and Allowances  871.77  797.04 
    Contribution to Provident and other Funds  56.01  49.14 
    Value of benefits, calculated as per Income Tax Rules  36.31  22.43 
Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, Managing  Director
Remuneration
    Salary and Allowances  871.77  797.04 
    Contribution to Provident and other Funds  57.01  50.14 
    Value of benefits, calculated as per Income Tax Rules  28.86  19.51 
Mr. K.P.Singh, Whole Time  Director
Remuneration
    Salary and Allowances  191.83  181.86 
    Contribution to Provident and other Funds.  7.48  8.48 
    Value of benefits, calculated as per Income Tax Rules  1.75  52.14 
Mr. Dilip K Banthiya, Chief Financial Officer
Remuneration
    Salary and Allowances  204.08  222.97 
    Contribution to Provident and other Funds  10.21  10.21 
    Value of benefits, calculated as per Income Tax Rules  3.70  50.70 
Mr. Amit Manchanda, Company secretary
Remuneration
    Salary and Allowances  44.14  54.29 
    Contribution to Provident and other Funds  2.82  3.21 
    Value of benefits, calculated as per Income Tax Rules  0.82  25.14 
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Gupta, Company secretary
Remuneration
    Salary and Allowances  14.85 
    Contribution to Provident and other Funds  0.65 
    Value of benefits, calculated as per Income Tax Rules  0.34 
Relatives of Key Management personnel :

Mrs. Deepshikha Khaitan (wife of Mr. Abhishek Khaitan)
Remuneration
    Salary and Allowances  -    11.60 
    Contribution to Provident and other Funds  -    1.95 
    Value of benefits, calculated as per Income Tax Rules  -    1.18 
Enterprises that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or are 

under common control with, the reporting enterprise :

Sapphire Intrex Ltd.
Security Receivable  60.00  60.00 
Rent Paid  69.48  69.48 
Contribution paid (Employer's contribution only)

The Rampur Distillery & Chemical Company Ltd. (Employees P. F. 
Trust) 

 563.26  541.65 

The Rampur Distillery & Chemical Company Ltd. (Employees Group 
Gratuity Trust) 

 344.52  542.70 

The Rampur Distillery & Chemical Company Ltd. (Employees 
Superannuation Scheme) 

 102.79  105.30 
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Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Joint Venture

Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Limited
Sale of Fixed Assets  -    23.18 

Commission Income  428.19  0.47 

Lease rent paid  7.08  7.08 

Bottling Charges Paid *  716.62  523.22 

Tie-up operation income  4.00  13.72 

Dividend on Preference Shares  200.00  200.00 

Dividend on Equity Shares  611.30  159.57 

Purchase of material  3,580.49  3,068.58 

Sale of material  2.89  -   

Advances Recoverable  -    22.29 

Payable  142.26  140.29 

Dividend receivable  -    -   

Investment in preference share & equity share  18,439.43  17,779.35 

	 * Excluding GST refundable on export consignment bottling ` 15.32 Lakhs.	

	 Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties						    

	 The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length 
transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. 
There have been no outstanding guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables in the 
current financial year. For the year ended March 31, 2021, the group has not recorded any impairment of receivables 
relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2020: ̀  Nil). This assessment is undertaken in each financial year 
through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.		
				  

47 	Payment to Auditors 						    

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

i)  Audit Fee  31.50  31.50 
ii) Limited Review Fee  13.50  13.50 
iii) GST on (i) and (ii) above  8.10  8.10 
iv) Other Services (Certification Fee including Taxes)  0.24  1.31 
v) Reimbursement of Out of Pocket Expenses (including taxes)  0.55  2.26 

 53.89  56.67 

 48 	Details of CSR expenditure

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2021 For the year ended March 31, 2020

 i) Gross amount required to be spent 
by the Group (including carry 
forwarded unspent amount)

 457.02 427.18 

In cash/  
Payable

 Yet to  
be paid in cash 

In cash 
/ Payable

Yet to  
be paid in cash

 ii) Amount spent during the year :
For construction / acquisition of 
assets

 -    -    -    -   

For other purposes  528.08  -    401.22  -   
 iii) Unspent amount  (71.06)  -    25.96  -   
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49 	 i)	 Remittance in foreign currency / or to the mandate banks on account of dividends to non residents	

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

(i) Number of non resident shareholders  16  16 

(ii) Number of shares held by them  14,880  14,880 

(iii) Dividend per share 2.00 1.20 

(iv) Financial year to which the dividend relates 2019-20 2018-19

ii) Earnings in foreign exchange  -  Export of goods on FOB basis  17,623.93  9,513.54 

50 	Foreign currency exposure						    

	D erivatives not designated as hedging instruments						    

	 The group uses foreign currency denominated borrowings and foreign exchange forward contracts to manage some 
of its transaction exposures. However such foreign currency denominated borrowings have not been designated as 
hedge. Such derivatives are recorded at mark to market at each reporting date with a corresponding recognition in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.						    

	D etails of foreign currency exposure of the company :						    

Particulars

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

Foreign  
Currency  INR 

Foreign 
Currency  INR 

Other foreign currency exposures:
Trade Receivables 

  USD  87.00  6,394.64  55.42  4,178.09 
  EURO  0.14  12.05  0.90  75.02 
  GBP  0.02  2.49  -    -   

Advances from Customers
USD  0.71  52.23  1.14  85.84 
GBP  -    -    0.00  0.03 

Trade payables 
USD  1.79  131.56  7.06  532.59 
EURO  0.02  1.66  0.26  21.29 
GBP  0.00  0.08  0.23  21.87 

Advances to Vendors
USD  0.13  9.80  2.32  174.95 
EURO  1.46  125.64  2.06  170.93 
GBP  0.62  62.90  0.56  52.50 

Balance with banks
USD  1.59  116.69  0.37  28.20 

51 	Fi nancial Instruments						   

	 A- Fair values 						    

	 The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities except for certain financial assets i.e. “instrument carried at fair 
value” appearing in the financial statement are reasonable approximation of fair value. Such investments of those 
financial instruments carried at fair value are disclosed below:-						    

Particulars

Fair value Carrying value

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Financial assets measured at fair value 

through profit and loss

Investments
Equity shares  0.60  0.60  0.60  0.60 
Total  0.60  0.60  0.60  0.60 
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	 B- Fair value hierarchy						   

	 The following table provides fair value management hierarchy of the company`s assets:	

Quoted prices in 

active markets 

 (Level 1)

Significant 

observable inputs        

(Level 2)

Significant 

unobservable inputs  

 (Level 3)

March 31, 2021

Investment

Equity share  -    -    0.60 
Total  -    -    0.60 

March 31, 2020

Investment

Equity share  -    -    0.60 
Total  -    -    0.60 

	 There have been no transfer between level 1, level 2 and level 3 during the year.

	 C- Valuation techniques and processes used to determine fair value 						    

	 Fair value of unquoted investments is determined based on the present values, calculated using generally accepted 
valuation principles.

	D - Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value 						    

	 Significant unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value measurement:-

	N on current investment - Unquoted						    

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Fair Value  0.60  0.60 

Significant unobservable inputs*

  Earnings growth rate (%)  10.00  10.00 

  Risk adjusted discount rate (%)  10.00  10.00 

* There were no significant inter-relationships between unobservable inputs that materially affect fair values.

E- Reconciliation of financial instruments categorised under level 3

Opening at the beginning of the year  0.60  0.60 

Additions during the year  -    -   

Gain/(Loss) recognised in OCI during the year  -    -   

Closing at the end of the year  0.60  0.60 

 52 	Financial risk management objectives and policies	

	 The group’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, security deposits and trade and other 
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the group’s operations and to provide guarantees 
to support its operations. The group’s principal financial assets include loans, investment in preference shares & equity 
shares, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from its operations.

	 The group’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely market risks, credit risk and liquidity 
risk. The group’s senior management has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the group’s risk 
management framework. The Group has constituted a Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing 
and monitoring the group’s risk management policies. The group’s risk management policies are established to identify 
and analyse the risks faced by the group, to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls, periodically review 
the changes in market conditions and reflect the changes in the policy accordingly. The key risks and mitigating 
actions are also placed before the Audit Committee of the group.
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	 (a)	 Market Risk

	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk and currency risk and equity price risk. 
Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

	 The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

	 The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating 
interest rates of the debt and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies  to total debts.

	 The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other 
post-retirement obligations and provisions. 

	 The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

	 The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. 
This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

		  (i)	 Interest Rate Risk

			�   Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest 
rates relates primarily to the group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

			   Interest rate sensitivity:

			�   The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that 
portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the group’s profit before 
tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows

			�   At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the group’s interest bearing financial instrument is as its fair 
value:

Particulars

Carrying amounts

As at 
 March 31, 2021

As at 
 March 31, 2020

Variable rate instruments

Long term borrowings  26.91  153.31 

Current maturities of long term debt  126.60  137.25 

Short term borrowings  27,182.44  39,736.97 

			   Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments						    

			�   The Group does not have any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. 
Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss and neither would 
it affect the equity.						    

			�   A change of 100 basis points in interest rates for variable rate instruments at the reporting date would have 
increased/(decreased) profit or loss for the below years by the amounts shown below. With all other variables 
held constant, the Group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as 
follows:

Particulars

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

Increase/ (decrease) in basis points  100  (100)  100  (100)
Effect on profit before tax (increase)/ decrease 273.36 (273.36) 400.28  (400.28)

	 The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently 
observable market environment.	
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		  (ii)	F oreign currency risk						    

	 The Indian National Rupee is the group’s most significant currency. As a consequence, the group’s results are 
presented in Indian National Rupee and exposures are managed against Indian National Rupee accordingly. 
The group has limited foreign currency exposure which are mainly on account of imports and exports.The 
group has not hedged its imports and exports, since they have short recovery cycle and act as natural 
hedging reducing the foreign currency risk.	

			F   oreign currency sensitivity:

	 The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign currency 
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the group’s profit before tax due to 
changes in the fair value of foreign currency exposure.

			S   ensitivity to risk

Particulars

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

Increase/ (decrease) in Currency rate (USD/EURO/GBP) 2.75% (2.75%) 2.75% (2.75%)

Effect on profit before tax increase/ (decrease)  USD  174.28  (174.28)  103.48  (103.48)
Effect on profit before tax increase/ (decrease)  EURO  3.74  (3.74)  1.48  (1.48)
Effect on profit before tax increase/ (decrease) GBP  1.80  (1.80)  0.84  (0.84)

		  (iii)	E quity price risk						    

			�   The group’s equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future 
values of the investment securities. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the group’s senior 
management on a regular basis. The group’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment 
decisions.

			   At the reporting date, the exposure to:

			   -unlisted equity securities at fair value is ` 0.60 Lakhs. 

			   -unlisted equity in Joint Venture at cost of ` 13,538.53 Lakhs

	 (b)	 Credit Risk

		�  Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer 
contract, leading to a financial loss. The group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily 
trade receivables) and from its financing activities, financial assets. Management has a credit policy in place and 
the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers 
requiring credit over a certain amount. 

		  Trade receivables and loans

		�  Credit risk is managed by group in accordance with the group’s established policy, procedures and control 
relating to credit risk management. Credit quality is assessed based on an extensive credit rating and individual 
credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables and loans are 
regularly monitored.						    

		�  An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for receivables and loans. The 
calculation is based on historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying 
value of each class of financial assets disclosed in note below. The group does not hold collateral as security. The 
group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in 
several jurisdictions and has been rated highly based on internal credit assessment parameters.

		�  Presently, In the current COVID-19 scenario, there are no indication of any material risk. However going forward 
this could be possible risk which will be addressed as & when they arise. 
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		F  inancial instruments and cash deposits

		�  Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the group’s treasury department 
in accordance with the group’s policy. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the group’s Board of Directors 
on an annual basis. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss 
through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

		�  The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance Sheet at March 31, 2021 and 
March 31, 2020 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in note below. 

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Non Current Financial assets

Investment in a joint venture  18,439.43  17,779.35 
Investment in others  0.60  0.60 
Loans  973.33  1,658.26 
Others  66.61  179.95 

 19,479.97  19,618.16 

Current Financial assets

Trade receivables  69,745.74  82,305.44 
Cash and cash equivalents  12,110.36  1,010.43 
Bank balances other than above  887.71  813.55 
Loans  4,573.15  4,073.86 
Others  2,896.58  2,050.18 

 90,213.54  90,253.46 

	 (c)	 Liquidity Risk						   

		�  “The group monitors its risk of shortage of funds on a regular basis. The group’s objective is to maintain a balance 
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts and bank loans. The group 
assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. 

		�  The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual 
undiscounted payments:

Particulars

Payable within 

one year

Payable within one 

year to five years Total

As at March 31, 2021:

Term loans from banks  126.60  26.91  153.51 
Short term loan  27,182.44  -    27,182.44 
Trade payables  26,190.77  -    26,190.77 
Other Financial Liabilities  3,205.36  1,143.30  4,348.66 

As at March 31, 2020:

Term loans from banks  137.25  153.51  290.76 
Short term loan  39,736.97  -    39,736.97 
Trade payables  26,423.78  -    26,423.78 
Other Financial Liabilities  3,049.40  514.96  3,564.36 

	 It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at 
significantly different amounts.						    

		E  xcessive risk concentration						    

	 Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities 
in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual 
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate 
the relative sensitivity of the group’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry.
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	 In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the group’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines 
to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and 
managed accordingly.	

		  Collateral

	 The group has created a charge in favour of the lenders for loans and borrowings (Refer note-18 and 23 on 
Borrowings for details).		

53 	 (I) Post-employment benefit plans

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Gratuity  170.77  388.08 

	 The group has a defined benefit plans for Gratuity, Provident Fund and Leave Encashment. For provident fund, group 
makes contribution to provident fund trust. Gratuity plan is funded with LIC and requires contributions to be made 
to a separate fund administered by LIC. Leave encashment liability of the group is unfunded. The gratuity plan is 
governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is 
entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at 
retirement age. 

	 Each year, the Board of Trustees reviews the level of funding in the Gratuity plan and Provident fund. Such a review 
includes the asset-liability matching strategy and investment risk management policy. The Board of Trustees decides 
its contribution based on the results of this annual review. The Board of Trustees aim to keep annual contributions 
relatively stable at a level such that no plan deficits (based on valuation performed) will arise.

	 The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet for the respective plans.

	 Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020

Particulars

Gratuity

Defined benefit 
obligation

Fair value of  
plan assets

Benefit  
liability

April 01, 2020  (3,350.02)  2,961.95  (388.07)

Cost charged to profit or loss

Service cost  (198.11)  (198.11)

Net interest expense  (227.80)  201.41  (26.39)

Sub-total included in profit or loss  (425.91)  201.41  (224.50)

Benefits paid  187.48  (187.48)  -   

Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other 
comprehensive income

 -    -    -   

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in 
net interest expense)

 -    (10.86)  (10.86)

Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic 
assumptions

 -    -    -   

Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial 
assumptions

 -    -    -   

Experience adjustments  (104.39)  -    (104.39)

Sub-total included in OCI  (104.39)  (10.86)  (115.25)

Contributions by employer  -    557.05  557.05 

March 31, 2021  (3,692.84)  3,522.07  (170.77)
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Particulars

Gratuity
Defined benefit 

obligation
Fair value of  

plan assets
Benefit  
liability

April 01, 2019 (2762.71) 2621.16 (141.55)
Cost charged to profit or loss
Service cost  (188.62)  -    (188.62)
Net interest expense  (211.62)  200.78  (10.84)
Sub-total included in profit or loss  (400.24)  200.78  (199.46)
Benefits paid  157.01  (157.01)  -   
Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other 

comprehensive income

 -    -    -   

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in 
net interest expense)

 -    (17.30)  (17.30)

Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic 
assumptions

 0.35  -    0.35 

Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial 
assumptions

 (186.07)  -    (186.07)

Experience adjustments  (158.36)  -    (158.36)
Sub-total included in OCI  (344.08)  (17.30)  (361.38)
Contributions by employer  -    314.32  314.32 
March 31, 2020  (3,350.02)  2,961.95  (388.07)

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Funds Managed by Insurer  3,522.07  2,961.95 
Total  3,522.07  2,961.95 

	 Significant assumptions used in calculation of post-employment defined benefit obligation of the group’s are 

shown below:

Particulars
As at 

 March 31, 2021
As at 

 March 31, 2020

Discount rate % %
Future salary increases 6.80% 6.80%
Mortality rate 5.50% 5.50%

100% of IALM 
(2012 - 14)

100% of IALM 
(2012 - 14)

	 A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 :

Particulars

Gratuity Gratuity

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

Assumption  Discount Rate  Discount Rate
Sensitivity Level 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%

Increase Increase Decrease Decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation  (106.54)  (110.85)  113.21  117.96 

Assumption Future Salary Future Salary
Sensitivity Level 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%

Increase Increase Decrease Decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation  114.09  118.87  (108.31)  (112.69)

	 The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined 
benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

	 Expected contribution to post employment benefit plans for the next Annual reporting period is `216.42 lakhs
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	 The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particulars

Gratuity

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)  511.76  328.09 
Between 2 and 5 years  431.65  384.29 
Beyond 5 years  2,749.45  2,637.64 
Total expected payments  3,692.86  3,350.02 

The average duration of the Gratuity at the end of the reporting period 14.93 14.54
(II) Defined Contribution Plans

Contribution to defined contribution plan, recognised as expenses for the 

year are as under:

i) Recognised Providend Fund (including family pension)  820.67  655.83 
ii) Super annuation Fund  102.79  105.30 
iii) Group Insurance Scheme  41.75  42.54 
iv) Employees' State Insurance  26.81  31.30 

 992.02  834.97 

54 	Information under 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

Particulars

Gratuity

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

(a) Loans given:
i)	 In the form of unsecured short-term Inter corporate Deposits *
	 Opening Balance  3,159.21  4,895.00 
	 Given during the year  600.00  750.00 
	 Received / adjusted during the year  (1,070.53)  (2,485.79)
	 Closing Balances  2,688.68  3,159.21 

(b) Investments made (As disclosed under Note.3 & 4)

	 * All loans  are given to unrelated entities at interest rates ranging from 10% to 12% per annum.All the loans are 
provided for business purposes of respective entities, repayable on demand with prepayment option to the borrower.

55 	Capital management						    

	 For the purpose of the group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and other equity 
attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the group’s capital management is to 
maximise the shareholder’s wealth. 						    

	 The group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and 
to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitor the return on capital employed as well 
as the level of dividend to shareholders.						    

	 The group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the 
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the dividend 
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The group monitors capital using a debt 
equity ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. The group’s policy is to keep the debt equity ratio between 70% 
and 100%. The group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents, 
excluding discontinued operations.						    
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	 The group’s debt equity ratio was as follows:

Particulars

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

Borrowings  27,335.95  40,027.53 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents  (12,110.36)  (1,010.43)
Net debt  15,225.59  39,017.10 

Equity Capital  2,671.37  2,670.69 
Other Equity  176,620.21  151,623.00 
Total Equity  179,291.58  154,293.69 

Debt Equity Ratio 8.49% 25.29%

	 In order to achieve this overall objective, the group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure 
that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure 
requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and 
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in 
the current financial year. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during 
the year ended March 31, 2021.

56 	 The nationwide lockdown imposed by the Government of India, due to the COVID -19 pandemic, was lifted in a phased 
manner. Accordingly, the group’s operations including bottling facilities have become operational with necessary 
safety measures, even though temporary disruptions occurred from time to time, including recent surge.

	 The group has evaluated the impact of this pandemic on its business operations and financial position. Based on such 
review, there is no significant impact on the group’s assets, capital and financial resources, profitability parameters or 
liquidity positions as at March 31, 2021.

	 The Management does not envisage any impact on the going concern assumption in the foreseeable future. However, 
the impact assessment of COVID-19 will be a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and 
duration. 

57 	�D etails of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under MSMED 
Act 2006

Particulars

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon 
remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 
accounting year;

Principal  3,073.83  2,768.72 

Interest Nil  17.79 
(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of 
section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the 
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond 
the appointed day during each accounting year;

Nil Nil
(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period 
of delay in making payment (which has been paid but 
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

Nil Nil
(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining 
unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

 Nil  17.79 
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(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and 
payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the 
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

 Nil  17.79 

	 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the 
basis of information collected by the Management and relied upon by the auditors. Interest, if any, on these have been 
provided since identified.	

58 	�N ote on Reduction of Share Capital of Joint Venture Entity ( given in the 
financial statement adopted on June 25, 2019)

	 Based on NCLT order dated 16th December 2019, the joint venture entity (Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Ltd.) 
has reduced its equity capital from ` 7387.72 lakhs to ` 3773.58 lakhs w.e.f. March 31,2019. As a result, the reserve of 
the joint venture increased to ` 39610.95 lakhs from ` 35996.81 lakhs. The impact of the said change has reflected in 
the annualised accounts as at March 31, 2020 by the JV company. Proportionately impact on the nos. of equity shares 
held in the joint venture has been taken.	

59 	Exceptional items (Refer note no. 37)

	 (a)	� The Central Pollution Control Board (CPCB) vide its letter dated August 06, 2019 pursuant to Group’s 
representation and their subsequent inspection has allowed the Group to restore capacity of its molasses plant 
from 77 KLD to 200 KLD. Environmental Compensation of `702.00 lakhs as levied by CPCB, has been paid and 
accounted for during the year.  						    

	 (b)	� In accordance with Sabka Vishwas Scheme 2019, `858.59 Lakhs was paid towards Central excise duty as one-
time settlement, for the period April 2007 to June 2017 in line with legal advice and accounted for during the 
reporting year.

	 (c)	� The Government of Bihar in exercise of the powers conferred under Section 19(4) of the Bihar Excise Act, 1915 
through its notification dated April 5, 2016, imposed a ban on trade and consumption of Liquor in the State of 
Bihar.  As on March 31, 2019, the Group had an outstanding of ` 1259.12 lakhs with the Bihar State Beverages 
Corporation Limited (“”BSBCL””). An amount of ` 403.09 lakhs pertaining to VAT refund from the Government 
of Bihar under the applicable law at that time, in respect of billed stocks returned by BSBCL or stocks destroyed 
pursuant relevant notifications, has been received in June`2019. The balance of ` 856.03 lakhs, has been written 
off, as a matter of prudence and it is disclosed as an exceptional item.

60 	Interest in other Entities

	 a)	 Interest in Joint Venture

Name of the 

group

Place of 

Business

% of 

Ownership 

Interest Relationship 

Accouting 

Method

 Carrying amount 

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

Radico NV 
Distilleries  
Maharashtra 
Limited

Maharashtra 36%  Joint Venture Equity 
Method

16,439.43 15,779.35 

	 (b)	 Summarised financial information of the joint venture:						    

		�  The table below provide summarised financial information for the joint venture of the group. The information 
disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the joint venture and not Radico Khaitan 
Limited’s share of those amounts.
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		S  ummarised Balance Sheet:						    

Particulars

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment  31,983.31  33,291.92 
Capital work-in-progress  55.79  124.92 
Investment property  35.01  38.12 
Intangible assets  112.65  112.65 
Financial assets  2,285.92  2,032.71 
Income Tax Assets (net)  43.54  296.25 
Other non-current assets  18.77  38.50 
Current assets

Inventories  8,331.45  10,237.46 
Financial assets  8,659.43  4,044.96 
Other current assets  2,575.10  2,624.25 

 54,100.97  52,841.74 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity Share capital  3,773.58  3,773.58 
Other Equity  41,357.15  39,523.58 
Non-current liabilities

Financial Liabilities  2,844.99  3,059.52 
Provisions  112.86  136.93 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net)  3,685.85  3,871.43 
Other non-current liabilities  32.02  34.22 
Current liabilities

Financial Liabilities  1,598.34  1,872.63 
Other current liabilities  573.80  427.01 
Provisions  61.97  80.00 
Current tax liabilities (net)  60.41  62.84 

 54,100.97  52,841.74 

		  Summarized Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended

Particulars

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

Revenue from operations  34,564.35  31,785.51 
Other income  2,584.55  176.19 

 37,148.90  31,961.70 

Cost of materials consumed  18,741.22  22,243.06 
Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock in process  2,279.58  (3,005.82)
Employee benefits expense  1,934.56  2,065.71 
Finance costs  382.09  327.81 
Depreciation and amortization expense  1,936.97  1,791.37 
Other expenses  7,808.57  7,679.89 

 33,082.99  31,102.02 

Profit/(loss)  for the year before taxation (A-B)  4,065.91  859.68 
Tax expense  536.04  404.35 
Profit/(loss)  for the year after tax  3,529.87  455.33 

Other Comprehensive Income  1.81  (8.32)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax  3,531.68  447.01 
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		  The capital commitment and contingent liabilities of the above joint venture are given below:

Particulars

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

Capital Commitments  88.05  122.24 
Contingent Liabilities  784.39  745.46 

		�  The producers of Alcohol from Grain including us received show cause notice during 2018-19  from Commissioner 
of Excise, Maharashtra demanding duty on lower recovery of alcohol from Grain which was suitably replied by the 
industry and the group, however, notice of hearing is still awaited from the Commissioner.

	 (c)	 Reconciliation of Carrying Amount

		  The table below provides the reconciliation to carrying amounts for the joint venture to the group.

Particulars

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

Opening Net Assets  43,831.57  43,384.56 
Profit for the year  1,831.76  455.33 
 Other Comprehensive Income  1.81  (8.32)
Total Comprehensive Inccome/ (Loss) for the year, net of tax  1,833.57  447.01 
Closing Net Assets  45,665.14  43,831.57 
Group's Share in % 36% 36%
Group's Share in `  16,439.43  15,779.35 
Carrying Amount 16439.43  15,779.35 

62 	Social Security Code						    

	 The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the 
group towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the 
Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under 
active consideration by the Ministry. The Group will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are 
notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective 
and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

63 	 Previous year figures have been re-grouped, wherever necessary, to correspond to current year figures.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
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